2=y

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

AGENDA
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
MONDAY, JUNE 26, 2017 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028
4:00 P.M. PHONE: (760) 728-1125

If you have a disability and need an accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call the
Secretary at (760) 728-1125, ext. 1130 for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made.

Writings that are public records and are distributed during a public meeting are available for public
inspection at the meeting if prepared by the local agency or a member of its legislative body or after the
meeting if prepared by some other person.

I PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS

CALL TO ORDER /ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA PER GC § 54954.2(b)

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public are invited to address the Board of Directors on any item that is
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. The Board President may
limit comments to three (3) minutes.

A MANAGER'S AWARDS

1. Owni Toma
2. Larry Ragsdale

il CONSENT CALENDAR (ITEMS B -D)
All items appearing on the Consent Calendar may be disposed of by a single
motion. Items shall be removed from the Consent Calendar if any member of the
Board of Directors or the public requests removal prior fo a vole on a motion to
approve the items. Such items shall be considered separately for action by the
Board.

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. Special Board Meeting/Workshop of May 17, 2017
2. Regular Board Meeting of May 22, 2017

001



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 2 June 26, 2017

Recommendation: The Board approve the minutes of the aforementioned meeting of
the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Ultility District.

C. RESOLUTION NO. 4914 PLACING FIXED CHARGE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
TO ADD DELINQUENT AND UNPAID CHARGES FOR WATER AND OTHER
SERVICES ON THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY PROPERTY TAX ROLL

Recommendation: The Board authorize the San Diego County Auditor/Controller to
assess a Fixed Charge Special Assessment to add delinquent and unpaid charges for
waler and other services on the property tax bills for those parcels to be filed
electronically and certified by the District to the County on or before August 10, 2017,
and adopt Resolution No. 4914.

D. ORDINANCE NO. 338 FIXING WATER STANDBY OR AVAILABILITY
CHARGES FOR 2017-18

Recommendation: The Board adopt Ordinance No. 338 as prepared and authorize the
Secretary fo send a certified copy to the Board of Supervisors and the Auditor and
Controller of the County of San Diego.

M. ACTION /DISCUSSION CALENDAR (ITEMS E - M)

E. SANTA MARGARITA PROPERTY UPDATE

Recommendation: Staff supports the Board's direction.

F. FIRE MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR THE SANTA MARGARITA RIVER
PROPERTY

Recommendation: If the Board wishes to pursue this effort, that the Board direct staff to
solicit for Professional Services to prepare a Fire Management Plan for the Santa
Margarita River Property. Staff will bring back their recommendation for award to the
Board for approval.

G.  COATING INSPECTION SERVICES - 8 MG, SANDIA AND 2.8 MG
RESERVOIRS

Recommendation: That the Board authorize execution of a professional services
contract between the District and MCS Inspection Group for the approved budgeted
coating inspection for the 8 MG, Sandia and 2.8 MG Reservoirs for coating inspection
services at a cost not to exceed $86,000.

H. 2017-18 FINAL BUDGET

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 4913 adopting the final budget
for fiscal year 2017-18.

002



Fallbrook Public Utility District

Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 3 June 26, 2017

l. EXCEPTION TO 180 DAY WAITING PERIOD

Recommendation: If is the recommendation that Resolution No. 4915 be approved by
the Board along with the employment agreement fo have Marcie Eilers return as a
relired annuitant prior to the 180 day waiting period to serve in the interim. The position
is a key position and serves as the lead on the finance and budget operations for the
District.

J. MICROSOFT OFFICE 2016 UPGRADE AND LICENSING REQUIREMENTS

Recommendation: That the Board approve the upgrade to Microsoft Office 2016 and
purchase 65 licenses in the amount of $28,365.19.

K. UPDATE ON DEVELOPMENT OF A POLICY FOR CLOSING THE FISCAL
YEAR

Recommendation: For information purposes; no action is being requested of the Board
at this time.

L. ESTABLISHING DISTRICT PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES COMPLIANT
WITH THE UNIFORM PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING ACT
(PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 22000 ET SEQ.), AND ELECTING TO
BECOME SUBJECT TO THE ACT (RESOLUTION ELECTING TO BECOME
SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT AND ORDINANCE REPEALING
AND REPLACING ARTICLE 14)

Recommendalion:

It is recommended that the Board fake the following actions:

1. Adopt Resolution 4916 electing to become subject fo the provisions of the
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act.

2. Adopt Ordinance 339 Repealing current Article 14 (Purchases and Sales,
Regulations Governing) and replacing it with revised Article 14 (District
Procurement Procedures), which establishes procurement procedures
compliant with the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act, will
help streamline the purchasing and contracting process, and maximize the
use of qualified local contractors and service providers where possible.

M. REPLACEMENT OF 5" WHEEL 3-AXLE TRACTOR

Recommendation: That the Board approve the purchase of one 5" Wheel 3 axle day
cab tracitor for $138,754.93 from San Diego Freightliner in San Diego, which was the
lowest responsive bidder, in order to maintain a reliable District fleet to complete
necessary infrastructure repairs and replacement.

003



Fallbrocok Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Agenda Page 4 June 26, 2017

IV. ORAL/WRITTEN REPORTS (ITEMS 1-7)

General Legal Counsel

SDCWA Representative/General Manager
Administrative Services Manager/Treasurer
Assistant General Manager

Public Affairs Specialist

Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended
Log of Board Requests

NSO hWN =

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION
V. CLOSED SESSION

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PER GC §
54957 (b) (1): TITLE - GENERAL MANAGER

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION (As Necessary)
VI. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING
DECLARATION OF POSTING

I, Mary Lou West, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public
Utility District, do hereby declare that | posted a copy of the foregoing agenda in the
glass case at the entrance of the District Office located at 990 East Mission Road,
Fallbrook, Califomia, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting in accordance with

Govermnment Code § 54954.2(a).

I, Mary Lou West, further declare under penalty of perjury and under the laws of
the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

June 22, 2017 Yo e LJ,OQI/
Dated / Fallbrock, CA Secretary,'Board of Directors

004



MEMO

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brian J. Brady, General Manager
DATE: June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Manager's Award

Owni Toma and Larry Ragsdale were presented with Manager’s Awards for their hard
work and dedication during the District's two recent major compliance inspections by
the County of San Diego, Department of Environmental Health for the District Risk
Management Plan process at Red Mountain Reservoir and the Wastewater Treatment
Plant. Under the standard, this is the key process in dealing with extremely hazardous
substances in toxicity, reactivity, thermal, and chemical stability with an evaluation of
consequences, to include safety of employees and environmental health. The District
must comply with these requirements, document compliance with good engineering
practices, and demonstrate proof of operating in a safe manner.

Mr. Toma and Mr. Ragsdale worked as a team and demonstrated superior performance
of duty, leadership, and dedication while working many hours over the past several
months that proved instrumental in improving the process in preparation of these
inspections. Mr. Toma conducted all available pre-inspection checklists, ensured the
programs were in accordance with all regulations to guarantee a successful inspection,
and assisted leadership by providing further guidance to team members required for
proper documentation. Mr. Toma and Mr. Ragsdale proved invaluable during the
process and were the key reason for achieving a citation-free inspection. Their
knowledge, tenacity, dedication to duty and attention to detail were in keeping with the
highest traditions of the Fallbrook Public Utility District.

Mr. Toma and Mr. Ragsdale received a letter from the General Manager and will be
presented today with a certificate and a check for $25.

005



MEMO

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Mary Lou West, Secretary '
DATE: June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes

Recommendation

The Board approve the minutes of the following board meetings of the Board of
Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District:

1. Special Board Meeting/\Workshop of May 17, 2017
2. Regular Board Meeting of May 22, 2017

006



Minutes of the Special Board Meeting / Workshop of
May 17, 2017

007



FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING / WORKSHOP

MINUTES
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
WEDNESDAY, MAY 17, 2017 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028
4:00 P.M. PHONE: (760) 728-1125

l. PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM

President Wolk called the Special Meeting / Workshop of the Board of Directors
of the Fallbrook Public Utility District to order at 4:01 p.m. A quorum was established
with attendance as follows:

Board of Directors

Present: Charley Wolk, Member / President
Al Gebhart, Member / Vice-President
Don McDougal, Member
Jennifer DeMeo, Member (arrived at 4:.04 p.m.)

Absent: Milt Davies, Member
District Staff
Present: Paula de Sousa Milis, General Legal Counsel

Brian J. Brady, General Manager

Jack Bebee, Assistant General Manager

Noelle Denke, Public Affairs Specialist

Soleil Develle, Engineering Technician lll

Marcie Eilers, Administrative Services Manager / Treasurer
Jeff Marchand, Engineering Supervisor

Mary Lou West, Secretary

Also present were others, including, but not limited to: Fire Chief Stephen J. Abbott of
the North County Fire Protection District, Kirk Dulin, and Donna Gebhart.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
President Wolk ied the Pledge of Allegiance.

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA PER GC § 54954.2(b)

008



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Special Board Meeting / Workshop
Minutes Page 2 May 17, 2017

There were no additions to the agenda.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION:  Director McDougal moved to approve the agenda as submitted; Director
Gebhart seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Director Davies
PUBLIC COMMENT
There were no comments from members of the public.

. ACTION CALENDAR / WORKSHOP (ITEM A)

A. FINANCIAL PLANNING AND RATE STUDY WORKSHOP WITH RAFTELIS

Following a brief introduction by Dr. Brady, Mr. Sanjay Gaur of Raftelis Financial
Consultants, Inc. (Raftelis) stepped to the podium and stated he would be presenting a
slide show of the financial plan and rate study prepared for the District. Mr. Gaur further
stated Raftelis developed the financial plan and rate study in collaboration with District
staff and the Fiscal Policy & Insurance Committee.

Mr. Gaur began the presentation with discussion of the three major components
of a rate study: (1) the financial plan (2) the cost of service, and (3) the development of
an administrative record. Mr. Gaur explained the financial plan reflects the cash
required annually to meet the District's needs, the cost of service aliocates the cost
proportional to the service provided as required by Prop 218 and supports rates as a fee
for service, and the administrative record explains and supports the logic of the rate
structure.

Continuing, Mr. Gaur provided an overview of the financial planning process that
went into the plan and study developed for the District. The process evaluated
revenues, financial policies, and expenses and determined the rate increases required.
Mr. Gaur summarized the policy and noted the proposal would gradually increase the
District's reserves over a period of several years.

Next, Mr. Gaur discussed the key assumptions of the financial plan. An overview
of the water and wastewater capital improvement charges, pass-through charges from
the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California and the San Diego County Water
Authority, wholesale water rate increases, sales of water and recycled water, debt
service, and CalPERS unfunded liability was provided by Mr. Gaur.

009



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Special Board Meeting / Workshop
Minutes Page 3 May 17, 2017

Mr. Gaur followed with a series of slides of the financial plans for the wastewater,
water, and recycled water accounts. The slides demonstrated the impact to District
finances assuming varied scenarios; i.e., no revenue increases, revenue increases,
reduction in sales, and the Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project. The last slide in
the series provided a 10-year summary of the projected annual revenue adjustments of
8% to water, 8% to recycled water, and 4.5% to wastewater.

The subsequent series of slides provided an overview of the cost of service
analysis for wastewater rates and included a proposal to change the wastewater rate
methodology to average winter use, utilize a 75% return to sewer formula, and set the
cap at 22 units. The rate components, the rate framework, proposed rates for fiscal
year 2018, and the impact to residential customers were demonstrated in the slides.

A series of slides with an overview of the water rates design followed. Mr. Gaur
noted the recommendation suggests revising the inclining tiers for residential customers
and changing ag domestic to a two-tiered rate structure. Mr. Gaur discussed fixed
charges framework, water usage rates framework, water revenue requirements, and
proposed rates for fiscal year 2018. Additionally, a customer impact analysis was
provided.

Mr. Gaur concluded the presentation with discussion of the proposed recycled
water framework, recycled water rates, and drought rates.

Director McDougal asked if the Fiscal Policy & Insurance Commitiee agreed with
the recommendations by Raftelis, and President Wolk affirmed the proposal set forth in
the presentation reflects the Committee’s efforts. Director Gebhart added that all
expenses have been included as a hedge to ensure the rate structure is protected.

A brief question and answer period followed Mr. Gaur's presentation.

lil. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

There being no further business to discuss, President Wolk adjourned the
Special Meeting / Workshop of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District at 5:15 p.m.

President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

010



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of
May 22, 2017

011



FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MINUTES
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
MONDAY, MAY 22, 2017 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028
4:00 P.M. PHONE: (760) 728-1125

I PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM

President Wolk called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Fallbrook Public Utility District to order at 4:00 p.m. A quorum was established with
attendance as follows:

Board of Directors

Present: Milt Davies, Member
Jennifer DeMeo, Member
Al Gebhart, Member / Vice President
Don McDougal, Member
Charley Wolk, Member / President

Absent: None
District Staff
Present: Paula de Sousa Mills, General Legal Counsel

Brian J. Brady, General Manager

Jack Bebee, Assistant General Manager

Jason Cavender, System Operations Manager

Antonio Campos, Plant Maintenance Worker Il

Marcie Eilers, Administrative Services Manager / Treasurer
Jeff Marchand, Engineering Technician lll

Mary Lou West, Secretary

Also present were others, including, but not limited to: Helene Brazier, Peter Colby of
Waestern Rivers Conservancy, Joe Comeila, Donna Gebhart, Zach Kantor-Anaya and
Paul Melzer of The Wildlands Conservancy, and Steve Lopardo of the Law Offices of
Stephen V. Lopardo.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

President Wolk ied the Pledge of Allegiance.

012



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 May 22, 2017

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA PER GC § 54954.2(b)
There were no additions to the agenda.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Director Gebhart requested that ltem H be removed from the agenda and
postponed to the next meeting.

MOTION: Director Davies moved to approve the agenda as revised, with the
removal of Item H; Director Gebhart seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public are invited to address the Board of Directors on any item that is within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. The Board President may limit comments fo three {(3) minutes.

There were no comments from members of the public on items within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body and not listed on the agenda.

A EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER FOR MAY 2017
1. Antonio Campos

The Board commended Antonic Campos for being chosen as the Employee of
the Quarter for May 2017 by Jamison Davis, the previous Employee of the Quarter.

Mrs. Denke took a photograph of President Wolk congratulating Mr. Campos.

I. CONSENT CALENDAR (ITEMS B - E)
All items appearing on the Consent Calendar may be disposed of by a single motion. ltems shall
be removed from the Consent Calendar if any member of the Board of Directors or the public
requests removal prior to a vote on a motion to approve the items. Such ifems shall be
considered separately for action by the Board.

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. Regular Board Meeting of April 24, 2017

Recommendation: The Board approve the minutes of the aforementioned meeting of
the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District.

C. NOTICE OF COMPLETION — PLANT 2 FORCE MAIN REPLACEMENT

013



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 May 22, 2017

Recommendation: That the Board authorize staff to file the attached Notice of
Completion with the San Diego County Recorder.

D. NOTICE OF COMPLETION — 1 MG RESERVOIR

Recommendation: That the Board authorize staff to file the attached Nofice of
Completion with the San Diego County Recorder.

E. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 4912 SETTING THE 2017-18
APPROPRIATION GROWTH RATE

Recommendation: The Board adopt Resolution No. 4912 setting the tax appropriation
limit for 2017-18 at $2,933,265, which includes the Fallbrook and DelLuz service areas

and Improvement District “S”.

MOTION:  Director McDougal moved to approve the Consent Calendar as presented
and adopt Resolution No. 4912; Director DeMec seconded. Motion

carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

. INFORMATION (ITEMS F - G})

President Wolk announced that ltem F would be considered next. Following the
announcement, Director Gebhart read the following statement out loud:

"Because | have a conflict of interest under the Political Reform Act
(Government Code section 87100) and under Government Code section
1090 if it involves the contract for sale of the Santa Margarita River
property, with respect fo Item F, | am recusing myself from participating in
any way on this agenda item because of my real properly interest and my
primary residence, and/or real properiy interests, and the access
easement lo the trails system."”

Following his statement of recusal, Director Gebhart left the meeting at
4:06 p.m.

F. UPDATE ON THE SANTA MARGARITA RIVER PROPERTY
Presented by: Jack Bebee, Assistant General Manager

Mr. Bebee announced the Santa Margarita River property purchase agreement
term ends at the end of June and representatives from Western Rivers Conservancy

014



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 4 May 22, 2017

(Western Rivers) and The Wildlands Conservancy (Wildlands) would be providing the
Board with a status update concerning the transaction.

Mr. Peter Colby of Western Rivers stepped to the podium. Mr. Colby referenced
his letter dated May 16, 2017, which was included in the board packet, requesting a
one-year extension of the purchase agreement from June 30, 2017. Mr. Colby stated
Western Rivers' focus has been to develop and revise the management plan to form a
consensus among the parties, which includes the Fallbrook Trails Council, community
members, and the agencies. Mr. Colby further stated that within the next few months a
revised management plan would be developed and will provide the predicate for all of
the acquisition funding and the management funding to complete the project.

Mr. Zach Kantor-Anaya of Wildlands stepped to the podium. Mr. Kantor-Anaya
explained the parties recently made significant progress as set forth in the May 16, 2017
letter from Westem Rivers. The parties have been working with the United States Fish
and Wildlife Service (USFWS) on measures that will facilitate acquisition funding, and
meetings have been held in the field with the Fallbrook Trails Council and the District
towards those efforts. Once the revised management plan has been developed, it will
be presented to the Board for approval.

Mr. Paul Melzer of Wildlands stepped to the podium and on behalf of their
Executive Director, expressed support of the extension requested by Western Rivers.
Mr. Melzer reported that progress has been made, most recently through the Carlsbad
meeting and the site visit that followed, and the resource agencies have shown a
willingness to work with the stakeholders.

Mrs. Donna Gebhart stepped to the podium on behalf of the Fallbrook Trails
Council and expressed concern with comments made by the state and federal agencies
and a remark made by a state staff member at the May 12 meeting. Mrs. Gebhart
stated she received Mr. Colby's letter and discussed the letter with Western Rivers and
Wildlands. Mrs. Gebhart further stated she was agreeable to a 60-day extension of time
contingent upon something in writing on letterhead.

Director DeMeo asked Mrs. Gebhart what the state said that caused concem,
and Mrs. Gebhart stated she asked the state's staff member how they felt "about what
Pete Beck was saying" and the staff member said they "would probably foliow the feds."

Mr. Bebee explained the federal agency has a stronger stake in the matter since
it affects the project on Base. As a result, the feds are leading the way and although the
state's comments have caused concerns, subsequent interactions and discussions have
been positive.

Director McDougal asked Mrs. Gebhart for clarification conceming 1) why a 60-
day extension and 2) what is being requested in writing and from whom. Mrs. Gebhart
suggested they could do something in 60 days and would like something in writing on
letterhead from the state and the feds prior to a long extension. Director McDougal

015



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 5 May 22, 2017

emphasized the District retains the option of not foilowing through with the sale if any
terms are found unacceptable by the Board.

Director Gebhart returned to the meeting at 4:29 p.m.

G. UPDATE ON THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY (SDCWA)
EMERGENCY AND CARRYOVER STORAGE PROJECT

Presented by: Jack Bebee, Assistant General Manager

Mr. Bebee reported the SDCWA has been working on the Emergency and
Carryover Storage Project (E&CSP) for years, which involves Olivenhain Reservoir and
a number of pump stations. The E&CSP provides water to member agencies during a
major disruption to the aqueduct, and the E&CSP does not have the facilities to provide
water to the northern portions of Fallbrook during an emergency. The SDCWA has
proposed a pump station be built near Red Mountain Reservoir that would provide water
to those areas during an emergency. The SDCWA would fund the project and the
District would own and operate the pump station, as more fully described in the
"Principles of Understanding” document. Additionally, the pump station would benefit
the District during non-emergency operations.

Dr. Brady provided an overview of the costs and emphasized the “Principles of
Understanding”" document would not commit the District to the project. In response to
questions, Dr. Brady clarified that signing the "Principles of Understanding” is an initial
step and the formal agreement would be reviewed by General Legal Counsel and
brought to the Board for approval.

ltem H was removed from the agenda at the request of Director Gebhart.

IV. ACTION/DISCUSSION CALENDAR (ITEMS H - 0)

l. PARTICIPATION IN THE UNIFORM PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION COST
ACCOUNTING ACT PROCEDURES

Recommendation: The Act offers significant benefits to the District’s procurement
methods. It is recommended that the Board direct staff to proceed with formalizing this
process with legal counsel for consideration at the next Board meeting.

Mr. Bebee reported that District staff and General Legal Counsel have been
working on a comprehensive update to the Administrative Code relative to procurement
methods. As a result, the procurement processes in the Public Utility District Act (PUD)
that were adopted in the 1940s were reviewed and found to be archaic and difficult to
comply with. Moreover, municipal water districts do not experience compliance issues
because their code has been updated. By opting into the Uniform Public Construction
Cost Accounting Act (Act) procedures, the District would have the flexibility in

016



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 6 May 22, 2017

procurement similar to a municipal water district. Mr. Bebee recommended the District
opt into the Act.

Mrs. de Sousa Mills described the purchasing process required by the PUD and
noted that most purchases require a formal notice by publication in a newspaper of
general circulation for 10 days. The Act would provide the District with flexibility in
advertising and limits, would streamline the process, and would be less costly than the
current process. Mrs. de Sousa Mills noted that many agencies have opted into the Act
and it works well for them.

Mr. Bebee reported that although the District posts bids on its website and
through other sources, those methods do not meet the noticing requirements of the
PUD.

Mrs. de Sousa Mills discussed the legal definition of a newspaper of general
circulation as prescribed by law. Those newspapers are adjudicated by the court and
included on a "List of Approved Newspapers.”

Discussion ensued concerning the requirements of the Act, specifically job cost
accounting processes. Mrs. de Sousa Mills reported that Mrs. Eilers reviewed the job
cost accounting requirements of the Act and determined the District has the ability to
comply with those requirements.

MOTION:  Director Gebhart moved to approve staff's recommendation; Director
McDougal seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

J. MANHOLE REHABILITATION SERVICES PROJECT AWARD

Recommendation: That the Board authorize award of the Manhole Rehabilitation
Services Project to the apparent lowest responsible bidder of Zebron Contracting at an
amount of $23,925.

Mr. Bebee reported that staff is recommending award of the rehabilitation of 11
manholes to Zebron Contracting for $23, 925, which is less than the amount budgeted.
Mr. Bebee explained the rehabilitation of manholes has been included in each year's
budget and will also be included in next year's budget. The work consists of resurfacing
and recoating the inside of manholes that will maintain the integrity of the sewer
collections system.

MOTION:  Director Davies moved to approve staff's recommendation; Director
Gebbhart seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

017



Fallbrook Public Utility District

Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 7 May 22, 2017
AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

President Wolk announced that ltem K would be considered next. Following the
announcement, Director Gebhart read the following statement out loud:

"Because | have a conflict of interest under the Political Reform Act
(Government Code section 87100) and under Government Code section
1090 if it involves the contract for sale of the Santa Margarita River
property, with respect to ftem K, | am recusing myself from participating in
any way on this agenda item because of my real property interest and my
primary residence, and/or real property interests, and the access
easement o the trails system."

Following his statement of recusal, Director Gebhart left the meeting at
4:57 p.m.

K. FIRE MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR THE SANTA MARGARITA RIVER
PROPERTY

Recommendation: If the Board wishes to pursue this effort, that the Board direct staff to
solicit for professional services to prepare a Fire Management Plan for the Sania
Margarita River Property. Staff will bring back their recommendation for award to the
Board for approval.

Mr. Bebee reported the Board directed staff to gather information relative to the
development of a Fire Management Plan. Mr. Bebee provided an overview of the
potential tasks that could be included in a Fire Management Plan and the estimated
cost to develop a plan. Mr. Bebee stated that if the property sale was finalized, the new
property owner would have the option of implementing some or all of a plan developed
by the District. If the property sale fell through and a Fire Management Plan was in
place, there would be costs associated with performing the tasks outlined in the plan.
Mr. Bebee asked if the Board would like staff to solicit for professional services to
prepare a Fire Management Plan for the Santa Margarita Property.

MOTION: Director McDougal moved to "move forward" with a Fire Management
Plan; Director Davies seconded.

Director McDougal inquired if there were legal issues associated with not having
a Fire Management Plan and suggested it could cost $50,000 to develop the plan and
hundreds of thousands of dollars to implement it. Director McDougal asked if in the
event of a fire, the District could be held negligent for not having a Fire Management
Plan. He also suggested the Board review existing plans to determine the need of
developing a plan.

018



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 8 May 22, 2017

Director Davies remarked he was in favor of issuing a request for proposals, and
Mr. Bebee suggested holding off on issuing a request for proposals unless the Board
was certain it wished to move forward with developing a Fire Management Plan.

In response to President Wolk, Mr. Bebee explained the Board requested
information on a Fire Management Plan and a plan is part of the Long Term Steward
Agreement. Discussion ensued, and it was noted the long term steward would have the
option of implementing a plan that was developed by the District.

As a result of questions surrounding potential liability issues, Mrs. de Sousa Mills
proposed to review the Purchase and Sale Agreement and speak with Mr. Lopardo
relative to the Board's concerns.

Director McDougal questioned if implementing a Fire Management Plan would
disrupt the environment and create problems with governmental agencies.

Director Davies reiterated he would like to see a request for proposals and
pointed out that discussion of a Fire Management Plan began with a proposal to
establish three refuge areas at Sandia, the pit, and Willow Glen.

President Wolk stated he was not in favor of issuing a request for proposals if the
Board was not committed to the development of a Fire Management Plan.

Director McDougal suggesting limiting the current action to gathering samples of
plans for review by the Board. Director McDougal withdrew his motion.

By consensus, the Board directed staff to return with samples of Fire
Management Plans.

Director Gebhart returned to the meeting at 5:15 p.m.
L. N. BRANDON AND E. ALVARADO SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT

Recommendation: That the Board authorize award of the N. Brandon and E. Alvarado
Sewer Replacement Project to the lowest responsible bidder of CCL Contractors at an
amount of $1,379,000 to replace the deficient sections of the sewer line in Brandon
Road and in Alvarado Street.

Mr. Bebee stated the sewer line that runs down Brandon and Alvarado requires
replacement due to its age and composition. The line begins at Mission Road and ends
across Main Street. As a result, construction will impact traffic and a number of
businesses along that route. The lowest bidder was CCL Contractors in the amount of
$1,379,000, and CCL Contractors has satisfactorily performed work for the District in
the past. The FY 2017-18 draft budget includes $1.5 million for the project, and the
contract term is 240 calendar days.

019



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 9 May 22, 2017

MOTION: Director Davies moved to approve staff's recommendation; Director
McDougal seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

M. DEVELOP A POLICY FOR CLOSING THE FISCAL YEAR

Recommendation: No action at this time. Staff to report back in June with information
from other agencies on their closing procedures and timelines.

Mrs. Eilers reported that due to the Springbrook conversion and the three general
ledger account numbers that were not in balance, the most recent audit was delayed.
Consequently, the Fiscal Policy & Insurance Committee requested that staff develop a
written policy to close the month and year in preparation of the audit. Mrs. Eilers further
reported she polled other North County agencies concerning their policies and four
agencies have responded thus far. The responses from those four agencies indicated
none had a written policy to close their year.

President Wolk commented that the Board, the Fiscal Policy & Insurance
Committee, and staff should work together to make the process faster.

Director Gebhart stated the Fiscal Policy & Insurance Committee brought this
item to the full Board to assist staff with the process and to develop a written policy with
guidelines. Director Gebhart suggested that if additional support was needed to close
the year in a timely manner, temporary staff or an auditor could be retained to fil! that
need.

Director McDougal asked if the delay was due to Springbrook; and if so, how
long did it take to close the year in the past.

Mrs. Eilers explained the delay was due to Springbrook and in prior years, the
close was done by mid to late August and the audit was presented to the Board in
October or November.

Director McDougal remarked the close should take no longer than 60 days and
footnotes could be utilized for items that require additional information.

Dr. Brady pointed out that closing by August would meet a 60-day goal; however,
a qualified report would be prevented by taking the extra time to resolve outstanding
items.

President Wolk emphasized the goal should be to identify problems and have
those problems fixed, or identify the process to have them fixed, soon after the 4™ of
July holiday.

020



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 10 May 22, 2017

Director McDougal proposed developing a policy that would require the year be
ciosed within 60 days, and if the deadline was not met, staff would return to the Board
with an explanation and solutions to resolve the delay.

Dr. Brady remarked the item would be brought back to the Board at the next
regular board meeting.

N. ACCEPTANCE OF DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY

Recommendation: That the Board accept the Debt Management Policy as
recommended by the Fiscal Policy & Insurance Committee.

Dr. Brady reported that a Debt Management Policy (Policy) is required as part of
the application process for the State Revolving Fund loan for the Santa Margarita
Conjunctive Use Project. Dr. Brady further reported PFM has done the majority of the
work to develop the Policy for the District. The Policy was reviewed by the Fiscal Policy
and Insurance Committee last week.

Director Gebhart asked if the fee to develop the Policy was part of PFM's monthly
fee for services, and Mrs. Eilers stated it was an additional cost. Director Gebhart
pointed out the importance of the Policy since the District would be prevented from
borrowing money without it.

MOTION: Director Davies moved to approve staff's recommendation pending review
by General Legal Counsel; and if any substantive changes are made by
General Legal Counsel, the Debt Management Policy will be brought back
to the Board for approval; Director Gebhart seconded. Motion carried;

VOTE:
AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

0. REPLACEMENT OF ONE CONSTRUCTION CREW TRUCK

Recommendation: That the Board approve the purchase of one Ford F550 4x2 for
$75,325.19 from North County Ford in Vista, the lowest responsive bidder, in order to
maintain a reliable District fleet to complete necessary infrastructure repairs and
replacement.

Mr. Bebee reported that staff is requesting the replacement of a construction
crew truck that is 24 years old and in poor condition. The District went out for bids, and
North County Ford was the lowest responsive bidder in the amount of $75,325.19,
which was below the amount budgeted. Mr. Bebee pointed out the vehicle was

021



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 11 May 22, 2017

identified for replacement in the Fleet Replacement Program, which was previously
reviewed by the Board, and the evaluation form was included in the staff memo.

Discussion ensued concerning the District's fleet and the types of trucks needed
by the crews in the field. President Wolk inquired if additional trucks were scheduled for
replacement in the near future. Mr. Bebee referenced the Fleet Replacement Program
that includes the scheduled replacement dates and noted a number of vehicles were
allowed to age-out in the past several years.

President Wolk commended the progress made to date, but requested the point
score card be included for the public record. Mr. Bebee noted the score card was
included in the staff memo and the points were explained on the last page; however, the
card could be expanded and improved. President Wolk requested that the Diagnosis
Code and Code Description columns also be clarified.

MOTION:  Director Davies moved to approve staff's recommendation; Director
McDougal seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

V. ORAL / WRITTEN REPORTS (ITEMS1-7)

1. General Legal Counsel
¢ Mrs. de Sousa Mills provided an overview of bills affecting special districts.
2. SDCWA Representative/General Manager

 Dr. Brady provided an overview of the current status of the SDG&E rate
case, specifically as it applies to solar rates.

3. Administrative Services Manager/Treasurer
* Mrs. Eilers pointed out an additional $500,000 was transferred to PARS,
per the Board's action, and the transfer is shown on page 87 of the board
packet. Mrs. Eilers also pointed out that investment returns continue to
climb.

4. Assistant General Manager

e There was no oral report presented by Mr. Bebee.

022



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 12 May 22, 2017

5. Public Affairs Specialist

¢ The Fallbrook Chamber of Commerce recognized the District for being the
longest serving member of 51 years.

o President Wolk was bestowed with a Lifetime Achievement award by the
Fallbrock Chamber of Commerce.

o Mrs. Denke obtained free home test kits from the Home Depot as a
giveaway to customers.

6. Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended

e Director McDougal announced the Grand Tradition would be hosting a
campaign fundraiser for Jim Desmond who is running for Seat & on the
Board of Supervisors for the County of San Diego.

o President Wolk announced he approved his and Director DeMeo's
attendance to a Santa Margarita River property meeting on April 25, 2017,
which arose after the March board meeting.

7. Log of Board Requests

Mrs. de Sousa Mills, General Legal Counsel, announced Closed Session Iltem
VI.(1) and Closed Session Item V1.(3) by reading the agenda descriptions out loud.

Mrs. de Sousa Mills noted that Closed Session Item V1.(2) was included on the
agenda as a placeholder and would not be discussed during Closed Session.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 5:55 pm.
VI. CLOSED SESSION

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PER GC § 54956.9 (d)(2): ONE
POTENTIAL CASE

2. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS PER GC § 54956.8:
PROPERTY: 1492 NORTH STAGECOACH LANE, FALLBROOK, CA; AGENCY
NEGOTIATOR: JACK BEBEE; NEGOTIATING PARTIES: BRUCE E.
SCHWANDT, TRACEY L. SCHWANDT; UNDER NEGOTIATION: PRICE AND
TERMS OF PAYMENT

3. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PER GC §

54957 (b) (1): TITLE — GENERAL MANAGER

023



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 13 May 22, 2017

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

The Board retumed from Closed Sessicn and reconvened to Open Session at
6:10 p.m.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION (As Necessary)

President Wolk announced there was no reportable action taken in closed
session.

Vii. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

There being no further business to discuss, President Wolk adjourned the regular
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District at 6:11 p.m.

President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

024



MEMO

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Marcie Eilers, Administrative Services Manager/Treasurer \.N\V

DATE: June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 4914 Placing Fixed Charge Special Assessments to Add
Delinquent and Unpaid Charges for Water and Other Services on the San
Diego County Property Tax Roll

Purpose

To authorize the San Diego County Auditor/Controller to add delinquent and unpaid
charges for water and other services placed on property tax bills as a Fixed Charge
Special Assessment.

Summary

Property owners with delinquent and unpaid charges for water and other services were
notified by mail 60 days prior to July 1, 2017, that the delinquent and unpaid charges
may be added to, and become a part of, the annual taxes levied upon the property
subject to the charges.

Administrative Code Section 21.9, Water Rates or Service Charges Lien on Properly,
provides that delinquencies and unpaid charges may be reported to the County of San
Diego for inclusion on the annual taxes levied on the property.

The District has established Fund No. 6240-08 with the County of San Diego to place
delinquent and unpaid charges for water and other services on property tax bills as a
Fixed Charge Special Assessment. The filing deadline for Fixed Charge Special
Assessments is August 10, 2017, and the District must submit an electronic list of
parcels with delinquent and unpaid charges along with a letter of certification by the
filing deadline.

Recommended Action

That the Board authorize the San Diego County Auditor/Controller to assess a Fixed
Charge Special Assessment to add delinquent and unpaid charges for water and other
services on the property tax bills for those parcels to be filed electronically and certified
by the District to the County on or before August 10, 2017, and adopt Resolution No.
4914,

025



RESOLUTION NO. 4914

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT PLACING FIXED CHARGE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR UNPAID CHARGES FOR WATER AND
OTHER SERVICES ON THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY PROPERTY TAX
ROLL

* % K k %

WHEREAS, a number of parcels have delinquent and unpaid charges for water
and other services, which are due and owing to the Fallbrook Public Utility District; and

WHEREAS, Administrative Code Section 21.9, Water Rates or Service Charges
Lien on Property, provides that delinquent and unpaid charges may be reported to the
County of San Diego for inclusion on the annual taxes levied on the property; and

WHEREAS, the property owners of parcels with delinquent and unpaid charges
for water and other services were notified by mail at least 60 days prior to July 1, 2017,
that the unpaid charges may be added to and become a part of the annual taxes levied
upon the property subject to the charges; and

WHEREAS, Fund No. 6240-08 has been established with the County of San
Diego to place delinquent and unpaid charges for water and other services on property
tax bills as a Fixed Charge Special Assessment (FCSA); and

WHEREAS, the taxing agencies must submit a list of FCSAs to be collected via

the County's tax roll to the San Diego County Auditor/Controller between July 1, 2017,
and August 10, 2017,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Fallbrook Public Utility District as follows:

1. On or before August 10, 2017, the Secretary of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District shall provide to the San Diego County Auditor/Controller the following:

a. An electronic list of parcels with delinquent and unpaid charges for
water and other services as of July 1, 2017, and have remained
unpaid as of the date of filing, and whose property owners were
notified at least 60 days prior to July 1, 2017, that the delinquency may
be added to the property tax roll; and,

b. A letter of certification signed by an official of the District.

026



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 26" day of June, 2017, by the

following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

President, Board of Directors

027



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors \N“
FROM: Marcie Eilers, Administrative Services Manager/Treasurer
DATE: June 26, 2017
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 338 Fixing Water Standby or Availability Charges for 2017-
18
Purpose

To adopt the Water Standby or Availability Charges annually and provide a certified
copy to the Board of Supervisors and Auditor and Controller of the County of San
Diego.

Summary

The Board has assessed Water Standby or Availability Charges on all lands within the
District for many years that goes for debt service and for capital improvements in the
Fallbrook Service Area. The budget has been prepared to allocate these charges.

A public hearing is not required, but is discretionary on the part of the Board. There are
no proposed changes to the charges, and no changes are required for incorporation
into the District's Administrative Code.

Recommended Action

The Board adopt Ordinance No. 338 as prepared and authorize the Secretary to send a
certified copy to the Board of Supervisors and the Auditor and Controller of the County
of San Diego.

028



ORDINANCE NO. 338

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT, SAN DIEGO COUNTY,
CALIFORNIA, FIXING WATER STANDBY OR AVAILABILITY
CHARGES AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 337

* % % Kk &

BE IT ENACTED BY the Board of Directors of the Fallbrock Public Utility District
as follows:

SECTION |I. The Fallbrook Public Utility District is a member of the San Diego
County Water Authority and the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California and
as a member of such agencies, Fallbrook Public Utility District is entitled to purchase
water for distribution within the District. Waterlines have been constructed and are
being constructed within the District, and water service is available from these lines.

In accordance with Division 7, Chapter 4, Article 3, Sec. 16475 and 16477 of the
Public Utility District Act, it is hereby determined that the best interests of the District, its
inhabitants, landowners, and customers require that the following water availability
charges be established; hereafter, referred to as standby or availability charges.

The word "District" as used herein shall mean and refer to the Fallbrook Public
Utility District of San Diego County, California. Fallbrook Service Area will indicate that
area known as Fallbrook Public Utility District prior to July 1, 1990. The DelLuz
Improvement District will indicate that area known as Improvement District | and Il of
DeLuz Heights Municipal Water District prior to July 1, 1990.

SECTION Il. Water availability charges are hereby fixed and established on all
land within the District boundaries, whether the water is actually used or not, as
provided herein:

1. Fallbrook Service Area

a. Ten dollars ($10) per acre for all parcels one (1) acre or more prorated out
to one hundredth of an acre, as set forth in the San Diego County Tax
Assessor's maps, EXCEPTING lands permanently dedicated exclusively
to transportation of persons or property, hereafter referred to as the
transportation dedication exclusion. For purposes of this Ordinance, it is
assumed that 5 percent of all parcels have been permanently dedicated
exclusively to transportation of persons and propenrty; therefore, the actual
assessment will be $9.50 per gross acre as set forth in the San Diego
County Tax Assessor's maps.

029



b. Five dollars ($5) for parcels of less than one acre. For purposes of this
Ordinance, all parcels with gross acreage of 1.05 acres are considered to
have a net acreage of less than one acre for purposes of the
transportation dedication exclusion.

2. DelLuz Improvement District

a. Acreage adjacent to or lying within 1320 feet of water
distribution [iNe ........ceeeeieeee e $10.00 per acre

b. Acreage between 1320 and 2640 feet of a water
distribUtion N ........cocveriee e $9.00 per acre

c. Acreage between 2640 and 3960 feet of a water
distribution lINe .......coooiiee e $8.00 per acre

d. Acreage between 3960 and 5280 feet of a water
distribution N ........ocveeie e e e $7.00 per acre

f. All parcels of less than 0Ne acre ...........cccceveueeeeieseeeeeee e $5.00

3. The term "parcel" as used herein shall mean a parcel of land as shown upon
the assessment rolls of the County Assessor of San Diego County; provided that where
a legal final sub-division map has been approved, "parcel" shall mean each separate lot
within the subdivision.

4. Exemptions:

Lands not using District water and obtaining water primarily from rainfalll,
springs, streams, lakes, rivers, or wells, and where the primary economic activity on the
land is the commercial extraction of minerals.

SECTION lll. On or before August 10, 2017, the Secretary of this District shall
furnish in writing to the Board of Supervisors of San Diego County and to the County
Auditor a description of the land within the District upon which standby or availability
charges are to be levied and collected, together with the amount of the charges. At the
time and in the manner required by law for the levying of taxes for County purposes, the
Board of Supervisors shall collect, in addition to taxes it levies, water availability
charges in the amounts fixed by this Ordinance for the respective parcels of land
described in Section I of this Ordinance. All County officers charged with the duty of
collecting taxes will collect the charges with the regular tax payments in the same form
and manner as County taxes are coliected. Such availability charges are a lien on the
property with respect to which they are fixed. Collection of the charges may be

030



enforced by the same means as provided for the enforcement of liens for State and
County taxes.

SECTION IV. The Secretary of this District shall deliver certified copies of this
Ordinance to the Board of Supervisors and to the Auditor of San Diego County with the
list of charges described in Section Il above.

SECTION V. The General Manager of the District is hereby authorized to correct
any clerical error made in any assessment or charge pursuant to this Ordinance and to
make an appropriate adjustment in any assessment or charge made in error.

SECTION VI. If any clause or provision of this Ordinance is found to be void or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this
Ordinance shall nonetheless continue in full force and effect.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 26™ day of June, 2017, by the
following
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

031



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Brian J. Brady, General Manager
DATE: June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Santa Margarita Property Update

Purpose

To present to the Board an update on the Santa Margarita Property.

Summary

In September 2015, the Board entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement for the
1,384 acre Santa Margarita River Property with Western Rivers Conservancy (WRC).
The agreement is scheduled to expire June 30, 2017.

WRC has submitted the attached materials with regard to the agreement.
Recommended Action

Staff supports the Board's direction.

032



WESTERN RIVERS
CONSERVANCY
June 20, 2017

Brian J. Brady, P.E.
Fallbrook Public Utility District
P.O. Box 2290

Fallbrook CA 92088-2290

Re: Update on Santa Margarita River Transaction
Deat Mt. Brady:

In preparation for the June 26 Board meeting, Western Rivers Conservancy (WRC) wishes to update the Board
on the Santa Margarita River property ttansaction.

As noted in my May 16 letter, the process for completing this transaction that was outlined in our December
2016 presentation to the Board is still accurate. As was true in Decembet, we remain confident that all the
elements for a successful conclusion are in place.

The delay since December has been in negotiating the terms of a long-term management plan for the propezty,
which entails finding the proper balance between the requirements of the funding agencies and the needs of the
community. This has turned out to be a long and arduous process; however, we are now very close to finalizing
the plan. However, completing the processes that must be followed to receive the acquisition funding will take 2
number of months. Therefore, we are requesting an extension of our date for closing for one year, to June 30,
2018.

Status of Management Plan

As noted in my May 16 letter, the initial comments from California Depattment of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW)
and from the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) raised significant issues. However numerous calls,
meetings, and site visits over the last few weeks have resulted in considerable progress. Agency staff have
maintained the momentum that we reported in May, providing significant information, direction, and input to
the process of revising the plan.

"The attached latest version of the plan, prepared by TWC, is the product of lengthy discussions with FWS and
DFW, as well as with FTC and community members. The draft has been approved by FT'C and their
constituents. As of this writing, we are still receiving and reviewing input from the agencies, but we believe this
version is vety close to being ready for approval by all parties.

Request for Extension of Closing Date

We request an extension of the closing date through June 30, 2018, The need for this extension stems from the
schedule for the following milestones which must be met for closing:

1. Completion of the IRMP. We anticipate reaching agreement with the agencies and the community on a
revised IRMP within approximately 90 days. That milestone will reinforce the Depattment of Defense’s

previous commitment of funding, It will also provide the basis for additional funding through the
California Wildlife Consetvation Board.

Main Office: 71 SW Oak St, Portland, OR 97204 |  Califarnia: 424 Clay Streer, Lower Level Colorado: 1228 15" Sureet, #2135
:503) 241-0151  Fax; (503) 241-0374 | San Francisco, CA 94111  (415) 767-200! Denver, CC 80202  (303) 638-9465

www.westernrivers,org i O 3 3



Bsian J. Brady, P.E.

6/20/17
Page 2
2. Finalization of REPI Funding. The Department of Defense has committed funding for the acquisition

of a Restrictive Use Easement (RUE) on the Santa Margarita property. However, before the money is
available, the following steps must occur, which can be completed by mid-2018:

a. The RUE must be revised as necessary to match the IRMP (2-3 wecks from completion of the
IRMP);

b. The apptaiscr needs to review the revised RUE and finalize the appraisal (4-6 weeks from
submittal of the (RUE); and

c. ‘The appraisal needs to be reviewed by DOD (several months from finalization of the appraisal).

3. Other Acquisition Funding. A request for §1 million will be submitted to the California Resources
Agency on June 21, 2017. If successful, funding will be available by mid-2018. We are also pursuing a
grant from the California Wildlife Consetvation Board, with approximately the same time frame for

funding;

4. Long Term Steward Agreement. This document, which is required by the Purchase Agrccmcnf, along
with the Trail Easement providing long term access, will be finalized while the above steps are being

completed.

The Board’s granting of the requested one-year extension will provide the funding agencies assurance that they
will not be making grants for a transaction than cannot be completed as proposed. However, we understand that
they Board will want to be able to monitor progress during the extension period. Accordingly, we propose to
provide the Boatd with quarterly progress reports throughout the extension.

We appteciate the Board’s continued engagement and look forward to the tmeeting next week.
Smccrel

Petet Col

Project Managet

cc: Robert H. James, Esq.
Steve Lopardo, Esq.

034



SANTA MARGARITA RIVER PRESERVE
INTEGRATED RESOURCE MANAGEMENT PLAN

Prepared by:

The Wildlands Conservancy
39611 Oak Glen Road
Oak Glen, CA 92399

June, 2017

Santa Margarita River Preserve
Draft Integrated Resource Management Plan

035



e

II.

w p

UQwe 4

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

Purpose of Acquisition
Acquisition History
(Figure 1. Regional map)
C. Purpose of this Integrated Resource Management Plan

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
Geographical Setting
Property Boundaries and Adjacent Land Use
(Figure 2. Map of the property)
C. Geology, Soils, Climate, Hydrology
(Figure 3. Annual precipitation)
D. Cultural Resources
Developed Infrastructure
Public Access
1. Existing Access and Use
(Figure 4. Topographic trail map)
2, Future Use
(Figure 5. Potential refuge areas)

HABITAT AND SPECIES DESCRIPTION

Vegetation Communities, Habitats, and Plant Species
Animal Species

Primary Threats and Stressors

Special Status Species

Sensitive Plant Species

Sensitive Animal Species

Primary Threats and Stressors: Arroyo Toad

EEEREES =

GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES
Vision Statement

Goals, Objectives and Strategies

Natural Resource Management

Water quality monitoring

Sensitive plant and animal monitoring
Sensitive animal management
Botanical inventory

Forest inventory

Wildlife inventory

Invasive, non-native plant and animal control
Plant pathogens

Fire plan

Woe NGy kb=

Primary Threats and Stressors: Least Bell’s Vireo

A I S I )

e - - NS S

13
14
15

16
16
21
24
25
26
28
32
33

35
35
35

35
36
37
42
43
43

44
45

036



10. Debris and trash clean up 45

B. CULTURAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 46
1. Tdentify cultural sites 46
2. Preserve and protect cultural resources 46
C. RECREATIONAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 47
1. Partnership with Fallbrook Trails Council 47
2. Recreational use surveys 48
3. Trail assessment and maintenance 48
4. Educational programs 49
5. Visitor safety 50
6. Volunteer monitors 51
7. Prohibited activities 51
D. INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 51
1. Capital improvements 52
a. Restrooms
b. Parking lots
c. Ranger station 53
d. Signage
e. Interpretive kiosk
f. Litter bag dispenser
Maintenance of infrastructure 54
Restoration of disturbed areas 54
E. OPERATIONS PLANNING 55
Annual work plans 55
References 56
Appendix “A” Assessor Parcel Numbers 58

jo e Report USDA & NRCS P

Appendix “C” FPUD Ordinance Governing Santa Margarita River Property 59
Appendix “D” Sensitive Wildlife Species Helix Environmental Planning 65
Arppepdi tER 01T Wasle Blea-Calendas 46
Figures

1. Regional map 4
2. Site Map 8
3. Annual Precipitation 9
4, Trail Map 13
5. Potential Refuge Area 15
6. 2008 LBVI Observations 24
7. 2015 Sensitive Species Observations 30
8. Proposed Trail Reductions Map 41
Tables

1. Habitat/ Vegetation Communities 17
2. Sensitive Plant Species and Potential to Occur 26
3. Impacts to Arroyo Toad Associated with Recreation 32
4. Impacts to Least Bell’s Vireo Associated with Recreation 33
5. Sensitive Bird Species Survey Protocols 37

037



038



CDFW-
CNPS-
DoD-
FPUD-
FTC-
MCBCP-
SDMMP-
SDSU-
TWC-
USFWS-
USGS-

ARTO-
CNDDB-
CUP-
CWA-
IRMP-
LBVI-
MSCP-
MSP-
NCCP-
REPI-

OSMZ-
SMER-
SMR-

SMRP-

List of Common Acronyms

California Department of Fish and Wildlife
California Native Plant Society
Department of Defense

Fallbrook Public Utility District

Fallbrook Trails Council

Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton

San Diego Management and Monitoring Program
San Diego State University

The Wildlands Conservancy

United States Fish and Wildlife Service
United States Geologic Survey

Arroyo Toad (Anaxyrus californicus)
California Native Diversity Database
Conjunctive Use Project

Clean Water Act

Integrated Resource Management plan
Least Bell’s Vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus)
Multiple Species Conservation Plan
Management and Monitoring Strategic Plan

Natural Communities Conservation Planning Program
Readiness and Environmental Protection Integration Program

Open Space Management Zone
Santa Margarita Ecological Reserve
Santa Margarita River

Santa Margarita River Preserve

039



Introduction

A.

Purpose of Acquisition

The Wildlands Conservancy (TWC) is acquiring the Santa Margarita River Property
in order to protect the natural environment for conservation purposes, in perpetuity.
TWC will conduct land-based conservation through a variety of long-term
stewardship efforts that aim to preserve and enhance the natural resources and protect
the cultural resources of the property. Additionally, the Santa Margarita River
Property will continue providing an open space for low-intensity, passive, non-
motorized recreational opportunities.

B. Acquisition History

Fallbrook Public Utility District (FPUD) has owned the Santa Margarita River
Property since the 1950s. In 1951, United States (on behalf of Marine Corps Base
Camp Pendleton) brought suit against FPUD and about 3,600 other upstream users to
claim Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton’s (MCBCP) right to the flow of the Santa
Margarita River (SMR) (United States v. Fallbrook Public Utility District, et al; Case
No 1247-SD-C). Soon after, FPUD began buying land along the river in preparation
for construction of a dam. In 1968, the District Court approved a settlement of the
conflicting claims based on the “physical solution” provided by the dam project.
However, in the face of changes in leadership and growing environmental concerns,
the project stalled and the dam was never built. At last, in 2014, a new “physical
solution” was approved in the form of an agreement between FPUD and MCBCP to
collaborate on the Conjunctive Use Project (CUP). The CUP will store water in
aquifers on the base and provide the infrastructure needed to share the water between
the base and FPUD.

In the CUP Biological Opinion, MCBCP committed to contributing funding toward
the acquisition of the Open Space Management Zone (OSMZ), otherwise known as
the Santa Margarita River Property (See figure 1.), to mitigate for the environmental
impacts of the CUP. In addition, MCBCP planned to use conservation credits earned
by preserving the Santa Margarita Property to offset future impacts to endangered
species resulting from operations on MCBCP. Through the Department of Defense’s
Readiness and Environmental Protection Integration Program (REPI) MCBCP will
contribute acquisition funding toward the conservation land sale of the OSMZ. In
2015, Western Rivers Conservancy (WRC) entered into a Purchase and Sale
Agreement with FPUD to acquire the 1,384-acre OSMZ, WRC has since partnered
with TWC to develop a Memorandum of Understanding that transfers fee title
ownership and long-term stewardship responsibilities of the property to TWC once
the acquisition by WRC is recorded.

In preparation for the transfer of the Santa Margarita River Property, TWC has
prepared this management plan which will guide the long-term management of the

040



property. Since there are multiple resource elements that will require the attention of
the managers at the property, an Integrated Resource Management Plan (IRMP) has
been developed in collaboration with California Department of Fish and Wildlife
(CDFW), US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), FPUD, Fallbrook Trails Council
(FTC), MCBCP, WRC, and TWC to comprehensively address the broad suite of
management issues. The major resource elements that will be addressed in this IRMP
include natural resource conservation, cultural resource protection, recreational
resource management, infrastructure and maintenance operations.

041



The Wildlands Conservancy

Margarita River Acquisition
San Diego County, CA
~

WILDLaWBDS

Cleveland

a LY

National
Forest

) A
Wildomar ™
- 7
SanMateo s

Cafyor h SN
Wildérmess ; - “Murriet
W ie Ll T
| & - ‘>
e L T . "~
R g _
£ A -~ - [Santa Margarita
- s 4" " Ecological Reserve
T . A, 2l 3 - .
T = _ S . . +PBchanga
;S' -5an.Diego County .. :_f,‘ - 3 , Indian
J Open SpacePark ' -+ % a0 3
/ Camp ; L
Pendleton Marine é"‘ *f_!_flld__enjliles?_-
Corps Base t;!‘ W s
& ' Pauma-Yulma
g- B Ihellan
& el i *-'.\_\ - Reservation.
¥ Batatindian® +x._" 4y ‘
& NWSSBDet. 7 AR S
Land Ownership ‘§" Fallbrook g QP;':'I..
R GRS

- Fallbrook Public
Utility Distriet

2 o
‘Rincon

San Diego State University
I | County; Regional i I‘n'diﬁn" e
Reserdation '
State L
US Farest Service L Sanpﬁa 1
US Ferest Service (wilderness) i Incjlian
iResefvation
Bureau of Land Management =
Bureau of Indian Affairs
US Department of Defense
4.5 o 4.5 Miles
N TR T T | Sources; Esif, USGSENDAA
Figure 1. Gverview map of the property’s regional location
4

042



C. Purpose of this Integrated Resource Management Plan

1. The Integrated Resource Management Plan (IRMP) provides the guiding vision
for the long-term stewardship of the Santa Margarita River Preserve,

2. The IRMP describes the natural and cultural resources of the property.

3. The IRMP addresses specific conservation goals, objectives, management
strategies, monitoring and outreach programs for the protection of habitat, sensitive
wildlife species, cultural resources, and physical environmental elements of the
property.

4. The IRMP describes the existing recreational use occurring on the property, and
addresses the management goals and strategies for managing recreational use in such
a manner that contributes to restoration and enhancement of the natural resources
while retaining existing recreational resources.

5. The IRMP addresses the maintenance operations and implementation plans for
managing of the preserve.

043



II. Property Description

A.

Regional Geographic Setting

The property is situated within the middle reach of the Santa Margarita River (SMR)
watershed which encompasses 738 square miles and includes 949 miles of stream
between the river and its tributaries. At 27 miles in length, the SMR is the longest free
flowing river on the southern California coast. Of the total watershed area,
approximately 27% is within San Diego County and the remainder is in Riverside
County. The SMR watershed provides one of the greatest remaining expanses of
largely undisturbed riparian corridor in coastal southern California. As a result, this
watershed serves as valuable habitat, providing a diversity of vegetative and aquatic
habitats that support numerous plants and animals, including 500 plant species, 236
bird species, 52 mammal species, 43 reptile species, 26 fish species and 24 species of
aquatic invertebrates. These include 7 federal or state listed endangered or threatened
species, and more than 60 other species listed by the state and other groups as having
special concern. As a result, the lower and middle watershed is an environment of
high ecological importance. Increasing development and large-scale land use changes
upstream and potential impacts to downstream ecosystems, however, are of
increasing concern. The upper watershed includes some of the fastest growing
urbanized areas in California (Cardno, 2013).

The northeast corner of the property is within a quarter mile of the border between
San Diego County and Riverside County; the Community of De Luz Heights lies to
the west; the San Diego State University Santa Margarita Ecological Reserve lies to
the northeast and the San Diego County Santa Margarita Preserve lies to the
southwest.

Specifically, the southwest corner of the property lies approximately one-half mile
northeast of the intersection of Del Luz Road and Sandia Creek Drive, in the northern
portion of Fallbrook. The property is bound by a mix of rural residential
development, agricultural use land, and undeveloped land in all directions. According
to the County of San Diego Planning Department, the property is zoned for Open
Space Use (EEI, 2016).

The approximately 1,384-acre property is composed of 34 parcels (Appendix A). The
property is located in Section 36 of Township 8 South, Range 4 West; Sections
4,5,6,7,8,9 and 17 of Township 9 South, Range 3 West; and Sections 1 and 12 of
Township 9 South, Range 4 West of the U. S. Geologic Survey (USGS) 7.5 minute
Fallbrook and Temecula quadrangle maps.

044



B. Property Boundaries and Adjacent Land Use

The property is bound by a mix of rural residential development, agricultural use
land, open space protected areas, and undeveloped land. Along the Santa Margarita
River, both up and down river, two conservation properties adjoin the site. All
together the three open space areas extend over an eleven-mile reach (See figure 2).
Upriver from the site a 4,344-acre open space known as the Santa Margarita
Ecological Reserve, managed by San Diego State University, provides protected sites
for research and education on Southern California ecosystems. The reserve lies on the
Riverside/San Diego county line between Temecula and Fallbrook. Downriver from
the site a 221-acre open space known as the Santa Margarita Preserve, managed by
the County of San Diego, is part of the draft North County Multiple Species
Conservation Plan, and provides pedestrian and equestrian trail access to visitors.
Visitors to the San Diego Santa Margarita Preserve use trail access to connect with
the existing trails on the subject property. The subject property is located within a key
wildlife corridor that spans the area between the coastal Santa Ana Mountains,
encompassing Marine Base Camp Pendieton, and the southeastern portion of the
Santa Margarita River headwaters that lie on the northwestern slopes of Palomar
Mountain within the Cleveland National Forest.

A central component of this land acquisition transfer is the protection of 1,384-acres
of land for natural resource conservation purposes in perpetuity. By securing
conservation of the property, this preserve will provide natural resource protection
and wildlife connectivity between not only the adjacent open space properties but
also, will contribute to the larger landscape level effort to conserve an ecologically
important wildlife corridor known as the Palomar Mountain to Santa Ana Mountain
connection (South Coast Wildlands, 2008). Preserving the Santa Margarita River
Valley as a wildlife corridor is essential to protecting the ecological integrity of a
significant portion of the California South Coast Ecoregion. Providing wildlife with
refuge from anthropogenic pressures such as habitat loss, habitat fragmentation,
pollution and other prominent disturbances and threats allows those species to avoid
being harmed, and in some cases from going extinct. Wildlife corridors allow for the
free movement of plant and animal species over time, enabling species to be more
resilient when responding to human activities, climate change, disease outbreaks and
competition. The unique habitats found at the Santa Margarita River Property,
notably riparian areas, are important to the survival of a number of wildlife species
and support critical habitat for several sensitive and endangered species.

045



G A, T aan.
A

L Riverside Faunty, . ]
Awino) obiaig veg

San Diego County
Open Space Park

o
F
‘.I

!

&5 willes
]

=
k
““Eg\m Pendl#m}
HWaring Corpt Base
&~
Yo
» » 17 E sl o
Santa Margarita River  ZESTUIEE L mee o e G
. upe = U8y Distrisk A e  Farade
Acquisition- Detail Som Diege S — e ey
San Diego CDunty' CA St Limbvarsity US Dapariment of Defense iemhahrr

Figure 2. Map of the property and nearby protected areas

The situation of the property presents both a tremendous opportunity and a unique
challenge for the project partners. While its location within the natural landscape by
itself would make the property a critical target for protection, its value as a stronghold
for wildlife within a relatively urbanized area only increases the importance of
conservation. The Santa Margarita River’s history of public access calls out for an on-
site stewardship that will encourage public education and collaboration while
supporting and furthering ongoing restoration efforts.

C. Geology, Soils, Climate, Hydrology

The confluence of Murrieta and Temecula Creeks join to form the Santa Margarita
River on the Santa Margarita Ecological Reserve. Geologically, the Santa Margarita
River has persisted within a relatively confined space for around 70 million years.

ity ot rursl

046



The river is confined within the canyon formed by a weakened interface between the
Bedford Canyon Formation and Woodson Mountain Formation (Abbot, 1999). The
riverine environment provides habitat for aquatic species and gives rise to a lush
riparian forest in an otherwise semi-arid landscape.

A variety of distinct soil units occur throughout the Santa Margarita River Valley. On
the property, in particular, two soil units are most abundant. Several Cieneba soil
series, which are derived from granitic parent material, compose the vast majority of
soil units found on the property. Cieneba and Vista soil units support the chaparral
plant communities that occur outside of the riparian area. Riverwash is the second
most prominent soil unit on the property. Riverwash is a collection of soil materials
transported and deposited by a river. On the Santa Margarita River, riverwash
supports a riparian forest of several broadleaved tree species and a diverse understory
assemblage of species that occupy the wide alluvial floodplains of the river. See
appendix B for more information on the soils found on the property.

The Mediterranean climate of California is shared with the region encompassing the
property. Specifically, the property belongs to the Humid Temperate Domain within
the California Chaparral Province. With mild, wet winters and hot, dry summers, the
Santa Margarita River Preserve is prone to flooding during winter storm events and
periods of drought during the summer season. Temperatures range from as low as 43
degrees Fahrenheit to as high as 90 degrees Fahrenheit. Within the past decade, the
area’s precipitation has ranged from 5 inches to 25 inches annually. Much of the
precipitation falls during the months of October through April. (PRISM, 2016)

Annual Precipitation

=
Z 1s ! i .
z 10 || | l |
_ N | ; ’ ' J | jii
= | | [ ‘ \ 1
|
G I « 3 | l b l n - = J: = L ' =
Lo o1 o &> ! o S, & PN,
i L Lt g S
YEAR
SOURCE: PRISM CLIMATE GRCUP OF DREGOMN STATE LINIVERSIT
Figure 3. Annual precipitation estimated for the property from 2000 to 2014
9

047



D.

Cultural Resources

The Santa Margarita River Valley was historically used by the people of the
Luisefio tribe to travel between coastal village sites and inland village sites near
Temecula. To this day there are signs of their presence within the river valley. A
railroad was built in 1880 that connected Fallbrook to Temecula through the Santa
Margarita River Valley. This railroad was used to transport visitors and goods.
The railroad tracks were washed out several times by flood waters, although there
are remnants of the rails that can be seen in several locations. These are but a few
examples of the rich cultural history embedded in the Santa Margarita River
valley. TWC intends to further study and learn about the fascinating array of
cultural histories rooted in the Santa Margarita River Valley and share those with
visitors.

Developed Infrastructure

County of San Diego maintains several miles of roads that transect through the
property including Sandia Creek Drive, Rock Mountain Drive, Willow Glen
Road, and North Stage Coach Lane. FPUD water supply lines traverse the
property at the northwest, central and northeast portions of the property. High
voltage electrical transmission lines run across the northeast portion of the
property near Sandia Creek. Low voltage electrical lines run along the road near
the Sandia Creek parking area and along Rock Mountain Drive.

There are a number of debris deposits within the property, some of which are
associated with the sites of former structures. For the most part, the debris has
been removed by FPUD before transfer of the property; the remainder will need
to be further investigated and will be addressed in the management sections of
this document.

Public Access
1. Existing Access and Use

As noted above, the Santa Margarita River Property has been owned and managed
by FPUD since the 1950s. Throughout that time, FPUD has allowed public access
to the property, subject to certain restrictions. The property contains a trail system
dating to the 1950s or before that is used, with FPUD approval, by birders,
equestrian riders, hikers, mountain bikers, naturalists and the general public alike.
While some modification of the trail system may benefit sensitive species, overall
the permitted trail use has not impaired resource values, as demonstrated by both
the relatively intact habitats and the vitality and diversity of the wildlife
populations.

Currently, public access is concentrated from two locations, the adjoining Santa
Margarita County Preserve and at the Sandia Creek Drive parking area. See figure

10

048



4. Ten additional access points are located along the northern and southern
borders of the property and are used primarily for management purposes. These
access points are located on River Oaks Ln., Vista Del Lago, North Stagecoach
Ln., Riverview Dr., Willow Glen Rd., Rock Mountain walk-in, Via Ranchitos,
Via De Gavilan, Cinco Arroyo, and Via Del Rio. The trail system extends roughly
from the County Preserve, past the Sandia Creek parking area, to the northeastern
extent of the property near the border with the Santa Margarita Ecological
Reserve. No public access is permitted to the portion of the property along Sandia
Creek upstream of its confluence with the Santa Margarita River.

While FPUD has adopted formal regulations to govern use of the property and
restrict off-trail activities, unpermitted public use continues to occur and could at
times threaten species. FPUD has hired part time private security to help reduce
unauthorized uses, but recurring problems on the site include: off-leash dogs,
unauthorized access to sensitive riparian areas, drinking alcoholic beverages,
graffiti and littering. Having recently determined that the property is not required
for utility purposes, FPUD is seeking to divest ownership as FPUD does not have
activated powers for recreation or any revenue outside of water/sewer rates, so
they are unable to fund recreation and fully fund the necessary on-site
enforcement of the regulations. The need for an on-site presence as well as
necessary funding for enforcement and enhancement of the property stewardship
will be addressed directly by The Wildlands Conservancy.

The Fallbrook Trails Council (FTC), who is affiliated with Live Oak Park
Coalition, a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization, has been responsible for the
development and maintenance of recreational infrastructure within the property
since 1999. The Fallbrook Trails Council and its members have diligently worked
to maintain the network of trails for horseback riders, hikers, and bicyclists,
including maintaining and utilizing designated river crossings for equestrians.
Each year, FTC carries out trail maintenance activities on the trail system with the
assistance of volunteers. The members of the FTC have also contributed to the
management of trails by working alongside county and local planning
commissions through fundraising efforts for their trail improvement projects. The
FTC has worked in conjunction with Cal Fire, North County Fire, and the local
Sheriff’s department to develop first responder protocols for emergencies that
may arise within the boundaries of the property.

FTC has marked the trails with georeferenced fiberglass posts to facilitate
navigation of the trail system by visitors and to provide first responders with
reference points in the event of an emergency. The lower network of trails has
been established along the grade of the river for the majority of its length through
the property, falling along river terraces and crossing sandy floodplains. Several
river fords link these sandy floodplain areas with trail segments that lie along the
elevated river terraces and upland slopes of the river valley. For hikers and bikers,
several miles of trails may be accessed by staying on either the north or south
sides of the river, without having to cross, as is required for the equestrian users to

11

049



remain on trails that are safe and appropriate for horses. Equestrian riders are
required to cross the river at ford locations to avoid passing over narrow trail
alignments on terrain that poses a danger to the safety of riders and their horses.

Due to the active riverine processes of flooding, erosion, sediment transportation
and deposition, etc., that may affect small segments of the trail system, it will be
necessary to occasionally relocate trail alignments and ford locations to
accommodate such natural forces and in order to maintain connectivity between
the greater trail system and protect sensitive species habitat. The riparian area is
where some of the most abundant and sensitive natural resources occur,
highlighting the need for additional care to be taken when recreating in these
portions of the property. On the south side of the river, the Five-Hundred Foot
trail traverses along the middle of the hillslope providing a number of great
vantage points to view the Santa Margarita River Valley. Likewise, on the north
side of the river there are multiple trail segments that rise in elevation from near
the river onto surrounding ridgetops that line the rim of the river valley. These
ridgetop trails have commanding views of the riparian canopy, river, and
adjoining upland landscapes and granite studded horizons. The Santa Margarita
River Property is a remarkable sight to behold, one worth preserving through
conscientious stewardship forever.

Approximately 18 miles of multi-use trails extend throughout the property. The
trail network contains a combination of single-track width and double-track width
unpaved trails which are used by a variety of non-motorized recreational user
groups. People on foot generally initiate their hikes from the Sandia Creek
parking area. Whereas, equestrian riders typically commence their rides from the
adjoining Santa Margarita County Preserve or near Willow Glen Road. The SMR
Baseline Trail Map (Figure 4) provides the general arrangement of the multi-use
trail system, current as of October 2016.

12

050



b
F 6O
1S
@
&
=

Dot sor
Tigan Uay

F}'gure 4, Topographic traif map

2. Future Use

TWC will continue providing opportunities for visitors to engage in low-intensity,
passive, non-motorized recreation compatible with resource values. In addition,
TWC plans to offer outdoor educational opportunities for children and adults to
help deepen their understanding of natural resources, so that they are motivated
not only to respect and preserve the resource values of the property, but also to
apply that motivation in their daily life.

The portion of the property along Sandia Creek will be designated a wildlife
refuge with no public access. In total, TWC has identified approximately 460
acres that may be set aside as wildlife refuge area (see Figure 5). TWC plans to
install signage and access controls such as fencing and strips of native vegetation
to curtail entry onto the property along Sandia Creek Dr and in sensitive riparian

13

051



areas along the mainstem of the Santa Margarita River. In addition, TWC will
provide daily on-site patrols to ensure that the public complies with all visitor
regulations, including observing temporary trail closures and natural resource
protection measures described in section IV of this plan. Subject to the
availability of funding, TWC plans to continue restoration of several previously
disturbed areas (homesites), which FPUD has already commenced under the
terms of its sales contract with WRC., Two of these homesites are located within
the proposed Sandia Creek refuge area.

TWC plans to staff the preserve with an on-site Preserve Manager, Ranget(s)
and/or Naturalist(s). The combination of interpretive infrastructure such as
signage and informational brochures with on-site staff is expected to yield
improvements in the way in which visitors access and interact with the property.
TWC’s provision of an on-site Ranger residence will serve to provide the
property with security 24 hours a day, each day of the week. Having an on-site
Ranger will enhance the preserve stewardship by providing the public with
someone who is available to answer questions and provide interpretive
explanations of the natural resource management objectives and policies. In
addition, the ongoing biological surveys and habitat monitoring programs
discussed in section IV of the plan will help track sensitive species occurrences on
the property, and provide valuable data that managers need to keep recreational
visitors informed about temporary trail closures and habitat management policies.

At the same time, TWC’s regular patrol presence throughout the property will
ensure that the public uses the property in accordance with the regulations set
down by TWC. TWC will continue to coordinate with local law enforcement
agencies (San Diego Sheriff, CDFW Game Wardens, and Highway Patrol) to
protect the resource values of the property and maintain a safe environment for
visitors.

Finally, TWC’s resource expertise, coupled with the heightened awareness of the
sensitive nature of the resources on the property as exemplified by this plan, will
assure that all operations and maintenance activities on the property comply with
applicable regulations and best management practices. TWC staff will be trained

by USFWS and US Geologic Survey (USGS) personnel on how to identify
sensitive species and sensitive species habitat. This effect will be magnified by
the beneficial impact of TWC’s education and outreach programs.

The impact of all these actions will be to maintain appropriate access for the
public while protecting the rich natural resources of the property and enhancing
them over time.

14

052



ITL.

l( AN L/xf :

_ 0 0.5 Miles —
I T —— 1 | Sanin i s Ri Sandia Creek Refuge
N [T Refuge srea v Mergaria Her 4622 acres Santa Margarita River
A gumang oL Lt Potential Refuge Area
L---J SMR property boundary — Hiking trails

Figure 5. Potentiaf Refuge Area

Habitat and Species Description
Vegetation Communities, Habitats, and Plant Species

The Santa Margarita River exemplifies the meaning of a high value conservation
area. With the only remaining free-flowing river system in Southern California
draining through a suite of biologically diverse ecosystems, this property
combines to offer an exceptional opportunity for sustaining the ongoing
conservation efforts of San Diego and Riverside counties, NGOs, as well as state
and federal government agencies within the California South Coast Ecoregion.

15

053



The Santa Margarita River Preserve is a key wildlife corridor for many sensitive
and endangered species. In addition, several endemic flora and fauna species are
found on the property. Stewarding the natural resources of this vital wildlife
corridor is an important component of preserving the ecology of the Palomar-
Santa Ana mountain region of the South Coast Ecoregion of California. The
following paragraphs draw from an analysis report composed by Helix
Environmental Planning in 2015.

Over a dozen distinct vegetation communities exist on the property, harboring
unique habitat for a variety of associated wildlife species. These vegetation
communities include streams (open water, scoured bedrock, sand bars, and
freshwater marsh) southern cottonwood-willow riparian forest, southern riparian
woodland, southern coast live oak riparian forest, southern willow scrub, southern
riparian scrub, coast live oak woodland, mule fat scrub, Diegan coastal sage
scrub, cottonwood scrub oak chaparral, southern mixed chaparral, chamise
chaparral, coastal sage-chaparral, eucalyptus woodland, and non-native grassland.
Many of these habitats are designated as sensitive and are listed in Table 1 and
described below (HEP, 2015).

Sensitive habitat is defined as land that supports unique vegetation communities
or the habitats of rare or endangered species or subspecies of animals or plants
as defined by Section 15380 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
Guidelines. San Diego County Code 86.601 Resource Protection Ordinance
(RPO) outlines special controls on development for the County's wetlands,
floodplains, steep siopes, sensitive biological habitats, and prehistoric and
historic sites; and that present methods adopted by the County must be
strengthened in order to guarantee the preservation of these sensitive lands.
Sensitive vegetation communities in the study area include: southern riparian
forest, southern riparian woodland, southern coast live oak riparian forest,
southern willow scrub, mule fat scrub, southern riparian scrub, streambed, coast
live oak woodland, Diegan coastal sage scrub, coastal sage-chaparral transition,
all chaparral types, and non-native grassland.

Table 1
HABITAT/ VEGETATION COMMUNITIES
Type* Acre(s)
Southern Cottonwood-Willow Riparian Forest (61300) 209.1
Southern Riparian Woodlands- including disturbed 4.0

16

054



(62000)

Southern Coast Live Oak Riparian Forest (61310) 82.5
Mule Fat Scrub (63310) 4.3
Riparian Scrub (63000} 1.6
Stream (64140; includes Freshwater Marsh [52400]) 20.5
Coast Live Oak Woodland (71160) 71.4
Diegan Coastal Sage Scrub- including disturbed (32500) 64.0
Coastal sage- Chaparral Transition (37G00) 18.1
Scrub Oak Chaparral (37900) 5.9
Southern Mixed Chaparral (37121) 811.8
Chamise Chaparral (37200) 24.0
Eucalyptus Woodland (79100) 1.0
Non-native Grassland (42200) 17.2
Agriculture (18000) 6.4
Disturbed Habitat (11300) 24.2
Developed Land (12000) 13.1

Total 1,379.5

*Holland vegetation codes are provided parentheses (Oberbauer, et. al. 2008)

A total of 209.1 acres of southern riparian forest and 4.0 acres of southern riparian
woodland are present in the major streambeds and canyons (HEP, 2015).

Southern riparian forests and woodlands are comprised of winter-deciduous trees
that rely on water availability provided by the Santa Margarita River. Western

17

055



sycamores (Plantanus racemosa) and Fremont Cottonwood (Populus fremontii
spp. fremontii) dominate the upper canopy while a variety of willow (Salix spp.)
occur within the lower strata of this habitat type (Holland, 1986). Associated
understory species include mule fat (Baccharis salicifolia), stinging nettle (Urtica
dioica ssp. holosericea), and wild grape (Vitis girdiana). A woodland differs from
a forest in arrangement rather than composition, where a forest has a dense
canopy of overlapping tree crowns in the upper stratum. Woodlands, on the other
hand, have large gaps between individual trees or groups of trees. Southern
riparian forests and southermn riparian woodlands fall under the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) jurisdictional habitat and County
Resource Protection Ordinance (RPO) wetland.

A total of 71.4 acres of southern coast live oak riparian forest is present in the
upper reaches of several streams and along the edges of the canyon drainages.
Southern coast live oak riparian forest is an open to locally dense, evergreen,
sclerophyllous, riparian woodland that is dominated by coast live oak (Quercus
agrifolia var. agrifolia), but it is common to find western sycamore interspersed
within this habitat type (HEP, 2015). Southern coast live oak riparian forest
occurs on fine-grained alluvial soils on the floodplains along large streams in the
canyons and valleys of coastal southern California (Holland, 1986). Species
associated with this vegetation community include toyon (Heteromeles
arbutifolia), Mexican elderberry (Sambucus mexicana), spreading snowberry
(Symphoricarpos mollis), California rose (Rosa californica), California
blackberry (Rubus ursinus), and poison oak (Toxicodendron diversilobum). South
coast live oak riparian forest is CDFW habitat and RPO wetland.

Approximately one-half acre of southern willow scrub is present within the major
drainages of the property (HEP, 2015). Southern willow scrub consists of dense
broadleaved, winter-deciduous stands of trees dominated by short statured
willows (Salix sp.) in association with mule fat (Baccharis salicifolia), and with
scattered emergent cottonwood (Populus fremontii) and western sycamores
(Plantnus racemosa). This vegetation community occurs on loose, sandy or fine
gravelly alluvium deposited near stream channels during flood events. Frequent
flooding maintains this early seral community, preventing succession to a riparian
woodland or forest (Holland, 1986).

Mule fat scrub composes approximately 4.3 acres of land scattered throughout the
edges of the riparian corridor in patches of various sizes located on floodplains.
Mule fat scrub is a shrubby riparian scrub community dominated by mule fat and
interspersed with small willows. The rather frequent occurrence of floods
prevents the conversion of this community to a cottonwood- or sycamore-
dominated riparian woodland or forest (Holland, 1986).

A total of 1.6 acres of southern riparian scrub occurs in the larger drainages of the
property. Southern riparian scrub is a generic term for several shrub dominated
communities that occur along drainages and/or riparian corridors including

18

056



southern willow scrub, mule fat scrub, and tamarisk scrub. Riparian scrub habitat
is CDFW jurisdictional and is considered RPO wetland.

Over twenty acres of the property is classified as belonging to stream, or
freshwater marsh. The Santa Margarita River typically has slow moving or
standing water flowing through it, with the exception of winter storm events that
have the capacity to produce floods. Freshwater marsh is dominated by perennial,
emergent monocots, 5 to 13 feet tall, forming incompletely to completely closed
canopies. This marsh vegetation occurs along the coast and in coastal valleys near
river mouths and around the margins of lakes and springs, and freshwater or
brackish marshes. These areas are semi- or permanently flooded yet lack a
significant current (Holland,1986). Stream habitat is United State Army Corps of
Engineer (USACE) and CDFW jurisdictional and is considered RPO wetland.
The upper main stem of the Santa Margarita River, Rainbow Creek and Sandia
Creek are listed as impaired under the US Environmental Protection Agency
Clean Water Act section 303 (d) list of impaired water bodies for pollutants such
as phosphorus, nitrogen, metals, sulfates, and total dissolved solids.

Approximately 71.4 acres of coast live oak woodland is present along the fringes
of the major drainages and within the canyons. Coast live oak woodland is an
open to dense evergreen woodland or forest community (dominated by coast live
oak) that may reach a height of 35 to 80 feet. The understory is composed of
toyon, blue elderberry, spreading snowberry, fuchsia-flowered gooseberry (Ribes
speciosum), and poison oak. The herbaceous understory is dominated by miner’s
lettuce (Claytonia perfoliata var. perfoliata) and chickweed (Stellaria media).
This community occurs along the coastal foothills of the Peninsular Ranges,
typically on north-facing slopes and shaded ravines (Holland, 1986).

A total of 64 acres of Diegan coastal sage scrub occurs on the property. Diegan
coastal sage scrub is considered a sensitive habitat by the United State Fish and
Wildlife Services (USFWS), CDFW, and the County due to the destruction of
nearly 72 percent of the San Diego County’s original sage scrub habitat
(Oberbauver and Vanderwier, 1991). Diegan coastal sage scrub may be dominated
by a variety of species depending upon the edaphic, slope, and aspect of the given
site. Associated species within this habitat type include California sagebrush
(Artemisia californica), California buckwheat (Eriogonum fasciculatum ssp.
fasciculatum) and black sage (Salvia mellifera).

Approximately 5.9 acres of scrub oak chaparral occur on the property. Scrub oak
chaparral is a dense, evergreen chaparral up to 20 feet tall, dominated by scrub
oak (Quercus dumosa) with considerable mountain mahogany (Cercocarpus
betuloides). Scrub oak chaparral occurs in somewhat more mesic areas than many
other chaparrals, such as north facing slopes, and recovers more rapidly from fires
than other chaparrals due to resprouting capabilities of scrub oak (Holland 1986;
Keeley and Keeley 1988).

19

057



Approximately 811 acres of southern mixed chaparral occur in the study area with
the vast majority arising from granitic soils. A mafic southern mixed chaparral
component of this classification occurs on 17.8 acres located on the slopes above
the Santa Margarita River in the northeastern portion of the property. Southern
mixed chaparral is comprised of broad-leaved sclerophyllous shrubs that can
reach 6 to 10 feet in height and form dense often nearly impenetrable stands with
poorly developed understories. In this mixed chaparral, the shrubs are generally
tall and deep rooted, with a well-developed soil litter layer, high canopy coverage,
low light levels within the canopy, and lower soil temperatures (Keeley and
Keeley 1988). This vegetation community occurs on dry, rocky, often steep north-
facing slopes with little soil. As conditions become more mesic, broad-leaved
sclerophyllous shrubs that resprout from underground root crowns become
dominant. Depending upon relative proximity to the coast, southern mixed
chaparral is dominated by chamise (4denostoma fasciculatum), mission
manzanita (Xylococcus bicolor), coast white lilac (Ceanothus verrucosus),
Ramona lilac (Ceanothus tomentosus), white-stera wild-lilac (Ceanothus
leucodermis), big-berry manzanita (Arctostaphylos glauca), and scrub oak
(Quercus dumosa). This vegetation community provides important habitat for
wide-ranging species such as mule deer (Odocoileus hemionus) and mountain lion
(Felis concolor). This vegetation community is considered sensitive by the
County.

Approximately 24 acres ot granitic form chamise chaparral occur on the property.
Chamise chaparral is the most widely distributed chaparral shrub and is
dominated by the species chamise (ddenostoma fasciculatum). This vegetation
community is found from Baja to northern California in pure or mixed stands. The
ubiquitous distribution of chamise chaparral may be the result of chamise being
the only chaparral species that regenerates from fire from both an underground
root crown and the production of seeds (Rundel, 1986). It often dominates at low
elevations and on xeric south facing slopes with 60 to 90 percent canopy cover.
Along its lower elevation limit, chamise chaparral intergrades with coastal sage
scrub (Rundel, 1586). Mission manzanita and black sage are minor plant species
associated within this vegetation community. Chamise chaparral is considered a
sensitive habitat by CDFW and the County. (HEP, 2015)

A total of 1.0 acre of eucalyptus woodland was identified on the property and are
dominated by stands of red gum (Eucalyptus camaldulensis) within the major
drainages. Red gum is a non-native species that is commonly found in disturbed
areas; it is also widely cultivated in California and is the most widely planted
species of eucalyptus. (Hickman, ed. 1993)

Non-native grassland dominated by annual grasses and a mixture of native forbs
covers approximately 17.2 acres of the property. Non-native grassland is a dense
to sparse cover of annual grasses, often associated with native annual forbs. This
association occurs on gradual slopes with deep, fine-textured, usually clay soils.

Most of the introduced annual species that comprise non-native grassland

20

058



originated from the Mediterranean region of Europe, an area with a climate
similar to that in California and a long history of agriculture. These two factors
have contributed to the successful invasion and establishment of these species and
the replacement of native grasslands by annual-dominated non-native grassland
(Jackson, 1985).

Approximately 6.4 acres of the property has been classified as having been under
agricultural production, though none of the property is currently agricultural.
Orchards in the area studied are primarily avocado, although a few citrus trees are
also present. The orchards are likely associated with adjacent operations.

Disturbed habitat occupies 24.2 acres. Disturbed habitat includes land cleared of
vegetation (e.g., dirt roads and borrow pits), land containing a preponderance of
non-native plant species such as ornamentals or ruderal exotic species that take
advantage of disturbance (previously cleared or abandoned landscaping), or land
showing signs of past or present animal usage that removes valuable wildlife
habitat (HEP, 2015).

. Animal Species

The Santa Margarita River Valley is an important area for endemic wildlife in
Southern California. The availability of year-round water provides a vital resource
that supports an array of important wildlife habitats and is utilized by an
abundance of associated wildlife species. In addition, the upland ecosystems are
home to a wide variety of unique wildlife species and sensitive natural
communities that make the property rich in biodiversity. Moreover, several
federal and state threatened and/ or endangered species inhabit the land
encompassing the Santa Margarita River Preserve. The survival of these natural
communities and the individual threatened species depends largely upon the long-
term existence of a wildlife corridor throughout the Santa Margarita River Valley.
One critical function of the proposed preserve is to protect the wildlife habitat and
the copious biological and ecological elements of the land is to ensure that the
natural communities and wildlife species are given room to roam and expand over
time.

A number of wildlife surveys have been completed on the property within the
previous twenty years. Most recently, in 2015, Helix Environmental Planning
conducted a series of wildlife surveys in the field and though the California
Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB 2015). Review of U.S. Fish and Wildlife
(USFWS), MSCP sensitive species, and California Native Plant Society (CNPS;
2015) databases was also conducted. Additional biological field surveys were
conducted by Davenport Biological Services, in 2008, between June 17th and July
30th. The results of these surveys have been summarized and are supplemented
by additional findings that can be found in appendix D. In the period of time
immediately following the transfer acquisition, additional wildlife surveys will be
conducted to improve the quality of species occurrences and habitat data.

21

059



Animals observed on the property by Davenport Biological Services in 2008 are
listed below.

Fish

Arroyo Chub (Gila orcutti) were the only native fish that were observed within
the Santa Margarita River. However, three exotic fish, the mosquito fish
(Gambusia affinis), bluegill (Lepomis macrochirus), and common carp (Cyprinus
carpio) were also observed.

Amphibians

Two native amphibians, the California toad (Bufo boreas halophilus), and Pacific
tree frog (Pseudacris regilla), were also abundant and commonly observed within
the Santa Margarita River. The Pacific tree frog was also common within Sandia
Creek. The bullfrog (Rana catesbeiana) was also present and was heard calling
from several deep pools. Other amphibian species, including California tree frog
(Pseudacris cadaverina) and several salamander species, may also be present near
the streams and in mature oak woodlands.

Reptiles

Despite the appropriateness of the habitat for most of southern California’s native
reptiles, only a few reptiles were observed during this survey. Reptiles observed
included the western pond turtle (Clemmys marmorata pallida), western skink
(Eumeces skiltonianus), Belding orange-throated whiptail (Cremidophorus
hyperythrus beldingi), western fence lizard (Sceloporus occidentalis), alligator
lizard (Gerrhonotus multicarinatus), and southern Pacific rattlesnake (Crotalus
oreganos helleri).

Mammals

Other than bats, mammals detected during this survey included the big-eared
woodrat (Neotoma macrotus), California ground squirrel (Spermophilus beecheyi
nudipus), desert cottontail rabbit (Sylvilagus audobonii sanctidiegi), stripped
skunk (Mephitis mephitis holzneri), westemn spotted skunk (Spilogale gracilis),
long-tailed weasel (Mustela frenata), coyote (Canis latrans clepticus), and bobcat
(Lynx rufus californicus).

Bats
Seven species of bats were found to be occupying the site. Bats detected during
this summer survey included the big brown bat (Eptesicus fuscus), Silver-haired

bat (Lasionycteris noctivagans), western red bat (Lasiurus blossevillii), California
bat (Myotis californicus), western small-footed bat (Myotis ciliolabrum), western

22

060



pipistrelle bat (Pipistrellus Hesperus), and Brazilian free-tailed bat (Tadarida
brasiliensis).

Birds

Sixty-three species of birds were detected during surveys of the site. In both total
number, and number of unique species, birds accounted for the majority of
vertebrates observed. Several nesting pairs of least Bell’s vireo (Vireo bellii
pusitlus) were observed within and adjacent to the riparian plant communities
associated with the Santa Margarita River and near the mouth of Sandia Creek. In
addition, least Bell’s vireos were observed nesting in the coast live oak woodlands
that bordered the Santa Margarita River.

The Wildlands Corservancy

SMRP: 2008 Least Bell's Viero Chservaticns :
San Diggo County, Ca l

G Woncrpyae T @becat

Canttint Lt

Sormsdtan bisa

WEC Aeapiaiun

amivy it s iy

T R T [ WSS RSN SRS g

Shats dguncy

Coaino Mn nilicion

Figure 6. Least Bell's Vireo observation data from Davengort Biological Services surveys in 2008

C. Primary Threats and Stressors

23

061



Through interviews with the current land owner and stewards, review of
environmental reports and online database searches, and conducting field
reconnaissance tours several threats and stressors have been identified for the
property. Regional threats and stressors are addressed in the Management
Strategic Plan (MSP) created for the County of San Diego Natural Communities
Conservation Plan (NCCP) (SDMMP, 2013). Here we describe several site-
specific threats and stressors that pose a risk to the preserve and the natural
resources therein.

The upper main stem of the Santa Margarita River, Rainbow Creek and Sandia
Creek are listed as impaired under the US Environmental Protection Agency
Clean Water Act (CWA) section 303 (d) list of impaired water bodies. Pollutants
such as phosphorus, nitrogen, metals, sulfates, and total dissolved solids are
responsible for the water bodies’ listing impaired. Adjacent agricultural and
upstream land uses likely contribute herbicides, insecticides, pesticides and
pollutants from urban runoff into the watercourses resulting in harmful effects to
aquatic and riparian habitats. Riparian areas and aquatic habitats are threatened by
non-native invasive plants and animals.

Riparian vegetation communities are negatively affected by several threats and
stressors. The combination of several of these threats and stressors pose a
substantial risk of loss of habitat for many species under certain conditions.
Riparian forests and woodlands are threatened by a shifting climate where
droughts are more likely to occur and persist. When droughts are coupled with
other threats such as invasive plants or insect pest attacks and diseases, the
conditions for a significant loss of habitat or type conversion emerge. Locally, the
spread of two insect pests are concerning because several of the dominant tree
species within riparian systems including California sycamore (Platanus
racemosa), cottonwood (Populus spp.) willow (Salix spp.) and oaks (Quercus
spp.) are susceptible to Polyphagous shot hole borer (Euwallacea sp.) + Fusarium
Dieback disease and/ or golden spotted oak borer (Augrilus auroguttatus).

Human activities threaten riparian vegetation communities as discussed below in
section D. 3 Threats to Sensitive Species, but also to the upland habitats through
numerous pathways. Illegal dumping threatens species and degrades habitat.
Pollution and physical harm can result as a consequence of illegal dumping,
Animals may ingest toxic substances, become entangled or trapped in waste
materials. Dumping often occurs adjacent to roads in chaparral, chamise, and
sage scrub habitat communities as well as, along roads within Coast Live Qak
woodland communities on the property. Recreational use in chaparral, sage scrub,
and chamise habitats may also alter native wildlife movements and provide
disturbed areas for invasive non-native grass species to encroach upon native
vegetation communities. Trails and adjacent development also alter the
hydrology, creating erosion issues and impacting native plant communities.

24

062



D. Special Status Species

Based on a 2015 report by Helix Environmental Planning, both sensitive plant and
animal species inhabit, or use the property. A full list of the sensitive plants and
animals are presented in Appendix D along with a ranking of their relative
probability to occur on the property and a discussion of the methods used to
ascertain their potential for presence. Sensitive plant species were defined in the
report as those considered unusual or limited in that they are: (1) only found in the
San Diego region; (2) a local representative of a species or association of species
not otherwise found in the region; (3) severely depleted within their ranges or
within the region.

1. Sensitive Plant Species

Twenty-five sensitive plant species have the potential to occur on the property,
two of which are federally listed, however both have a low probability of
occurring on the property (San Diego Ambrosia [dmbrosia pumila] and thread-
leaved brodiaea (Brodiaea filifolia). Please refer to Table 2 for a list of the 25
sensitive plant species, their associated listing, or sensitivity status, and potential
ranking (low, moderate, high) to occur on the property. Also see Appendix D for
further descriptions of all twenty-five sensitive plant species habitats and the
explanation of special status codes.

Table 2
Sensitive Plant Species and Potential to Occur
Species Listing or | Potential Species Listing or | Potential
Sensitivity* | to Occur Sensitivity* | to Occur
Chaparral sand- -~ San Diego FE/--
verbena {(Abronia CRPR 1B.1 Low ambrosia CRPR 1B.1 Low
villosa var. aurita) County List (Ambrosia County List
A pumila) A
Rainbow manzanita | --/-- Jaeger’s bush --/--
(Arctostaphylos CRPR 1B.1 High milkvetch CRPR 1B.1 | Moderate
rainbowensis) County List (Astragalus County List
A pachypus var. A
County List Jaegeri)
A
Thread-leaved FT/SE Orcutt’s -/
brodiaea CRPR 1B.1 Low brodiaca CRPR 1B.1 Low
25

063



(Brodiaea fulifoliay | County List (Brodiaea County List

A orcuttii) A
Santa Rosa basalt --/-- Lewis’s evening- | --/--
brodiaea (Brodiaea CRFPR 1B.2 Low primrose CRPR 3 Low
santarosae) (Camissoniopsis

lewisii)

Payson’s jewelflower | --/-- Smooth tarplant | --/--
(Caulanthus CRPR 4.2 High (Centromadia CRPR 1B.1 Low
simulans) County List pungens Ssp. County List

D laevis) A
Orcutt’s pincushion | --/-- San Miguel --/=-
(Chaenactis CRPR 1B.2 Low savory CRPR 1B.2 | Moderate
glabriuscula var. County List (Clinopodium County List
orcuttiana) A chandleri) A
Many-stemmed -/ Sticky dudleya | --/--
dudleya CRPR 1B.2 Low (Dudleya CRPR 1B.2 | Moderate
(Dudleya multicaulis) | County List viscida) County List

A A
Robinson’s pepper- | --/-- Vemal barley -—f=-
grass CRPR 1B.2 High (Hordeum CRPR 3.2 Low to
(Lepidium virginicum | County List intercedens) moderate
var. robinsonii) A
Mesa horkelia -/~ Romona horkelia | --/—-
(Horkelia cuneata CRPR 1B.1 Low (Horkelia CRPR 1B.3 Low to
var. Puberula) County List truncata) County List | moderate

A A
Coulter’s goldfields | --/-- Shevock’s -/
(Lasthenia glabrata | CRPR 1B.1 Low copper moss CRPR 1B.2 Low
spp. coulteri) County List (Mielichhoferia

A shevockii)
Intermediate -—f-- Felt-leaved -/
monardella CRPR 1B.3 | Moderate il monardella CRPR 1B.2 High
(Monardella (Monardelia County List
hypoleuca ssp. hypoleuca ssp. A
intermedia) lanata)
White rabbit-tobacco | --/-- Parry’s -—f--
(Psuedognaphalium | CRPR 2B.2 | Moderate |l tetracoccus CRPR 1B.2 Low
leucocephalum) Tetracoccus County List

26

064



dioicus) A

California screw- —/--
moss
(Tortula californica)

CRPR 1B.2 Low

2.

Sensitive Animal Species

Thirty-seven sensitive animal species have a moderate to high potential to occur
on the property. There is a high number of species that may occur on the property
due to the undisturbed nature of the property and high quality of the various
habitats therein. Please refer to Appendix DD (Helix Environmental Planning
report) for further descriptions of the sensitive animal species that may utilize or
inhabit the property.

The property supports federally designated Critical Habitat for the coastal
California gnatcatcher (Polioptila californica californica), least Bell’s vireo
(Vireo pusillus bellii), southwestern willow flycatcher (Empidonax traillii
extimus), arroyo toad (Anaxyrus californicus), and habitat for the California
species of special concern, the arroyo chub (Gila orcutti) and southwestern pond
turtle (Actinemys marmorata pallida), as well as potential habitat for the yellow-
billed cuckoo (Coccyzus americanus occidentalis) and steelhead trout
(Oncorhynchus mykiss). Below we describe the habitat for each of these species
and any confirmed observations occurring on the SMRP.

The range and distribution of the coastal California gnatcatcher (Polioptila
californica californica) is closely aligned with coastal scrub vegetation. This
vegetation is typified by low, less than 1 meter (3 feet) tall, shrub and sub-shrub
species that are often drought deciduous (O’Leary 1990, p. 24; Holland and Keil
1995, p. 163; Rubinoff 2001, p. 1376). As defined by Westman (1983, pp. 6 and
10), the coastal scrub plant communities that overlap the range of the gnatcatcher
include Venturan, Diegan, and Riversidean coastal sage scrub communities. As
detailed by Campbell et al. (1998, pp. 421-433), gnatcatchers may also occur in
other nearby plant communities, especially during the non-breeding season, but
gnatcatchers are closely tied to coastal scrub for reproduction (Atwood 1993, p.
151). Moreover, all coastal scrub is not equal with respect to gnatcatchers.
Gnatcatchers are patchily distributed, and Winchell and Doherty (2008, p. 1325)
found the density of gnatcatchers was highest in high-quality habitat and
decreased as habitat quality decreased.

27

065



The vast majority of the breeding least Bell’s vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus)
population occurs in southern California from Santa Barbara County south
through the lowland coastal areas to Baja, Mexico. A majority of the population
currently inhabits territories in San Diego County, particularly on the Marine
Corps Base Camp Pendleton (FWS, 2006). Least Bell’s vireos require dense
riparian woodlands and dense shrub-cover for breeding and foraging. Nests are
commonly found below 20 feet in willow stands and in areas where a dense
understory of herbaceous plants are present (RECON, 1989; Kus, 2002). Four
least Bell’s vireo territories were identified during a 2015 survey of the subject
property by Marine Corps biologist Alisa Zych. See figure 7.

The Southwestern willow flycatcher (Empidonax traillii extimus) has a breeding
range that includes southern California, Arizona, New Mexico, extreme southern
portions of Nevada and Utah, far western Texas, perhaps southwestern Colorado,
and extreme northwestern Mexico (USFWS, 2002). In southern California
southwestern willow flycatchers breed within thickets of willows or other riparian
understory usually along streams, ponds, lakes, or canyons. One of the most
important characteristics of the habitat appears to be the presence of dense
vegetation, usually throughout all vegetation layers present. Almost all breeding
habitats are within close proximity of water or very saturated soil. The
southwestern flycatcher is highly likely to use the property, in fact surveys have
yielded a confirmed sighting of a transient male southwestern willow flycatcher
(Zych, 2015). See figure 7.

The arroyo toad (Anaxyrus californicus) breeding habitat is restricted to shallow,
slow-moving stream habitats, and riparian habitats that are disturbed naturally on
a regular basis, primarily by flooding. To provide appropriate arroyo toad habitat,
a stream must be large enough for channel scouring processes to occur but not so
large that habitat structure is lost after floods (Sweet, 1992). Arroyo toad larvae
was discovered in a low-flow channel of the SMR mainstem in 2015 (Zych,
2015). See Figure 7.

28

066



‘ The Wildlands Conservancy
= SMRP: 2015 Federally Endangered Species Observations

San Diego County, CA ‘

P o)

a

vy LEWI TY

(v
= Wl

LB T3

L %

LBV T4 Arroya Toed Lirves
(=

WiTL
|

i haie Teed Lareae
SWR Beungary

5 0 iL5 idiles
L 1 1 1 1 ] |

Figure 7. Locotion of o migrating wiliow flycatcher (WIFL), arroyo toad larvae (ARTO) and least Bell's vireo during the 2015
breeding season

The arroyo chub (Gila orcutti) are native to the Santa Margarita River and are
considered to be abundant in the upper reaches and in De Luz creek (Swift et al,
1993). Arroyo chub are found in habitats characterized by slow-moving water,
mud or sand substrate, and depths greater than 40cm (Wells and Diana 1975).
They are most common in streams with gradients of less than 2.5% slope (Feeney

and Swift 2008), where water temperatures range from 10 to 28 degrees C (J.
O’Brien, CDFW, unpublished data)

The southwestern pond turtle (Actinemys marmorata pallida) is native to central
and southern California coastal areas. The western pond turtle is in decline
throughout 75-80 percent of its range (Stebbins, 2003). Populations in southemn
California are particularly imperiled and are therefore included on the proposed
list of protected species in the North County Multiple Species Conservation Plan
(County of San Diego). Southwestern pond turtles occur in habitats with ponds,

29

067



streams, creeks, and slow moving rivers. Southwestern pond turtles also require
basking locations and may utilize upland sites for up to seven months out of each
year.

Historical occurrence records for steelhead trout (Oncorhynchus mykiss) in the
Santa Margarita River are primarily based on anecdotal observations and CDFW
reports. CDFW Warden E.H. Glidden was reported to have rescued adult
steelhead in the Santa Margarita River in the 1930s or 1940s (USFWS, 1998).
Steelhead fry were collected in 1939 in the Santa Margarita River near its
confluence with De Luz Creek (USFWS, 1998). One adult weighing five pounds
was reported near the town of Temecula in the 1940s (USFWS 1993, as cited in
USFWS 1998). CDFW memos from 1947 and 1949 (as cited in USFWS 1998)
note, “...a few steelhead are known to enter the river on wet years and run
upstream to slightly above the Fallbrook area” and “A constant flow is present in
the section opposite Fallbrook but summer temperatures and shifting sand bottom
make it unsuitable for trout”. However, in the spring of 2009, 3 juvenile steelhead
were captured and several others were sighted on Marine Corps Base Camp
Pendleton by base biologists. The three fish were captured by hook and line just
upstream of the De Luz Road Bridge. Each fish displayed physical characteristics
of the smolt life stage. Each fish had a fin sampled for genetic analysis by
National Marine Fisheries Services. One of the fish was concluded to be of
steelhead ancestry with no trace of hatchery origin. This evidence indicates that in
the one to two years prior to 2009, endangered steelhead successfully spawned in
the Santa Margarita River (Cardo, 2013).

3. Primary Threats and Stressors to Sensitive Animal Species

A number of threats and stressors are currently having a negative impact on
sensitive animal species and habitats on the preserve. Through interviews with the
current land stewards, review of reports, and conducting field reconnaissance
tours it has been identified that two Federally Endangered species, the Arroyo
Toad and Least Bell’s Vireo are being negatively impacted by a suite of threats
and stressors. On a species-specific level, threats can be described as introduced
impacts such as invasive plants and animals or human activities that adversely
affect a species or its habitat. Stressors, on the other hand, are classified as
naturally occurring phenomena that amplify threats. Examples of stressors would
include extended periods of drought or a flood event. More broadly, sensitive
species, as well as, natural communities are threatened by large-scale
environmental forces such as climate change, altered fire regimes and altered
hydrology. Below, some of the primary threats and stressors to sensitive species
are discussed. In section IV we discuss some of the priority management
responses we plan to implement in order to reduce the negative impacts associated
with these specific threats and stressors described for Arroyo Toad and Least
Bell’s Vireo. We focus on threats to these two listed endangered species because
many of the threats and responses that apply to these species and their associated

30

068



vegetation communities will also apply to other sensitive species and habitats. By
reducing the effects of the threats described below for two target species and
vegetation communities several other sensitive species will benefit.

3.1 Threats: Arroyo Toad (dnaxyrus californicus)

Arroyo toad are threatened by invasive non-native aquatic species (bullfrogs, non-
native game fish, crayfish), non-native invasive plant species (Arundo donax,
Tamarix spp.) and indirectly by beavers which build dams that create suitable

habitat for bullfrogs and other non-native predators (Madden-Smith et al. 2005;

USFWS, 2009). Roads threaten arroyo toads by impacting their habitat in several
ways, but also pose a direct danger of toads that may be crushed by a vehicle
when crossing over the surface of the road. Specifically, the Sandia Creek Drive
river crossing creates an unnatural ponding effect above and below, which in turn
provides suitable habitat for bullfrogs and other invasive non-native predators.
The ponding effect of the Sandia Creek Drive crossing also alters the natural
hydrogeomorphic processes in such a way that the formation of arroyo toad
breeding pool habitat is limited by the crossing’s presence in the watercourse.

Other human activities also threaten the species. Trail use and trail maintenance

and associate recreational use of the property pose a threat to arroyo toads and
arroyo toad habitat. Table 3. describes some of the impacts associated with
recreation on the Santa Margarita River Preserve.

Table 3.
Impacts to Arroyo Toad Associated with Recreation
Activity Adverse Impact
Trail use 1. Mortality of toads through crushing, disruption of breeding pools
2. Alteration of habitat and arroyo toad movement patterns
Trail maintenance 1. Mortality of toads through crushing, disruption of breeding pools
Unauthorized trail 1. Mortality of toads through crushing, disruption of breeding pools
creation 2. Alteration of habitat and arroyo toad movement patterns
Fishing 1. Mortality of toads through crushing, disruption of breeding pools
2. Introduction of non-native fish
Swimming/ picnicking 1. Mortality of toads through crushing, disraption of breeding pools
2. Alteration of habitat and arroyo toad movement patterns
Dog(s) off leash 1. Mortality of toads through crushing, disruption of breeding pools
2. Alteration of habitat and arroyo toad movement patterns
Erosion/ sedimentation 1. May affect breeding pool characteristics, smoother eggs.

31

069



Adjacent land use may negatively affect arroyo toad habitat on the preserve as
well. Impacts to water quality associated with off-site agricultural and urban
landscaping chemical use/ runoff may affect arroyo toad development and
survival. Increases in fire ignitions associated with the adjacent land uses and
public use of the preserve contribute to the elevated risk of extensive mortality of
toads during a wildfire (Syphard and Keeley, 2015). Within the property, fire
rings have been discovered in riparian habitat and indicate a clear threat of the
possibility of a fire escaping and damaging property and natural resources.
Wildfire suppression activities may also result in the mortality of arroyo toads.
The increase in fire frequency and severity also threaten to degrade breeding and
aestivation habitat immediately following the fire and if native riparian species
are replaced by Arundo donax (Rochester and Fisher, 2014).

3.2 Threats: Least Bell’s Vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus)

Least Bell’s vireo are also threatened by non-native animal and plant species.
Non-native Brown-headed Cowbirds pose a significant threat to LBVI
populations by reducing nesting success through brood parasitism (USFWS,
2006). Non-native beavers also threaten nesting LBVI because this species can
cut down potential nesting trees, leading to nest failure. Invasive non-native plant
species such as Arundo donax, Tamarix spp. degrade suitable habitat and may
also increase fire risk in LBVI habitat.

The increase in wildfire frequency due to local land use practices and proposed
public access mentioned above also threaten LBVI. The elevated risk of the
potential for wildfires exposes the local population of LBVI to an increased risk
of extensive mortality during wildfire events (including suppression activities)
and degradation of breeding habitat.

Recreational use of the property also contributes to the degradation of least Bell’s
Vireo habitat. Table 4 describes the adverse effects that recreational activities
have on LBVI.

Table 4
Impacts to Least Bell’s Vireo Associated with Recreation
Activity Trail Trail Unauthorized trail | Fishing Swimming/
use maintenance creation picnicking
1. Damage, destruction, abandonment of vireo nest
Adverse 2. Alteration of habitat and/ or vireo movement pattern
Impact 3. Reduction of available vireo habitat

32

070



Impacts to water quality also threaten Least Bell’s Vireo. Off-site use of
agricultural and urban landscaping chemicals may have a toxic effect on vireos
over time through trophic amplification. Toxic chemicals that are introduced into
the Santa Margarita River are concentrated at higher levels of the food web and
may accumulate in LBV, affecting vireo development and survival. In addition,
herbicides that enter the Santa Margarita River may have an adverse effect on the
vegetation communities that comprise LBVI habitat, having an overall negative
impact on the habitat.

33

071



IV. Goals, Objectives and Strategies

Vision Statement

The ultimate goal for the Santa Margarita River Preserve is to maintain and enhance the
unique biological values on the property in perpetuity, and to engage the local community
in the appreciation and preservation of those values by providing compatible and historic
passive, trail-based, non-motorized multi-use recreational and educational opportunities.

Goals, Objectives, and Strategies

The following section describes long-term management objectives and strategies that
Jocus on maintaining and enhancing the natural resources of the preserve. Subject to
available grants and participation by partners and funders the actions proposed below
will assist and enhance the long-term stewardship efforts of TWC; these may be
completed by or with assistance from project partners, including universities,
professional consultants, government agencies, NGOs, and volunteer citizen scientists.

A. Natural Resource Management

Goal: Identify native plant and animal species and the key habitats of sensitive
species; maintain and enhance existing vegetation communities and water quality
to support sensitive and other native wildlife species; identify, manage, and
monitor the threats to native species and their respective habitats.

1. Water quality monitoring

Objective: Review existing data and contribute water quality monitoring
data to ongoing studies on the Santa Margarita River water quality in order
to inform aquatic habitat management.

Strategy 1.1; Within the first twelve months, TWC staff will establish
contact with local water quality resource managers to obtain information
about possible impairments to water quality and threats to aquatic habitats.
The aim of the program will be to garner information regarding several
water quality parameters that could be used as indicators of the health of
aquatic resources and help inform future management objectives on the

property.

Strategy 1.2: As funding is available, TWC and project partners will
implement an independent water quality monitoring program at the
preserve. The water quality monitoring program will be operated by water
quality monitoring experts and focus on specific pollutants contributing to
the Environmental Protection Agency’s 303d listings of Rainbow and
Sandia Creeks as impaired water bodies for pollutants such as phosphorus,

34

072



nitrogen, metais, sulfates, and total dissolved solids. An additional aspect
of the water quality monitoring program will include regular routine
testing for indicators of insecticides, pesticides, and herbicides that may
harm aquatic resources when applied in excess, including to Arroyo Toad
and Least Bell’s Vireo.

Strategy 1.3: To the extent possible, identify sources contributing to water
quality degradation and coordinate with upstream land managers and
responsible agencies to limit pollution sources. In advance of the second
summer, review water resource management goals and identify best
management practices.

Strategy 1.4: Coordinate outreach efforts with adjacent landowners (San
Diego State University, County of San Diego, and Marine Corps Base
Camp Pendleton) to educate the local residential community about ways to
limit water pollution. Regularly review published water quality data and
collaborate with project partners to identify any changes in management
strategies that are necessary to protect aquatic resources.

2. Sensitive plant and animal monitoring

Objective: Identify the habitats of sensitive plant and animal species
through habitat assessments and species specific presence-absence
surveys.

Strategy 2.1: In collaboration with the US Fish and Wildlife Service,
California Department of Fish and Wildlife, DoD) biologists from
MCBCP, San Diego State University, SDMMP personnel, consultants,
resource conservation districts, and citizen scientists, TWC will carry out
presence-absence surveys for sensitive plant and animal species, important
detection measures to support the conservation of biodiversity on the
property. If additional special status species are confirmed to exist on the
property or if previously-identified species are found in new locations, the
locations where such species are utilizing habitat will be identified, and
potential threats to the species and their habitats will be assessed in
collaboration with USGS, SDMMP, USFWS and CDFW. Working in
conjunction with regulatory agencies and professional biologists, habitat
protection measures will be planned and implemented for special status
species.

Strategy 2.2: Focused surveys for known special status bird species
including, California coastal gnatcatcher (Polioptila californica
californica), least Bell’s vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus), southwestern willow
flycatcher (Empidonax trailli extimus), and western yellow-billed cuckoo
(Coccyzus americanus occidentalis) will be carried out within the first
year. Following initial surveys, monitoring programs for each special

35

073



status bird species will be conducted based on their specific recovery
protocols in Table 5 or modified to apply the management needs of the
preserve in collaboration with the USFWS Carlsbad Office and USGS San
Diego Office.

Table 5
Survey Protocols for Sensitive Bird Species

Species

Survey Protocol

Southwestern Willow
Flycatcher
(Empidonax trailli
extimus)

A Natural History Summary and Survey Protocol for the
Southwestern Willow Flycatcher (Sogge et. al., 2010)

Least Bell’s Vireo

Least Bell’s Vireo Survey Guidelines (USFWS, 2001)

(Vireo bellii pusillus)
California Coastal California Coastal Gnatcatcher Presence/ Absence Survey Guidelines
Gnatcatcher (USFWS, 1997)

(Polioptila californica

californica)

Strategy 2.3: Focused surveys for special status aquatic species including,
Arroyo chub (Gila orcutti), Arroyo toad (Anaxyrus californicus), and
Southwestern pond turtle (Actinemys marmorata pallida) will be carried
out within the first year. Following initial surveys, monitoring programs
will be developed in partnership with USFWS Carlsbad Office and USGS
San Diego Office for each species confirmed to occupy the property.

3. Sensitive Animal Species Management

Objective: Manage known sensitive species habitats by eliminating threats
to the extent possible,

3.1 Arroyo Toad Habitat Management

Managing the known, and suitable arroyo toad habitat on the preserve
requires a multifaceted approach to address the threats described above in
Section III D. 3.1 Threats to Arroyo Toad. The following strategies were
developed in partnership with the Carlsbad Office of the USFWS.

36

074



Strategy 3.1.1: Implement annual etforts to control bullfrogs, non-native
fish, and non-native crayfish on the preserve so that their effects on
breeding arroyo toads are minimized.

Strategy 3.1.2: Implement annual efforts to eradicate potential beavers on
the preserve so that artificial ponding due to beaver dams are eliminated.
Eradication of beavers on the preserve would allow natural processes to
produce habitat conditions favoring arroyo toads and reducing bullfrog
establishment.

Strategy 3.1.3: Implement annual invasive plant control efforts that focus
on Arundo donax and Tamarix spp. in order to prevent a substantial
recolonization by these invasive species. In addition, partner with Santa
Margarita Ecological Reserve (SMER) and MCBCP to identify and target
other invasive plant species such as caster bean (Ricinus communis) that if
left untreated would degrade arroyo toad habitat quality on the preserve.

Strategy 3.1.4: Coordinate with other interest groups (Cal Trout, Trout
Unlimited), MCBCP, USFWS, CDFW, and County of San Diego to
explore ways to fund construction of an elevated bridge where Sandia
Creek Drive currently crosses the Santa Margarita River.

Strategy 3.1.5: Reduce redundant trail segments in the portion of the
northern floodplain between crossings 3 and 6. See Figure 8 on pg. 41.
Trail decommissioning will be achieved by constructing barriers,
installing signage, and through appropriate revegetation treatments.

Strategy 3.1.6: Connect Santa Margarita South Trail and TNT Trail via
crossings 3, 4, & 6 with the shortest trail alignment feasibly possible. An
overall reduction in trail length will be achieved by aligning straight trails
that bisect the SMR in a perpendicular manner.

Strategy 3.1.7: Seasonal (February- August) closures of specific river
crossings (6, 7, 9 & 10) that may be re-opened during the breeding season
if it can be verified that 1.) suitable breeding conditions are not present and
2.) arroyo toads are determined to be absent. Users observance of these
restrictions is critical to the success of these habitat management measures.

3.1.7a: TWC staff will be trained to identify suitable breeding
habitat conditions and all life stages of arroyo toads by the
appropriate expert biologist (USGS, SDMMP, USFWS).
3.1.7b: Focused surveys will be carried ouf by a qualified toad

biologist to make a determination about whether or not arroyo toad
are present at each crossing throughout the breeding season.

37

075



3.1.7c: Only statt members who are trained in identifying arroyo
toad and their breeding habitat (Biological Monitors) will conduct
focused surveys for arroyo toad and evaluate habitat conditions.

3.1.7d: Educational materials and outreach sessions will be
provided to groups conducting trail maintenance in order to explain
the purpose of seasonal trail maintenance restrictions and the
importance of observing those restrictions.

Strategy 3.1.8: Trail maintenance activities within arroyo toad (ARTO)
will be scheduled to take place during the non-breeding season (September

through January).

3.1.8a: Where trail maintenance activities will occur during the
breeding season, a trained Biological Monitor will inspect the site
to determine presence of toads, and move them away from harm as
necessary or make recommendations that avoid impacts to arroyo
toads.

3.1.8b: Educational materials and outreach sessions will be
provided to groups conducting trail maintenance in order to
explain the purpose of seasonal trail maintenance restrictions and
the importance of observing those restrictions.

Strategy 3.1.9: Regularly monitor trail system and prohibit unauthorized
attempts to expand trail system. Barriers and signage, as well as, authority
of resource interpretation by trained staff members will be used to prevent
the creation and use of unauthorized trails.

3.1.9a: Impacted areas will be immediately restored with
appropriate native vegetation or access control techniques.

3.1.9b: Signage and educational materials will be provided to
visitors that explain the importance of observing the boundaries of
the trails.

Strategy 3.1.10: Prohibit fishing, swimming, picnicking and other
recreational use of areas where arroyo toad habitat occurs.

3.1.10a: Regularly monitor any allowed recreational activities to
ensure habitat protection measures are being observed by visitors.

Strategy 3.1.11: Regularly monitor problematic erosion areas, particularly
those associated with the trail system.

38

076



3.1.11a: Implement erosion control techniques to prevent
sedimentation from being contributed to the watercourse.

3.2 Least Bell’s Vireo Habitat Management

Managing known least Bell’s vireo habitat on the preserve will also
require a multifaceted approach in order to address the threats described
above in Section III D. 3.2. Threats to Least Bell's Vireo. The following
strategies have been developed in partnership with the Carlsbad Office of
the USFWS.

Strategy 3.2.1: Implement annual efforts to control Brown-headed
Cowbirds (Molothrus ater) in order to reduce disturbances (brood
parasitism) to nesting Least Bell’s Vireo during the breeding season. Two
traps will be deployed near Sandia Creck Dr. and two traps will be
deployed near Willow Glen Rd. between mid-April and the end of June.

Strategy 3.2.2: Implement annual efforts to eradicate beavers on the
preserve in order to reduce the risk of nest failure caused by beaver
activity. Although the removal of beavers will provide only minor
improvements to least Bell’s vireo, eradication will be an important
component of improving arroyo toad habitat on the preserve.

Strategy 3.2.3: Implement annual invasive plant control efforts that focus
on Arundo donax and Tamarix spp. in order to prevent a substantial
recolonization by these invasive species. In addition, partner with SMER
and MCBCP to identify and target other invasive plant species that would
degrade least Bell’s vireo habitat quality on the preserve if left untreated.

Strategy 3.2.4: Reduce redundant trail segments in portions of the
floodplain with sandy bottoms. Specifically, reduction of trail segments in
the floodplain will need to be focused in the area on the north side of the
mainstem of the Santa Margarita River between crossings 3 and 6, where
least Bell’s vireo currently occupy several territories during the breeding
season. See figure 8. Trail decommissioning will be achieved by
constructing barriers, installing signage, and through appropriate
revegetation treatments that improve least Bell’s vireo habitat.

39

077



@ Santa Margasita Trall Sautn

4
e
*p,

@ Sants Mergarin Trad Nesth

@ 000" Tral

@ Hgh Tral
wman 500 Trad
e Gounly Park Trad
swmem High Trad
===+ BMRT North
e GMRT South
™T
wanw Azces & Conneclor Traile
Il River Crossings
=1 vesi Hoaparing
Sants Margenis Rver .. 1 A30
=T "t___:_\...‘s River Oaks Crossing -@.—,-'-'"

i
% B4: g
e, i B
- @4
e -.'l'. 4

-

m
©
e

=3
&
‘o

-
- Bl e T R
-

=y
i ."'""'l--..-.

:::

i
........
u,

¥

E)

% -~
%

rl l.'l."'

amd

e on,

4 0.a5 0.1 0 2 Mias

1 1 1] U] L 1 i

Figure 8 Map of proposed trail afignments following the decommissioning of trails within occupied LBV habitat.

Strategy 3.2.5: Connect Santa Margarita South Trail and TNT Trail via
crossings 3, 4, & 6 with the shortest trail alignment feasibly possible. An
overall reduction in trail length will be achieved by aligning straight trails
that bisect the SMR in a perpendicular manner.

Strategy 3.2.6: Staff members who are trained in identifying vireos and
their breeding habitat (Biological Monitors) will conduct focused surveys
for vireos and evaluate habitat conditions on an annual basis.

3.2.6a: Biological Monitors will be trained by qualified biologist
who are certified to conduct Least Bell’s Vireo surveys.

Strategy 3.2.7: On site staff will educate visitors about the importance of
compliance with temporary trail closures due to least Bell’s vireo breeding
habitat requirements on the preserve. In addition, signage and educational
material will be made available to explain the purpose of the activities
proposed to protect least Bell’s vireo habitat while retaining key access
opportunities. Users observance of these restrictions is critical to the
success of these habitat management measures.

40

078



Strategy 3.2.8: Trail maintenance activities within LBVT] habitat will be
scheduled to take place during the non-breeding season (September

through January).

3.2.8a: Where trail maintenance activities will occur during the
breeding season, a trained Biological Monitor will inspect the site
to determine presence of nesting vireos, and halt activities that may
damage a nest or cause significant disturbance to nesting vireos.

3.2.8b: Educational materials and outreach sessions will be
provided to groups conducting trail maintenance in order to
explain the purpose of seasonal trail maintenance restrictions and
the importance of observing those restrictions,

Strategy 3.2.9: Regularly monitor trail system and prohibit unauthorized
attempts to expand trail system. Barriers and signage, as well as, authority
of resource interpretation will be used to prevent use of unauthorized
trails.
3.2.9a: Impacted areas will be immediately restored with
appropriate native vegetation and/ or access control techniques.

3.2.9b: Signage and educational materials will be provided to
visitors that explain the importance of observing the boundaries of
the trails.

Strategy 3.2.10: Prohibit fishing, swimming, picnicking and other
recreational use of areas where least Bell’s virec habitat occurs.

3.2.10a: Regularly monitor any allowed recreational activities to
ensure habitat protection measures are being observed by visitors.

4. Botanical inventory
Objective: Compile a master list of flora occupying the property.

Strategy 4.1: Within the first three years, project partners will establish a
master list of botanical species that occupy the property; and will conduct
annual surveys, commencing within the first year, to ensure that a census
of annual and perennial plant species are accounted for. Existing botanical
survey lists will be compiled and then amended to reflect the current
assemblage of plant species occurring on the property. The botanical

41

079



surveys will include focused surveys for identifying the presence and
specific locations of sensitive species.

Strategy 4.2: At the end of five years, review the inventory results to
determine if species have disappeared or appear to be threatened. Develop
plans to maintain vegetation communities and control threats to sensitive
plant species.

Strategy 4.3: At the end of five years, review the monitoring protocols and
revise to reflect best practices and lessons learned in the initial period.

Strategy 4.4: Rare, threatened and endangered plant surveys will be
conducted every three to five years.

5. Forest inventory
Objective: Develop a forest inventory.

Strategy 5.1: Approximately three-hundred and fifty acres of the property
supports forest and woodland habitat. Riparian forest and woodland
habitats are important landscape elements within the larger mosaic of
habitats found on the property, and support numerous sensitive and native
wildlife species. Within the first three years, the project partners, will
develop forest inventory plots designed to track the changes in southern
riparian forest, southern riparian woodlands, and riparian oak woodlands,
as these are designated as sensitive habitats by CDFW and County of San
Diego Resource Protection Ordinances.

Strategy 5.2: Review inventory on a biennial basis to observe changes in
forest cover; assess whether changes in management are required.

6. Wildlife inventory

Objective: Identify the wildlife species that utilize and occupy the
property.

Strategy 6.1: An ongoing effort by the project partners to record the
presence of wildlife species that utilize and occupy the property will
commence within the first year of TWC management, Wildlife studies
have indicated the presence of hundreds of wildlife species. Recording
wildlife presence through ongoing observations will help managers to
better understand the habitat requirements of the species that occupy the
property and the interaction between natural resources and recreation.

Strategy 6.2: On an annual basis, review inventory results and adapt
management regimes as necessary.

42

080



7. Invasive, non-native plant and animal control

Objective: Identify and address occurrences of invasive, non-native plants
and animals.

Strategy 7.1: Within the first two years, the project partners will
implement surveys for invasive plants and animals. The collection of GPS
data of the areas where invasive plant occurrences are distributed
throughout the property will be a leading priority for management.

Strategy 7.2: As funding is available, invasive plant survey and control
programs will be developed in order to identify the populations,
occurrences and potential threats that novel invasive plant species pose to
native plant communities. Invasive plant species known to have adverse
effects on native populations (such as Arundo donax and Tamarix) will be
controlled annually.

Strategy 7.3: TWC and project partners will coordinate to manage invasive
animal species found to have significant, negative impacts on the native
flora and/ or fauna of the property. Invasive animal species such as
Bullfrogs (Rana catesbiana) that are known to negatively impact Arroyo
Toad breeding and therefore will be controlled on an annual basis.

Strategy 7.4: Due to the known presence of the non-native species of wild
pigs (Sus scrofa) in San Diego County, TWC will coordinate with project
partners to develop a contingency mitigation plan for addressing their
possible future encroachment onto the property. The contingency plan
will be developed within the first twenty-four months.

8. Plant pathogens

Objective: Survey the property to identify plant pathogens and disease
outbreaks that pose a significant threat to the habitats of the property.

Strategy 8.1: Within the first two years, develop a survey program with
assistance from project partners (UC Riverside cooperative extension,
MCBCP, San Diego State University) to identify plant pathogens, disease
outbreaks or other insect outbreaks that could pose a threat to the
biological resources, vegetation communities or habitats found on the

property.

Strategy 8.2: In collaboration with project partners, pathogens identified
through surveys, and those known to project partners, will collaboratively

43

081



9. Fire plan

be assessed on a case by case basis to determine the level of threat that
they pose to the habitats within the property.

Strategy 8.3: Collaborate with project partners to understand management
options for addressing the impacts associated with specific plant pathogens
or pests and determine if management strategies should be revised to
address pest management.

Strategy 8.4: Annual surveys will be conducted to determine the presence-
absence of two particularly threatening insect pests the Polyphagous shot
hole borer (Euwallacea sp.) and golden spotted oak borer (Augrilus
auroguttatus).

Objective: Develop a fire plan.

Strategy: 9.1: Within the first two years, the project partners in
collaboration with local fire and emergency response agencies will
develop a fire plan. The fire plan will address such topics as egress routes
from the property, staging areas, roads, trails and other resources available
to fire crews during the event of a fire. The fire plan may also include a
discussion about wildfire prevention strategies and post-fire rehabilitation
options specific to the property. *Note FPUD is considering developing a
fire plan for the property as of the writing of this June 2017 draft
management plan.

10. Debris and Trash Clean-up

Objective: Deter illegal dumping.

Strategy: Within the first year, remove as much illegally dumped trash and
debris. Maintain vigilance and remove any new trash or debris that is
dumped in an effort to deter others from dumping in the future. Regularly
clean up trail and road system debris, break up fire rings, remove graffiti
and patrol use areas.

44

082



B. Cultural Resource Management
Goal: Identify, preserve and protect the cultural resources of the property.
1. Identify cultural sites

Objective: Locate significant historic and prehistoric cultural sites
throughout the property.

Strategy 1.1: Review archeological reports and meet with archeologists
and consultants to identify significant cultural sites.

2. Preserve and protect cultural resources

Objective: Ensure that culturally significant sites and artifacts are
protected from looters, vandals, and share educational information about
the various periods of human use of the Santa Margarita River Valley.

Strategy 2.1: Erect interpretive signage that depicts the lifestyles of past
visitors and inhabitants of the Santa Margarita River Valley area during
various periods of history. Interpretive signage will be designed in
collaboration with project partners and be placed in areas that do not pose
any threats of exposing sensitive cultural sites to anthropic disturbances
but rather help to illustrate the presence of an array of past visitors and
how they spent their time in the Santa Margarita River Valley.

Strategy 2.2: Realign trails to avoid human caused disturbances to
sensitive cultural sites, if deemed necessary by archeologists.

45

083



C. Recreational Resource Management

Goal: Continuously review and periodically revise recreational and
educational resources and activities on the property to ensure that they
provide valuable services to the community while protecting the natural
resources.

1. Partnership with Fallbrook Trails Council

Objective: Establish and maintain a close, working relationship with the
Fallbrook Trails Council so that community priorities are reflected in the
natural, recreational and educational resources of the property.

The Fallbrook Trails Council (FTC) is affiliated with Live Oak Park
Coalition, a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization. The FTC has been
responsible for the development and maintenance of recreational
infrastructure within the property since 1999. The Fallbrook Trails
Council and its members have diligently worked to maintain the network
of trails for horseback riders, hikers, and bicyclists. The FTC has also
worked in conjunction with Cal Fire, North County Fire, and the local
Sheriff’s department to develop first responder protocols for emergencies
that may arise within the boundaries of the property. TWC greatly
appreciates and will continue welcoming the involvement of the volunteer
workforce composed of the members of the FTC and community
members, but is not able to depend on volunteers to maintain the trail
system. Rather, a team of stewards that will include TWC staff, FTC
members, community volunteers, paid contractors, and youth service
workers will combine together to offer comprehensive care to the trails in
compliance with applicable requirements. There is no doubt that the
expertise and knowledge of the FTC is paramount in the continued success
of the Santa Margarita River trail system. In partnership with The
Wildlands Conservancy, the FTC will continue to provide the essential
role of trail stewards and docents of this important recreational resource.

Strategy 1.1: Prior to close of escrow, negotiate terms for a trail easement
in favor of FTC that ensures public access while providing flexibility to
adapt to changing circumstances and to protect the unique natural
resources on the property.

Strategy 1.2: Prior to close of escrow, enter into an agreement
(Memorandum of Understanding) between TWC and FTC under which

FTC will both advise and support TWC trail management initiatives in
accordance with this plan.

46

084



2. Recreational use surveys

Objective: Identify use patterns and user behaviors.

Strategy 2.1: In order to better understand how the property is being used
by visitors, recreational use surveys will be given to visitors throughout
the first year of TWC’s management. These surveys will be designed to
help TWC gain valuable information such as the most popular modes of
travel, popular times of day for guests to visit specific areas, which days of
the week the greatest volume of visitation occurs, and during which season
visitation to various sites is at its peak. Additionally, user-experience
information will be collected and analyzed to identify which areas of the
user experience are considered satisfactory and which aspects may benefit
from changes. Understanding these use patterns and visitor experiences
will help managers ensure that changes in public access that are intended
to protect the natural and cultural resources of the preserve also ensure,
insofar as possible, that visitors are also provided with a safe and
enjoyable user experience while recreating at the preserve.

Strategy 2.2: At the end of the first year, assess the results of user surveys
and revise planned changes to facilities and regulations as appropriate.

3. Trail assessment and maintenance

Objective: Evaluate the condition and impact of the trail system to identify
and implement appropriate adjustments.

Strategy 3.1 An assessment of the trail system will be an immediate
priority. The initial trail assessment will take place within the first six
months of TWC becoming the long-term steward of the property. The trail
assessment will include a detailed inspection and documentation of the
existing trail network and access points. TWC staff will assess such
elements of the trail network for actual and potential impacts to sensitive
habitats and species, potential for erosion of the trail surfaces, and
sediment loading to streams, redundancy of alignments, identification and
restoration of unofficial social trails, and risks to visitor health and safety.

Strategy 3.2: The results of the trail assessment will inform TWC, its
partner organizations, and the resource agencies as they design and
implement changes to the trail system to realize the objectives outlined in
section ILF above pertaining to public access.

Strategy 3.3: TWC will partner with the FT'C and other organizations to
provide comprehensive care for the trail system, in perpetuity. Together,
the staff of TWC, the workforce of the FTC and other partners will

a7

085



enhance the sustainability and improve the durability of the trails, reduce
and mitigate impacts to natural and cultural resources on the property, and
enhance user safety and experience.

3.3a: Trail maintenance occurring within the riparian area during
the breeding season will be supervised by the Biological Monitor.
The Biological Monitor will inspect the trail for sensitive species
prior to the commencement of trail work and either halt work or
take actions to avoid disturbances to any sensitive species.

3.3b: In the event that a river crossing is determined to require a
seasonal closure due to the presence of sensitive species or suitable
habitat, the Biological Monitor will post signage and place
flagging across the trail leading the crossing on both sides of the
river.

3.3c: The Biological Monitor will clearly mark trail detours to
ensure that trail users are able to easily identify and follow
alternate routes.

3.3d: At no time will two river crossings be seasonally closed due
to sensitive species habitat restrictions. The Biological Monitor
will 1.) close the crossing with the best occupied and/ or suitable
habitat found on the property during the breeding season 2.} if
more than one crossing is occupied by arroyo toads, the toads
(egg strings or larvae) from lesser quality habitat site(s) will

be relocated to better quality habitat away from the recreational
river crossing(s).

3.3e: Trail surfaces outside of the riparian area will be
continuously monitored and treated promptly to prevent user
injuries and erosion.

4. Educational programs

Objective: To enhance the user experience by providing educational
opportunities and to help inculcate a land stewardship ethic in children and
other visitors to the preserve.

The Wildlands Conservancy plans to develop outdoor educational
opportunities to enrich the recreational experiences of visitors to the
preserve. The educational interpretation of the property will take multiple
forms. Signage will be installed to describe and depict such elements of
the property as, unique geologic features, land use history, detailed trail

48

086



information, botanical and wildlife species, and cultural histories to help
visitors acquire a sense of place when visiting specific sites within the

property.

Strategy 4.1: Within the first two years of operation, TWC and partners
will formulate a plan for enhancing the existing educational opportunities
on the property, including a timeline for implementing the plan.

Strategy 4.2: Over the following two years, TWC and partners will
implement the outreach plan. The outreach plan will detail specific
programs that TWC staff will offer and partner with other entities to host
in an effort to bolster the communities awareness of issues regarding
sensitive species conservation, leave no trace principles, climate change,
natural resource conservation, wildfire prevention, etc.

Strategy 4.3: TWC will continuously look for opportunities to partner with
schools and local community groups to offer outdoor education to those
interested in learning about the preserve. Additionally, the property will be
made available to those interested in nature study. Researchers interested
in studying wildlife, biology, ecology, etc. are encouraged to contact the
preserve manager for further details.

5. Visitor safety

Objective: Provide a safe environment for visitors to recreate.

Strategy 5.1: TWC staff will interact with the public by answering their
questions, enforcing TWC’s rules of conduct for visitors, interpreting the
dynamic nature of the continuously changing conditions of the
environment, including the weather, trail conditions, potentially dangerous
wildlife, and other hazards that may be present.

Strategy 5.2: Rules and warnings of the potential dangers that may be
encountered while on the property will be made available for visitors near
the primary access points to the preserve, helping reduce the likelihood of
injury or illness.

Strategy 5.3: The Fallbrook Trails Council has georeferenced trail markers
throughout the trail system. These trail markers can be used by visitors to
navigate the trail system, and report the location of unsafe conditions to
management. In addition, these trail markers can be used to provide first
responders with GPS coordinates in the event of an emergency.

Strategy 5.4: Emergency evacuation sites have been designated at four
locations on the property. These locations will be marked on trail maps to

provide visitors with important information about where safe evacuation
sites are located on the property. The evacuation sites include the Sandia

49

087



Creek Dr. parking lot, in the southwestern portion of the property, the
terminus of Stagecoach Rd at the “sandpit,” in the south central portion of
the property, the large staging area at the intersection of Via Ranchitos and
Gavilan Rd., in the north central portion of the property, and at the large
staging area at the intersection of Willow Glen Rd. and N. Stagecoach Ln,,
in the southeastern portion of the property. Each location will be mapped
with GPS coordinates and shared with local first responders and
emergency personnel within the first three months of TWC taking over
management of the property. Within the first two years, an Emergency
Action Plan will be developed by project partners to provide guidance for
the safe evacuation of the property in the event of an emergency.

6. Volunteer monitors

Objective: Establish a program of volunteer monitoring to assist with
property management and public outreach.

Strategy 6.1: Within the first two years of management TWC will develop
a volunteer monitoring program. The volunteer monitoring program will
begin as a pilot project. A small number of volunteers that frequently visit
the property and who are interested in supporting the efforts of TWC
management to improve the property will be recruited as members to the
initial volunteer group. Members chosen to participate in the volunteer
monitoring program will be oriented on how to gather and report
information to TWC Preserve Manager. Volunteers will document and
then notify the Preserve Manager about issues such as damage or the
threat of damage to natural resources, dangerous trail conditions, damaged
property, graffiti, poaching, or any other observations of the preserve rules
being breached or any unsafe situations. Individuals interested in
participating in the volunteer monitoring program will be directed to
Preserve Manager for further information.

Strategy 6.2: After two years of operation, TWC will review the volunteer
program and revise it to ensure that it continues to serve the objectives for
which it was developed.

7. Prohibited activities

Objective: Prevent the degradation, deterioration, damage or destruction of
any part of the property.

Strategy 7.1: A declaration of all rules will be posted at the primary access
points of the preserve, be made available online and in writing. TWC
plans to develop a series of rules that will be fashioned similarly to the
rules previously developed by the current owner FPUD. Those rules are
included in Appendix C.

50

088



Strategy 7.2: TWC will help to maintain safety and orderly conduct by
enforcing the rules through an educational approach, including principles
of Authority of Resource and Leave No Trace. TWC staff will strive to
make contact with individuals or groups breaking the rules to help
interpret the importance of the particular rule(s) being broken and provide
a verbal warning of the consequences of said breach to the offending
party. This warning and educational information sharing is the first phase
in response to situations where the rules are being broken. If said person(s)
continue to break the rules they may lose their privileges of visiting the
property and/or be prosecuted when their actions warrant a legal response.

D. Infrastructure Development

Goal: To identify needs for additional infrastructure on the property in
order to ensure protection of natural resources, promote and regulate
compatible recreation, and improve management efficiency, and to
maintain all infrastructure in good condition throughout its useful life.

1. Capital improvements

Objective: In order to achieve the management goals of preserving the
natural environment and biological resources of the property while also
maintaining safe and high quality recreational opportunities, appropriate
capital improvement projects will be planned and implemented. All capital
improvements described below will be constructed on previously-
disturbed areas at Sandia Creek or Willow Glen, which total
approximately 6 acres (.43% of the property). Capital improvements will
occupy less than 2 acres (.15% of the property).

Strategy 1.1: Within the first two years of management, TWC and project
partners will assess the need for additional capital improvements, and will
prioritize the projects that are found to be beneficial. In assessing that
need, the primary objective will be to undertake the minimum level of
improvements that is compatible with the need to focus, direct, and
supervise public access. Capital improvement projects that will be
considered include:

Restrooms—it is anticipated that a restroom will be sited near the Sandia Creek Dr.
parking lot. This area receives the heaviest volume of use by the public. A second
restroom will be considered for the Willow Glen/Stagecoach Lane parking area.
Parking lots—a parking lot currently exists on Sandia Creek Drive and is the primary
access point for visitors to the property. Improvements to the existing parking lot are
anticipated in order to reduce the impact of public access on resources in the immediate
area. A second parking lot may be sited at the corner of Willow Glen Road and N
Stagecoach Lane.

51

089



c. Sandia Creek Drive Bridge- partnering with Cal Trout, design a tish-friendly bridge to
replace the current bridge which has a negative effect on wildlife.

d. Ranger station—a single-family dwelling (1200 sq. ft., combined with a Preserve
Manager office space and visitor center 400 sq. ft.) is anticipated to be constructed at the
Sandia Creek Dr. parking lot, in order to provide a continuous on-site presence.

e. Signage—signage will be posted at the primary access points and distributed throughout
the trail system in order to ensure visitors are aware of preserve regulations and
understand the vulnerability of the natural communities.

i} Interpretive kiosk—an interpretive kiosk will be placed at the Sandia Creek Dr. parking

area.

Litter bag dispensers—locations are yet to be determined.

Stabling facilities for two horses may be built on disturbed, former agriculture land at

Willow Glen in order to facilitate search and rescue operations, property security, and

maintenance as needed.

P s

Strategy 1.2: Each infrastructure development project will be proposed,
planned, and permitted prior to the commencement of any construction. In
some instances, funds will need to be raised to complete specific capital
improvement projects.

Strategy 1.3: All development projects will be coordinated with Camp
Pendleton and the applicable resource agencies (including County of San
Diego, CDFW, USFWS) to ensure that the goals and objectives of this
plan are addressed and all permitting requirements are identified and
addressed.

Strategy 1.4: Project planning documents will be viewable by the general
public during the planning phases of such projects. The goal of
infrastructure development projects will be to enhance the protection of
natural and cultural resources while improving the quality of user
experiences.

2. Maintenance of infrastructure
Objective: Maintain infrastructure throughout its useful life.

Strategy 2.1: TWC staff and partners will maintain the infrastructure of the
property. Duties of the on-site personnel will range from such tasks as trail
inspections and maintenance, trash clean-up and graffiti removal,
vegetation management, as well as maintenance of all structures
developed by TWC including fencing, signage, visitor amenities, and
buildings.

3. Restoration of disturbed sites

52

090



Objective: Subject to availability of funding, to restore all previously-
disturbed sites on the property that are not required for implementation of this
plan.

Strategy 3.1: TWC will cooperate with project partners to carry out
restoration of areas that have been disturbed by previous land uses.

Strategy 3.2: An area approximately nine acres in size that was formerly
used for the agricultural production of succulents, near N. Stagecoach
Lane, should be remediated and restored with native vegetation.

Strategy 3.3: A vacant residence and outbuildings located on Sandia Creek
Drive has been dismantled and removed (the site of a former residence
that was removed by FPUD under the terms of its contract for sale of the
property), and the site should be restored to natural habitat. The site is
approximately two acres and occurs within Coast Live Oak woodland and
Coast Live Oak Riparian Forest habitat.

Strategy 3.4: Approximately four acres of additional disturbed areas along
Sandia Creek Dr. should be restored with native vegetation.

Strategy 3.5: Approximately one acre of eucalyptus trees will be assessed
for restoration with native vegetation.

E. Operations Planning

Goal: Establish a timeline and monitoring program for evaluating the
progress made toward management goals. These planning timelines and
monitoring programs will inform the adaptive management process by
refining future planning efforts and elucidating emerging management
objectives.

1. Annual work plans

Objective: Develop a framework that describes the operations to be
implemented within each calendar year.

Strategy 1.1: Preserve Manager will develop work plan calendars to
schedule the sequence of operations pursuant to the management plan. An
example is attached in appendix E.

Strategy 1.2: TWC will meet with MCBCP, SMER, and other natural
resource management agency representatives on an annual or biennial

53

091



basis to discuss and coordinate the Preserve’s current and emerging
natural resource management priorities.

54

092



References

Abbott, P. L. 1999. The rise and fall of San Diego: 150 million years of history recorded
in sedimentary rocks. San Diego, CA: Sunbelt Publications.

Atwood, J.L. 1993. California gnatcatchers and coastal sage scrub: The biological basis
for endangered species listing. Pp. 149-169 in Keeley, J.E. (ed.). Interface Between
Ecology and Land Development in California. Proceedings of the symposium convened.
May 1-2, 1992, at Occidental College in Los Angeles. Southern California Academy of
Sciences.

Beauchamp, R.M. 1986. A Flora of San Diego County, California. Sweetwater River
Press. National City, California.

Campbell, K.F., R.E. Erickson, W.E. Haas, and M. A. Patten. 1998. California
gnatcatcher use of habitats other than coastal sage scrub: conservation and management
implications. Western Birds 29: 421433,

Cardno ENTRIX, 2013, Santa Margarita River Steelhead Habitat Assessment and Enhancement
Plan. Santa Rosa, Ca. April 2013.

[CNDDB] California Department of Fish and Game, Natural Diversity Database. 2010.
Element Occurrence Reports for Ambrosia pumila. Unpublished cumulative data
current to January 26, 2010.

[Dudek] Dudek and Associates, Inc. 2000. City of San Diego Mission Trails Regional
Park, San Diego ambrosia management plan,

[Dudek] Dudek and Associates, Inc. 2003. Western Riverside County Final Multiple
Species Habitat Conservation Plan, Volumes I -V. Dudek and Associates, Inc.,
Encinitas, California.

Feeney, R.F. and C.C. Swift. 2008. Description and ecology of larvae and juveniles of three
native cypriniforms of coastal southern California. Ichthyological Research 55:65-77.

Fish and Wildlife Service. 1998. Draft recovery plan for the least Bell's vireo. U.S. Fish
and Wildlife Service, Portland, OR. Pp 139.

Geotechnical & Environmental Solutions (EEI). 2016. Baseline Environmental Survey
Santa Margarita River Property. Carlsbad, CA. April 2016.

Helix Environmental Planning (HEP). 2015, Fallbrook Public Utility District Mitigation
Analysis. La Mesa, CA. May 2015.

Hickman, J.C., ed. 1993. The Manual: Higher Plants of California. University of
California Press, Berkeley, 1400 pp.

Holland, R.F. 1986. Preliminary Descriptions of the Terrestrial Natural Communities of
California. California Department of Fish and Game, Non-game Heritage Program,
Sacramento, CA.

Holland, V.L., and D.J. Keil. 1995. California vegetation. Kendall/Hunt Publishing
Company.

Jackson, L. 1985. Ecological origins of California’s Mediterranean Grasses. Journal of
Biogeography 12: 349-361.

Keator, G. 1993. Brodiaea. In J.C. Hickman (edit.), The Jepson Manual, Higher Plants
of California. University of California Press, Berkeley, California.

Keck, D.D. 1959. Compositae. In: Munz P.A. A California flora. University of
California Press, Berkeley, California.

55

093



Kus, B. 2002. Least Bell's Vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus). In The Riparian Bird Conservation
Plan: a strategy for reversing the decline of riparian-associated birds in California.
California Partners in Flight. http://www.prbo.org/calpif/htmldocs/riparian_v-2.html

Madden-Smith, M. C., E. L. Ervin, K. P. Meyer, S. A. Hathaway, and R. N. Fisher. 2005.
Distribution and Statusof the Arroyo Toad (Bufo Californicus) and Western Pond Turtle
(Emys Marmorata) in the San Diego MSCP and Surrounding Areas. San Diego, CA.

McCown, B. E. (1964). Collected papers of Benjamin Ernest McCown. LaVeme, Calif.?;
Archaeological Survey Association of Southern California

McGlaughlin, M.E. and E.A. Friar. 2007. Clonality in the endangered Ambrosia pumila
(Asteraceae) inferred from RAPD markers; implications for conservation and
management. Cons. Genetics 8:319-330.

Munz, P.A. 1974. A Manual of Southern California Botany. University of California
Press, Berkeley and Los Angeles, California.

Niehaus, T.F. 1971. A biosystematic study of the genus Brodiaea (dmaryllidaceae). U.C.
Publications in Botany 60: 1-66, pl. 1.

O’Leary, J.F. 1990. Californian coastal sage scrub: General characteristics and
considerations for biological conservation. Pp. 24-31 in Schoenherr, A.A. (ed.).
Endangered plant communities of southern California. Southern California
Botanists Special Publication No. 3.

Payne, W. 1993. Ambrosia. In: Jepson WL, Hickman JC (eds.) The Jepson manual:
higher plants of California. University of California Press, Berkeley, California.

PRISM Climate Group, Oregon State University, http://prism.oregonstate.edu/, created
September 2016.

RECON (Regional Environmental Consultants). 1989. Comprehensive species
management plan for the least Bell's vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus). Prepared for San
Diego Association of Governments, San Diego

Rochester, C. J. and R. N. Fisher, 2014, Fire and wildlife strategic plan workshop — San Diego
County — California; Meeting summary and recommendation. U.S. Geological Survey-
Data Summary prepared for San Diego Association of Governments. 33 pp.

Rubinoff, D. 2001. Evaluating the California gnatcatcher as an umbrella species for
conservation of southern California coastal sage scrub. Conservation Biology 15:
1374-1383.

Santa Margarita Ecological Reserve. (n.d.). Retrieved August 31, 2016, from
http://fs.sdsu.edu/santa-margarita-ecological-reserve/

San Diego Management and Monitoring Program (SDMMP). 2013. Management strategic plan
for conserved lands in western San Diego County. Prepared for San Diego Association
of Governments (SANDAG), version 08.27.2013.

South Coast Wildlands. 2008. South Coast Missing Linkages: A Wildland Network for the South
Coast Ecoregion. Produced in cooperation with partners in the South Coast Missing
Linkages Initiative. Available online at http://www.scwildlands.org.

Stebbins, Robert C. A Field Guide to Western Reptiles and Amphibians. 3rd Edition. Houghton
Mifflin Company, 2003.

Sweet, S.S. 1992, Initial report on the ecology and status of the arroyo toad (Bufo
microscaphus californicus) on the Los Padres National Forest of southern

56

094



California, with management recommendations. Report to United States
Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Los Padres National Forest, Goleta,
California. ii + 198 pp.

Swift, C.C., T.R. Haglund, M. Ruiz, and R.N. Fisher. 1993. The status and distribution of the
freshwater fishes of southern California. Bulietin Southern California Academy Sciences
92:101-167.

Syphard, A. D., and J. E. Keeley. 2015. Location, Timing and Extent of Wildfire Vary by Cause
of Ignition.International Journal of Wildland Fire 24:37—47.

University of California (UC), Riverside. 2014. The Goldspotted Oak Borer. Center for Invasive
Species Research. Available at: http://cisr.ucr.edu/goldspotted oak borer.html. Accessed
on May 9, 2014.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 1998, Southemn steelhead Oncorhynchus mykiss habitat
suitability survey of the Santa Margarita River, San Mateo and San Onofre Creeks on
Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton. Coastal California Fish and Wildlife Office, Arcata,
CA. Prepared for Assistant Chief of Staff, Environmental Security.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 2002, Southwestern Willow Flycatcher (Empidonax traillii
extimus) final recovery plan: U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Albuquerque, New Mexico.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 2006, Least Bell’s Vireo 5 Year Review Summary and
Evaluation. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Carlsbad, California.

USFWS. 2009. Arroyo Toad 5-Year Review : Summary and Evaluation. Ventura , California.

Westman, W.E. 1983. Xeric Mediterranean-type shrubland associations of Alta and Baja
California and the community/continuum debate. Vegetation 52: 3-19.

Winchell, C.S., and P.F. Doherty. 2008. Using California gnatcatcher to test underlying
models of habitat conservation plans. Journal of Wildlife Management 72: 1322-1327.

57

095



Appendix A

Assessor Parcel Numbers
102-105-06- 102-180-13- 102-180-65- 102-250-24- 102-280-55- 102-400-40-
00 00 00 00 00 00
102-450-23- 102-520-02- 102-590-15- 102-600-67- 102-601-01- 102-601-02-
00 00 00 00 00 00
102-601-03- 102-601-11- 102-601-12- 102-710-11- 102-750-05- 105-020-02-
00 00 00 00 00 00
102-101-08- 102-101-09- 102-102-03- 102-102-06- 102-105-04- 102-102-04-
00 00 00 00 00 00
101-361-17- 102-102-02- 102-160-48- 102-280-02- 102-400-28- 102-400-29-
00 00 00 00 00 00
102-440-05- 102-490-29- 102-690-08- 102-102-05-
00 00 00 00

58

096



Appendix C
Fallbrook Public Utility District Ordinances
No. 336

ORDINANCE NO. 336
AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT GOVERNING ITS SANTA
MARGARITA RIVER PROPERTY

Exhibit "A" ORDINANCE NO. 336
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
Regulations for Use of the Santa Margarita River Property Owned by the District

Section No.  Section Name
1 Definitions
2 Breaking. Cutting, or Injuring Plants
3 Care of Wildlife
4, Taking Wood
b Motor Vehicles and Other Conveyances
6 Bicycles
7 Glass Beverage Containers Prohibited
8 Regulation of Equestrians
9. Pollution of Streams (Generally)
10. Dogs
11. Camp Fires
12, Camping
13. Disposal of Rubbish and Garbage
14, Unreasonable Noises
15. Advertising
16. Hunting and Fishing
17. Possession and Use of Firearms and Weapons
18. No Smoking Allowed
19. Night Closing
20. Fireworks Prohibited
21. Permit for Organized Public Programs or Private Programs
22. Illegal Drugs
23. Care of District Property
24, Off Trail Travel
25. Care of Watershed
26. Exemptions from Regulations
27. Severability

Section 1: Definitions
Alcoholic Beverages. For purposes of this title, the term alcoholic beverages shall include alcohol, spirits,
liquor, wine, beer and every liquid or solid containing one- half of one percent or more of alcohol by

volume and which is fit for beverage purposes either alone or when diluted, mixed or combined with
other substances. No alcohol is allowed within the Santa Margarita River Property.

59

097



Property Manager. Property Manager is defined as the FPUD Supervisor tasked with overseeing the
Property.

Peace Officer. Peace Officer is defined as any peace officer, as defined in Chapter 4. 5 commencing with
Section 830) of Title 3 of Part 2 of the Penal Code.

Trail Rights- of-Way. Trail Rights- of-Way is defined as trail usage priority to yield to traffic in the
following order: horses, hikers, and bicyclists.

Section 2: Breaking, Cutting or Injuring Plants

No person shall pluck, take, remove, damage, or destroy any flower, shrubbery, plant, vine, tree, grass,
ground cover or other natural or cultivated growth within the Santa Margarita River Property except with
prior written permission of the Property Manager.

Section 3: Care of Wildlife

It shall be unlawful for any person to hunt, molest, harm, frighten, kill, trap, chase, tease, shoot or throw
projectiles at any animal, reptile or bird within the Santa Margarita River Property.

No person shall operate a remote controlled vehicle or drone in or near the property except law
enforcement or governmental authorities in the discharge of their duties.

Section 4: Taking Wood

No person shall cut or remove any wood or fallen trees within the Santa Margarita River Property except
with written permission of the Property Manager.

Section 5: Motor Vehicles and Other Conveyances

a) It shall be unlawful for any person at any time to operate or drive an automobile, truck, trailer,
motorcycle, motor scooter, motorbike, or any other type of motor vehicle within the Santa Margarita
River Property unless such vehicles are in a designated parking or staging area or on a County of San
Diego maintained road without prior written permission from the Property Manager.

b) No person within the Santa Margarita River Property shall fail to comply with all applicable
provisions of the State Motor Vehicle Code and traffic laws in regard to equipment, signs, speed limits
and operation of vehicles together with such regulations as are contained in these regulations.

¢) No person shall park any vehicle within the Santa Margarita River Property except for the
duration of their visit.

d) Vehicles parked in violation of State of California Vehicle Code Sections 22651r) or 22652,
may be subject to removal from the Santa Margarita River Property at the vehicle owner's expense.

€) These provisions shall not apply to motor vehicles and motorized equipment for District
maintenance, patrol vehicles, or emergency vehicles in the process of conducting maintenance, operation
or enforcement activities within the Santa Margarita River Property and contractors/ consultants,
performing work for the District as authorized by the Board of Directors or the District's General
Manager.

Section 6: Bicycles

60

098



a) It shall be unlawful for any person to ride a bicycle of any type on other than designated trails.
Bicyclists shall be permitted to use designated hiking trails, but must use due care and caution to not
interfere with hikers or equestrian users.

b) Bicycle speed limits shall be as follows:

c¢) Fifteen ( 15) miles/hour maximum in all recreational and park areas

d) Five (5) miles/ hour within one hundred ( 100) feet of pedestrians and equestrians

¢) Bicyclists must dismount and step to the side of the trail at least fifteen feet away in the
presence of horses.

f) Bicyclists must observe choke points on trails and slow their speed at these choke points.
Bicyclist shall verbally notify or signal with a bell when behind or in front of horses, hikers, or other
bicyclist.

£) No motorized bicycles are permitted or allowed.

Section 7: Glass Beverage Containers Prohibited

No person shall possess any glass beverage container within the Santa Margarita River Property of the
District except that the sponsor of an organized public event may obtain written permission in advance
from the Property Manager to possess glass beverage containers, provided that the containers remain
under the sponsor's control and are not distributed to participants of the event.

Section 8: Regulation of Equestrians

Horses ridden within the Santa Margarita River Property shall only be on designated equestrian routes
and trails.

Section 9: Pollution of Streams ( Generally)

No person shall contaminate or pollute, or cause to be contaminated or polluted, any water of any creek
flowing through the Santa Margarita River Property, or to deposit or cause to be deposited any refuse,
rubbish or other waste matter of any kind or character, in such waters, or to wash or clean vehicles,
clothing, animals or persons in the waters of the property. No body contact or swimming is allowed. No
wading or walking in the stream is allowed except at designated trail crossings.

Section 10: Dogs

Dogs will be required to remain on leash at all times in all areas of the Santa Margarita River Property. It
shall be the duty of all persons having control of a dog to immediately remove any feces to a proper
receptacle.

Section 11: Camp Fires

It shall be unlawful to make any fire, of any kind, or utilize a barbeque, a propane grill, enclosed fire
units, or hibachi- style cooking devices at any time within the Santa Margarita River Property.

Section 12: Camping and Picnicking
No person or group of persons shall camp overnight or remain or stay overnight within the Santa

Margarita River Property. The property shall be used for non- motorized trail use only. No group events,
group picnicking or other group activities are allowed without a permit.

61

099



Section 13: Disposal of Rubbish and Garbage

No person shall throw, dump, or otherwise place or cause to be placed, or leave, either directly or
indirectly, any rubbish, garbage, sewage or waste matter, or any trash or refuse of any kind or character,
other than in receptacles established and maintained for such purposes. No person shall bring or cause to
be brought, any rubbish, garbage, sewage, waste matter, trash or refuse of any kind for the purpose of
disposing of same within the property either in the receptacles described herein, or at any other place.

Section 14: Unreasonable Noises

a) No person shall operate any loudspeaker or any other sound amplification device within the
Santa Margarita River Property.

b) No person, either by voice, mechanical device, tumultuous or other offensive conduct or
otherwise, shall create, or permit or cause to be created, any loud or unusual noises at any time which
create a nuisance. Noises determined to be too loud or offensive shall be promptly reduced or
discontinued as directed by any peace officer or authorized District employee.

Section 15: Advertising

No person shall display or post any plates, markers, signs, commercial or message within the Santa
Margarita River Property without prior written approval of the Property Manager.

Section 16: Hunting and Fishing

No person shall take any wild game, animals, birds or eggs within the Santa Margarita River Property
except with the prior written permission of the Property Manager. No fishing allowed and shall be subject
to the regulations of the California Fish and Game, et al.

Section 17: Possession and Use of Firearms and Weapons

No person shall take, carry or transport any firearm, pellet gun, pump gun, zip gun, air rifle, bow and
arrow, BB gun or weapon of any kind within the Santa Margarita River Property.

Section 18: No Smoking Allowed

No person shall light matches, smoke cigars, pipes, cigarettes or any other smoking device or instrument
or carry, upon, or across, the Santa Margarita River Property, any lighted cigars, pipes, cigarettes or other
lighted inflammable material at any time.

Section 19: Night Closing

All trails shall be closed to the public from dusk to dawn based on posted hours. The hours will be
coordinated with operating hours of the County of San Diego. Santa Margarita River Property hours may
also be revised as deemed necessary by the District's General Manager.

Use of the Santa Margarita River Property outside of posted hours is considered trespassing per California
Penal Code 602.

Section 20: Fireworks Prohibited

62

100



No fireworks of any kind shall be lit within or discharged within the Santa Margarita River Property.
Section 21: Permit for Organized Public or Private Programs

No person shall conduct any organized public program, public assemblage or public address within the
Santa Margarita River Property without first obtaining the written permission of the Property Manager.
The General Manager has the authority to approve or reject Special Use or Special Event requests at his
or her discretion.

Written permission is required for any uses besides non- motorized trail use on the property as described
in this ordinance.

Section 22: Illegal Drugs

No person shall use or possess any illegal or illicit drug in any area within the Santa Margarita River
Property.

Section 23: Care of District Property

It shall be uniawful for any person to mark, deface, disfigure, injure, destroy, tamper with, displace, or
remove any equipment, buildings, tables, benches, railings, fencing, paving, utilities, or parts or
appurtenances thereof, signs, notices, place cards, District property, including but not limited to,
monuments, stakes posts or any other boundary markers, or other structures, equipment, facilities or
materials within the Santa Margarita River Property.

Section 24: Off Trail Travel

It shall be unlawful for any person or group of persons to travel off any marked or designated trail by any
means, including by foot, horse or bicycle, except to enter a developed area of the Santa Margarita River
Property. Persons may briefly step off the marked trail to give right-of-way to passing horses, hikers, or
bicycelists.

Section 25: Care of Watershed

It shall be unlawful for any person to conduct any activity within the Santa Margarita River Property
which may degrade the watershed and/ or the resulting quality of water within that watershed.

Section 26: Exemptions from Regulations

The provisions of these regulations shall not apply to or restrict any officer, employee, volunteer or agent
of the District, or any other peace officer when such person is acting to enforce any of these regulations.

Section 27: Severability

The District's regulations for the Santa Margarita River Property and their various parts, sections, and
clauses thereof are declared by the Board of Directors to be severable. If any part, sentence, paragraph,
section, subsection, clause, phrase, part or portion thereof is judged unconstitutional or invalid by a
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of these regulations shall not be affected thereby. The Board of

63

101



Directors hereby declares that it would have passed these regulations and each part thereof, regardless of
the fact that one or more of such parts would be declared unconstitutional or invalid.

64

102



Appendix D

Sensitive Animal Species
Sensitive Animal Species with Potential to Occur
Species Listing or Potential to occur
Sensitivity*
Invertebrates
Hermes copper Candidate/-- Low to Moderate. Occurs in southern mixed
(Lycaena hermes) County Group 1 chaparral and coastal sage scrub with mature
specimens of its larval host plant spiny redberry
(Rhamnus crocea)
Vertebrates
Fish
Arroyo chub (Gila orcuttii) /8SC Likely present. Known from the Santa
Margarita River and Sandia Creek. Found in
slowly moving streams with substrates of sand
or mud and depths of 40 centimeters or greater.
Amphibians and Reptiles
Arroyo toad FE/SSC Likely present. Found on banks with open-
(Anaxyrus californicus) County Group 1 canopy riparian forest characterized by willows,
cottonwoods, or sycamores; breeds in areas
with shallow, slowly moving streams, but
burrows in adjacent uplands during dry months.
Orange-throated whiptail --/SSC Moderate to high. Coastal sage scrub, chaparral,
(Aspidoscelis hyperythra) County Group 2 edges of riparian woodlands, and washes. Also
found in weedy, disturbed areas adjacent to
these habitats. Important habitat requirements
include open, sunny areas, shaded areas, and
abundant insect prey base, particularly termites
(Reticulitermes sp.)
Coastal whiptail -/-- Moderate to high. Open coastal sage scrub,
(Aspidoscelis tigris County Group 2 chaparral, and woodlands. Frequently found
stejnegeri) along the edges of dirt roads traversing its
habitats. Important habitat components include
open, sunny areas, shrub cover with
accumulated leaf litter, and an abundance of
insects, spiders, or scorpions.
Red-diamond rattlesnake --/SSC High. Found in chaparral, coastal sage scrub,
(Crotalus ruber) County Group 2 along creek banks, particularly among rock
outcrops or piles of debris with a supply of
burrowing rodents for prey.
San Diego banded gecko -f-- High. Chaparral and coastal sage scrub in areas
{Coleonyx variegatus abbotti) County Group 1 with rock outcrops.
High. Generally occus in moist habitats such as

65

103




San Diego ringneck snake -/ oak woodlands and canyon bottoms, but is also
(Diadophis punctatus similis) County Group 2 sometimes encountered in grassland, chaparral,
and coastal sage scrub; generally restricted to
leaf litter and rarely crosses open areas.
Western pond turtle --/SSC High. Almost entirely aquatic; occurs in
(Emys marmorata) County Group 1 freshwater marshes, creeks, ponds, rivers and
streams, particularly where basking sites, deep
water retreats, and egg laying areas are readily
available.
Coastal rosy boa - High. Occurs among rocky outcrops in coastal
(Charina [Lichanura] County Group 2 sage scrub, chaparral, and desert scrub.
trivirgata [roseofusca])
Coast horned lizard --/8SC High. Occurs oin coastal sage scrub, chaparral,
(Phrynosoma blainvillii) County Group 2 open oak woodlands, and open coniferous
forests. Important habitat components include
basking sites, adequate scrub cover, areas of
loose soil, and an abundance of harvester ants
{Pogonomyrmex sp.) a primary prey item
Coronado skink --/SSC Moderate. Occurs in grasslands, coastal sage
(Plestiodon [ Eumeces] County Group 2 scrub, and open chaparral where there is
skiltonianus interparietalis abundant leaf litter or low herbaceous growth.
Coast patch-nosed snake -—-/SSC Low to moderate. Inhabits semi-arid brushy
(Salvadora hexalepis County Group 2 areas and chaparral in canyons, rocky hillsides,
virguitea) and plains.
Western spadefoot -/S8SC Low. Occurs in open coastal sage scrub,
(Spea hammeondii) County Group 2 chaparral, and grassland, along sandy or
gravelly washes, floodplains, alluvial fans, or
playas; requires temporary pools for breeding
and friable soils for burrowing; generally
excluded from areas with bullfrogs (Rana
catesbiana) or crayfish (Procambarus sp.)
California red-legged frog FT/SSC Low. Found in dense, shrubby riparian

(Rana [aurora] draytonii)

County Group 1

vegetation with deep, slow-moving water.
Known from Santa Rosa Plateau

Two-striped garter snake

--/88C
County Group 1

High. Typical habitat is along permanent and
intermittent streams bounded by dense riparian
vegetation; also found associated with vernal
pools and stock ponds.

Birds

Cooper’s hawk
(Accipiter cooperii)

--/WL
County Group 1

Likely present. Tends to inhabit lowland
riparian areas and oak woodlands in proximity
to suitable foraging areas such as scrublands or

fields.

Sharp-shinned hawk

--/'WL

Low. Usually observed in areas with tall trees
or other vegetative cover but can be observed in

66

104




(Accipiter striatus County Group 1 a variety of habitats. In San Diego County
occurs in small numbers and only in winter.
Southern California rufous- --/WL Moderate. Occurs in coastal sage scrub on
crowned sparrow County Group 1 rocky hillsides and in canyons; also found in
(Aimophila ruficeps open sage scrub/ grassy areas of successional
canescens) growth.
Bell’s sage sparrow --/'WL Moderate. Occurs in sunny, dry stands of
(Amphispiza belli belli) County Group 1 coastal sage scrub or chaparral.
Golden eagle BCC, BGEPA/ WL Moderate. Typical foraging habitat includes
(Aquila chrysaetos) Fully Protected grassy and open, shrubby habitats. Generally
County Group 1 nests on remote cliffs; requires areas of solitude
at distance from human habitation. Limited
foraging habitat occurs on the preserve.
Long-eared owl --/SSC Moderate. Rare resident in San Diego County in
(Asio otus) County Group 1 shaddy oak woodlands and broad riparian

forests. Ideal habitat includes a closed canopy
near open habitats for foraging and a supply of
abandoned raptor or corvid nests or debris
platforms for nesting.

Burrowing owl
(Athene cunicularia)

BCC/SSC
County Group 1

Very low. Typical habitat is grassland open
scrublands, agricultural fields, and other areas
where there are ground squirrel burrows or
other areas in which to burrow.

Red-sholdered hawk -~/-- High. Inhabits riparian and oak woodlands,
(Buteo lineatus) County Group 1 orchards, and eucalyptus groves.
Turkey vulture -/-- High. Species occurs throughout much of San

(Cathartes aura)

County Group 1

Diego County with the exception of extreme
costal San Diego whre development is heaviest.
Foraging habitat includes most open habitats
a=with breeding occurring in crevices among
boulders.

Northern harrier
(Circus cyaneus)

--/SSC
County Group 1

Low. Within San Diego County, distribution is
primarily scattered throughout lowlands but can
also be observed in foothills, mountains, and
desert. Typical habitat consists of open
grassland and marsh.

Yellow-billed cuckoo Candidate, BCC/ SE Low. Generally occurs along larger river
(Coccyzus americanus County Group 1 systems, where it nests in riparian forest
occidentalis) dominated by willows and cottonwoods.
Yellow warbler --/SSC Likely present. Ocuurs in riparian forest and
(Setophaga brewsteri) County Group 2 scrubs and almost certainly occurs throughout
riparian habitats on site.
Southwestern willow
flycatcher FE/SE High. Known from the Santa Margarita River.
(Empidonax traillii extimus) County Groupl Breeds within thickets of willows or other

67

105




riparian understory usually along streams,
ponds, lakes, or canyons. One of the most
important characteristics of the habitat appears
to be the presence of dense vegetation, usually
throughout all vegetation layers present. Almost
all breeding habitats are within close proximity
of water or very saturated soil.

California horned lark --/WL Low. Found on sandy beaches and in
{Eremophila alpestris actia) County Group 2 agricultural fields, grassland, and open areas.
Prairie falcon BCC/WL High. Nests on cliffs or bluffs and forages over
(Falco mexicanus) County Group 1 open desert scrub or grassland.
Yellow-breasted chat --/SSC Likely present. Prefers mature riparian
(Ictera virens) County Group 1 woodlands and almost certainly occurs
throughout riparian habitat on site.
Loggerhead shrike BCC/SSC Low. Typical habitat includes open habitats

(Lanius ludocicianu)

County Group 1

including grasslands, shrublands, and ruderal
areas with adequate perching locations.

White-face ibis --/WL Low. Occurs in large marshes, with nesting
(Plegadus chichi) County Group 1 colony hidden in inaccessible reedbed or
willow-covered area.
Coastal California FT/SSC High. Occurs in coastal sage scrub and very
gnatcatcher County Group 1 open chaparral.
(Polioptila californica
californica)
Least Bell’s vireo FE/SE Likely present. Inhabits riparian woodland and
(Vireo bellii pusillus) County Group 1 is most frequent in areas that combine an
understory of dense, young willows or mule fat
with a canopy of tall willows and almost
certainly occurs throughout riparian habitat on
site.
Mammals
Pallid bat --/88C Moderate. Locally common species of low
(Antrozous pallidus) County Group 2 elevations in California. Prefers rocky outcrops,
cliffs, and crevices with open habitats for
foraging.
Ringtail -/-- High. Found in a mixture of shrubland and
(Bassariscus astutus) County Group 2 forest habitats at low to middle elevations in
close association with rocky areas and riparian
habitats.
Dulzura pocket mouse --/SSC High. Primarily associated with mature
(Chaetodipus californicus County Group 2 chaparral. It has, however, been trapped in mule
Jfemoralis) fat scrub and is known to occur in coastal sage
scrub.
Northwestern San Diego --/SSC Low. Occurs in open areas of coastal sage scrub
pocket mouse County Group 2 and weedy growth, and often on sandy

(Chaetodipus fallax fallax)

substrates.

68

106




Spotted bat --/SSC Low. Prefers sites with adequate roosting
(Euderma maculatum) County Group 2 habitat (i.e., cliffs); feeds over water and along
washes. Rare in California (Zeiner, et al. 1990).
Western mastiff bat --/SSC Moderate. Suitable habitat consists of extensive
(Eumops perotis californicus) County Group 2 open areas with abundant roost locations
(crevices in cliff faces, high buildings, trees,
tunnels).
Mountain Lion -/-- Present. Requires extensive areas of riparian
(Felis concolor) County Group 2 vegetation and brushy stages of various habitats
wither interspersed irregular terrain, rocky
outcrops, and tree/brush edges. Main prey is
mule deer.
Western yellow bat --/SSC Low. Found in wooded areas and desert scrub,
(Lasiurus xanthinus) -- particularly in palm trees. Rare visitor to San
Diego County (Bats of San Diego County
2012).
San Diego black-tailed --/SSC Low. Found primarily in open habitats
jackrabbit County Group 2 including coastal sage scrub, chaparral,
(Lepus californicus bennettii) grasslands, croplands, and open, disturbed areas
if there is at least some shrub cover present.
California leaf-nosed bat --/SSC Moderate. Prefers rocky rugged terrain; roosts
(Macrotus californicus) County Group 2 by day in caves, abandoned mines, and tunnels.
Forages over nearby flats and washes.
Small-footed myotis -—/-- Moderate. Occurs in arid, upland habitats.
(Myotis ciliolabrum) County Group 2 Prefers open stands in forests and woodlands as
well as brushy habitats. Feeds over and drinks
from streams, ponds, springs and stock tanks.
Long-eared myotis -f-= Moderate. In brush, woodland, and forest
(Myotis evotis) County Group 2 habitats, but coniferous woodlands and forests
seem to be preferred. Roosts in rock crevices,
buildings, under bark, and in snags. Feeds along
habitat edges, in open habitat, and over water.
Fringed myotis —/-- Low to moderate. Occurs in a wide variety of
(Myotis thysanodes) County Group 2 habitats, but optimal habitats are oak and
juniper forests and desert scrub. Roosts in
caves, mines, buildings, and crevices. Forages
in open habitats, streams, lakes, and ponds;
requires water.
Long-legged myotis -~/-- Moderate. Feeds over water and over open
(Myotis volans) County Group 2 habitats using denser woodland and forests for
reproduction. Drinks regularly. Roosts in rock
crevices, buildings, under tree bark, in snags,
mines and caves.
Yuma myotis --/-- Low. Open forests and woodland are optimal
(Myotis yumanensis) County Group 2 habitat. Closely tied to bodies of water for

foraging and drinking. Roosts in buildings,

69

107




mines, crevices, caves, and under bridges.
San Diego desert woodrat —/SSC Moderate. Occurs in open chaparral and coastal
{Neotoma lepida intermedia) County Group 2 sage scrub, often building large, stick nests in
rock outcrops or around clumps of cactus or
yucca.
Big free-tailed bat --/SSC Low. A rare species in California (Zeiner et al.
(Nyctinomops macrotis) County Group 2 1990). Prefers rugged, rocky canyons. Often
forages over water. Roosts in crevices in high
cliffs or rock outcrops.
Southern grasshopper mouse --/SSC Low. Desert habitat is preferred, but it also
(Onychomys torridus County Group 2 occurs in coastal scrub and mixed chaparral. It
ramona) is uncommon in valley foothill and montane
riparian habitats.
Townsend’s western big- --/SSC Low. Most abundant in mesic habitats.
eared bat County Group 2 Considered uncommon in California (Zeiner, et
(Corynorhinus townsendii) al. 1990). Drinks water and requires caves,
mines, tunnels, buildings, or other man-man
structures for roosting,.
American badger --/SSC Low. Uncommon resident in California that
(Taxidea taxus) County Group 2 occurs in herbaceous, scrub, and open stages of
most habitats with dry, friable soils (Zeiner et
al. 1990).
Southern mule deer /== Present. Common in region. Inhabits coastal
(Odocoileus hemionus County Group 2 scrub, chaparral, riparian forests and
Sfuliginata) woodlands, and grasslands.
Adapted from Helix 2015 Report
Appendix E

Explanations of Status Codes for Plant and Animal Species

70

108




U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS)

FE Federally listed endangered

FT Federally listed threatened

BCC Birds of Conservation Concern {discussed in more detail, below)

BGEPA Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act (discussed in more detail below)
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW)

SE State listed endangered

SR State listed rare

ST State listed threatened

SSC State species of special concern

WL Watch List

Fully Protected Fully Protected species refer to all vertebrate and invertebrate taxa of concern
to the Natural Diversity Data Base regardless of legal or protection status.

These species may not be taken or possessed without a permit from the Fish

and Game Commission and/or CDFW.

County of San Diego

Plant sensitivity:

Group A Plants rare, threatened, or endangered in California or elsewhere

Group B Plants rare, threatened, or endangered in California but more common elsewhere
Group C Plants that may be quite rare, but more information is needed to determine rarity status
Group D Plants of limited distribution and are uncommon, but not presently rare or
endangered

Animal sensitivity:

County Sensitive Animals considered under California Environmental Quality Act.

Multiple Species Conservation Program (MSCP) Covered

Multiple Species Conservation Program covered species for which the County has take
authorization within the MSCP area.

MSCP Narrow Endemic (NE)

Narrow endemic species are native species that have “restricted geographic distributions, soil
affinities, and/or habitats.” The MSCP participants’ subarea plans have specific conservation
measures to ensure impacts to narrow endemics are avoided to the maximum extent practicable.

OTHER CODES AND ABBREVIATIONS

USFWS Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act (BGEPA)

In 1782, Continental Congress adopted the bald eagle as a national symbol. During the next one
and a half centuries, the bald eagle was heavily hunted by sportsmen, taxidermists, fisherman,
and farmers. To prevent the species from becoming extinct, Congress passed the Bald Eagle
Protection Act in 1940. The Act was extremely comprehensive, prohibiting the take, possession,
sale, purchase, barter, or offer to sell, purchase, or barter, export or import of the bald eagle “at
any time or in any manner.”

In 1962, Congress amended the Eagle Act to cover golden eagles, a move that was partially an
attempt to strengthen protection of bald eagles, since the latter were often killed by people
mistaking them for golden eagles. The golden eagle, however, is accorded somewhat lighter
protection under the Act than the bald eagle. Another 1962 amendment authorizes the Secretary

71

109



of the Interior to grant permits to Native Americans for traditional religious use of eagles and
eagle parts and feathers.

USFWS Birds of Conservation Concern (BCC)

This report from 2002 aims to identify accurately the migratory and non-migratory bird species
(beyond those already designated as federally threatened or endangered) that represent USFWS®
highest conservation priorities and draw attention to species in need of conservation action.
USFWS hopes that by focusing attention on these highest priority species, the report will
promote greater study and protection of the habitats and ecological communities upon which

these species depend, thereby ensuring the future of healthy avian populations and communities.

The report is available online at http://migratorybirds.fws.gov/reports/bcc2002.pdf.
* Adapted from Helix 2015

72

110



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jack Bebee, Assistant General ManageriJA@
DATE: June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Fire Management Plan for Santa Margarita River Property

Purpose

To provide the requested information to the Board on preparation of a Fire
Management Plan for the Santa Margarita River (SMR) Property

Summary

The District is currently in escrow with Western Rivers Conservancy for the sale of the
SMR Property pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the Purchase and Sale
Agreement between the District and Western Rivers Conservancy. Following
acquisition of the SMR Property, Western Rivers Conservancy intends to transfer the
SMR Property to a long-term steward (The Wildlands Conservancy (TWC)). TWC has
worked with Western Rivers Conservancy in preparing a draft integrated resource
management plan (IRMP) that sets out long-term stewardship responsibilities of TWC
in collaboration with “project partners” “including universities, professional consultants,
governmental agencies, NGOs, and volunteer citizen scientists.” (Draft IRMP, p. 25.).
With regard to fire management, the draft IRMP contemplates that a fire management
plan by the “project partners in collaboration with local fire and emergency response
agencies” will be completed within 2 years of acquisition of the SMR Property. (Draft
IRMP, p. 29.). The Purchase and Sale Agreement between the District and Western
Rivers Conservancy contains no provisions regarding development of a fire
management plan.

The Board has requested information regarding the requirements for preparing a fire
management plan for the property and has requested cost information and some
examples.

Requirements for Preparing a Plan:

There is no legal requirement for the District o develop a fire management plan
absent a specific requirement imposed by a federal, state or local agency with
jurisdiction over fire protection and/or management issues for the SMR Property.

Cost Information:

Attached are two examples of fairly detailed plans for similar properties. For
budgeting purposes the cost of the plan would be approximately $50,000, but

111



could be reduced by doing a less robust analysis and plan. Additionally,
development and/or implementation of measures identified in the plan could
trigger environmental review under the provisions of the California Environmental
Quality Act.

If the plan is completed and the property is sold, it would be left up to the long-term
steward to address any recommendations in the plan and it cannot be guaranteed that
they would complete all recommended elements. If the District continues to own the
property, costs for implementing any fire management activities identified in the plan,
would be borne by the District. While under the California Government Code, public
agencies are generally not liable for injuries caused by a natural condition of its
unimproved public property, the District could be subject to liability if it does prepare a
fire management plan but does not undertake the measures identified in the pian.

Recommended Action

If the Board wishes to pursue this effort, that the Board direct staff to solicit for
Professional Services to prepare a Fire Management Plan for the Santa Margarita River
Property. Staff will bring back their recommendation for award to the Board for
approval.

112



DUDEK

MAIN OFFICE

605 THIRD STREET

ENCINITAS, CALIFORNIA 92024

1 760.942.5147 T B00.430.1818 F 760.632.0164

October 2, 2008 6092
Ivan Holler David Abrams

Planning Director General Manager

Rancho Santa Fe Association Fairbanks Ranch Association

17022 Avenida de Acacias P.O. Box 8166

Rancho Santa Fe, California 92067 Rancho Santa Fe, California 92067

Subject: Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction
Project

Dear Mr. Holler and Mr. Abrams:

The following letter report provides details regarding Dudek’s wildfire hazard and fuel reduction
evaluation for a portion of the San Dieguito River Canyon. The goal of this study and the
resulting recommendations is to reduce fuels in the project area so that structures, primarily
residences, are provided additional protection, reducing the potential for ignition. Because
wildfires produce embers that may travel miles, resulting in “area ignitions” or spot fires,
including to vulnerable structures, the principles and recommendations provided in this report
are applicable to a much broader region than the focused project area, and should be considered
for all properties in the greater Rancho Santa Fe area and beyond.

The project area’s approximately 1.6-mile linear Canyon location extends from its northern
terminus at an unnamed road intersecting the San Dieguito River drainage, just south of an
existing pond (Attachment 1) to its southern terminus approximately 0.8 mile north of an
existing pond, just north of Via de Santa Fe Road. This report includes recommendations that
are designed to reduce the potential for wildfire damage to existing residences through
primarily defined and maintained fuel modification and provides recommendations for
structural retrofits and habitat restoration for certain areas where non-native species have
established.

PROJECT BACKGROUND

The project area was burned as recently as October 2007 when the Witch fire, driven by Santa
Ana winds spread from Ramona westward into Rancho Santa Fe over the course of less than one
day (Attachment 2). As the fire approached the project area, it spread into the San Dieguito River
drainage west of Lake Hodges, burning westward into the project area fueled by wind and dry
coastal sage scrub and chaparral on the slopes and exotic trees in the river bottom. A total of 12
homes were lost, 1 home moderately damaged and 7 homes minimally damaged within the

WWW.DUDEK.COM

113



Mr. Ivan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

immediate vicinity of the project area. The slopes in the project area were denuded of vegetation
and the drainage bottom vegetation was damaged, especially the eucalyptus woodlands which
are prevalent throughout the riparian corridor.

Based on the fire’s spread and loss of structures realized during the Witch fire, it is apparent that
short- and long- term fuel reduction and, in some areas combined with habitat restoration
planning efforts within the project area, will positively impact the potential fire hazard. To that
end, this letter report provides recommendations and corresponding substantiation to focus fuel
treatments where they will provide the most benefit for structural protection. Secondarily, the
plan quantifies where habitat restoration efforts will result in reduced wildfire hazard as well as
improved wildlife habitat.

As possible, this letter report incorporates fundamental components of the San Diego County
FireSafe Council Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) template. One purpose of
CWPPs is to streamline the process of applying for fuel reduction project grant funding. In order
to apply for grant funding for the proposed fuel reduction project identified herein, this report
will need to be reformatted and augmented to include required CWPP template topics.

COLLABORATION

The organizations listed in Table 1 have contributed to the completion of this fire hazard and fuel
reduction assessment:

Table 1
Contributing Organizations

Organization = RolesiResponsibilities

Organization responsible for 80-acre Arroyo Property within project area, management

REnciols eSSl ssocaton of association homeowner's, project funding, and information source.

Organization responsible for management of stretch of property's homeowners,

Fairbanks Ranch Associafion project funding, and information source

. Primary fire suppression and prevention for project area, strategy development,
Rancho Santa Fe Fire Department information Source

San Diego County Department of Jurisdictional, planning information source, GIS Fire Information Maps
Planning and Land Use (SANGIS)

Project Area Overview

Dudek performed wildfire hazard reduction tasks including site assessments, fire behavior
modeling, and recommendation formulation for a project area within the community of Rancho
Santa Fe, San Diego County. The project area is located along the San Dieguito River within the
respective jurisdictions of Rancho Santa Fe Association and Fairbanks Ranch Association, the
funding proponents of this project. The project area is a vegetated canyon designated a state
responsibility area (SRA) within the Rancho Santa Fe Fire Protection District (RSFFPD). The

6082

DUDEK 2 October 2008
114



Mr. Ivan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

project lies within an area considered a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone. CalFire provides
response to wildfires in the SRA and the RSFFPD provides response to structure fires, wildfire,
medical and associated emergencies in the project area.

The project area includes 8,500 linear feet (1.6 miles) of canyon with ridgetop residences directly
exposed to the open space. The project area includes a mix of privately owned propertics
including individual lots and a large 80-acre parcel owned by the Rancho Santa Fe Association.

The canyon’s south and north facing slopes are steep (from 30% to 63%) while it flattens out at
the bottom near the channel (Attachment 3). The slopes historically supported coastal sage scrub
with some areas, notably the north-facing slopes, supporting southern mixed chaparral and scrub
oak chaparral. The drainage bottom historicaily includes riparian tree, shrub, and groundcover
(Attachment 4). The site currently includes an altered vegetation palette due to the Witch fire that
temporarily converted the coastal sage scrub and chaparral vegetation to non-native grassland
and herbaceous plants and damaged but did not alter the species mix in the riparian areas.
Predominant weather patterns include warm, dry summers and precipitation primarily during the
winters, although extended drought and climate change have decreased the annual precipitation.
Typical wind is an on-shore pattern with fall Santa Ana winds that can gust to 50 miles per hour
or more.

Identification of Values at Risk

There are approximately 80 residences that are directly exposed to the project area’s wildland
urban interface (WUI) or to secondary interface drainages which extend into residential areas.
However, because wildfires produce embers which may travel for great distanced, there are
likely thousands of properties (1,700 in Rancho Santa Fe Covenant and 660 in Fairbanks Ranch
alone) that may be affected by wildfire in the project area. The residences in the direct project
area vicinity are primarily large, estate homes located on the ridge tops. The homes range in
value from approximately one million to several million dollars or more. Additionally,
infrastructure and other improvements occur throughout the area that may be affected by
wildfire.

PRIORITIZED FUEL REDUCTION TREATMENTS

The project area was inspected and evaluated for current and potential wildfire hazard
conditions. The intent of these efforts was to evaluate the fire hazard situation in the Canyon and
develop fuel hazard reduction recommendations for the area.

Dudek foresters conducted wildfire hazard assessment for the 299-acre project area. The
assessments included the entire canyon area so that a variety of potential treatment options could
be evaluated. While in the field, detailed notes were collected indicating potentially hazardous
situations and actions required to mitigate these conditions. For example, a given location within

6092

DUDEK 3 October 2008
115



Mr. lvan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

the canyon may include continuous vegetation from structure to wildland areas. This condition is
addressed and a prescriptive treatment formulated to reduce the potential hazard by vegetation
removal, thinning, canopy raising, or other means to introduce horizontal and vertical spacing
between plants. In addition, multiple digital photographs were collected from the site to
document conditions at the time of inspection. Selected photographs are presented in
Attachments 5 and 6 — the Site Photograph Logs.

Initial Conceptual Ideas found to be Infeasible

As mentioned, a number of potential treatments were evaluated for the canyon’s fuel reduction
goals. The following two conceptualized treatments were preliminarily considered as potentially
implementable on this site. After further analysis, they were deemed inappropriate/infeasible
within the project area. Explanations for why they were considered infeasible or inefficient for
implementation within the project area are provided below.

1. Establishment of a Fire Break within the main canyon near the camping area — fire breaks
can provide important areas for fire fighter defense, fire/fuel interruption, and segmenting
fuel blocks. This concept proved infeasible for a few reasons. First, permanent impacts to
coastal sage scrub on the canyon slopes and riparian and stream channel on the canyon
bottom would be realized. These impacts would require costly permits and consultation
with resource agencies. The RSFFPD also indicated that a fire break in that area would
not provide the most benefit for the ridgetop homes, the assets that are the focus of fuel
reduction in the project area. RSFFPD also indicated that a Fire Break would not make
the residences more defensible, would not have an affect on a wind driven wildfire, and
would not be used as a staging area due to the potential danger in the canyon. A good
example of why fire breaks are not the best use of available resources includes their
ineffectiveness during the San Diego County 2003 and 2007 wildfires. Very wide fire
breaks represented by the multi-lane I-5, I-8, and I-15 freeways were easily overcome by
wind driven fire. Fire brands and embers too easily are blown across fire breaks to
receptive vegetation on the other side. Another good example is the fire break system on
Camp Pendleton. These fire breaks were also overwhelmed during the 2007 fires. Fire
breaks may help during a non-wind driven fire, but in this project area, the fire of most
concern is a Santa Ana driven fire.

2. Goat grazing on canyon slopes — goat grazing can be an effective means to manage
vegetation in a fuel modification area. Cities such as Laguna Beach and communities like
Scripps Ranch successfully utilize goats to maintain fuel modification areas. Goats have
numerous benefits, including lower fuel reduction cost on a long-term basis than manual
fuel treatment. However, there are many constraints that must be addressed in order to
implement a goat grazing program. Regulatory constraints regarding water quality,
invasive species, and habitat protection create difficult issues. Additionally, overgrazing,

6062

DUDEK 4 October 2008
116



Mr. Ivan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

erosion, up front environmental costs, herd management costs, food supplements, and
indiscrimination between desirable plants and target plants, are among the other
constraints. Goats may have merit on portions of this site, especially on the steep canyon
slopes. Based on the focus of this plan near structures and in the river bottom, goats are
deemed undesirable for this project, but may be useful should large areas within San
Dieguito Canyon or other large expanses of fuels require reduction.

Understanding the fire environment of the area is an important component for recommendation
development. Fire behavior modeling provides insightful information about the fire environment.

Fire Behavior Modeling

Prioritization of treatment areas was aided by fire behavior modeling. Dudek utilized Geographic
Information Systems (GIS) data and technology in combination with BehavePlus software to
evaluate flame length and spread rate characteristics. Three separate models were run,
representing average and extreme weather patterns and based on current and historic vegetation
conditions. Weather inputs include a typical on-shore flow and a Santa Ana wind condition with
both sustained and gust wind speeds modeled. Model run locations were conducted at various
locations along the canyon sides, including variations in slope, aspect, and fuel type. The model
run locations are graphically depicted in Attachment 7.

The models presented in this report attempt to represent conditions that may be experienced
during a wildfire in the canyon and serve primarily as a valuable tool in prioritizing fuel
treatment activities. It should be noted, however, that model outputs are representations of
potential conditions, based on weather, fuel, and topographic inputs, and may or may not
represent actual field conditions in the event of a wildfire event in the area. Additionally,
BehavePlus software represents conditions at a fixed point in time and does not simulate
temporal variations in fire behavior. Ultimately, modeling results should be used as a tool for
managing fuel loads and prioritizing fuel treatment activities within the canyon while keeping in
mind the limitations and assumptions made in generating the results.

Fire behavior modeling includes a high level of analysis and information detail to arrive at
reasonably accurate representations of how wildfire would move through available fuels on a
given site. Fire behavior calculations are based on site-specific fuel characteristics supported by
fire science research that analyzes heat transfer related to specific fire behavior. To objectively
predict flame lengths and spread rates, the BehavePlus (v. 3.0.2) fire behavior fuel modeling
system was applied using expected low fuel moisture values during peak fire season, variable
wind speeds, and 3 representative fuel models. Run locations and associated fire behavior
outputs are presented in Attachment 7.

Predicting wildland fire behavior is not an exact science. As such, the movement of a fire will
likely never be fully predictable, especially considering the variations in weather and the limits

6092

DUDEK 5 October 2008

117



Mr. lvan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

of weather forecasting and the weather that is created by the firestorm. Nevertheless, practiced
and experienced judgment, coupled with a validated fire behavior modeling system, results in
useful and accurate fire prevention planning information.

To be used effectively, the basic assumptions and limitations of fire behavior modeling
applications must be understood.

o First, it must be realized that the fire model describes fire behavior only in the flaming
front. The primary driving force in the predictive calculations is the dead fuels less than
0.25 inches in diameter. These are the fine fuels that carry fire. Fuels greater than 1 inch
have little effect while fuels greater than 3 inches have no effect on fire behavior.

* Second, the model bases calculations and descriptions on a wildfire spreading through
surface fuels that are within 6 feet of the ground and contiguous to the ground. Surface
fuels are often classified as grass, brush, litter, or slash.

e Third, the software assumes that weather and topography are uniform. However, because
wildfires almost always burn under non-uniform conditions, length of projection period
and choice of fuel model must be carefully considered to obtain useful predictions.

o Fourth, fire behavior computer modeling systems were not intended for determining
sufficient fuel modification zone widths. However, it does provide the average length of
the flames, which is a key element for determining “defensible space” distances for
minimizing structure ignition.

BehavePlus Fuel Model Inputs

The following provides a description of the input variables used in processing the BehavePlus
models. In addition, data sources are cited and any assumptions made during the modeling
process are described.

Weather

Historical fuel moisture data for the region was utilized in determining appropriate fire behavior
modeling inputs for the site. Specifically, 50th and 97th percentile moisture values derived from
the Las Flores Remote Automated Weather Station (RAWS) were determined and utilized in the
fire behavior modeling efforts conducted in support of this Fire Protection Plan. RAWS fuel
moisture data were processed utilizing the Fire Family Plus software package to determine
typical (50th percentile) and atypical (97th percentile) weather conditions. The Las Flores
station, while not located near the project site, was used as no stations are situated in similar
geographical settings. The Las Flores RAWS is located on Camp Pendleton in San Diego
County, approximately 1.5 miles from the Pacific Ocean at an elevation of 100 feet. Data from
the Las Flores RAWS was evaluated from May 1 through October 31 for each year between

6092

DUDEK 6 October 2008
118



Mr. lvan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

1992 and 2007 (extent of available data record). Fuel moisture information was analyzed and
incorporated into the model runs.

Topography
Site topography information, including elevation, aspect, and slope gradient, was derived from
analyzing the U.S. Geological Survey Rancho Santa Fe quadrangle sheet (1:24,000).

Fuels

Vegetation coverage data in the form of a GIS shapefile were used in this analysis to create a fuel
model file. Derived from historic (pre-Witch fire) vegetation mapping data for the site (San
Diego County Department of Planning and Land Use 2008, Dudek 2007) and field observations
of current conditions, vegetation types were classified into fuel models. To evaluate existing
conditions, a grass fuel model (Fuel Model 1) was utilized for each of the model runs. To
evaluate the wildfire potential based on historic vegetative cover, Dudek classified coastal sage
scrub cover as Fuel Model SCAL 18 and chaparral (southern mixed and scrub oak) cover as Fuel
Model SH7. Table 2 summarizes the input variables used in the BehavePlus modeling efforts.

Table 2
BehavePlus Fire Behavior Inputs

Model Variable Onshoré Value (50th Percentile Wx) shore Value (37th Percentile Ws
Fuel model 1, SCAL18, SH7 1, SCAL18, SH7
Maximum Temp. ('F) 76° 85’
1 h fuel moisture 6% 3%
10 h fuel moisture 8% 5%
100 h fuel moisture 10% 7%
Live herbaceous moisture 60% 30%
Live woody molsture 80% 60%
20 ft wind speed (mph}) 10 mph 20 mph*
Slepe steepness variable by location, range: 0 to 63% variable by location, range: 0 to 63%

* §7th Percentile weather also modeled with 80mph wind speeds to represent wind gusts
Fuel Model Output Results

Two outputs were generated for each of the three modeling scenarios and include representations
of flame length (feet) and rate of spread (mph). Modeling output values are presented in Tables 3
through 5. Fire behavior modeling results vary depending on fuel type, slope, and differing
weather conditions.

6092
DUDEK 7 October 2008

119



Mr. van Holler and Mr. David Abrams

Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

Table 3
BehavePlus Fire Behavior Qutputs — 50th Percentile Weather
" Run Fuel | Siope ~ [ Elevation Range | FlameLength |  Rate of
Mymber | Type | (%) | Aspect| @) ) | Spres
1 SH7 30 N-NW 80-280 19.8
2 SCAL18 63 SE 80- 280 234
3 SCAL18 63 E 60 - 300 234
4 SCAL18 59 NE 60 - 180 23.1
5 SCAL18 48 SW 80 - 260 224
6 SCAL18 38 S 60 - 220 219
7 SH7 50 N 60 - 240 20.7
B SCAL18 43 NW 60 - 280 22.1

Fire behavior using the grass fuel type (Fuel Model 1) resulted in the following values for 50th
percentile weather: Flame Length of 7.5 feet, Rate of Spread of 3.4 mph (results were consistent
for all runs)

Table 4
BehavePlus Fire Behavior Qutputs — 97th Percentile Weather
(20 mph Wind)
Run Fuel Slope | Elevation Range |
Kumber Type Aspact {ft.)
1 SH7 - 80- 2380
2 SCAL18 63 SE 80 - 280
3 SCAL18 63 E 60 - 300
4 SCAL18 59 NE 60 - 180
5 SCAL18 48 SwW 80 - 260
6 SCAL18 38 S 60 - 220
7 SH7 50 N 60 - 240
8 SCAL18 43 NW 60 - 280

Fire behavior using the grass fuel type (Fuel Model 1) resuited in the following values for 97th
percentile weather with 20mph winds: Flame Length of 10.0 feet, Rate of Spread of 5.8 mph
(results were consistent for all runs)

6092
Qctober 2008

DUDEK 8

120



Mr. van Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

Table 5
BehavePlus Fire Behavior Outputs — 97th Percentile Weather
(60 mph Wind)

Run Fuel Slope 7

Number | Type | (%) | Aspect | ElevationRange(ft)
1 SH7 30 N-NW 80 - 280
2 SCAL18 63 SE 80 - 280
3 SCAL18 63 E 60 - 300
4 SCAL18 59 NE 60 - 180
5 SCAL18 48 sw 80 - 260
6 SCAL18 38 S 60 - 220
7 SH7 50 N 60 - 240
8 SCAL18 43 NW 60 - 280

Fire behavior using the grass fuel type (Fuel Model 1) resulted in the following values for 97th
percentile weather with 60mph winds: Flame Length of 10.0 feet, Rate of Spread of 5.8 mph
(results were consistent for all runs)

As presented, wildfire behavior in chaparral vegetation types represents the most extreme
conditions, varying with different wind speeds. In this case, flame lengths can be expected to
reach up to approximately 65 feet driven by 60 mph winds. Flame lengths for fires burning in
coastal sage scrub, represented as a Fuel Model SCAL18, with wind speeds of 60 mph can be
expected to reach approximately 60 feet.

It should be noted that the modeling results presented herein depict values based on inputs to the
BehavePlus software and are static outputs dependent on static landscape variables. Changes in
wind, weather, or pockets of different fuel types are not accounted for in this analysis. Model
results should be used as a basis for planning only, as actual fire behavior for a given location
will be affected by many factors, including unique weather patterns, small-scale topographic
variations, or changing vegetation patterns.

Modeling for Crown Fire — Riparian Corridor Eucalyptus Stands

While not found adjacent to existing structures on this site, eucalyptus woodland located in the
bottom of the canyon presents the potential for crown fire and spotting and increases the
likelihood of a canyon fire that transitions into the riparian corridor, into the eucalyptus tree
crowns and results in a wildfire that significantly damages the native habitat along the San
Dieguito River. As such, Dudek evaluated the likelihood of crown fire.

Understory shrubs can serve as ladder fuels, aiding the transition of surface fires to canopy fires.
Fire behavior model outputs conducted by Dudek for a project in San Diego County revealed the

6092

DUDEK 9 October 2008
121



Mr. Ivan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

importance of maintaining vertical separation between tree canopies and understory vegetation,
usually a 6 to 10 foot separation is sufficient. In this scenario, model outputs for un-treated
understory vegetation conditions indicated a high potential for tree torching with no wind, and
the transition from surface fire to crown fire with relatively light winds (12 mph). Once an active
crown fire (at 12 mph and higher), rate of spread increases with increasing wind speed. An
important component to crown fire spread is the effect of canopy bulk density. Increased canopy
bulk density requires less severe fire conditions to sustain a canopy fire. This relationship
between canopy density and fire intensity is important in considering fuel treatment options that
reduce ladder fuels, thus reducing the chance of surface to canopy fire transition.

The same project revealed that treated understory vegetation had a significant effect on fire
behavior characteristics. In this model analysis, where it was assumed that the understory had
been maintained to create vertical separation (6 to 10 feet) between tree canopy and the shrub
layer, surface fire never transitioned to crown fire and flame length values remain below the tree
canopies. The vertical separation of tree canopies from ground fuels requires that the critical
surface fireline intensity be higher to transition from a surface fire to a crown fire. Therefore, the
lack of transition from a surface fire to a crown fire emphasized the importance of vertical
canopy separation and understory vegetation treatment.

Fuel Treatment Recommendations

The canyon’s steep slopes have, post-fire, been colonized primarily by non-native grasses and
herbaceous cover. However, many of the native shrubs are already sprouting from their root
crowns and over time, and consistent with plant community succession, it is anticipated that the
native coastal sage scrub and chaparral will reoccur on the site. The native vegetation, although
representing a higher intensity fuel, provides an important soil stability function on the canyon’s
steep slopes. As confirmed many times and most recently in the post-Witch fire summary “Mega
Fires: The Case for Mitigation” (Institute for Business and Home Safety 2008), the most critical
area for structural protection is near the structure. As such, one component of this plan provides
for creation of defensible space for the residences where ongoing fuel maintenance can occur vs.
on the vast slopes where it may be infeasible to provide ongoing vegetation management due to
erosion issues, environmental permitting, cost, and logistics, amongst others. This diligent fuel
modification area maintenance must include all sides of WU! homes and will be the
responsibility of individual homeowners.

A second component of the fuel reduction project focuses on the “secondary drainages™ that
provide favorable fuels, topography, and wind alignment for fire spread from the open space
(wildland) areas into the urbanized areas. These drainages are nearby residences and include
flammable native fuels as well as a large component of escaped and/or planted non-native,
ornamental species. Management of these secondary drainages will include exotic and highly
flammable plant removal, thinning of retained plants/trees, and fuel modification zone

60952

DUDEK 10 October 2008

122



Mr. lvan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

establishment/maintenance for residences that interface these areas. Fuel reduction and
maintenance in these areas may be the responsibility of individual homeowners, groups of
homeowner’s or a homeowner association, depending on the respective ownership.

The third fuel reduction component of this plan focuses on the fire damaged San Dieguito
Riparian corridor as many of the burned eucalyptus and other non-native trees are recovering
through sprouting and will continue to dominate. Many of the smaller exotics, such as salt cedar
and palms, were only minimally affected by the fire and will continue to out-compete the native
plants. In order to reduce the fuel and flammability of the riparian corridor and restore the
corridor to a native condition, it is recommended that exotic species removal occur along the San
Dieguito River. If exotic species removal in the canyon bottom is pursued, it should be a
comprehensive treatment because the exotic species are prone to invasion, especially of
disturbed areas. Replanting native species in the place of the removed exotic vegetation is
recommended to help minimize the opportunities for re-invasion. Ideally, exotic species removal
in the canyon bottom would be coupled with a broader management plan that includes exotic
species control upstream of the project area. Adequate time for planning and permitting should
be considered early so that once other fuel reduction components are completed, the river bottom
work will be ready to commence.

Based on the site assessments, the 3 phases of fuel reduction treatments recommended within the
project area are defined below:

1. Fuel modification zone establishment and/or maintenance for residences abutting the
interface. The fuel modification zones will be delineated and treated followed by on-
going annual or bi-annual maintenance, as necessary. The fuel modification zones are not
limited to the exposed sides of structures, but emphasis will be placed on the interface
and the first 30 feet of the non-interface sides.

2. Establishment of fuel breaks at “mouths” of and within secondary drainages along with
thinning and exotic plant removal. This is essentially an extension of the fuel
modification areas for the fire corridors that currently provide continuous fuels from the
wildlands into the urbanized areas.

3. Riparian corridor restoration through removal of exotic trees and shrubs. This component
of the fuel reduction effort provides an important dual purpose of reducing a major crown
fire threat extending the length of the project area while enhancing wildlife habitat and
restoring the river bottom to its natural condition.

The fuel reduction work outlined herein should be accomplished through thinning and removal
of vegetation to create horizontal and vertical spacing, removal of dead and dying plants and
plant parts, removal of ground litter, tree canopy raising, and creation of separation between
plants, as described in more detail in following sections.

6092

DUDEK 11 October 2008
123



Mr. Ivan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Drafi Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

A total of approximately 40 acres is recommended for treatment directly adjacent residences,
Phased Treatment Area (PTA) 1. An additional 22 acres in the secondary canyons or “wildfire
corridors”, PTA 2, is recommended for treatment, Attachment 8 provides details for
recommended fuel reduction efforts. In addition to these 61 acres recommended for treatment,
another roughly 74 acres of riparian habitat, PTA 3, is recommended for restoration/treatment.

Dudek has estimated that the prescriptive treatments for PTAs 1 and 2, outlined in this
document, would cost roughly $278,000 to treat initially and then $130,000 for on-going
treatments thereafter if a contractor were to provide the services. The riparian corridor initial
treatment is a different type of treatment, mostly tree removal, and is estimated to be roughly
$500,000 to $750,000, due to the dense eucalyptus woodland. Costs could be minimized if an
alternative labor source, such as CalFire supervised prison crews, were utilized. However,
contractor selection can significantly affect the effectiveness of the proposed treatments. It is
important to hire contractors with experience conducting fuel reduction work in environmentally
sensitive habitats and with a solid understanding of regulations and native plant ecology in order
to avoid damaging native habitat and violating regulations. Table 6 provides treatment acreages
and cost estimates for fuel reduction work.

Table 6
Estimated Fuel Reduction Costs — Project Basis

Esﬂ T ™ : T T s *--»: T N
riated Estimated Cost Estimated Cost
AreaCanyon Eocation i A creage COstIAcre Initial Treatment Annual Maintenance
Fuel Modification Zone 395 $4,500/$2,100 $177.750 $82,950
Secondary drainages 23 $4,500/$2,100 $100,350 $46,830

. . $5,000to0 $370,000 -
Riparian Corridor 74 17,600/82,100* $1.302.400 $155,400

*Assumes approximately 100 trees per acre.

In similar projects including private property in the very high fire hazard severity zone, the initial
fuel reduction project has been funded by grant funding obtained by a lead entity. Residents who
did not sign up to participate missed out on funding and later were forced to provide the fuel
reduction at their own expense. Ongoing fuel reduction work is funded by private property
owners and enforced by the local fire authority. Grant funding may be possible for portions of
this project’s recommendations.

In addition to grant funding for fuel modification, there may be opportunities for grant funding
for habitat restoration through organizations such as the National Resource Conservation Service
(NRCS). The NRCS Wildlife Habitat Incentive Program has a specific allocation for Emergency
Watershed Protection, which funds projects that cover weed removal (e.g., eucalyptus tree

6092
DUDEK 12 October 2008

124



Mr. Ivan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

control) in canyons that may act as “wicks” during wildfires. The grant program operates on a
cost share basis and will only fund labor and materials (permitting will not be funded). In order
to be considered, it would be critical to determine eligibility requirements and to resolve
permitting issues in advance.

The fuel treatment areas will require routine inspection and maintenance following this initial
hazard reduction planning project. One time vegetation removal and thinning will not mitigate
the hazard within the Canyon over the long-term. Annual or biannual inspections should be
implemented to determine the status of the WUT fuels. As identified through these inspections,
any recurring hazardous fuel situations should be mitigated. Dudek finds that biannual
maintenance is effective in most areas, while annual maintenance can occasionally be required.

It is not the goal of this project to completely remove all vegetation, as that would be undesirable
for habitat value, soil stability, aesthetics, and resident privacy. Nor is the goal to create a
landscape that is fire proof, as that is infeasible given the steep slopes, indigenous (and exotic)
plant community, and the seasonal Santa Ana winds that, as illustrated during the October 2007
and 1943 wildfires (Attachment 9), can result in uncontrollable fire spread through this canyon
river corridor. Rather, the goal of this project is to reduce wildfire hazard to those living in the
area and potentially affected by fire in the area, by strategically creating fuel (vegetation) gaps,
removing dead, dying, exotic and highly flammable fuels, and creating defensible space.
Defensible space allows fire fighters areas of reduced flame height and spread rates such that
they can establish a defensive posture to protect structures and it also reduces the convective and
radiant heat intensity directly adjacent homes. The fuel reduction efforts associated with this
project will result in reduced wildfire hazard from fire spreading in the canyon to the ridge top
and from fire originating in a structure or along a ridge top home or street, and spreading into the
canyon.

Regulatory Requirements of Proposed Fuel Reduction Recommendations

Recommendations in this report are segregated into three components (PTAs) each with varying
regulatory requirements associated with the proposed actions. The project area occurs in
unincorporated lands in the County of San Diego in Rancho Santa Fe, and is covered by the
approved Multiple Species Conservation Program (MSCP) County of San Diego Subarea Plan.
The proposed actions are subject to various County, State and Federal regulations pertaining
biological resources, which are discussed further below.

Reconnaissance plant and wildlife surveys and vegetation mapping of the study areca were
conducted by Dudek in August 2008. A map showing the vegetation mapping and the three
PTAs is included in Attachment 10. The vegetation map also includes incidental observations of
special-status plant species listed by the California Native Plant Society (CNPS). Species
documented on site included three CNPS List 2 species (rare, threatened, or endangered in

6092
DUDEK 13 October 2008

125



Mr. van Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

California, but more common elsewhere) including San Diego barrel cactus (Ferocactus
viridescens), California adolphia (ddoiphia californica), and San Diego marshelder (/va
hayesiana), and two CNPS List 4 species (limited distribution) including Palmer’s sagewort
(Artemisia palmeri) and southwestern spiny rush (Juncus acutus ssp. leopoldii). Additionally,
green-backed heron (Butorides virescens) and great blue heron (drdea Herodias) were observed
in the study area, which are both considered locally sensitive. None of these special-status plant
or wildlife species is federally- or state-listed as threatened or endangered. Additional plant and
wildlife species observed during reconnaissance surveys conducted by Dudek in August 2008 are

included in Attachment 11,

Impacts to vegetation communities that would resuit from the proposed fuel modification

treatments are included in Table 7.

Table 7
Impacted Vegetation Communities by Phased Treatment Areas
Phased Treatment Areas (PTA) _ Vegetation Community _ Bcreage |

Annual Grassland (AGL) 0.10

Coastal Sage Scrub (CSS) 4.97

Disturbed Coastal Sage Scrub (dCSS) 0.02

Developed (DEV) 0.07

PTA 1 - 100-foot Structure Buffer Disturbed Habitat {DH) 242
Eucalyptus (EUC) 0.92

Omamental {ORN) 6.20

Southem Mixed Chaparral (SMX) 1.53

Unmapped* 23.27

Total 39.49
Annual Grassland (AGL) 0.45

Coastal Sage Scrub (CSS) 0.14

Developed (DEV) 0.00

Disturbed Habitat (DH) 0.75

PTA 2- Secondary Canyons Elderberry Scrub (ES) 0.03
Ornamental (ORN) 144

Southem Mixed Chaparral {(SMX) 2.99

Unmapped* 16.58

Total 2237
PTA 3 - Riparian Corridor Arundo Donax (AD) 1.03
Annual Grassland (AGL) 5.19

Coastal Sage Scrub (CSS) 2.03

Disturbed Alluvial Floodplain Scrub {dAFS) 0.25

Disturbed Coastal Sage Scrub (dCSS) 0.02

Disturbed Elderberry Scrub {dES) 0.89

Developed (DEV) 0.60

Disturbed Habitat (DH) 0.15

Disturbed Land (DL) 0.31

Disturbed Mule Fat Scrub (dMFS) 0.92

Disturbed Southem Willow Scrub (dSWS) 1.89

Elderberry Scrub (ES) 3.61

Eucalyptus (EUC) 14.17

6092

DUDEK 14 October 2008

126



Mpr. Ivan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

Table 7 (Continued)

Freshwater Marsh (FWM) 6.20

Live Oak Woodland {LOW) 0.14

Open Channel (OC) 0.15

Ornamental {ORN} 0.00

Open Water (QW) 1.75

PASTURE 0.13

Sycamore Alluvial Woodland (SAW) 0.78

Southem Mixed Chaparral (SMX) 0.13

Sycamore/Cak Woodland {(SOW) 0.60

Southem Willow Scrub (SWS) 31.99

Tamarisk Scrub {TS) 0.58

Total 73.51
[.Grand Total 13537

*Unmapped areas are located outside of the main canyon and typically consist of non-native vegetation (e.g., sucalyplus, palms, etc.) that has
been planted.

100-Foot Fuel Modification Zone Surrounding Residences

Clearing vegetation in County lands is governed by the San Diego County Grading, Clearing and
Watercourses Ordinance (GCWO). Chapter 5 of the GCWO specifically describes the permit
requirements for clearing vegetation. Clearing permits are exempted by Section 87.502 of the
GCWO, which states that clearing permits are not needed when “[c]learing for fire protection
purposes within 100 feet of a dwelling unit.” Further, the RPS states that “[a]ny additional
clearing for fire prevention control or suppression is exempt when authorized or required, in
writing, by a fire prevention or suppression agency.” Under the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA), clearing associated with fuel modification within 100-feet of structures is
categorically exempt.

Additionally, regulatory permitting associated with threatened or endangered species that may
potentially be impacted as a result of vegetation thinning and/or removal within portions of the
PTAs has been addressed in a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the U.S. Fish
and Wildlife Service (USFWS), the California Department of Fish and Game (CDFG), the
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection, the San Diego County Fire Chief’s
Association, and the Fire District’s Association of San Diego County signed in February of 1997,
Although the recommendations contained in this document attempt to minimize impacts to
native vegetation and promote the environmental quality of the surrounding area by focusing on
exotics removal and limited trimming of native vegetation, there exists a potential for impacts to
listed or other sensitive species. This MOU, however, authorizes the take of species listed as
threatened or endangered for the purposes of maintaining fire protection and public safety. Based
on the criteria specified in the MOU, it will be necessary for the Fire Chief of the Rancho Santa
Fe Fire Protection District to deem this fuel reduction project necessary for protecting improved
property or public safety and welfare. According to the MOU, CDFG, and USFWS shall be
notified at least 10 days prior to initiating vegetation thinning operations. Should CDFG or

6092

DUDEK 15 October 2008
127



Mr. lvan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

USFWS fail to respond within ten days, vegetation thinning may proceed without violating the
agreements set for the in the MOU.

Fuel Modification Treatments in Tributary Canyons Beyond the 100-foot Distance

The GCWO Clearing Exemption and the MOU are applicable in the fuel modification zone areas
within 100 feet of residences. Because the 100 feet is measured in horizontal distance, depending
on the adjacent slope percent, the actual fuel modification area on the ground will be more than
100 feet. For example, corresponding with each fire behavior model run, the following slope
distances will be provided with the 100 feet horizontal distance (Table 8).

Table 8
Fire Slope Distances
Fir Bahavi Run (Ares) Siogs Angie Siopa istance For 100 D)
1 30% 104.4
2 63% 118.2
3 63% 118.2
4 59% 116.1
] 48% 110.9
B 38% 107.0
Vi 50% 111.0
8 43% 108.9

As such, areas where the highest flame lengths of up to 65 feet occur, due in large part to the
slope, are provided just under 120 feet of actual fuel modification, nearly twice the flame length.
If implemented correctly and maintained diligently, this fuel modification width is considered at
least adequate and will avoid the need for environmental permitting and potentially costly
mitigation.

Proposed vegetation clearing in upland habitats beyond the 100-foot horizontal distance may be
allowed by the County under the GCWO clearing exemption if authorized in writing by a fire
prevention or suppression agency. However, the MOU with the regulatory agencies would not
apply in this instance.

Regulatory requirements for vegetation clearing of upland habitats in the zone beyond 100 feet
from occupied structures would depend on the type of resource (i.e., vegetation community
and/or species) present in the area proposed for clearing. Biological surveys of the site were
conducted as part of this project to determine the vegetation communities that would be
impacted, and the species potentially impacted. Dudek has prepared a vegetation map of the
study area to quantify the vegetation impacts and it is included in Attachment 10.

6092
DUDEK 16 October 2008

128



Mr. van Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

Based on reconnaissance surveys by Dudek in 2008, the site supports recovering (from the 2007
wildfire) coastal sage scrub, southern mixed chaparral, scrub oak chaparral, and southern willow
scrub, which have the potential to support special-status plant and wildlife species. If
implementation of the fuel modification recommendations in these areas is pursued, then focused
surveys for special-status plant and wildlife species during the appropriate survey periods may be
required.

The project area is within a Take Authorized area of the County of San Diego MSCP Subarea
Area Plan, which means that impacts to wildlife habitat are allowable provided that they are
conducted consistent with the MSCP. Activities within Take Authorized areas of the MSCP are
exempted from the provisions of the Biological Mitigation Ordinance (BMO); therefore, impacts
to upland vegetation communities beyond the 100-foot distance that are not designated MSCP
habitat preserve would be allowable and would not require mitigation.

Portions of the project area, particularly along the San Dieguito River corridor, have been
designated as Multiple Habitat Planning Area (MHPA), which signifies that these areas are
MSCP habitat preserves. As described in the County MSCP Subarea Plan, “[f]ire management
activities are permitted within the preserve when conducted according to a fire management plan
approved by the wildlife agencies, County and appropriate fire district.” Therefore, any
proposed clearing of upland habitat beyond 100-feet of a structure that would impact the
designated MHPA would need approval from the wildlife agencies, the County, and the RSFFPD
and can be based on this fire hazard reduction plan. Upon approval by these entities, proposed
activities within the preserve would be allowable provided they are implemented consistent with
the MSCP. The MHPA in this area is designated primarily over the San Dieguito River corridor,
which may be considered jurisdictional by state and federal entities. Fuel modification in
jurisdictional habitat is discussed below.

Implementation of the proposed action beyond the 100-foot distance is not specifically exempted
from CEQA, unless the proposed action would be considered a small (i.e., less than 5 acres)
restoration project and would not result in impacts to special status species. If the proposed
actions beyond the 100-foot distance are not exclusively associated with habitat restoration,
would result in more than 5 acres of impact, and/or would result in impacts to special-status
species or their habitat, then it would not be considered categorically exempt from CEQA. If the
project is not determined to be exempt under CEQA, the lead agency would prepare an Initial
Study to determine the potential significance of the action and the proper level of CEQA
documentation, which in this case would likely be a Negative Declaration or Mitigated Negative
Declaration. Numerous procedural and noticing requirements would be associated with the
preparation of the CEQA documentation.

6092

DUDEK 17 October 2008
129



Mr. lvan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

Fuel Modification Treatments in Jurisdictional Habitats

Recommended restoration/fuel reduction within the wetlands and riparian area at the bottom of
the canyon is not covered under San Diego County’s MOU. Compliance with state and federal
laws governing impacts to jurisdictional state and federal wetlands and waters would be
necessary. If restoration/fuel reduction work could be done without discharge of fill below the
ordinary high water line (i.e., no stockpiling of vegetation, no soil ripping, and no vehicles
driving below the ordinary high water line} then permitting from the ACOE and Regional Water
Quality Control Board (RWQCB) could be avoided. However, a CDFG streambed alteration
agreement would still be necessary. CEQA documentation or exemption is necessary to obtain
the CDFG streambed alteration agreement.

Due to the scale of the project, and the size of some of the eucalyptus trees that would be
removed, operation of heavy equipment below the ordinary high water line would likely be
necessary. Operation of equipment in jurisdictional areas would trigger the need for ACOE and
RWQCB permitting under Section 401 and 404 of the Clean Water Act. However, ACOE
Nationwide Permit (NWP) 27 specifically covers streambed restoration, which would streamline
the permitting process with the ACOE and RWQCB. Acquisition of NWP 27 authorization from
ACOE coupled with a RWQCB water quality certification and a CDFG streambed alteration
agreement would be required for exotics removal in the channel. CEQA documentation or
exemption is necessary to obtain the RWQCB water quality certification and CDFG streambed
alteration agreement,

Any vegetation removal would need to comply with the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA),
which requires that vegetation removal does not harm nesting birds. Therefore, if vegetation
removal is implemented during the nesting bird season (usually February 15 through September
15), then nesting bird surveys conducted by wildlife biologists would be required to determine if
there are nesting birds in the vegetation. If nesting birds are discovered, avoidance of the nest
and occupants is required. Typically this involves setting aside an adequate buffer area
surrounding the nest that is avoided until the nesting cycle is completed. Vegetation removal
after the nesting bird season is over and before the next nesting period begins would not require
nesting bird surveys.

Fuel reduction within the Phased Treatment Areas

The following descriptions and diagrams of vegetation treatment/hazard reduction tasks are
provided as guidelines for fuel reduction efforts within the project’s PTAs. The PTAs are defined
as the land areas recommended for treatment as illustrated in Attachment 8, the treatment exhibit.
The intent of these descriptions is to detail vegetation treatment actions aimed at reducing
combustible vegetation adjacent project area residences, breaking up fuels in potential fire spread

6092

DUDEK 18 October 2008
130



Mr. lvan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

cotridors, and creating/maintaining defensible space for firefighter safety in the WUI adjacent
existing residences.

The recommendations for individual propertics may include some or all of the tasks described
below. Contractors performing the fuel reduction work may use these descriptions, along with a
site walk through, to determine the most efficient and cost effective method to meet the project’s
intent. Although these treatment descriptions are aimed at reducing current and long-term fuel
volumes and creating both vertical and horizontal separation between vegetation groups, long-
term maintenance of the landscape within the PTAs should adhere to the vegetation spacing, fuel
volume reduction contained herein. All vegetation treatment operations should be conducted
with hand tools. No heavy equipment should be used on non-paved surfaces, except as allowable
within the river corridor for tree removal.

SPECIFIC RECOMMENDATION DEFINITIONS

As referred to in Attachment 2, the following fuel treatment categories are defined to provide a
more detailed description of the recommended treatments. The following definitions should be
provided to the contractor(s)/entities involved in the implementation of this wildfire hazard
reduction project.

Exotic/Invasives/Undesirables Removal. Removal of non-native and invasive plants from the
defensible space zone will help reduce the presence of undesirable plant species and enhance
thinning efforts aimed at reducing overall biomass levels. Exotic species observed throughout
project area include flammable landscape plants within fuel modification areas as well as
established exotics outside of landscaped areas. Among the exotics noted from the site are: fan
palms (Washingtonia spp.), eucalyptus (Eucalyptus spp.), pepper (Schinus molle and S.
terebinthefolius), castor bean (Ricinus communis), myoporum (Myoporum spp.), pines (Pinus
spp.) and other conifers , amongst others. All of these plants have been planted by residents
along the Canyon top or have opportunistically established within PTAs adjacent structures, in
secondary fire spread corridors, or at the canyon bottom along the San Dieguito River. Removal
of these plants shall adhere to the following conditions:

e Weed and grass-like species shall be mowed or trimmed to heights no greater than 6
inches.

s Shrub and tree species shall be treated such that all above-ground plant parts are
removed. Except for trees removed from the creek area, root systems of removed shrubs
and trees shall be left intact. Stump heights shall not exceed 4 inches above natural grade.

Following removal of these species, some may require routine trimming or herbicide application
to eliminate sprout growth from remaining stumps. Treatment of debris generated from removal
operations shall adhere to the guidelines outlined below (Debris Removal).

6092

DUDEK 19 October 2008
131



Mr. lvan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

Vertical Separation (3x). Pruning of trees or tree-form shrubs (reaching 4 feet or taller at
maturity) off the ground should provide vertical clearance that measures three times the height of
the understory vegetation or 10 feet, whichever is greater. In cases where no understory
vegetation exists, 2 minimum vertical clearance of 10 feet shall be provided. This process will
remove ladder fuels and reduce the potential for fire spread from lower shrubs to higher trees and
structures.

Horizontal Separation. Vegetation pruning shall also result in horizontal clearance that meets
the following specifications (Table 9):

Table 9
Distance Between Tree Canopies by Percent Slope’

Recommended Distances Between Edge of Mature Tree
0to 20 10 feet
21t040 20 feet
41 Plus 30 feet

From Rancho Santa Fe Ordinance 2008-01
1 Adapted from Wildland Home Fire Risk Meter, Simmerman and Fischer, 1990,
2Determined from canopy dimensions as described in Sunset Western Garden Book (Current Edition).

Horizontal separation serves to minimize fire spread between plants or plant groups. Horizontal
chains of fue! occur in numerous areas throughout the PTAs and effectively link the urban areas
with non-maintained wildland areas prone to wildfire. The intent of the horizontal separation
criteria contained herein is to break the continuity of vegetation between structures and wildland
areas.

Native Shrub Thinning/Trimming. Thinning efforts are aimed at reducing woody biomass to
break-up horizontally and vertically continuous fuels and shall reduce overall vegetation by 50%.
Native shrubs in the project area include, but are not limited to lemonadeberry (Rhus
integrifolia), toyon (Heteromeles arbutifolia), laurel sumac (Malosma laurina), Mexican
elderberry (Sambucus mexicana), California sage (Artemisia californica), California buckwheat
(Eriogonum fasciculatum), black sage (Salvia mellifera), California encelia (Encelia californica),
and scrub oak (Quercus spp.).

Mow/Trim Weeds/Exotic understory. Mowing of native and non-native grasses, weeds, thistle,
and fennel in the defensible space zone shall be conducted to maintain heights at 6 inches or less.

Dead/Dying Plant Removal. Removal of dead and dying plant material from the determined
PTAs will help reduce low fuel moisture biomass. This practice should also be conducted in
concert with vegetation thinning efforts and may help in reaching thinning objectives,

6092

DUDEK 20 October 2008

132



Mpr. lvan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

Dead Foliage Removal. All dead twigs, branches, and/or fronds shall be removed from retained
trees or shrubs within the PTAs.

Debris Removal. Removal of existing combustible debris shall be conducted within the PTAs.
Combustible debris includes branches, landscape trimmings/waste, lumber, or any other
combustible material (palapas, umbrellas, trellises, etc.).

Additionally, all debris generated from shrub and tree thinning and/or removal shall be
completely removed from the PTAs or chipped and distributed on-site. In no case shall chipped
plant material (mulch) depth exceed 5 inches. In no case shall un-chipped debris generated from
trimming, thinning, or removal be left on site.

Trim Vegetation within 10 ft. of Structure. All vegetation shall be trimmed such that a clearance
of 10 feet exists between structures and landscape vegetation. In cases where vegetation is
planted within 10- feet of a structure (vines, shrubs), such vegetation shall be maintained free of
dead material and shall be pruned and maintained to reduce overall fuel volume.

In cases where tree canopies extend over roof tops, 10 feet of clearance shall be maintained
between the roof and the lowest tree branch extending over the structure.

Remove firewood within 30 ft. of Structure. Firewood shall not be stored within 15 feet of
existing structures.

Remove Leaves/Needles from Roof/Rain Gutters. All combustible material, including tree
leaves, pine needles, branches, and twigs shall be removed from roofs and rain gutters.

Trim Vegetation within 10 ft. of Chimney. All vegetation shall be trimmed such that a clearance
of 10- feet exists in all directions between landscape vegetation and the outlet of a chimney.

Provide 5 ft. Clearance for Firefighter Access. All vegetation shall be trimmed such that a
5-foot-wide clearance exists along both sides of a structure, from the street to the rear of the
property. In cases where property setback widths are less than 5 feet, the entire width shall be
maintained free of obstructing vegetation.

TREATMENT OF STRUCTURAL IGNITABILITY

The fuel reduction treatments recommended for PTAs 1 and 2 (near the existing residences) will
reduce the ignitability of homes by reducing the likelihood that radiant or convective heat causes
structure ignition. The Witch fire provided a “real-life” fire model for this area with regards to
how a fire in this portion of the San Dieguito River canyon will behave given certain conditions.
Structures that were lost tended to be of older construction and/or included flammable
landscaping within close proximity to the residence.

6092

DUDEK 21 October 2008

133



Mr. van Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

A number of retrofits are available and recommended for residences adjacent the project area.
These retrofits are important for all residences within the wildland urban interface, but even
more important for homes that are directly exposed to the open space, unmaintained vegetation
project area:

1. Maintain all vents by ensuring metal screen is in tact and has no larger than Y%-inch
openings. A more ignition resistant retrofit includes replacing old vents with fire and
ember resistant vents such as Brandguard Vents. These vents, through a series of baffles,
impede the penetration of embers, a major source of home ignitions.

2. Spark arrestors with 0.5-inch mesh should be installed on all chimneys in the
communities affected by this fuel reduction project.

3. Wood fences should be replaced by non-combustible material fences, especially the first
5 feet where they attach to a residence.

4. Enclose decks that are built on slopes above wildland areas according to enhanced
practices. Paneling products and wire mesh may be used to help inhibit embers or heat
from igniting decks.

5. Replace windows on the exposed side(s) of residence with dual pane windows with one
tempered pane.

6. Bird-stop all openings on tile roofs to avoid the build up of animal nests which may
easily ignite from flying embers that are blown up into the roof opening.

7. Replace non-Class A roofs with Class A roofing covering,

8. Relocate any combustible outbuilding, shed, animal bams, or other structures at least 30
feet from the residence and provide fuel modification and structure retrofitting to reduce
the ignition potential.

9. Relocate trellises, umbrellas, flammable patio furniture and/or pillows, children’s play
equipment, firewood, and other combustible landscape features at least 30 feet from
residences and provide fuel modification, as appropriate.

10. Situate a non-combustible (masonry) wall in the landscape at the top of slope to help
deflect flames, heat, and embers.

11. Provide rain gutter cleaning on a regular basis and upgrade the gutters with gutter covers
which are designed to minimize debris accumulation.

Other products are under development and within the next several years, it can be anticipated
that ignition resistance retrofits and products will be available for situations like this to reduce
the vulnerability of existing structures to wildfire caused ignition.

8092
DUDEK 22 October 2008

134



Mr. Ivarn Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

CONCLUSION

The combined wildfire hazard reduction efforts involving field inspection of potential wildfire
hazards, fire behavior modeling, and analysis for reducing the wildfire hazard provide valuable
fire management guidelines based on actual site conditions. It provides a sound method for
identifying and implementing hazard reductions activities within the canyon.

The project area assessment identified numerous hazardous fuel occurrences and the fire
behavior modeling resulted in definable hazard with both a typical weather pattern and a Santa
Ana condition. As such, Dudek’s recommendations for the area assessed as part of this project
are aimed at reducing hazards and structural ignition in the phased treatment areas and providing
a foundation for ongoing WUI inspection and maintenance work. The initial recommendations
will mitigate the immediate hazards and will result in a more manageable landscape for future
maintenance, Ongoing efforts will be necessary as the area recovers from the October 2007 fires
which removed most of the native fuels from the canyon’s slopes. Dudek recommends at least
biannual inspections and maintenance throughout the project area.

Dudek would be pleased to discuss this report further or answer any questions you may have.

Sincerely,

Hoded

Micha¢l Huff
Manager, Wildfire Protection Planning

Att: Attachment 1 — RSFA - Fairbanks Ranch Fire Hazard Area of Concern
Attachment 2 —Progression Map
Attachment 3 — Site Topography
Attachment 4 — Vegetation Classifications
Attachment 5 — Photograph Log, North
Attachment 6 — Photograph Log, South
Attachment 7 — BehavePlus Fire Behavior Exhibit
Attachment 8 — Phased Treatment Areas
Attachment 9 — Fire History 1910-2007
Attachment 10 — Vegetation Map with Phased Treatment Areas
Attachment 11 — Plant and Wildlife Species Observed on the Project Site

6092

DUDEK 23 October 2008
135



Mpr. lvan Holler and Mr. David Abrams
Subject:  Draft Report - San Dieguito Canyon Wildfire Hazard Reduction Project

REFERENCES

Andrews, P.L. and L.P Queen. 2001. Fire modeling and information system technology.
International Journal of Wildland Fire. 10: 343-352.

California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS). 2005. Accessed January 1, 2005
at: http://wwwcimis.water.ca.gov/cimis/welcome.jsp

Finney, M.A. FlamMap. 2004. USDA Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station, Fire
Sciences Laboratory. Missoula, Montana

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Association (NOAA). IfSAR Project. 2005. Accessed at:
http://annxemail.dudek.com/exchweb/bin/redir.asp?URI =http://ekman.csc.noaa.gov/soca
| ifsar 2002/

U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) Forest Service. Behave Plus. Rocky Mountain Research
Station, Fire Sciences Laboratory. Missoula, Montana.

USDA Forest Service. Farsite. Rocky Mountain Research Station, Fire Sciences Laboratory.
Missoula, Montana.

6002

DUDEK 24 October 2008
136






0300 HOURS &

covmereomyrm |
e et st

138



%

‘

é

,.9-. '
v
ra

'Fe Quadrangle

'San_t"
PR /

4 n.u.lF..A\..
S

N\
i
Sewage
) Feet
0 800
DUDEK

-
.
q=

: .1..'. ,, 3 L.

a2

139



| . o wo..:m_u_

£ a1 : ! 58 Ba
: .mm_m,%.“q_hm UONBILLON) WO ABW PNPOJT S 1 "OVTINYS JO UOESIULIDd USHM €0 O —.—.—-IOZ ncowwoa_ucvum”n._n%ﬂusu.ﬁw

oy} oYU paaTpAXda) Bﬁsloﬁ_.ieimﬁuaﬁg
i SYQNVS Woa Lol Umco e e suogeolisse|) uogeyabap 4

*350dHNd VYINIILEVAY 304 SSINL ANV ALFISVLNVHONIN m n—go
4O SAUNVHNVM OIIHN 3L 'OL GILINN LON LNE ONIINTONI 'GINdAI 5O

QISSAUIGE HIHUT ONDN ANY S0 ALNTHNY LNOHLM O3EA0N S JYN SIHL ._.wmxo--._ z_n_.._m uw mh_ <._.z<w OIOZ§

X EQ:W& mxﬁ_m@.&_ﬂl
4 o ,.,‘..u = &

TQ@(Q(tQS .

6& Eeﬁm ocosmm\f.,

e wbnnw@ 4 gmgtmt




Vegetation Communities (Holland 95 Classification)

Southerm Foredunes, Beach,
Saftpan, Mudfiats
(13300, 13400, 21230)

Coastal Sage Scrub
O (31200, 32400, 32500, 32700, 32710, 32720)

Chaparral
(35000, 35200, 35210, 37000, 37120, 37121,
[T137122, 37130, 37131, 37132, 37200, 37210,
37220, 37300, 37500, 37520, 37530, 37540,
37830, 37900, 37A00, 37C30, 37K00, 37G00)
Grassland
liim (42000, 42100, 42110, 42120, 42200, 42300, 42400,
42470)
Riparian Scrub
iy (60000, 63000, 63300, 63310, 63320, 63410,
63810, 63820)

~— Riparian Woodland

- - (62000, 62300, 62400)
Riparian Forest

(61000, 61300, 61310, 61320, 62330, 61510,
61810, 61820}

I , Pinyon Juniper Woodlands
+(72300, 72310, 72320)
Other Woodlands

(70000, 71000, 71100, 71160, 71161, 71162, 71180,
71181, 71182, 75100, 77000, 78000, 79000)

. Oak Forest
- (81300, 81310, 81320, 81340)
Meadow and Seep
- {45000, 45100, 45110, 45120, 45300, 45320, 45400)

Marsh

. (52120, 52300, 52310, 52400, 52410, 52420, 52440)
Coniferous Forast

B (81100, 83140, 83230, 84000, 84100, 84140, 84150
84230, 84500, 85100)

Desert Dunes
I (22100, 22300, 24000)
. Playas/Badlands/Mudhill Forbs
'(46000, 46100)
Desert Scrub
§(33100, 33200, 33210, 33220, 33500,
33600, 34000, 34300, 36110, 39000)
. ..Desert Chaparral
- (37400, 37800)
.Dry Wash Woodland
*(29000, 33230, 33300, 36120, 62200)
iWater
“(Including 11200, 13200)
. Urban, Disturbed Habitat,Agriculture,
' Eucalyptus Woodland

: Not Mapped (Data Gaps) Use with Figure 8

141



A




o
.L.. A/

"

L KR

aly A3 yEELAEA N
¥ o VR Y B |
sl hins

.
: e L el b
B .13 h e hid
_r.\
- o

3 ..4.4_.._- e :

. ..J.___.f. \%‘ ‘..... il " ) e

¥ I-\-.._ . . - 2
" k& " 'y
o i o SRR A




JQUREE

)

Run B:

‘egetation: Coastal Sage Scrub
Fual Model: SCAL18

Siope: 38 percent

Max. Flame Length: 58.9 ft
Max. Rate of Spread: 6.7 mph

,,,.;Em‘ o

Run 3:

Run 2:

Vegetation: Coastal Sage Scrub
Fusl Model: SCAL18

Slope: 63 percent

Max_ Flame Length: 59.7 ft
Maxx. Rafe of Spread: 6.9 mph

Vegetation: Coastal Sage Scrub

Fugl Model: SCAL18
Slope: 63 percent
Max. Flame Length: 563.7 ft

Max. Rate of Spread: 6.9 mph

Run &:

Vegelation: Coastal Sage Scrub
Fuel Modal: SCAL18

Slope: 48 percant

Max. Flame Length: 59.2 ft
Max. Rate of Spread: 6.8 mph

|
Run 7:
Vegetation:
Fuel Model
Slope: 50p
Max. Flame
Maox, Rate 1

[

DUDEK

800

Feet

144






SN

4 2 <
4
hooN-o_‘mbiw_I@.__m mnuéuauaac_..:mll.

..!L.1
.mBuz:ungEq:xEmwszoit:_m«E(zuxm: ddMo SPEOY N\,
=0 SILLNVHEYA QI SHL 'Ol G3LIAN LON ANG ONIGNTONI ‘034l 80

Q3SSTUXD ¥IHUT "ANM ANY O ALNVHEYM LNOHLM Q30IADEd S1 YN SIHL ._.wmm_o u__ Z_ 473 % 34 VINVS OIOZ(M_ saye] _nuw suchels auly Afdﬂa

i ] 0% _...._,"_ .._ _._I.. ,\../ \\\ = = =— ...,‘ 3 ; "

R ; y __f . d

LR ') o 'y 4 o 1 . 200z - vooz [
o ll,nn - y f7E ; el i

, . . 108 - oooz-1e6k [ |
- ¥ ) [ i r ') | .- - -. ] “.”.”.. i _ . 08E% - 196 @

L e 2y N - I : . oset - oist K
2961/ GINVNND | > ' oG 4 RioysiH au1d

2 |
ANOWYYH r |

.I'.n ] L

NIAVHLSINO







VASCULAR PLANT SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

CONIFERAE

PINACEAE - PINE FAMILY
¥ Pinus sp. - ornamental pine

ANGIOSPERMAE (DICOTYLEDONES)

AIZOACEAE - CARPET-WEED FAMILY
* Aptenia cordifolia - baby sun rose
* Carpobrotus edulis - hottentot-fig

ANACARDIACEAE - SUMAC FAMILY
Malosma laurina - laurel sumac
Rhus integrifolia - lemonadeberry

* Schinus molle - Peruvian pepper tree

* Schinus terebinthifolius - Brazilian pepper tree
Toxicodendron diversilobum - poison-oak

APIACEAE - CARROT FAMILY

& Apium graveolens - celery

* Conium maculatum - poison hemlock
Daucus pusillus - American wild carrot

= Foeniculum vulgare - sweet fennel

APOCYNACEAE - DOGBANE FAMILY
* Nerium oleander - oleander

ASCLEPIADACEAE - MILKWEED FAMILY
Sarcostemma cynanchoides - climbing milkweed

ASTERACEAE - SUNFLOWER FAMILY
Acourtia microcephala - acourtia
Ambrosia psilostachya var. californica - western ragweed
Artemisia californica - coastal sagebrush
Artemisia douglasiana - mugwort
Artemisia dracunculus - tarragon
Artemisia palmeri - Palmer sagewort
Aster subulatus var. ligulatus - annual water-aster
Baccharis pilularis - coyote brush
Baccharis salicifolia - mule fat
Baccharis sarothroides - chaparral broom

DUDEK 3

October 2008

148



VASCULAR PLANT SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

Bebbia juncea — sweetbush
Brickellia californica — California brickellbush

* Centaurea melitensis - tocalote
Cirsium vulgare - bull thistle
N Conyza bonariensis - asthma weed
Conyza canadensis - horseweed
* Cotula coronopifolia - African brass-buttons
¥ Cynara cardunculus - cardoon, artichoke thistle

Deinandra fasciculata — fascicled tarplant
Encelia californica - California bush sunflower
Eriophyilum confertiflorum — golden yarrow

* Gazania linearis - African daisy
Gnaphalium bicolor - bicolor cudweed
Gnaphalium californicum - California everlasting
Gnaphalium canescens — felt-leaved everlasting

* Gnaphalium Iuteo-album - white cudweed
Hazardia squarrosa ssp. grindelioides - saw-toothed goldenbush
Helianthus annuus — common sunflower
Heterotheca grandiflora - telegraph weed
Isocoma menziesii ssp. veneta - coastal goldenbush
Iva hayesiana - San Diego marsh elder

* Lactuca serriola - prickly lettuce
Lessingia filaginifolia - virgate cudweed aster
* Picris echioides - bristly ox-tongue

Pluchea odorata - marsh-fleabane
Pluchea sericea — arrow-weed

* Silybum marianum — milk thistle
Stephanomeria exigua - small wreathplant
Xanthium strumarium - cocklebur

BORAGINACEAE - BORAGE FAMILY
Amsinckia menziesii — rancher’s fireweed

* Echium candicans - Pride of Madeira
Heliotropium curassavicum - wild heliotrope

BRASSICACEAE - MUSTARD FAMILY
¥ Brassica nigra - black mustard
* Hirschfeldia incana — short pod mustard
* Raphanus sativus — wild radish
Rorippa nasturtium-aquaticum - water cress

DUDEK 2 October 2008

149



VASCULAR PLANT SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

CACTACEAE - CACTUS FAMILY

Ferocactus viridescens - San Diego barrel cactus
* Opuntia ficus-indica — Indian-fig

Opuntia littoralis - coastal prickly-pear

CAPPARACEAE - CAPER FAMILY
Isomeris arborea — bladderpod

CAPRIFOLIACEAE - HONEYSUCKLE FAMILY
Lonicera subspicata var. denudata — southern honeysuckle
Sambucus mexicana — Mexican elderberry

CHENOPODIACEAE - GOOSEFOOT FAMILY
* Atriplex semibaccata — Australian saltbush
Atriplex triangularis — spearscale

* Chenopodium ambrosiodes — Mexican tea
Chenopodium californicum — California goosefoot

* Chenopodium murale — nettle-leaf goosefoot

y Salsola tragus - Russian-thistle

CONVOLVULACEAE - MORNING-GLORY FAMILY
Calystegia macrostegia — morning glory
* Convolvulus arvensis - bindweed

CRASSULACEAE - STONECROP FAMILY
Crassula connata - dwarf stonecrop
Dudleya edulis - ladies-fingers
Dudleya pulverulenta - chalk dudleya

CUCURBITACEAE - GOURD FAMILY
Cucurbita foetidissima - coyote-melon, calabazilla
Marah macrocarpus - wild cucumber

CUSCUTACEAE - DODDER FAMILY
Cuscuta californica — chaparral dodder

EUPHORBIACEAE - SPURGE FAMILY
Chamaesyce albomarginata - rattlesnake spurge
* Chamaesyce maculata — spotted spurge

DUDEK 3

October 2008

150



VASCULAR PLANT SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

Croton californica — California croton
Eremocarpus setigerus - doveweed
* Ricinus communis - castor-bean

FABACEAE - PEA FAMILY

* Acacia longifolia - Sydney golden wattle
Amorpha fruiticosa- desert indigobush

: Lotus corniculatus — bird foot trefoil

* Lotus purshianus — Spanish clover

Lotus scoparius — Deerweed

Lotus strigosus — bishop lotus

Lupinus bicolor - Lindley's annual lupine

Lupinus hirsutissimus — stingy annual lupine

Medicago polymorpha - California burclover

Medicago sativa — alfalfa

Melilotus alba — white sweetclover

Melilotus indica - sourclover

L

FAGACEAE - OAK FAMILY
Quercus agrifolia - coast live oak
Quercus berberidifolia - scrub oak

GERANIACEAE - GERANIUM FAMILY
* Erodium cicutarium - red-stemmed filaree

GROSSULARIACEAE - GOOSEBERRY FAMILY
Ribes speciosum — fuschia-flowered gooseberry

HYDROPHYLLACEAE - WATERLEAF FAMILY
Eucrypta chrysanthemifolia - eucrypta
Phacelia cicutaria - caterpillar phacelia
Phacelia minor — California bluebell

LAMIACEAE - MINT FAMILY

’ Marrubium vulgare - horehound
Salvia apiana - white sage
Salvia columbariae - chia

DUDEK 2

October 2008

151



VASCULAR PLANT SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

Salvia mellifera - black sage

LYTHRACEAE — LOOSESTRIFE FAMILY
* Lythrum hyssopifolia — Hyssop loosestrife

MALVACEAE - MALLOW FAMILY
Malacothamnus fasciculatus - chaparral mallow
* Malva parviflora - cheeseweed

MYOPORACEAE - MYOPORUM FAMILY
* Myoporum laetum - myoporum

MYRTACEAE - MYRTLE FAMILY
* Callistemon viminalis — weeping bottlebrush
* Eucalyptus globulus - blue gum

NYCTAGINACEAE - FOUR O'CLOCK FAMILY
Mirabilis californica var. californica - California wishbone-bush

OLEACEAE - OLIVE FAMILY
* Olea europaea - olive

ONAGRACEAE - EVENING-PRIMROSE FAMILY
Camissonia bistorta - California sun cup
Epilobium canum — California fuschia
Epilobium ciliatum - California cottonweed
Ludwigia peploides — false loosestrife

PLANTAGINACEAE - PLANTAIN FAMILY
* Plantago lanceolata - English plantain
* Plantago major - common plantain

PLATANACEAE - SYCAMORE FAMILY
Platanus racemosa - western sycamore

POLYGONACEAE - BUCKWHEAT FAMILY
Eriogonum fasciculatum - California buckwheat
* Polygonum arenastrum - knotweed

DUDEK 5

October 2008

152



VASCULAR PLANT SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

* Rumex crispus - curly dock

PRIMULACEAE - PRIMROSE FAMILY
* Anagallis arvensis — scarlet pimpernel
Samolus parviflorus — water-pimpernel

RANUNCULACEAE ~ BUTTERCUP FAMILY
Clematis ligusticifolia — yerba de chiva

RHAMNACEAE - BUCKTHORN FAMILY
Adolphia californica - California adolphia
Rhamnus crocea — spiny redberry

ROSACEAE - ROSE FAMILY
Heteromeles arbutifolia - toyon
Prunus ilicifolia - holly-leaf cherry

RUTACEAE - RUE FAMILY
Creoridium dumosum - bushrue

SALICACEAE - WILLOW FAMILY
Populus fremontii - Fremont's cottonwood
Salix exigua — sandbar willow
Salix gooddingii var. gooddingii - black willow
Salix lasiolepis — arroyo willow

SAURURACEAE - LIZARD’S-TAIL FAMILY
Anemopsis californica — yerba mansa

SCROPHULARIACEAE - FIGWORT FAMILY
Antirrhinum nuttallianum — wild snapdragon
Keckiella antirrhinoides ssp. antirrhinoides - chaparral beard-tongue
Mimulus aurantiacus - bush monkeyflower

Scrophularia californica — California bee plant

SOLANACEAE - NIGHTSHADE FAMILY
Datura wrightii — jimson weed

DUDEK 6 October 2008

153



VASCULAR PLANT SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

* Nicotiana glauca - tree tobacco

N Nicotiana quadrivalvis — Indian tobacco
Solanum douglasii — Douglas’ nightshade
Solanum xanti — chaparral nightshade

TAMARICACEAE - TAMARISK FAMILY
* Tamarix sp. - tamarisk

URTICACEAE - NETTLE FAMILY
Urtica dioica - giant creek nettle

ANGIOSPERMAE (MONOCOTYLEDONES)

ARECACEAE - PALM FAMILY
* Phoenix canariensis - Canary Island date palm
* Washingtonia robusta - Mexican fan palm

CYPERACEAE - SEDGE FAMILY
Cyperus eragrostis — tall flatsedge
Cyperus esculentis — yellow nutgrass
Eleocharis macrostachya - spikerush
Scirpus americanus - winged three-square

IRIDACEAE - IRIS FAMILY
Sisyrinchium bellum - blue-eyed grass

JUNCACEAE - RUSH FAMILY
Juncus acutus ssp. leopoldii — southwestern spiny rush

LEMNACEAE - DUCKWEED FAMILY
Lemna minuta - least duckweed

LILIACEAE - LILY FAMILY
* Asparagus asparagoides — smilax

* Asparagus officianalis — garden asparagus
Calochortus sp. - Mariposa lily species
Bloomeria crocea - goldenstars
Dichelostemma capitata - blue dicks

DUDEK 7

October 2008

154



VASCULAR PLANT SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

POACEAE - GRASS FAMILY

* X ¥ ¥ OF O H X %

L N

Arundo donax - giant reed

Avena barbata - slender oat

Bromus diandrus - ripgut grass

Bromus hordeaceus - soft chess

Bromus madritensis ssp. rubens - foxtail chess
Carduus pycnocephalus — Italian thistle
Cortaderia selloana - pampas grass

Cynodon dactylon - Bermuda grass

Distichlis spicata - salt grass

Leymus condensatus — giant wildrye

Leymus triticoides — creeping wildrye

Lolium multiflorum - English ryegrass

Melica imperfecta — melic grass
Muhlenbergia microsperma — little-seed muhly
Nassella pulchra - purple needlegrass
Paspalum dilatatum — Dallis grass
Piptatherum miliaceum - smilo grass
Polypogon monspeliensis — rabbit’s-foot grass
Vulpia myuros — foxtail fescue

TYPHACEAE - CATTAIL FAMILY

*

Typha angustifolia - narrow-leaved cattail
Typha latifolia - broad-leaved cattail

signifies introduced (non-native) species

DUDEK 8

Qctober 2008

155



WILDLIFE SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

WILDLIFE SPECIES -VERTEBRATES

AMPHIBIANS
HYLIDAE - TREEFROGS
Hyla regilla - Pacific treefrog
RANIDAE - TRUE FROGS
* Rana catesbeiana - bullfrog
REPTILES

IGUANIDAE - IGUANID LIZARDS
Sceloporus occidentalis - western fence lizard
Uta stansburiana - side-blotched lizard

SCINCIDAE - SKINKS
Eumeces skiltonianus - western skink

ANGUIDAE - ALLIGATOR LIZARDS
Gerrhonotus multicarinatus - southern alligator lizard

BIRDS

ARDEIDAE - HERONS
Ardea herodias - great blue heron
Butorides virescens - green heron

CATHARTIDAE - NEW WORLD VULTURES
Cathartes aura - turkey vulture

ACCIPITRIDAE - HAWKS
Buteo jamaicensis - red-tailed hawk

COLUMBIDAE - PIGEONS & DOVES
Zenaida macroura - mourning dove

TROCHILIDAE - HUMMINGRBIRDS
Calypte anna - Anna's hummingbird

PICIDAE - WOODPECKERS
Picoides nuttallii - Nuttall's woodpecker

DUDEK

Qctober 2008

156



WILDLIFE SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

TYRANNIDAE - TYRANT FLYCATCHERS
Myiarchus cinerascens - ash-throated flycatcher
Sayornis nigricans - black phoebe
Tyrannus vociferans - Cassin's kingbird
Tyrannus verticalis - western kingbird

CORVIDAE - JAYS AND CROWS
Aphelocoma californica - western scrub-jay
Corvus brachyrhynchos - American crow
Corvus corax - common raven

AEGITHALIDAE - BUSHTITS
Psaltriparus minimus - bushtit

TROGLODYTIDAE - WRENS
Thryomanes bewickii - Bewick's wren
Troglodytes aedon - house wren

TIMALIIDAE - LAUGHINGTHRUSH AND WRENTIT
Chamaeaq fasciata - wrentit

MIMIDAE - THRASHERS
Mimus polyglottos - northern mockingbird

EMBERIZIDAE - BUNTINGS AND SPARROWS
Pipilo crissalis - California towhee

FRINGILLIDAE - FINCHES
Carpodacus mexicanus - house finch
Carduelis psaltria - lesser goldfinch

MAMMALS

DIDELPHIDAE - NEW WORLD OPOSSUMS
* Didelphis virginiana - Virginia opossum

SORICIDAE - SHREWS
Notiosorex crawfordi - desert shrew
Sorex ornatus - ormate shrew

DUDEK

10

October 2008

157



WILDLIFE SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

TALPIDAE - MOLES
Scapanus latimanus - broad-footed mole

LEPORIDAE - HARES AND RABBITS
Sylvilagus bachmani - brush rabbit

SCIURIDAE - SQUIRRELS
Spermophilus beecheyi - California ground squirrel

GEOMYIDAE - POCKET GOPHERS
Thomomys bottae - Botta's pocket gopher

CANIDAE - WOLVES AND FOXES
Canis latrans - coyote

PROCYONIDAE - RACCOONS AND RELATIVES
Procyon lotor - common raccoon

WILDLIFE SPECIES - INVERTEBRATES

BUTTERFLIES AND MOTHS

HESPERIIDAE - SKIPPERS
Erynnis funeralis - funereal duskywing

PAPILIONIDAE - SWALLOWTAILS
Papilio rutulus - tiger swallowtail

PIERIDAE - WHITES AND SULFURS
Pieris rapae rapae - cabbage butterfly
Pontia protodice - checkered white
Colias Eurydice - California dogface

NYMPHALIDAE - BRUSH-FOOTED BUTTERFLIES
Nymphalis antiopa — mourning cloak

* signifies introduced (non-native) species

DUDEK

11

October 2008

158



WILDLIFE SPECIES OBSERVED
ON THE PROJECT SITE

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

DUDEK

12 October 2008

159



FIRE PROTECTION PLAN

Prepared for:

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
COASTAL TREATMENT PLANT

Administration Offices:
34156 Del Obispo Street
Dana Point, California 92629

Contact: Brian Peck, Director of Engineering

Prepared by:

DUDEK

605 Third Street
Encinitas, California 92024
Contact: Michael Huff, Project Manager

JANUARY 2011

160



Printed on 30% post-consumer recycled material.

161



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter Page No.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...civscsissccscssscssssesssrasacssssasssnssnsensacssnsosssussvassassassssssssssassasssessssssansssnse 111
1.0 INTRODUCTION....cccccvrunersurssssessesssssssssassssasossrasnssssasssessassansens 1
1.1 Project SUMMATY....ccvcceerereecrcererrsensscsstiisrsismsssssessessestsassssassssssarasssssssssssssssssnssasenes 2

1.1.1 Intent and PUIPOSE .....ccccievirrerimrineieninrien st sssis s iseresnsssssssssssssanssassnssans 2

1.1.2  LOCALIOM covuverrrreerneareerasseesssasnsessnnessmmaasessmesansesssasessassssessnsssssssnssssasssnssasnsassnnes 2

1.1.2  Site DeSCrPON. ....ccoceveiriicnties i rtss et ssts st b sssssesna s ss st sasassasossans 5

1.1.3 Environmental SEtNg ........cccrvecrrerrcervcsiesiiisiiniesinsessssnssmsssssssssssssnssssasssanas 6

2,0 ANTICIPATED FIRE BEHAVIOR ......coiiiicnirsssssessassersasasssssassassesssresssasssessasssassosans 11
2.1  Fire Behavior MOdeling.......ccooceceereernissesinirsnnsninnsssnissessssiosmsasssssssassassssnssssssanes 11

2.1.1 Fuel Model OQutput RESUILS.......ccceerrerereircetesieniissesieniessistnssssnessesssssesaos 16

2.2 On-Site Risk ASSESSMENT.......ccceoririenrerrrerenrrrreerrrinsesstesteste st ssssssssssnssssasaeas 16

2.2.1 Emergency Response and SErviCe ........ccouimiiirerirnneasenninssesisnsissenesenne 18

2.3  Buildings, Infrastructure and Defensible Space ........cocveuemreeinrmnnnceninenicicnne 19

2.3.]1  ACCESS tovererecrereestriaesis i e s s s ssas s sas e b b ae s b A e s r e an s s a e s sma s s a e e an et 20

T 1 OO OO PO 21

24  Ignition Resistant Construction and Fire Protection Systems .........c.cccovvvivieinnes 22

2.5  Defensible Space and Vegetation Management ..........c.oveemuneenrnncnnicenniconnne 22

2.5.1 Vegetation Management .........occcvuvieerinnnimissnsinesesssssssssssssssesisssssasssonaons 23

3.0 EMERGENCY PLANNING.........ccouse 25
3.1 EVACUALION ..eveeceeeccceccercereereeonr e stesestasstssbassaa s snen s sae s s s bssnssansmnsa s sessranasnass 26

3.2  Temporary Shelter-IN-Place..........cccrvimimrinrrrmnmesssmnesnnsessssensistssss e sesesssssosssnese 28

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR COASTAL TREATMENT PLANT 31
510 ICONCRUSION = =rarmernrnansnsinims 35
6.0 LIST OF PREPARERS ......ccccucticrntiasissssssssssscssssssssssssssssasssssassassansassesssssonssssssssssssssas 37
7.0  REFERENCES......ccocverrerssssiscssssasssssnsasssossonssasssessssssnssasssnenssasses SR |

APPENDICES

A Photograph Log
B Coastal Treatment Plant Emergency Fire Safety Plan
C Fire History Exhibit

6812-01

DUDEK i January 2011
162



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Page No.
LIST OF FIGURES
1 StE LOCAIION 1vevveneirieiesreererenaseessssssassanssesmeestasssastsssso bt ssssssnsnssnesnsaseesasasensssssesaansssssssssnsssssnes 3
2 Fire Behavior MOAELNG.......ccccceoiviveririeniinseaniinieneinenssssnsansts sttt st et sasass s sasenes 13
LIST OF TABLES
1 Vegetation Communities — Coastal Treatment Plant.........oovveeiiininnnnniieinneeees 7
2 FlamMap Fire Behavior INPULS......c..cocovrreiminiesmisseessninncnssasssnssesssss i sssssssssssssens 15
3 Chula Vista Fire Department Responding Stations Summary.......cc.coeencciiinnneinnnee. 18
4 Chula Vista Fire Department Responding Stations Call Volumes............cocoecoemcnneriniens 19
6812-01
DUDEK i January 2011

163



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Fire Protection Plan (FPP) was prepared for the South Orange County Wastewater
Authority (SOCWA) Coastal Treatment Plant located in Laguna Niguel, California. The Coastal
Treatment Plant is a conventional activated sludge treatment plant with a secondary treatment
design capacity of 6.7 million gallons per day. The Coastal Treatment Plant is located within a
semi-remote area that is designated a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone.

Fire history and site fire risk analysis indicate that wildfire has occurred and will likely occur
again in the vicinity of the Coastal Treatment Plant and that Aliso Canyon has not burned for a
considerable period of time, resulting in accumulation of fuels. Several fire protection and
emergency planning measures are currently employed at the plant, but there are areas where
improvements can be implemented to improve readiness, communication, ignition resistance,
and overall risk reduction, as discussed within this FPP.

This FPP provides a summary of the Coastal Treatment Plant’s wildfire risk associated with
specific operations, staffing, and its wildland urban intermix location. In addition, this FPP
provides a summary of existing conditions and recommended measures for “enhanced” fire
protection and safety based on the site’s unique function, facilities, and location within a
wilderness park. Among the recommended measures are strategic fuel modification, building
ignition resistance retrofits, fire suppression equipment, and training.

Lastly, this FPP provides an overview of current emergency planning and preparedness
procedures and describes recommendations for including wildfire-focused training, emergency
planning, and evacuation and sheltering on-site provisions.

6812-01

DUDEK iif January 2011
164



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

6812-01

DUDE K iv January 2011
165



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This Fire Protection Plan (FPP) provides focused and site specific evaluation and
recommendations for the South Orange County Wastewater Association’s (SOCWA) Coastal
Treatment Plant. The Coastal Treatment Plant is within a Local Responsibility Area (LRA)
provided fire protection by Orange County Fire Authority (OCFA) and directly adjacent a State
Responsibility Area (SRA) designated as a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone and provided
fire protection by CAL FIRE.

Traditionally, wildland fires that have occurred within the Laguna Beach/Laguna Niguel/Aliso
Canyon area have been contained as small brush fires or in the case of larger events, they were
contained along the main ridgelines and/or within the lower foothill areas. Although wildfire has
not significantly threatened the existing Coastal Treatment Plant facility since it was built in
1967 (original structures were built in 1940 and replaced/added in 1967), a wildland fire within
Aliso and Woods Canyon Park occurring under extreme weather conditions are modeled to burn
quickly toward the Plant.

The primary wildfire threat is from the open space to the north, northeast, and south. However,
wind-borne embers from distant wildfires or ridge top structure fires may also result in a
threatening situation due to the receptive fuel beds and topography which, under extreme
conditions, can result in numerous spot fires and even “Area Ignitions,” where “mass-ignition”
of an entire hillside occurs.

The Coastal Treatment Plant is located on the Aliso Canyon floor, as presented in Figure 1. The
site is largely free of vegetation with paved surfaces, concrete, metal, and stucco buildings,
tanks, and structures, steel pipelines, and related infrastructure. The naturally vegetated slopes
adjacent to the treatment plant are populated primarily by native coastal sage and other mixed
scrub vegetation types while Aliso Creek directly to the west, includes native riparian tree
species and non-native, flammable vegetation, most notably the highly invasive arundo (Arundo
donax).

As detailed in this FPP, the treatment plant’s current fire protection system includes measures that
reduce risk, including structures built of ignition resistant materials, conversion of native fuels to
lower flammability fuels on site, emergency training, and annual OCFA inspections, amongst
others. However, there are opportunities to provide a more deliberate program for fire safety that
includes formally delineated and customized fuel modification zones, structural vulnerability
retrofits, fire suppression systems, an emergency landscape irrigation system (water cannon), on-
site fire-fighting equipment such as a hose closet, and fire emergency training and planning,

6612-01

D U D E K 1 January 2011
166



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

A designated structure (the Administration Building) is recommended to serve as the site’s
primary emergency shelter facility. This means that in a rare circumstance where evacuation of
staff and visitors to an off-site location away from the canyon is not feasible, such as when a fire
or other impediment would expose evacuees to danger, the Administrative Building will be used
to temporarily accommodate people during a wildfire emergency. Early evacuation of staff and
visitors from the area will remain the preferred action during an emergency situation but only
when adequate time is available and the safety of evacuees can be confirmed.

1.1 Project Summary
111 Intent and Purpose

This FPP is intended to guide the enhancement and maintenance of project-related features and
emergency planning protocols at the Coastal Treatment Plant so that when properly implemented
and maintained, fire hazard risk reduction and improved staff and visitor safety along with
continued operation of the Plant are facilitated.

The purpose of this plan is to generate and memorialize fire safety recommendations for use by
current and future Coastal Treatment Plant employees by outlining procedures and protocols that
result in reduced wildfire risk, improved staff safety, and “hardening” of the Coastal Treatment
Plant against wildfire.

The FPP assesses the overall (on-site and adjacent off-site) wildland fire hazards and risks that
may threaten life and property and provides direction for “mitigating™ fire hazards in a cost
effective, environmentally sensitive manner.

1.1.2 Location

The Coastal Treatment Plant is located in Aliso Canyon within the City of Laguna Niguel in the
southwest portion of Orange County. Specifically, the site is Jocated at 28303 Alicia Parkway,
just east of the Aliso Creek Inn (City of Laguna Beach) where Aliso Canyon turns northward
(Figure 1). The site lies roughly 1 mile east of Highway 1 and the Pacific Ocean.

6812-01

DUDEK 2 January 2011
167



9 o 1,000

DUDEK

ZProjecta881201PlanapeiFig]_ SileLocation mxd

6812-01
JANUARY 2011

=, i . F
! { - . ey
5 . o - | . = nL
" - (NI=E
. F . ElNigust
L " i w [f r‘-_1 J 2 zunlfy Club
T . 3 il
o A
N A A & | 1
G i - 3 - |
3 S - 4
P d .
o R y
3 ! 4
AR, S
L -]
A
% —
P e
g v
2,000 f AN 8
Fest - &J i
SOURCE: USGS 7.5-Minute Series Quadrangle. FIGURE 1
Site Location
FIRE PROTECTION PLAN - SOCWA COASTAL TREATMENT PLANT DRAFT

168



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

6812-01

DU D E K a January 2011
169



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

The Coastal Treatment Plant is located within an area considered LRA under the jurisdiction of
OCFA. The site is directly adjacent a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone (VHFHSZ), as
statutorily designated by CAL FIRE and, therefore, carries the same designation. Fire Hazard
Severity classification is based on the type of vegetation, fire history, weather patterns, and steep
topography in an area. The Coastal Treatment Plant is within the potential ember zone associated
with Aliso Canyon open space to the north, east, south, and west and the region, like most of
Southern California, is subject to seasonal weather conditions that can heighten the likelihood of
fire ignition and spread through seasonal drying of vegetation and dry, warm winds that may
blow from the northeast/east during the fall.

The Coastal Treatment Plant is within the jurisdiction of the OCFA which provides fire
protection for Laguna Niguel. The OCFA operates three fire stations in Laguna Niguel that could
respond to an incident on the site, including Station Nos. 5, 39, and 49 as well as response from
nearby OCFA Fire Station no. 57, which is approximately 5.1 miles from the site in Aliso Viejo.
Laguna Beach Fire Station No. 4 (31646 2nd Ave, Laguna Beach) approximately 2 miles from
the site and would likely also be dispatched to a fire emergency at the Plant.

1.1.2 Site Description

The Coastal Treatment Plant includes a variety of structures, infrastructure, and equipment. The
plant has been in operation since 1940, with only one above-ground structure still remaining
from that era (circular concrete tank). Modernization of the plant began in 1967 when some of
the structures, clarifiers, and basins were constructed. A new Headworks, Pump Station,
Administration Building, and Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility were constructed in
1982. Other upgrades occurred in 1988 and 1992. In 1993, the access bridge across Aliso Creek
was replaced after storms damaged the previous bridge. Upgrades to odor control, aeration,
SCADA system and tertiary filters were completed in 2001, 2004, 2005, and 2007, respectively.

Appendix A presents select photographs of the site in its current condition along with views of
the surrounding Aliso Park slopes. Appendix 2 provides a Coastal Treatment Plant structural
location exhibit.

Site Population

The Plant includes a typical population of less than 10 people at any one time from 7:00 am to
5:00 pm. Typical SOCWA staff levels are:

e Monday — 3 staff

o Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday — 5 staff

6812-01

DUDEK 5 January 2011
170



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

e Friday — 2 staff
¢ Saturday and Sunday — 1 staff

Staff typically work a 9 or 10 hour workday.

Approximately 3 to 10 contractors may be on site for special projects. Additionally, the Plant
offers tours that may include up to 70 persons.

1.1.3 Environmental Setting

Dudek conducted a site review on December 16, 2010. The site inspection included a tour of the
freatment plant, evaluation of topography, vegetation/fuel, existing infrastructure and
documentation of the existing off-site fuel and topography conditions, surrounding land use
confirmations, and necessary fire behavior modeling data collection. Summaries of findings follow.

The site currently consists of a wastewater treatment plant on relatively level ground within
Aliso Canyon and surrounded by Aliso and Woods Canyon Regional Park. Besides the park,
surrounding land uses include a golf course and related facilities’housing to the west, and ridge
top homes to the south and east. The wilderness park in Aliso Canyon dominates the landscape
to the north.

1.1.3.1 Topography

The topography of Laguna Beach is dominated by steep hillsides with incised canyons that trend
primarily in an east-west direction. The Coastal Treatment Plant site is a relatively flat area at the
bottom of one of the Laguna Beach area canyons, lower Aliso Canyon, adjacent to Aliso Creek.
Steep slopes to the northwest, south and east and flatter canyon bottoms to the north and west
characterize the site.

Slopes on the property range from flat to roughly 20°, while site elevations range from just
above sea level (approximately 40 feet above mean sea level (AMSL)) in the southwestern
portion of the property, to approximately 135 feet AMSL in the extreme southeastern portion of
the property. The alignment of the canyons, the steep terrain, and regional topographic
conditions of the area can have considerable effect on wildland fire behavior and on the ability of
fire fighters to suppress those fires. These topographic factors can channel, deflect, concentrate,
or disperse winds, creating extremely erratic conditions on the slopes and in the canyons. Due to
these topographic features, it is not unusual for Aliso Canyon to experience unpredictable
weather, such as on-shore winds during Santa Ana events, which bring offshore winds to the
remainder of Southern California.

6812-01

DUDEK 6 January 2011

171



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

1.1.3.2 Fuels

Along with the local topography and climate, vegetation plays a major role in shaping the fire
hazard potential for the area. As previously described, the treatment plant is almost exclusively
landscaped with irrigated ornamental species. The adjacent slopes and the large expanse of
undisturbed areas outside the treatment plant property include a variety of native vegetation
communities, but predominantly native coastal sage scrub with smaller areas of chaparral, which
are considered “High Value” or “Very High Value” and protected habitat.

The mature coastal sage and mixed sage scrub fuels found on the slopes adjacent to the Coastal
Treatment Plant are classified as Fuel Model SCAL 18. While this fuel type can burn intensely
under strong, dry wind patterns, it does not typically produce the high fire intensity and fast-
spreading wildland fires found with chaparral fuel types. Chamise and southern maritime
chaparral vegetation does occur adjacent to the Coastal Treatment Plant and is classified as Fuel
Model SH7 and is capable of producing higher intensity fires. The scrub vegetation types will
typically burn with about half the intensity and flame length expected for chaparral fuels under
similar climatic conditions. Other vegetation types adjacent to the Coastal treatment Plant
include a small area of grassland (classified as a Fuel Model 1) and riparian woodland (classified
as a Fuel Model TL2). Table 1 presents a summary of vegetation types adjacent to the Coastal
Treatment Plant, and associated fuel model.

Table 1
Vegetation Communities — Coastal Treatment Plant
Vegetation Type
Annual Grasslands
Chaparral SH7
Coastal Sage Scrub SCAL18
Riparian Woodland TL2

As presented, the majority of the vegetative cover on site is irrigated oramental landscaping
including eucalyptus, pine and other trees and ice plant groundcover. Off site, but within a
sphere of influence of the Coastal Treatment Plant, is coastal sage or other scrub habitat types,
chaparral, grassland, and riparian woodland types. Both scrub and chaparral vegetation
communities are located primarily on steep slopes throughout Aliso Canyon, Other vegetation
types present include riparian or other aquatic vegetation types as well as other
developed/disturbed habitats characterized by relatively discontinuous fuels.

The vegetation characteristics described above and presented in Table 2 are used to model fire
behavior, discussed in this FPP. Variations in vegetative cover type and species composition

6812-01

DUDEK 7 January 2011
172



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

have a direct effect on fire behavior. Some plant communities and their associated plant species
have increased flammability based on plant physiology (resin content), biological function
(flowering, retention of dead plant material), physical structure (leaf size, branching patterns),
and overall fuel loading. For example, the native shrub species that compose the chaparral and
coastal sage—chaparral scrub plant communities adjacent the treatment plant are a high potential
hazard based on such criteria.

As described, vegetation plays a significant role in fire behavior, and is an important component to
the fire behavior models discussed in this report. A critical factor to consider is the dynamic nature
of vegetation communities. Fire presence and absence at varying cycles or regimes affects plant
community succession. Succession of plant communities, most notably the gradual conversion of
shrublands to grasslands with high frequency fires and grasslands to shrublands with fire exclusion,
is highly dependent on the fire regime. Biomass and associated fuel loading will increase over time,
assuming that disturbance or fuel reduction efforts are not diligently implemented.

1.1.3.3 Fuel Loads

The vegetation described above translates to fuel models used for fire behavior modeling,
discussed in Chapter 3 of this FPP. Fuel loading on site is low for the majority of the landscape.
However, fuels associated with eucalyptus trees and other site tree species is considered
moderate to high based on accumulation of dense canopies, dead and dying branches, leaf litter
and debris.

1.1.3.4  Fire History

Fire history is an important component of a site-specific FPP. Fire history information can
provide an understanding of fire frequency, fire type, most vulnerable project areas, and
significant ignition sources, amongst others. Appendix B presents a fire history exhibit for the
Coastal Treatment Plant vicinity. As presented in the exhibit, the most recent large fire to occur
in the vicinity of the project is the Laguna Fire of 1993 which destroyed 366 homes and
structures. The vegetative fuels, low humidity and strong, dry wind conditions converged to
result in a significant wildland fire. The wildfire moved from north of Laguna Canyon Road to
the Pacific Coast Highway in El Moro. A southern flank of this fire crossed Laguna Canyon
Road, (Highway 133), and burned south through the Canyon Acres Drive area into Skyline
Drive/Park Avenue areas of Laguna Beach. The fire was spread through windblown embers and
wind driven flames consuming many of the homes on Canyon Acres Drive. Wind shifts resulted
in the fire not burning into Aliso Canyon.

6812-01

DU DE K 8 January 2011
173



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

Other fires that have occurred in the vicinity of the project site include:

e The El Moro and Antonio Fires in 2004

e The Avery, Laguna, and Shady Canyon Fires in 2002
¢ The El Moro Fire in 1997

¢ The Ridgeline Fire in 1994

e The Laguna Fire in 1993

¢ The Monarch Fire in 1990

e The Ortega Fire in 1988

e The Ortega, Laguna (Boat), and Niguel Fires in 1979.

Fire return intervals for the vicinity range between one and nine years, depending on location,
although, as depicted in Appendix B, the Aliso Canyon area associated with the Coastal
Treatment Plant has not burned during the recorded fire history period (FRAP 2010)". Typical
fire return intervals for sage scrub vegetation types ranges between 20 and 30 years, while that
for chaparral vegetation ranges between 40 and 60 years, indicating that the area is currently
susceptible to wildfire.

1.1.3.5 Climate

The climate in the project area is typified by warm, dry summers and wetter winters.
Precipitation in Orange County typically occurs between November and March and averages
between 9 and 15 inches per year. The prevailing wind is an onshore flow with fall winds (Santa
Ana Winds) from the northeast that may gust to 70 miles per hour (mph) or higher and result in
single-digit humidity. The area’s climate has a large influence on the fire risk as drying
vegetation during the summer months becomes fuel available to advancing flames should an
ignition be realized. Extreme conditions, used in fire modeling for this site include temperatures
in excess of 90° during summer and wind gusts of 20 and 40 mph for onshore events and 30 and
60 mph during fall offshore wind patterns. Relative humidity of less than 10% is possible during
fire season.

1 Based on polygon GIS data managed by CAL FIRE's Fire and Resource Assessment Program (FRAP). Includes fire data from
1878-2000.For the National Park Service, Bureau of Land Management, and US Forest Service, fires of 10 acres and greater
are reported. For CAL FIRE, timber fires greater than 10 acres, brush fires greater than 50 acres, grass fires greater than 300
acres, and fires that destroy three or more residential dwellings or commercial structures are reported.

6812-01

DUDEK 9 January 2011
174



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

Local weather patterns may vary in the Laguna Niguel area with humidity and plant moisture
higher than inland locations due to the Pacific Ocean influence. Wind patterns may also vary in
the canyons with onshore, humid wind possible even during a region-wide Santa Ana condition
leaving the rest of the County dry with strong offshore gusts.

1.1.3.6 Land Use

The Coastal Treatment Plant is an active wastewater treatment facility with structures and
infrastructure supporting that function on an approximately 15 acre property. Roads/driveways
within the property consist of a single entrance road across Aliso Creek Bridge, a loop road
along the perimeter of the project to the north and a southerly road to the vehicle storage
building. Access is good throughout the facility. Parking is provided at various locations
throughout the site and there is ample room for parking in areas without designated spaces.

6812-01

DUDEK 10 January 2011
175



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

2.0 ANTICIPATED FIRE BEHAVIOR
241 Fire Behavior Modeling

Following field data collection efforts and available data analysis, fire behavior modeling was
conducted to document the type and intensity of fire that would be expected within Aliso
Canyon given characteristic site features such as topography, vegetation, and weather.

Dudek utilized FlamMap software to graphically depict fire modeling results for the Aliso Creek
area. FlamMap utilizes the same fire spread equations built into the BehavePlus software
package, but allows for a geographical presentation of fire behavior outputs as it applies the
calculations to each pixel in an associated Geographic Information Systems (GIS) landscape. For
this analysis, extreme fall, offshore weather conditions (60 mph maximum wind speeds) were
modeled in order to understand worst-case fire behavior in the canyon.

FlamMap software requires a minimum of five separate input files that represent field conditions
in the Aliso Creek area, including elevation, slope, aspect, fuel model, and canopy cover. Each
of these files was created as a raster GIS file using ArcGIS 9.3 software, exported as an ASCII
grid file, then utilized in creating a FARSITE (Finney 1998) Landscape file that served as the
base for the FlamMap runs. The resolution of each grid file and associated ASCII file that was
used in the FlamMap models described herein is 10 meters (32.8 feet). In addition to the
Landscape file, wind and weather data are incorporated into the model inputs. The output file
chosen for the modeling run included flame length (feet). The map included in Figure 2 depicts
the results of the modeling run.

The following provides a description of the input and output variables used in processing the
FlamMap models. In addition, data sources are cited and any assumptions made during the
modeling process are described.

Weather

Historical fuel moisture data for the region was utilized in determining appropriate fire behavior
modeling inputs for the site. Specifically, 97th percentile moisture values derived from the Las
Flores Remote Automated Weather Station (RAWS) were determined and utilized in the fire
behavior modeling efforts conducted in support of this FPP. RAWS fuel moisture data were
processed utilizing the Fire Family Plus software package to determine atypical (97th percentile)
weather conditions. The Las Flores station, while not located near the project site, was used as
no stations in Orange County are situated in similar geographical settings. The Las Flores
RAWS is located on Camp Pendleton in San Diego County, approximately 1.5 miles from the
Pacific Ocean at an elevation of 100 feet, a similar geographical setting to that of the project

6812-01

DUDEK 1 January 2011
176



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

development area. Data from the Las Flores RAWS was evaluated from May 1 through October
31 for each year between 1992 and 2007 (extent of available data record). Fuel moisture
information was analyzed and incorporated into the Initial Fuel Moisture file used as an input in
FlamMap. In addition, wind direction and wind speed values for the different FlamMap runs
were manually entered during the data input phase and were based on four separate wind
scenarios, consistent with those for extreme weather during the 1993 Laguna Fire.

Elevation

Elevation data were derived from a U.S. Geologic Survey (USGS) Digital Elevation Model
(DEM) with a resolution of 10 meters and projected in the NAD 1983, California State Plane,
Zone 6 coordinate system. Elevation values throughout the FlamMap analysis area range from 0
(sea level) to 1,000 feet AMSL. These data were utilized to create an elevation grid file, using
units of feet above sea level. The elevation data are a necessary input file for FlamMap runs and
are necessary for adiabatic adjustment of temperature and humidity and for conversion of fire
spread between horizontal and slope distances.

Slope

Using ArcGIS Spatial Analyst tools, a slope grid file was generated from the elevation grid file
described above. Slope measurements utilized values in degrees of inclination from horizontal.
Slope values on site range from 0° (flat) to 80°. The slope input file is necessary for computing
slope effects on fire spread and solar radiance.

Aspect

Using ArcGIS Spatial Analyst tools, an aspect grid file was generated from the elevation grid file
described above. The aspect values utilized were azimuth degrees. Aspect values are important
in determining the solar exposure of grid cells.

6812-01

DU DE K 12 January 2011
177



Wind|Directiong40ldegrees;
Wind[Speed:60/mp

Flame Length
Feet

I:Infa
=] o-4
4o

[ s-1
11-15
[11s-20
] 20-25
] 25-30

Fire behawor results using FlamMap fire behavior modeling software. Resulls represent flame length
values during 87th percentie weather condifions with wind speeds of 60 mph and wind diraction
offshore at 40 degrees.
SOURCE: ESRI Werld Imagery FIGURE 2

Fire Behavior

FIRE PROTECTION PLAN - SOCWA COASTAL TREATMENT PLANT DRAFT




South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

6812-01
DUDEK 14 January 2011
179



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

Fuel Model

Vegetation coverage data in the form of a GIS shapefile were used in this analysis to create a
fuel model file. Based on available vegetation mapping data, vegetation types were classified
into fuel models. Vegetation mapping data was utilized in field efforts to classify vegetation
cover type with an appropriate fuel model. Specifically, 5 separate fuel models were utilized for
the area adjacent to the Coastal Treatment Plant, of which, one was a non-combustible
classifications (e.g., bare soil, pavement). Once fuel model values were assigned to vegetation
cover types, the vector-based vegetation data file was converted to a grid file for inclusion in
FlamMap modeling. Table 2 outlines the fuel model values applied to the different vegetation
types found on and adjacent to the Coastal Treatment Plant site.

Table 2
FlamMap Fire Behavior Inputs
_ WMogel Varizble _ Dishore Vale
Fuel mode! 1, SCAL18, SH7, TL2
1 h fuel moisture 2%
10 h fuel moisture 3%
100 h fuel moisture 5%
Live herbaceous moisture 30%
Live woody moisture 50%
20 ft wind speed {mph) 60 mph
Wind direction Off Shore: 40°
Slope steepness variable by location, range: 0 to 80°
Canopy Cover

Canopy cover is measured as the horizontal fraction of the ground that is covered directly
overhead by tree canopy. Crown closure refers to the ecological condition of relative tree crown
density. Stands can be said to be “closed” to recruitment of canopy trees but still only have 40%
or 50% canopy cover. Coverage units can be categories (0—4) or percentage values (0%—100%).
For the purposes of the FlamMap analysis, non- woodland cover types (Fuel Models 1, SCAL18S,
and SH7) were classified as 0, while woodland types (Fuel Models TL2) were classified as 3.

Table 2 summarizes the input variables used in the FlamMap modeling efforts.

6812-01
January 2011

DUDEK 5

180



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

21.1 Fuel Model Output Results

One output grid files was generated for the FlamMap run and includes representations of flame
length (feet). The graphical output from the modeling runs is presented in Figure 2. The fire
behavior analysis results for the Aliso Creek area vary depending on fuel type. As FlamMap
utilizes site-specific digital terrain data (including slope, vegetation, aspect, and elevation data)
slight variations in predicted flame length values can be observed based on fluctuations of these
attributes across the landscape. As presented, wildfire behavior in each of the fuel types varies,
based on differing weather conditions.

Given the climatic, vegetation, and topographic characteristics along with the fire behavior
modeling results discussed in this FPP, the project site is determined to be potentially receptive
to wildfire starting on, burning onto, or spotting onto the site. Under extreme weather conditions,
fire can move rapidly through the site’s fuels. The most common type of fire anticipated in the
vicinity of the project area is a fire burning onto the project site from a location up Aliso
Canyon, possibly igniting from a nearby highway or roadway and fanned by off shore Santa Ana
winds. Worst-case modeled flame lengths near the Coastal Treatment Plant were calculated at 55
feet in southern maritime chaparral and up to 45 feet in coastal sage scrub. As such, it is
necessary to provide fuel management areas to reduce the site wildfire risk.

As presented, wildfire behavior in chaparral vegetation types represents the most extreme
conditions. In this case, flame lengths can be expected to reach up to approximately 55 feet with
60 mph wind speeds. Flame lengths for fires burning in coastal sage scrub, represented as a Fuel
Model SCAL18, with wind speeds of 60 mph can be expected to reach 45 feet.

It should be noted that the modeling results presented herein depict values based on inputs to the
FlamMap software, which are help constant for each cell in the analysis landscape. Changes in
wind, weather, or pockets of different fuel types are not accounted for in this analysis. Model
results should be used as a basis for planning only, as actual fire behavior for a given location
will be affected by many factors, including unique weather patterns, small-scale topographic
variations, or changing vegetation patterns.

2.2 On-Site Risk Assessment

Dudek conducted a field assessment of the Coastal Treatment Plant and surrounding areas in
order to confirm digital data accuracy, document existing site conditions, and potential risk, and
to determine actions for addressing the protection or relocation of the site’s staff and visitors.
While on site, Dudek assessed the plant’s topography, natural vegetation and fuel loading,

6812-01

Du DE K 16 January 2011

181



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

available setback areas, structures, and general susceptibility to wildfire. SOCWA engineers and
Coastal Treatment Plant staff were also interviewed.

Site photographs were collected and fuel conditions were mapped using 100-scale aerial images.
Field observations were utilized to augment existing digital site data in generating the fire
behavior models and formulating the recommendations outlined in this FPP. Refer to Appendix
A for site photographs and brief discussions of existing site conditions.

As experienced as recently as 1993, the Coastal Treatment Plant vicinity is potentially
vulnerable to wildfire, given the climatic, vegetation, wildland-urban interface (WUI) location,
and topographical characteristics of the area, along with the fire history and fire behavior
modeling results previously discussed in this FPP. In summary, wind or topography driven
wildfire burning under a northeastern (Santa Ana) wind pattern (offshore) through the adjacent
slopes to the north and northeast will result in an extreme wildland fire and potential hazard
(airbomne firebrands) to the structures and surrounding hillsides on the site. Wind-driven wildfire
in Aliso Canyon would result in aggressive fire behavior and given the proximity of the Coastal
Treatment Plant to surrounding slopes, would result in difficult conditions, including smoke,
radiant heat, wind-blown embers, spot fires, and low visibility for an estimated period of 30
minutes to 1 hour.

Based on the FlamMap analysis conducted in support of this FPP and fire spread modeling
conducted as part of a study for a project in the Aliso Canyon area in 2009, under extreme
conditions, it is anticipated that a fire originating near the intersection of EI Toro Road and
Highway 73 may reach the project site in as little as 4 hours, assuming 30 mph sustained winds
with 60 mph gusts aligned with the canyon topography. A fire originating from the Wood
Canyon Ranger Station may reach the project site between 3 and 4 hours with the same weather
and wind variables. However, it is expected that spot fires would reduce the time necessary for
fire to travel the length of the canyon, possibly by 30 minutes or more, depending on the ember
decay rate and wind speeds. Fires originating closer to the project would result in minimal effect
on fire spread from embers as the fuel beds will be irrigated landscaping and fuel modification
areas, which are less receptive to embers and spot fires.

Wildland fires starting north or east of the development on a typical fire day with a southwest
wind will typically burn away from the treatment plant and will generally not be a significant
wildland fire hazard if confined to the canyon bottom. However, a fire starting south or west of
the development on a typical summer day with a southwest wind will create a wildland fire
hazard and potential threat.

6812-01

DUDE K 17 January 2011

182



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

The preceding sections have outlined the site, its existing structures and fire protection features,
and the overall site risk level. The following section details the fire safety requirements that are
currently in place and measures that are recommended to reduce risk further.

2.21 Emergency Response and Service
2.2.1.1 Emergency Response

OCFA provides fire protection for Orange County through a contract with CAL FIRE.
Additionally, Laguna Niguel contracts with OCFA for fire protection services. CAL FIRE
operates three Fire Stations in Laguna Niguel (Stations 5, 39, and 49) and one Fire Station in
Aliso Viejo (Station 57) that would receive dispatch notification for response to an incident in
Aliso Canyon at the Coastal Treatment Plant, each of which may send an apparatus. Initial
response to the site would include up to three engines, as available.

Table 3 presents a summary of the location, equipment, staffing levels, travel distance, and travel
time for the three Laguna Niguel stations. Travel distances are derived from City GIS road data
while travel times are calculated using response speeds of 35 mph, consistent with the Insurance
Services Office (ISO) Public Protection Classification Program’s Response Time Standard and
do not include turnout time.

Table 3
Chula Vista Fire Department Responding Stations Summary
Station Location Equipment Staffing TravelDistance | Travel Time*

Station 5 23600 Pacific Island Dr. | Engine § Assigned: 15 5.5 mi. 9.4 min.
Laguna Niguel Medic Van 5 Cn-duty: 5

Station 39 24241 Avilia Road PAU Engine 39 | Assigned: 9 4.8 mi. 8.2 min.
Laguna Nigue! Engine 339 On-duty: 3

Station 49 31461 Golden Lantern Engine PAU Assigned: 12 8.7 mi, 14.9 min.
Lagnuna Niguel Truck 49 On-duty: 4

Station 57 57 Journey PAU Engine 57 | Assigned: 11 5.1 mi. 8.7 min.
Aliso Viejo Medic 57 On-duty: 3-5

* Assumes travel to the project entrance, a 35 mph travel speed, and does not include turnout time

6812-01

Du DE K 18 January 2011
183



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

Table 4 presents a summary of call volumes for 2009 for Stations 5, 39, 49, and 57. Based on the
Coastal Treatment Plant site location in relation to existing Laguna Niguel and, Aliso Viejo Fire
Stations, travel time to the site is expected to exceed the national standard of 5 minutes with the
fastest calculated response of just over 8 minutes from Station 39. Travel to the most remote
portion of the treatment plant may require up to an additional 0.5 minute. Because of this slower
than desired response time, it is anticipated that Laguna Beach Fire Station 4 (31646 2nd Ave)
may be called upon since the station is within 2 miles of the Treatment Plant. All response
calculations are based on an average response speed of 35 mph.

Table 4
Chuila Vista Fire Department Responding Stations Call Volumes
Station | Tota) Annual Cals (2009 Aerage Wonihiy Calls |~ Average Daily Calls
Station 5 3,003 250 8.2
Station 39 1,599 133 44
Station 49 1,098 92 3.0
Station 57 3,544 295 9.8

2.2.1.2 Emergency Service Level

Based on Laguna Niguel Fire Station call volumes presented in Table 4, service levels are
expected to remain constant for Station 39, the closest station, and Station 49, due to the
currently lower volume of less than 5 calls per day. Stations 5 and 57 are considered busy
stations and depending on growth within the response area for these stations, could result in
erosion of service level. For reference, a station that responds to 5 calls per day is considered
average and 10 calls per day is considered busy. The recommendations described in this FPP are
intended to aid firefighting personnel and minimize the demand placed on the existing
emergency service system. The recommendations of this FPP discussed in a later section are
designed to assist the responding fire agency by improving overall fire safety and evacuation
protocols and subsequently, minimizing the demand placed on the busier Fire Stations.

Additional response may occur from Laguna Beach, Aliso Viejo, and may include OCFA/CAL
FIRE aerial resources, depending on the type of incident.

2.3 Buildings, Infrastructure and Defensible Space

The following summaries highlight important fire protection features currently employed at the
Coastal Treatment Plant.

6812-01

DUDEK 19 January 2011
184



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

231 Access
2.3.1.1 Primary

The primary project access is via AWMA Road/Aliso Canyon Road through Aliso Canyon.
AWMA Road/Aliso Canyon Road intersects with Alicia Parkway. AWMA Road/Aliso Canyon
Road approaches the treatment plant and ends at a “T” where a right turn leads to an
approximately 300 foot driveway across Aliso Creek bridge and enters the site while a left turn
leads to the Plant’s secondary ingress/egress through Aliso Creek Golf Course property.

2.3.1.2 Secondary/Emergency

One emergency ingress/egress way is provided by a narrow roadway that intersects AWMA
Road/Aliso Canyon Road at its terminus and intersection with the Treatment Plant driveway.
This gated access travels % mile through native fuels at the toe of a south-facing slope until it
enters the existing Aliso Creek Inn Golf Course. From there, the road travels another 9/10 of a
mile where it intersects Highway 1. This road is gated and Coastal Treatment Plant staff has a
key/card for passage. This road is only accessible during emergency and will not be used by staff
for typical ingress/egress.

A second potential emergency ingress/egress is a dirt road on the east side of Aliso Creck. The
road enters/leaves the Coastal Treatment Plant at its northernmost perimeter and parallels Aliso
Creek, offering a bridge crossing approximately 1.9 miles from the plant and an additional 1.2
miles to Alicia Parkway. This road is subject to tertiary drainage washouts that leave the road
impassible, so it should not be relied upon for vehicular ingress or egress until such time that the
roadway is improved.

Exploration of the possibility of relocating the primary access road to east of Aliso Creek — in
coordination with trail creation in that same location. Relocating the access road to the east side
of Aliso Creek would not significantly affect ingress to, or egress from the site. A positive
benefit is that it may limit the damage associated with flooding in Aliso Creek, which has eroded
portions of the access road in the past. Moving to the east side of Aliso Creek would also
eliminate the vulnerability associated with the Aliso Creek bridge crossing to the Plant.

2.3.1.3 Entrances

The Coastal Treatment Plant is accessed over a bridge that was rebuilt in 1993 and is capable of
supporting the weight of anticipated fire apparatus (50,000 pounds) that would respond to the
site. A series of gates are located along AWMA/Aliso Canyon Road for access to the Aliso and
Woods Canyon Regional Park and the Coastal Treatment Plant. An existing gate also occurs on

6812-01

D U D E K 20 January 2011

185



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

the emergency access way. Access gates comply with OCFA and include Knox keys for Fire
access. Appendix C provides access road information,

2.3.1.4 Dead Ends

Site access is not classified as a dead-end. The primary site access road consists of an
approximately 3 mile long AWMA Road/Aliso Canyon Road with an emergency ingress/egress
intersection at its terminus.

2.3.1.5 Grade

The maximum grade for roads and driveways are relatively flat, not exceeding approximately
10% with most of the Plant roadways less than 3%.

2.3.1.6 Surface

All fire access and vehicle roadways are pavement or asphaltic concrete and designed and
maintained to support the imposed loads of fire apparatus that may respond, including engines,
water tenders, and trailered dozers.

Road resurfacing is planned in 2018-2019. Road resurfacing will provide a smooth surface for
ingress/egress. No road widening is anticipated.

2.3.1.7 Identification

Identification of roads and structures via signage is provided. Continued coordination with
OCFA and other local responders to ensure familiarity with site access.

2.3.2 Water

Water service for the Coastal Treatment Plant is provided by the South Coast Water District. The
static hydraulic pressures are estimated to meet OCFA fire pressure needs.

2.3.2.1 Hydrants

A total of 7 fire hydrants located throughout the site, with one of the hydrants located on the
west side of the access bridge. Appendix C provides fire hydrant locations, amongst other
important fire safety information.

6812-01

DUDEK 21 January 2011

186



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

2.3.2.2 Fire Sprinklers
None of the structures is provided interior fire sprinklers.
24 Ignition Resistant Construction and Fire Protection Systems

The site’s structures were built between 1962 and 1982. The structures generally exceed the
building codes requirements for ignition resistance applicable at the time of construction. The
buildings are of concrete, steel, and wood frame/stucco construction and meet current building
codes for ignition resistance walls. Wall openings may be improved with retrofits.

A variety of projects are planned over the next 10 to 15 year horizon according to the Capital
Improvement Project planning document. The most notable relating to fire safety in the site’s
structures is the planned renovation of the Administration Building in 2024-2025. The
renovation will include primarily interior upgrades along with doors, windows, and the HVAC
system. Several improvements should be made prior to this larger renovation, as detailed in the
recommendations section of this report.

2.5 Defensible Space and Vegetation Management

The Coastal Treatment Plant is exposed to wildland fuels in all directions with the heaviest fuels
on the slopes to the east and south. The primary wildland fire threat will be from direct
flame/heat from adjacent slopes and embers associated with distant, wind-driven fires to the
northeast/east and from wildfire in open space area to the west under on-shore wind conditions.

The treatment plant is currently provided defensible space through cleared areas and ornamental
landscaping. Some portions of the plant receive adequate fuel modification setbacks while others
do not. The combination of the irrigated landscape areas and the paved roadways on the
perimeter of most of the plant result in favorable fuel modification around the vehicle storage
building, along the eastern edge of the facilities central and northern areas, and in the interior of
the facility between structures. Fuel modification is provided via mowing along the majority of
the access roadway to a distance of approximately 10 feet.

Areas where the structural setback from neighboring vegetation could be improved include the
western side of the facility where it abuts Aliso Creek, the northern portion of the facility where
ornamental trees are planted in a turf area, and at the southern property boundary where fuels are
allowed to grow in the area between the water tank and generator building.

It is noted that the larger vegetation, primarily the site’s trees, provide an important screening
function from recreational users in Aliso and Woods Canyon Regional Park. The screening

6812-01

D U D E K 22 January 2011

187



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

function is important for maintaining the aesthetics of a wilderness park. Recommended fuel
reduction treatments discussed herein consider maintenance of the aesthetic function.

251 Vegetation Management

Vegetation management on this site should include regular maintenance of trees, shrubs, and
ground cover to remove accurmnulated fuels, dead and dying branches, and leaf litter. The highest
wildfire threat is from large eucalyptus tree and other fuels that are relatively close to structures
and from wind-carried embers. As such, site landscaping and maintenance should follow the
standards described in the following section.

2.5.1.1 Landscape Vegetation Management
The following recommendations are provided for landscape vegetation on site:

o High-leaf-moisture plants as ground cover, less than 4 inches high

¢ No tree crowns within 10 feet of structures (at maturity)

¢ Tree spacing of a minimum 10 feet between crowns

¢ No tree limb encroachment within 10 feet of a structure

e Tree maintenance includes limbing-up (canopy raising) 6 feet or one-third the height of
the tree

e Shrubs less than 2 feet tall, on 5-foot centers

» Highly flammable and high BTU producing plants are unacceptable within designated
fuel modification areas on site

e All dead and dying vegetation shall be routinely removed

e Use of native species within 30 feet of buildings is not recommended unless they are
tolerant of consistent irrigation and meet the height, density, and lower flammability
recommendations listed in this section.

2.5.1.2 Vegetation Maintenance

All vegetation management shall be performed routinely throughout the year. Annually,
conducting vegetation management prior to June is recommended to reduce fuels prior to the
start of the high fire season.

6812-01

D U D E K 23 January 2011

188



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

6812-01
DUDEK ”

January 2011

189



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

3.0

EMERGENCY PLANNING

The Coastal Treatment Plant emergency preparedness includes training and annual coordination
with OCFA, Pre-planning information is provided to OCFA on the Hazardous Materials
Inventory Reporting Form and includes an extensive listing of the plant’s chemicals along with
contact information, a site plan with buildings numbered and labeled, individual building
footprints and chemical locations.

The Coastal Treatment Plant follows a pre-planned response to emergencies, including fires.
Generally, the following protocol guides response:

1.

2.

Employees receive communications via cell phones/radio phones/reverse 911.
A facility wide loud speaker can be used to broadcast emergency messages.

When an emergency is realized, 2 “Code 2” alarm would be called and employees gather
in front of the maintenance shop.

Evacuation of the site would occur following notification and the Code 2 alarm as part of
the “Life First” protocol.

Operators and mechanics receive training in hazardous communications, emergency
response, and disaster contingency planning and first responder HAZWOPER.

Procedures and back-up, secondary containment measures for chemical leaks are in
place.

Emergency exits are located at the main entrance gate to the West and to the North end of
the plant.

All new employees are trained on the MSDS located at the plant.

Employees are trained in first aid, CPR and attend refresher courses for HAZWOPER
and emergency response.

10. Emergency response drills are conducted quarterly and include review of the

Emergency Plan.
Wildfire Emergencies
6812-01
D u D E K 25 January 2011

190



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

Wildfire emergencies may present the most significant fire risk at the Coastal Treatment Plant
because they may be large, far-reaching, and capable of cutting off evacuation routes. With
regard to wildfire emergencies, the following components should be added to the Coastal
Treatment Plant emergency preparedness planning:

e Staff training for fire safety (coordinated with OCFA)

s Building and Facility Protection and measures

o Upon Code 2 Alarm — close doors/windows to buildings, automate computers, as
needed, convoy out of the treatment plant and canyon.

® Grounds Protection (fuel modification zone purpose)

e Fire Prevention during High Fire Danger and Extreme High Fire Danger periods

o Emergency Supplies

e Communications

e Command List

e Emergency Response Notebook

s Annual Review and Update

¢ Emergency Notification Procedures

e Advisement of Potential Fire Danger

¢ FEmergency Relocation/Evacuation Plan.
The Coastal Treatment Plant should conduct at least annual fire drill exercises to ensure efficient
decision making and proper safety measures are implemented. The OCFA is encouraged to
observe these drills to provide input and clarification. After this annual observation and review,
the fire authority may require alterations to the Emergency Preparedness plan. Coastal Treatment
Plant staff should receive annual training at time of employment and then to coincide with the

fire relocation drill regarding relocation, shelter in place, and the various fire protection features
available. OCFA can provide training on various aspects of structural and wildfire emergencies.

3.1 Evacuation

In case of wildfire, the preferred plan is early evacuation from the site, consistent with SOCWA
goals for staff safety. Accordingly, notification of a wildfire, especially during fire weather
periods (normally during summer and fall) would result in staff leaving the site via AWMA
Road/Aliso Canyon Road, unless it is not passable and the secondary egress through Aliso Creek

6812-01

D U D E K 26 January 2011

191



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

Golf Course property must be utilized. When adequate time is not available for evacuation, and
attempts at evacuation could put staff and/or visitors in harms way, then the shelter in place
option would be utilized.

Early notification of the Coastal Treatment Plant staff and visitors is critical to a timely and safe
relocation, Because cell phones do not always work and the primary land line is not consistent and
could be compromised, communication with staff may be difficult and may require direct contact.

When conditions are such that distant wildfire may move toward the Aliso Canyon area,
evacuations should occur with a conservative trigger threshold. Site staff will be trained by
OCFA for the rare occurrence that a decision regarding evacuation or temporary shelter-in-place
has to occur without OCFA or other fire or law enforcement input. As such, the decision will be
made by informed individuals considering numerous factors.

If a relocation of staff and visitors is required, the following procedures will be followed:

Since the relocation of the Coastal Treatment Plant staff and possibly visitors, at maximum
usage, may require in excess of 45 minutes, if adequate time is not available, the decision to
remain in the shelter-in-place site will be made by trained staff or fire and law enforcement
personnel, and evacuations will cease.

Evacuation from the site will follow an organized plan, including:

e Code 2 declaration.
e Mobilizing staff to provide direction to visitors, as necessary.

o Communicating with local law enforcement and fire officials to determine the best course
of action.

e Evacuation vehicle management will be provided by law enforcement, if available, or by
site staff. The preferred evacuation route will be the shortest, most direct, and least
exposed route out of the Canyon. Most of the time, this may require using the secondary
ingress/egress which travels through the Aliso Creek Golf Course property to the west.

e Evacuating staff and visitors should convoy out of the canyon onto PCH (if using the
secondary, shorter evacuation route), or onto Alicia Parkway (if using the AWMA
Road/Aliso Canyon exit).

e The vehicles would proceed toward areas out of harm’s way, presumably to the
urbanized areas to the east, south, and west.

6812-01

D U D E K 27 January 2011

192



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

o If the typical average of up to 10 people were on site, evacuation is estimated to require
up to 15 minutes.

o If the maximum estimated 70 people were on site (during a college or other school tour
of the facility) and were to be evacuated, it is estimated that evacuation may require up
to 45 minutes.

3.2 Temporary Shelter-in-Place

If evacuation from the site to an off-site area away from wildfire threat is not an option due to
lack of adequate time, as determined by trained staff or law/fire authorities, staff will implement
the last-resort, temporary shelter-in-place alternative.

As detailed in this FPP, the project features, including ignition resistant structures, site-specific
fuel modification zones and enhanced, recommended protection including emergency landscape
irrigation system, enhanced, ignition-resistant construction retrofits, interior sprinklers, and
infrastructure improvements is designed to provide safe areas for sheltering during a wildfire.

To avoid the possibility that visitors ignore shelter-in-place orders, the Coastal Treatment Plant
should institute the following protocol for all visitors to the site as a means to enforce shelter-in-
place when it is designated the safest alternative:

¢ Educational material will be available to visitors regarding the shelter-in-place
capabilities of the Coastal Treatment Plant and the strict requirement that they follow
directions in the event of an emergency.

¢ In a wildfire emergency requiring temporary shelter-in-place, staff will position at the
access way on the plant side of the Aliso Creek bridge and proactively direct individuals
attempting to leave to the Administrative Building.

The Administration Building has capacity to shelter the estimated 70 maximum staff and
visitors, based on worst-case calculations. However, it is advised that group tours are minimized
during the months of October through December to reduce the likelihood that a large wildfire
threatens the area when a large number of visitors are present.

Although the preferred shelter-in-place facility is the Administration Building, almost any of the
site’s structures could be utilized for a temporary shelter during a wildfire, considering that a
wildfire would typically burn around the facility within a 30-minute or faster timeframe,

Additional amenities that may improve communication and sheltering staff/visitors ability to
stay informed and calm include:

6812-01

D U D E K 28 January 2011

193



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

e Large-panel television monitor so those that are interested may track newscasts during a
wildfire event

e Satellite internet connection

» Large computer monitors and capable computers for tracking fire incident status
¢ Several computer terminals available for communicating via e-mail

¢ Second utility source or U.L.-rated diesel generator for emergency load

o Emergency preparedness supplies.

6812-01

D U D E K 20 January 2011
194



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

6812-01

DUDEK 30 January 2011
195



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR COASTAL TREATMENT PLANT

The following recommendations are the direct result of the Coastal Treatment Plant fire safety
assessment conducted for this project and described in this FPP. The recommendations are
inclusive of a comprehensive list of measures, equipment, technology and protocols that would
improve overall site safety and reduce fire related risk.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. Provide Appendix C (or a modified version) to the OCFA in hard and digital copies. This
will augment existing pre-plans and provide for more informed response to the site.

2. Capital Improvement Projects call for a renovation of some buildings, including the
Administration Building in 2024, It is recommended that specific retrofits be provided as
soon as possible including:

a. Provide interior fire sprinklers for the Administration Building. Automatic
interior fire sprinklers will provide life safety improvements, especially
considering the Administration Buildings dual role as the on-site fire shelter.

b. Replace wire mesh behind open louver/vent openings on all structures. Utilize
0.125 inch wire mesh to minimize the likelihood of ember penetration.

c. Replace roof vents on Administration Building with BrandGuard type vents that
minimize the possibility of ember penetration.

d. Replace cyclone vents on Administration and other buildings or ensure only one-
way travel to avoid sucking embers into interior spaces.

€. Replace windows with dual pane, one pane insulated, especially on wildland
exposed sides of Administrative Building.

3. Improve fuel modification areas by thinning (both in terms of total numbers and crown
densities) shrubs and trees that are within 30 feet of the Administration Building.
Primarily, the area to the north and to a lesser extent, to the east of the Administration
Building should be maintained free of highly flammable fuels to the property line. This
would provide approximately 70 feet of modified fuels, which combined with the upslope
away from the building, would be sufficient for keeping direct heat and flames off the
structure. Currently, shrubs are allowed to grow within 10 feet of the structure.

6812-01

D U D E K 31 January 2011

196



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

4. Provide thinning of trees along Aliso Creek and in the northern and southern portion of
the Plant. Trees should be limbed up to 6 feet (canopy raised) and dead and dying
materials pruned out and removed off site annually, or as necessary.

5. In addition to vegetation treatments north of the Administration Building, move
flammable objects within the building away from the north-facing windows. Provide
metal blinds that can be drawn in the event of a wildfire to prevent radiant heat igniting
interior objects.

6. Consider installing a perimeter water cannon system. These systems can throw a “heavy”
stream of water as a pre-treatment or fire suppression tool in an emergency situation and
provide an effective moistened barrier to fire spread. The most effective and advanced
symptoms utilize a fire retardant system that coats perimeter vegetation with a gel-form
fire retardant that will not burn and can be easily washed off vegetation at a later date to
avoid plant chemical burns. This system can be designed to use available reclaimed water
or an off-the-shelf, self-contained system can be purchased.

7. Widen and re-pave secondary ingress/egress through Aliso Creek Golf Course property
and provide a fuel buffer along both sides of the road. This should be a priority once
redevelopment of the Golf Course property occurs. SOCWA has already discussed this
with the developer of a resort at the site.

8. Explore possibility of maintaining road east of Aliso Creek through Aliso Canyon as a
permanent access/emergency egress option. This would require environmental studies, so
may be infeasible.

9. Provide employee first aid training specifically related to initial burn treatment. The
treatment plant’s remote location could result in delayed response, especially if local
engines/paramedics are fighting a large wildland fire.

10. Provide filtration breathing masks (such as the 3M full face respirator or similar) for use
during potential shelter in place. Filters should remove airborne smoke.

11. Improve emergency communications so Treatment Plant staff is notified when an
emergency occurs or can notify authorities of an emergency quickly if needed. Among
potential technology that could be used are:

a. Satellite/wireless link for internet and telephone service for emergency
communications.

6812-01

D u D E K 32 January 2011
197



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

b. Consider undergrounding telephone line when it can be completed in tandem with
other infrastructure/utility projects to improve existing, unreliable service and
minimize likelihood of interruption of service in an emergency.

c. Another option being considered is the installation of fiber optic cable coinciding
with pipeline maintenance/replacement. Utility upgrades may require waiting
until neighboring Aliso Creek Golf Course redevelopment occurs and a
cooperating agreement can be in place.

12. Implement annual fire safety training drill with OCFA coordination/supervision.

13. Lobby the Park to patrol more diligently along the access roadway as a deterrent to
illegal/unauthorized uses, especially considering the use of the paved area outside the
SOCWA gate as a party area by local teenagers. Cigarette smoking or other activities
could result in vegetation fire.

14. Hot work (welding, grinding, plasma cutting, torches, etc.) should not be conducted on
Red Flag Warning or Watch days, as declared by the National Weather Service for the
Orange County area. History indicates that the majority of large fires occur during Red
Flag weather. These days usually occur in the late summer and fall and the project area
may be under Red Flag Conditions for 15 days per year, on average.

a. Hot work outside of Red Flag weather conditions should include precautions to
minimize chance of vegetation ignition.

b. Fire suppression equipment (at minimum a shovel and fire extinguisher) should
be immediately available at hot work sites.

15. A red flag or sign indicating Red Flag weather conditions should be posted at the site’s
entrance as a reminder to staff, contractors, and visitors that restrictions on activities are
required to reduce the potential for vegetation fire.

16. Contractors should be educated and sign a form indicating they understand the
importance of fire safety at the site and along the site’s access road(s). Contractors are
responsible for avoiding equipment-related or other ignition sources along the access
roads and on site. Require contractors to carry fire suppression equipment (extinguisher
and shovel, at minimum) in their vehicles.

6812-01

D U D E K 33 January 2011
198



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

17. Fire extinguishers and/or water pump backpacks should be located and visible in
strategic locations throughout the site in case needed to suppress a small vegetation or
equipment ignition.

18. Smoking should be prohibited throughout the site, except in 1 or 2 designated areas.
The designated areas should be away from vegetation and provided fire proof cigarette
butt receptacles.

19. The typical site population is small and manageable. Site tours result in groups up to 70
people who may be unfamiliar with the area and would require significant time to
evacuate. To minimize the effect tours have on fire safety, it is recommended that:

a.

DUDEK

Tours are not allowed to occur on Red Flag Warning or Red Flag Watch Days, as
designated by the National Weather Service.

Tours that occur during the summer and fall should be required to use small
passenger vans or shuttles to reduce the number of vehicles entering the canyon.

Vehicles should be lead in to the project by staff in a convoy. A staff person
should also lead the convoy out of the canyon at the end of the tour.

6812-01
34 January 2011

199



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

5.0 CONCLUSION

This FPP is submitted in support of fire safety and risk reduction at SOCWA’s Coastal
Treatment Plan in Aliso Canyon. The facility performs an important function that is imperative
that interruptions are minimal, even during a fire event.

The recommendations outlined in this FPP have been designed specifically for the Coastal
Treatment Plan and its adjacency to the Aliso Canyon wildland fuels. The plant’s fire safety
system includes a variety of measures to reduce risk of structure ignition, and to aid in early
evacuation for staff. Additionally, the site includes the ability to temporarily shelter staff on site
during wildfire (and other emergencies including floods).

Ultimately, it is the intent of this FPP to guide, through site-specific recommendations, measures
that improve site safety while also improving the site’s defensibility from wildfire and, in turn,
do not represent significant threat of ignition source for the adjacent native habitat. It must be
noted that during extreme fire conditions, there are no guarantees that a given structure will not
burn. Precautions and mitigating actions identified in this report are designed to reduce the
likelihood that fire would impinge upon the proposed structures. There are no guarantees that
fire will not occur in the area or that fire will not damage property or cause harm to persons or
their property. Implementation of the required enhanced construction features provided by the
applicable codes and the mitigating vegetation management requirements provided in this FPP
will accomplish the goal of this FPP to assist firefighters in their efforts to defend these
structures and reduce the risk associated with this project’'s WUI location.

6812-01

D u D E K 35 January 2011
200



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

6812-01

D U D E K 36 January 2011
201



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

6.0 LIST OF PREPARERS
Project Manager:

Michael Huff
Fire Protection Planner/Certified Forester
Dudek

GIS Analysis, Fire Behavior Modeling and Mapping:

Scott Eckardt
Registered Professional Forester
Dudek

6812-01

DUDEK a7 January 2011
202



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

6812-01
DUDEK w

January 2011

203



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

7.0 REFERENCES

Anderson, Hal E. 1982. Aids to Determining Fuel Models for Estimating Fire Behavior. USDA
Forest Service Gen. Tech. Report INT-122. Intermountain Forest and Range Experiment
Station, Ogden, UT. Accessed at: http://www.fs.fed. us/rm/pubs_int/int_gtr122.pdf.

Andrews, Patricia L.; Collin D. Bevins; and Robert C. Seli. 2004. BehavePlus fire modeling
system, version 3.0: User's Guide. Gen. Tech. Rep, RMRS-GTR-106 Ogden, UT:
Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station. 132p.

Chula Vista, City of. 2008. Fire Department Web Site. Accessed at:
http://www.chulavistaca.gov/City_Services/Public_Safety/Fire Department/About_CVF
D/annual incidents.asp.

CVFD (Chula Vista Fire Department). 2010, Personal communication. June 22.

Finney, M.A. 1998. FARSITE: fire area simulation model development and evaluation Research
Paper RMRS-4. USDA Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station, Fort Collins,
CO.

Fire and Resource Assessment Program (FRAP) 2010. California Department of Forestry and
Fire Protection. http://frap.cdf.ca.gov/

FireFamily Plus. 2008. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain
Research Station. 124 p.

Keeley, J.E. 2005. Fire history of the San Francisco East Bay region and implications for
landscape patterns. International Journal of Wildland Fire 14:285-296. Accessed at:
http://www.werc.usgs.gov/seki/pdfs/K2005 East%20Bay%20Fire%20History IJWF.pdf

Minnich, R.A. 1983. Fire mosaics in southern California and northern Baja California. Science.
219:1287-1294,

Minnich, R.A. 1987. Fire behavior in southern California chaparral before fire control: the
Mount Wilson burns at the turn of the century. Annals of the Association of American
Geographers. 77(4): 599-618.

Minnich, R.A. and Y.H. Chou. 1997. Wildland fire patch dynamics in the chaparral of southern
California and northern Baja California. International Journal of Wildland Fire. 7(3): 221-
248.

6812-01

D U D E K 39 January 2011
204



South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Fire Protection Plan

Moritz, M.A. 2003. Spatiotemporal analysis of controls on shrubland fire regimes: age
dependency and fire hazard. Ecology. 84(2):351-361. Accessed at:
http://nature.berkeley.edu/moritzlab/docs/Moritz 2003 Ecology.pdf.

Moritz, M.A., J.E. Keeley, E.A. Johnson, and A.A. Schaffner. 2004. Testing a basic assumption
of shrubland fire management: How important is fuel age? Frontiers in Ecology and the
Environment 2:65-70. Accessed at: http://www.werc.usgs.gov/seki/pdfs/Link4106.pdf.

PBS&J. 2010. Lake Pointe On-Site Fire Service Study. April 2.
Remote Automated Weather Stations (RAWS). 2010. Accessed at: http://www.fs.fed.us/raws/.

Rothermel, Richard C. 1983. How to Predict the Spread and Intensity of Forest and Range Fires.
USDA Forest Service Gen. Tech. Report INT-143. Intermountain Forest and Range
Experiment, Ogden, UT. Accessed at: http://www.treesearch.fs.fed.us/pubs/24635.

Scott, Joe H. and Robert E. Burgan. 2005. Standard Fire Behavior Fuel Models: A
Comprehensive Set for Use with Rothermel’s Surface Fire Spread Model. Gen. Tech.
Rep. RMRS-GTR-153. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service,
Rocky Mountain Research Station. 72 p.

Shroeder, M.J. and C.C. Buck. 1970. Fire weather — A guide for application of meteorological
information to forest fire control operation. USDA Forest Service Agricultural Handbook
36D.

Weise, D.R. and J. Regelbrugge. 1997. Recent chaparral fuel modeling efforts. Prescribed Fire
and Effects Research Unit, Riverside Fire Laboratory, Pacific Southwest Research
Station. 5p.

Wright, H.E. and M.L. Heinselman. 1973, The ecological role of fire in natural conifer forests of
western and northern North America; Introduction. Quaternary Research 3:317-328.

6812-01

D U D E K 40 January 2011

205



APPENDIX A
Photograph Log




207



"8]IS 1UB|d JUSW}eal] [BISR0T) 8y} UO SaINjonIls "S{en} OAlleU pue
SNOLIEA pue sadojs Je 1sam ey} 0} MBIA b sedojs deajs Juede(pe e 1semyinos ay] o] MaIA g

Jueld Juawjeal] [e1seo)

"sodojs ‘sadojs psjeulwop uohejelbea sajeu Jusoelpe
des)s pue yue) ebie| e jSeayinos ey} 0} MALA 2 1e Buipjing uonessiujwpe WoJj 1Se8 8y}l 0] MBIA 'L

¥

601 ydeibojoyd
Aioyiny Jeremaisep Ajuno) abuelp yinos

208



‘Buidesspure)
‘Sjuen PUE UOJONJISUOD J0UBIXD (286 | Ul Pa1ONIISU0D)
duis seaee Jopun Buipjing uoieJISIUILIPE JO MBIA 8 Buipjing uonesnsiulwpe je ises ay} ol MaIp "/

N
“

‘UOAUBD SPOOAA PUR OSI|y OJuI "sodo|s paIsAo) |an; Jue)sip
Buipjing uoiesisIuILPE WOy YUOU Y} 0] MBIA °9 pue saliljioe} 41D e 1semyuou syl 01 MaIA "G

ho ydeiboloyd
lue|d Juawjeal] [elseo) — Ajuoyiny Jejemalsepy Ajuno) abuei yinosg

209



‘Buipling au 10 198 O UIUIM 8J. Sjany Jajresy
pue adojs desjs siy] “Buip|ing uoneASIUIWpPE ‘/96| Ul pOIoNJISuoo
8y} Juaoelpe ISEayLIoU/1SB 8U} 0] MaIA “Zi ‘Buipjing [suuO0SIod 1eMOT 8L} JO MBIA ||

"odojs ||ews e uo Buipjing aAeisIUIWpPE
aU] Jo 1sam sy} 0} Juedaal Jo MaIA 01

o ydesbojoyd
Jue|d Juswieal] [eiseo) — Alloyiny Jajemalsepp Alunon abuelp yinos

210



"SISANO| By} pulyaq pedeld S| ysew aam youl 2/, "uonelabon aaljeu
"Bup|ing 10mojq UOIIBIE Ul JUSA |[eMm JO MBIA 9L -uou Juadelpe pue Jomojq Ucielor sy} Jo MBIA ‘G|

‘Buip|ing uoneAsiuIWpe 0} Aywixosd
pue yolp Buofe sjeny s1oN -Buipjing uorensiuiwpe
8} JO YLOU By} O] YOUP-A 1B }SBS 8U} O} MOIA €1

[ ] 4

"BOJE paJes|o pue s|an} aAleu Je Aepunoq
Auedouid wie)see Buofe yuou syl 01 MaIA ‘bi

601 ydeibojoyd
jue|d juswjeal] [eiseo) — Alioyiny Jajemalsepy Alunon abuel ynos

211



*sedojsdn
des)s pue sjen} aAljeu Juade(pe Je els ayl *2iNnlons sqIsSNAIO-uou Ajfeniia
JO pus Wwayuou ayj e 1sesypuou sy} o} MaIA 02 € S| Yolym Buipjing sxyiompeaH auj Jo MSIA "6l

"(slusa/smopuim/sioop) sbuiuado jem "ays Jueld ey Jo uoiuod [enusD-Ises
pue Bulp|ing Jamo|g ainssald MOT 8yl JO MBIA 81 8yl ul ainjonuselul Ajjioe) Juswieall Jo MaIA /L

601 ydeibojoyd
Jueld Juswjeal] jeiseo) — Ajioyiny Jajemalsep\ Ajuno) abuelp yinos

212



"Weeln) os|y Ul ssveds
8]0 pue opun.ie 8loN ")osal) osljy Jusdelpe "weld ayj jo uoplod uisypou sy} ul ease unj eyl
BaJe pales|o Je 1SeMULIoUASeM BU) O MBIA b2 Ul S99/} [e]USWIEBLLIO B }SOMUUOU By} 0] MBIA €2

“Jue|d syt Jo uojuod uwis)seayLIOU Je) 8y Ul
Pa)ed0| $831) [BJUSWELLIO [B ULOoU 8y} Ol MBIA 22 [BIUSLIBLIO pUB YU} apLoJYD duled e eyis Josloid
, 8y} JO pus weyuou ay} Je YyuUou eyl 01 MeIA "2

6o ydeshoroyd

Jue|d Juswieal] [eiseo) — AjLioyiny Jajemalsep Alunos ebuelp yinos

213



‘uojelebep
jealD o} Auunxosd sy pue ainjoniis uolels dwng ‘[eAOWIS] IO} POPUSLULIOISI S) YIYm ‘POOM
abeureiq syj psemo} }semLINos oy} 0} MaIA 82 paJols pue 1no pue juejd-ao] 1B 1SBS 8y} 0) MBIA /2

‘uIyum uonelabsa -ouijadid Jo abeio)s
susp pue )as8.1) OSI|y 1€ 1SOM U] 0] MAIA 92 10} pasN si pue paiesjo useq sey ease sy ued
8] JO J3UIOD }SSMYLIOU BU} Ul YUOU Sy} O} MAIA G2

o ydeibojoyd
jue|d Juswieai] [eiseo) — Alloyiny Jajemajsepy Alunog abuelp yinos

214



eys
*"90u8j apIsIno Isnl saau) (snydAjeons) fejuswreulo U0 pue }asid wolj (|ony) uonelafiaA pue Arepunoq
pue Aiepunoq juejd Buofe Yyinos oy} 0] MaIp "2e uis)sam s jueid Buoje Yinos ay) o} Maip " LE
"a)s Juejd 8y} uo sjecaed "}a91D) 0S|y jusdelpe pue Arepunoq

pawwun pue edonA Jueydsise Jo MaIA ‘0F Jueld pJemol 1SeMLINOS/ISSM 8Y) 0} MIIA 62

601 ydeiboiloyd
jue|d Juswjeal] [elseo) — Alioyiny Jajemalsep Ajunon abueip yinos

215



"selIoe} "“oaiD) os||y Jeao ebpuq pue
Jueid 0} aso|o Aian snidAjeone abie| Jo malp "9E peol ssa00e uejd Juawieal) 1 1Som L] 0] MBIA "GE

-aub| o} SejqeLWWEY T peAoWwsl
PUE Ul S18qwa moje ued sioop usedp “jueld 8q pinoys 1eyl poom 1no ajoN -ueld Juswiesi) sy}
J0 uojliod [ejued-isem Ul 8INONIIS JO MBIA “HE J0 uoipod [eJjuad-Jsem Ul JURIPAY 811 JO MBIA “£6

*

6o ydeihojoyd
Jue|d Juswjeal] jeiseo) — Ajoyiny 1ajemaisep\ Ajunon abueip yinos

216



ued
*S19AN0| 8y} puiyeq aoe|d Ul S1 YSaw slIpA 8y} Jo uoipod [enusd-ynos awaxe ey} ul Buiping
"Buipjing Jojessuar) ui Buusdo JusA Jo MBIA 'OF l0]elausr) 8y} pJemo} }Seallnos ayl oL MeIA "6E

‘erd Juswiess) ey} Jo uoipod UIBISOMUINOS weld uswieal; ey} jo uoipod
SLUAIIXS WIOI) ISOMUINOS BY] O] MBIA '8 LISISBMLIINOS Btlallxa ay] Je 1Sem 8U} 0} MaIA /€

—

o ydeiboroyd
Juejd 1uswijeal] [eiseo) — Ajioyiny Jajemalsep\ Aljunon abueip yinos

217



ued ay) jo uonlod uisyseayinos
*Arepunoq uejd Juswies) peous) 8y} u| Jionasey abie ay) wouy Buipjing
pue sedojsdn jusoe(pe e 1sSeayHou 8yl 0] MBIA ‘P UOJleJISIUIWPY PIEMO] JSOMUUCU BU} 0} MBIA "EF

‘uoljeoo] eyis 10eloid waynos “yuey adA] Jnepucs e siyue
1e uone}abion eAlleU-UOU B 1SOM BU] O] MBIA "2 "Buipiing Jojelausy) Jesu yue] [8S8I(] jO MSIA 'Lb

-2

Al

v
BEL

6o ydesboroyd
lue|d Juswieal] |eiseo) — Ajioyiny 1ajemalsep Alunos abueiQ yinos

218



‘uonejebon
palaauod pue sedojsdn je uonesoj weid
LIBISBaLINOS SLUBIIXS WOJ) YUOU 8y} 0} MAIA “/{

e

"uoneleban [elusweuLIO Juslelpe pue "uolieoo] Jued uisjseayinos awedixe Ul syueysedid
JIoAIBS8) 8bi1e] premo] 1SemyLnos auy) 0} MOIA "9f paiols pue sadojsdn e iSeaylou 8y] 0} MBIA "G

6o ydeisboloyd
jueld juswieal] |eiseod — Ajioyiny Jajemalsep\ Ajuno) abuelQ ynos

219



"91N0J uoienoeAe AIBpUCDaS B SI SIY| U]

"Butping
Y9810 0SI|y premo} Aempec. SSa00k JO MBIA LS UCIeASIUILLPY PIEMO] 1SBMULIOU B} 0} MBIA 0S5

*818ANn0| 8y} puiyaq aoejd u
S| ysaw alipp “pue|p|im o) pesodxe ale jey Buipping
ob.10}S 9|01YaA Bl Ul SIBANO] JUSA J& MBIA "8

‘ued sy} jo uoiuod
ulsyinos sy} uj Jionsasel ebise| oy} Jo MaIA "6

=
—
e
|
—

AL 4 4

o1 ydeisbojoyd
lue|d Juswieal] |eiseo) — AlLioyiny Jajemalsep, Ajunog abueio yinos

220



‘uofue) osijy "uoAuBr) SPOOAA pue OSI|Y
UIyM peoy Bwmy Buofe yUou sy} o} MIA “GG

UILIM PeOY BLIMY BUOJe yuou Byl 0} MAIA #G

"Jueid sy} 0] ajnoJ ssaiba pue ssaibul Arewnud ay) "Uu| yea1n oSy
SIsiyj "peoy ewmy Buole yuou au] 0l MBIA €5 piemo) peoy ewmy Buole }sem ey} 0] meIA 25

Jue|d Juswjeal] [e1seo’)

6o ydesbojoyd
Alioyiny Jajemalsepy flunon abuel Yyinos

221



"uoAueD OSI|y UM PEOY BLUMY Buole malp "6 "uoAuBD 0S|Iy UIYIM UORD0| a1ed 1B MaIA '8S

"ucAue) osl|y uiypm peoy BwMmy Buoje meiA “/S ‘UOAUED) OSIlY UIUIM PEOY BluMy Buoje malp '9G

601 ydeibojoyd
jue|d luswieal] |eiseo) — Aluoyiny Jaremalsepy Ajunon abuelp yinosg

222



"$S900R
Arewid ay) si pue Aemyied eIoI|y 0} S108UUOD
UOIUM peOY BLUMY/ABM SSOIIB JO MOIA ‘29

‘Juswipedap e. 10} $58998 A3y Xouy "JUBld JUSWIBSI] [BISBOY) PUR %8817) OSI|Y
Buipnjour a1e6 s1EWOINE JOJ JSY0IUOD 10 MBIA 19 0} SS800R 10} UO|JE20| 81el JIEWOINE 1B MAIA 09

6o ydesboloyd
lue|d juauneal] |eiseod — Alioyiny Jajemalsep Alunos abueip yinosg

223



APPENDIX B

Coastal Treatment Plant
Emergency Fire Safety Plan




225



APPENDIX C
Fire History Exhibit




227



SOCw
COASTAL TREA




MEMO
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jack Bebee, Assistant General Manager ,\]RB
DATE: June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Coating Inspection Services — 8 MG, Sandia, and 2.8 MG Reservoirs

Purpose

To present for Board approval a professional services contract with MCS Inspection Group
for coating inspection for the 8 MG, Sandia, and 2.8 MG Reservoir Recoating projects.

Summary

The District has developed a 10-year program to recoat the steel reservoirs. The District has
completed coating of five of the nine reservoirs. There are three remaining to recoat and one
smaller reservoir (Bucknell) that will be removed from service.

The District prepared a Request for Proposals (RFP) for coating inspection services to
ensure the coating is applied properly for the remaining coating projects. District staff does
not have the required expertise to provide full coating inspection services, but can provide
general oversight. In order to supplement District staff, staff prepared an RFP to procure
specialized coating inspection services. The District issued the RFP to four coating
inspection firms and advertised for services on the District's website for firms with experience
in the area. The District only received one proposal from MCS Inspection Group.

Staff reviewed the proposal and MCS Inspection Group has previously performed this service
for the District satisfactorily and has competitive rates for inspection staff. Based on their
daily rate and estimated inspection needs, the overall cost for inspection services is $85,652
for the inspection services for the remaining projects. One hundred seventy thousand dollars
($170,000) was budgeted for these projects in the FY 2017-18 through FY 2020-2021,
including District staff time doing construction management for these projects.

Recommended Action
That the Board authorize execution of a professional services contract between the District
and MCS Inspection Group for the approved budgeted coating inspection for the 8 MG,

Sandia, and 2.8 MG Reservoirs for coating inspection services at a cost not to exceed
$86,000.

229



MEMO

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Marcie Eilers, Administrative Services Manager/Treasurer *
DATE: June 26, 2017
SUBJECT: 2017-18 Final Budget
Resolution No. 4913

Purpose

To approve budgeted expenses for Water, Wastewater and Recycled Operating funds
and Capital funds and to approve Water, Wastewater, and Recycled Debt Service
expenses. Rates and charges will be set after the completion of the Raftelis Cost of
Services Study and will become effective January 1, 2018.

Summary
The Final Budget FY 2017-18 covers the District's operational activities.

The District is divided into three operating departments: Water, Wastewater, and
Recycled. The departments are then further divided into functional programs. Each
functional program is an accumulation of functional-related jobs. As an example, meter
reading is a job that is within the Customer Service Program in the Water Department.
By job costing, the District is able to identify its workload and effectiveness levels.

The Final Budget also incorporates the Capital Budget for Water, Wastewater,
Recycled, and Administration with detail for the budget projects and projections for the
five out-years as well.

Calendar year 2018 rates will be updated and changed effective January 1, 2018, and
will be presented in a Board Workshop to be held in November 2017.

Additionally, the Debt Service Budget is presented which designates all payments to be
made on District debt as well as the funding sources for those payments.

Recommended Action

That the Board adopt Resolution No. 4913 adopting the final budget for fiscal year
2017-18.

230



L

Fallbrook Public
Utility District

__Operating & Capital Budget
Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Adopted by the Board of Directors on June 26, 2017




TABLE OF CONTENTS

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT.......ccccoervusimneesrerenressncscssessscnsssssesesssstncssesssssessesssns 3
BUDGET PROCESS AND SUMMARY ......ccoovmieirieeieareresrsssenrsessessssssssssssssesesasssesssasssssessssssssans 4
OPERATING BUDGET GOALS AND OBJECTIVES ........coceeriietreeeeeeeeeeeenseseessesssesessessssssesans 5
CAPITAL ASSET MANAGEMENT ........ooorrerietrnrnsnsressesssssnsessesssssesssssssessasssmssessssssnssossassons 7
BUDGET SCHEDULES ...........coriteesaernineenstsnisasrsssssstonsssssssssesenssessssssssesssssssssssssssssssessemmesenseses 8
e Budget Trend Overview (SChedUIE A) .......couceeeriereeerereerecsist e eeeeeeereessessesssessessssesssnens 9
» Budget Breakdown by Revenue and Expense Category (Schedule B).........ccvenveeruemnenee.. 10
o Operations Budget by Enterprise Fund (Schedule C)........ccooovvveoiereeomeeeereeeeeereeeseneeenn. 11
e Capital Asset Management Budget (SChedule D) .......c.oceeeeercmveveernuerneeneerseeeresessssessesessens 12
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ......couvicemererrinineemsaarssssssnssesssesssssssssssssesssnssensssssssssssansene 13
8 LADOT COBES cuvnincuiniiisierii ettt et st ens s e e se et s s s sas e s st et cen s eeneseeeasan et esnaneees 14

e Amortization Schedules

O DD SEIVICE.....ovirieiririeeeeeetees e eeese s e eeeeeaesaresbeesneesseesnsssssesnssosessesesseseesessesans 15
O CAIPERS ..o iotttiieeeeee e eestees et eesaeesenaeesaneessonsesan s seee e s et e et e e ee e e e eee et e et e e 16
®  AUhOTIZEA PETSOMHIEL.......ccueiieiieiecreeceersieeeeeeeeeeseeeeaeseseeseeseesssessesssessessreeesseeesessesee e e s s 17

232



FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Fallbrook Public Utility District (FPUD) operates as a public agency under the Public Utility
District Act of the State of California. The District was incorporated as a political subdivision of
the State of California in 1922. Significant expansions of the District area took place in 1950
and in 1958. In 1990, the voters in the De Luz Heights Municipal Water District, whose service
area joins Fallbrook to the northwest, chose to dissolve their 17-year old district and its entire
service area was annexed to FPUD.

Then in 1994, FPUD'S scope of operations grew one more time when the Fallbrook Sanitary
District was dissolved and FPUD took over sewer collection and treatment service
responsibilities of downtown Fallbrook.

Today, the District provides imported water and sewer service to 35,000 residents living in 44
square miles in Fallbrook and De Luz.

233



BUDGET PROCESS AND SUMMARY

The final budget for Fiscal Year 2017-18 is submitted herewith. The budget breaks operating
activities into three separate operating funds: Water, Wastewater, and Recycled Water, Separate
Capital and Debt Service funds have also been established in both water and wastewater
divisions.

The budget reflects the FPUD Board's commitment to serving customers throughout the
Fallbrook Public Utility District economically and efficiently during the next year as well as
long-term planning to provide for current and future customers' needs for reliable, cost effective
water and sewer service. The budget was prepared by:

1) Analyzing past performance;

2) Conducting a comprehensive study of the service level requirements for the upcoming
year;

3) Considering the long-term program of capital equipment replacement and system
improvements;

4) Developing alternative water supply sources; and

5) Board review of the preliminary budget submitted in May/June

The total budget of $38,908,732 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, contains $26,576,304
in Operating expenses, $8,395,283 in Capital expenditures, and $3,937,145 in Debt Service
expenses. The operating department budgets for Water, Wastewater, and Recycled Water are
prepared with job level detail and incorporate workload measurements as they relate to goals and
objectives. Funding is provided for 68 staff positions, unchanged from FY 16-17.

4 " =
chemicals 2 oity/Property vehicle Outside
emicals | .
FICA/Social Security 1% nst;;’nce Malnten:nclell;zms and
and Workers Comp / ue
1% P Other Expenses 6%

CalPERS {Side Fund
Payoff and PARS
Constribution)
2%

CaLPERS (District
Contribution, UL
Payment)

3% Direct

CIP Expense
18%

234



OPERATING BUDGET GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Operating Budget Goals and Objectives for 2017-2018 are segregated into components as shown
below:

Water Operations
Goal

Provide reliable water that meets or exceeds all regulatory requirements while reducing water
use and waste.

Objectives

Maintain zero water system regulatory compliance violations.
Complete replacement of District AMR meters with AMI meters in Fallbrook Service
Area to allow real time monitoring of water use by customers by end of FY 2019/20.

¢ Complete exercising of all valves on a three year cycle and replace inoperable valves to
reduce water loss and service interruptions during leaks.

¢ Begin to track and reduce unplanned service interruptions.

Wastewater Operations

Goal

Optimize wastewater collections and treatment.

Obijectives
Reduce power and chemical use by 10% by optimizing operation.
Achieve zero NPDES and WDR permit compliance violations.

Continue CCTV, flushing programs, pipe replacements and relining to achieve less than 2
Sanitary Spill Overflow Events per 100 miles of collections piping annually.

Recycled Water Operations

Goal

Produce reliable recycled water supplies for the community.
Objectives

¢ Achieve zero regulatory compliance violations.
e Maintain 100% recycled water operations without potable water augmentation.

235



Operations and Engineering
Planning, Engineering and Capital Program

Goal

Develop a diverse water supply portfolio by maximizing available local water resources.
Implement a long-term sustainable infrastructure replacement program to ensure reliability of the
District's assets.

Objectives

* Double existing recycled water sales to a total of 1200 AFY by 2020.
Complete the Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use project to begin delivery of an average of
3,100 AFY of local water by 2020.

¢ Complete capital projects in accordance with 10-year capital budget. Increase utilization
of District construction resources on proactive capital replacements versus repairs.

o Complete comprehensive update to Asset Management Plan by end of FY 2017-18.

236



CAPITAL ASSET MANAGEMENT

The District has implemented a capital program to improve the overall reliability of the water,
wastewater and recycled systems. The most significant on-going component of the capital
program is replacement of aging infrastructure. In additional to rehabilitation, the construction
of the $45 million Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project in Fiscal years 18/19 and 19/20 will
be the most significant single project for the next 15-20 years and will provide a long-term cost
effective local water supply. A summary of key capital projects in FY17/18 are summarized
below.

Water Capital Projects

The District will continue the reservoir coating projects to ensure reliable water storage facilities
and will complete coating of the 8 MG reservoir in Deluz. District construction staff will
continue with valve replacement projects to reduce outage impacts of breaks and failures. The
District implemented an escalating capital improvement charge to ensure the District is meeting
pipeline infrastructure replacement needs due to the growing age of the District’s infrastructure
and two pipeline replacement projects will be bid out. The two major pipeline projects for FY
18/19 include replacing 4,500 If of deteriorated 6” piping along Pheasant Run Rd. in the southern
section of our service area and replacing 1,700 If of 24” piping that runs under I-15 and provides
the backbone of our water service.

The completion of the water rights permitting, completion of the settlement agreement with
Camp Pendleton and advertising for construction are anticipated to be completed for the Santa
Margarita Conjunctive Use Project. Funding for construction will also be secured in FY 17/18 as
construction of the Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use project is planned to begin in FY 18/19.

Electrical Gear at Harris Pump Station that has reached the end of its useful life will be replaced
and Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs) will be added to reduce power use.

In accordance with the Meter Replacement Program Budget, the District will complete the third
year of a five year program to replace existing Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) meters with
Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) meters to provide for real time data collection and
alerts.

Wastewater Capital Projects

As part of the long-term sewer system replacement plan, construction of an awarded project will
be completed to replace the sewer piping that has capacity and condition concerns in Brandon
and Alvarado.

At the Water Reclamation Plant, older equipment and facilities that was not included in the plant
rehabilitation project will be repaired or replaced. Design of rehabilitation of the Overland Trail
Lift Station will be completed.

On the outfall line, replacements of drain and air/vacuum valves and appurtenances on the outfail
that are no longer functioning and require replacement will be completed.

7

237



BUDGET SCHEDULES

238



Schedule A

S9SBUDIN Me1ei m

sasuedxy sdO 8IPAA ANd4m
sesuedx] sdO Jeeamensaps,

sesuedxy sdo papAser m

BNUSASYH 1N E

2L-LIDE

L -EinE

BrG9L08

SL¥iLoZ

FLLOE

€L-ZL0Z

b=k LOE

LL-0LOZ

000'000'S

000'c00'0L

000000 S

sEpg

000'000'0Z

00D'000'SE

SNUIADY 13N SA sasuadxg Bupeldado

€.v'696'} Z0Z'68L (9eL've)  vzo'zez Zri'60L Zrs‘eso zév'sv6 0Z¢'€eS

V0€'9/G'9¢ 96.1'85v'0C 66C ¥18',Z 6LV 0LELZ SS0'92L'9Z ©66°012%Z 905°016'.2 0626622
G8S'vZ0°L  906'GB0°L  200°.86 906'220°L 901290l 681698 26570. 88G°ZG8

S00'€l6'y  SPb'e6L'S €SL'OLG'S €0L'662'S ZBE'068'y 6Z'ZES'Y VIL'Z8ZY  OLL'VOV'p
0ES'E8Y'9  82Z'61S'0  IPG'TGL'G  16S2'0/0'0 Z16'98L'S  IEE'SI9'S  6V6'ZZS'S  28/'709'C
P8L'GFO'YL  L12'090°CL €09'8GL'SL 6LY'LLE'YL S6Z'OEP'YL €LLVE'ZL LSSO0V'LL SbZ'SZL'ZL
LLI'GYS'8T 866'LPT'.Z €91°0BL'IC Cvv'209'/Z Z6L1€8'9C GEG'668'7Z 866'858°22 0L} 925 CZ
P00'68.'S  6.¢'G08°G  2EB'GEQ'S <69 0GES 98Y'980'C  ZI6926%  16V'ZEh'y  1S0[ZST
Ll€'82S'L 06Z'SLZ'L  €59't00'L  HOV'ces 151'020'L  Zv6'8ce 1G2'06. 0E¥'€06

96E'82C LT 69T'L2T'0Z 8LS'OVLLZ 180'8SZ'LZ $SS'80L'0Z 9/2'ZE0'6L 9SC'9E9'L 629'S60'Ql
81-1102  LI-910Z  91-5L0Z  SI¥LOZ  ¥L-€LOZ  €L-ZLOZ  ZL-LLOZ L-0402
pesodoid pojdopy  paydopy  pejdopy peydopy  paydopy  pejdopy pajdopy

MITAIAQ pPURL] Jo8png

000000 08

anueAay J9N

esuadx3g suopelsdp
asusdxg Jsjepp pojoAoay
asUsdxy Jajema)sepn
asuadx3 Je1epA QNd4d
asuadxg Ajuoyny Jsjepa
esuadxz suoneiadp

ahusaay suonesadp
anuaAay Jelema]sep
8nuaAay Jajepp pejoloay
BNUaASY ISJBAA Biqel0d
anuaaey suonesad

239



Budget Breakdown by Revenue and Expense Category

REVENUES:
Water Sales
Recycled Sales

Operating Revenues:
Water Sales
MWD Readiness to Serve
CWA Infrastructure Access Charge
Meter Service Charges
Wastewater Service Charges
Overuse Penalties
Sundry Other Revenue
CWA Recycled Rebates

Total Operating Revenue

Non Operating Revenues:
Capital Improvement Charge
Property Taxes*
Water Standby/Availability Charge
Water/Wastewater Capacity Charges
Portfolio Interest**
Pumping Charge
Prop 84 & 50 Funds
SRF Lean Proceeds
CSI Rebate
Facility Rents & Other Non Operating
Revenues
Total Non Operating Revenues
*FY 16-17 Opening Balances {did not use
Raftelis figures)
**Portfolio interested as calculated on actual
investments
Total Budgeted Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Operating Expenses:
AF Purchased Potable Water
AF Produced Recycled Water

Purchased Water Expense

MWD Readiness to Serve

CWA Infrastructure Access Charge
Production-Water Quality & Treatment
Distribution
Customer Service
General Administration
Collection, Treatment & Disposal

Total Operating Expenses

Debt Service Expenses:
Red Mountain SRF
WWTP SRF
QECE Solar Debt
CalPERS 15-16 Unfunded Actuarial Liability
Lump Sum
Prefund CalPERS UAL Lump Sum Pymt to
PARS
Total Debt Service Expenses
Net Revenue/(loss) From Operations and
Debt Service
Capital Project Expenses - completed and
ongoing projects

NET REVENUES & EXPENDITURES
Estimated Reserves as of 7/1/17

Estimated Reserves as of 6/30/18

Schedule B

2017-18 2016-2017 201617 Change from
Proposed to % Change from
Proposed Adopted Adopted Proposed to
Budget Budget Projected Budget Adopted
8,673 9,000 8,767 (327) -3.6%
850 740 670 110 14.9%
9,523 9,740 9,437
16,124,308 14,854,447 14,129,434 1,269,861 8.5%
405,267 398,232 506,718 7,035 1.8%
411,331 398,056 396,979 13,275 3.3%
5,348.419 5,338,784 5,431,248 9,635 0.2%
5,787.904 5,804,379 5,518,871 (16,475) -0.3%
0 ¢ 0 0.0%
306.100 306,100 263,126 - 0.0%
162,448 148,000 146,827 14,448 9.8%
28,545,777 27,247,998 26,393,203 1,297,779 4.8%
2,396,200 2,282,000 2,282,860 114,200 5.0%
1,916,938 1,814,077 1,916,939 102,861 57%
203,000 203,000 203,000 - 0.0%
136,914 107,315 212,966 29,599 27.6%
207,356 175,000 213,920 32,356 18.5%
131,840 60,000 30,022 {20,048) -33.4%
o 4] 773,163 . 0.0%
0 0 0 . 0.0%
0 559,450 234,930 (559,450) -100.0%
173,055 185,000 214,616 (11,945 -6.5%
5,165,303 5,385,842 6,091,416 (312,427} -5.8%
33,711,080 32,633,840 32,484,619 985,352 3.0%
9,223
902
10,125
13,228,586 12,263,929 12,102,900 964,657 7.9%
405,267 398,232 398,232 7,035 1.8%
411,331 398,056 398,056 13,275 3.3%
1,388,176 1,270,610 1,083,357 117,566 9.3%
1,896,071 2,047,562 1,443,408 (151,491} -7.4%
1,421,119 1,290,349 1,256,554 130,770 10.1%
5,094,194 5,182,798 4,729,461 (88,604) -1.7%
2,731,560 2,818,664 2,426,680 (87,104) -3.1%
26,576,304 25,670,200 23,838,648 906,104 3.5%
395,893 395,803 395,803 0.0%
1,845,746 1,845,746 1,845,746 0.0%
372,854 349,024 349,024 23,830 6.8%
572,652 466,860 466,860 105,792 22.7%
750,000 0 500,000 750,000 0.0%
3,937,145 3,057,523 3,557,523 879,622 28.8%
3,197,631 3,906,117 5,088,448 (708,486) -20.5%
8,305,283 5,966,926 5,835,507 2,428,357 38.1%
(5,197,652) {2.060,809) (747,059) (3,136,843) 148.1%
11,349,777 14,841,858 14,841,858
6,152,125 12,781,049 14,094,799 (6,628,924) -51.4%
10

240




Operations Budget by Enterprise Fund

REVENUES:
AF Sales

Operating Revenues:
Woater Sales
MWD Readiness to Serve
CWA, Infrastructure Access Charge
Meter Service Charges
Wastewater Service Charges
Overuse Penalties
Sundry Other Revenue
CWA Rebates

Total Operating Revenue

Non Operating Revenues:
Capital Improvement Charge
Property Taxes
Water Standby/Availability Charge
Water/Wastewater Capacity Charges
Portfolio Interest
Pumping Charge
Prop 84 & 50 Funds
SRF Loan Proceeds
CS! Rebate

Facility Rents & Other Non Qperating Revenues

Total Non QOperating Revenues
Total Budgeted Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
AF Purchased Potable and Produced Recycled
Operating Expenses:
Purchased Water Expense
MWD Readiness to Serve
CWA Inifrastructure Access Charge
Production-Water Quality & Treatment
Distribution
Customer Service
General Administration
Collection, Treatment & Disposal
Total Operating Expenses

Debt Service Expenses:
Red Mountain SRF
WWTP SRF
QECB Solar Debt
Prefund CalPERS UAL Lump Sum
Total Debt Service Expenses

Net Revenue/(loss) From Operations and Debt
Service

Capital Project Expenses-compieted and ongoing
projects

NET REVENUES & EXPENDITURES
Estimated Reserves as of 7/1/17

Estimated Reserves as of 6/30/18

Schedule C

Pymt to PARS
CalPERS Unfunded Actuarial Liability Lump Sum Pymt

201718 2017-18 201718 201718
Recycled
Water Ops WW Ops Ops
Proposed Proposed Proposed
Budget Budget Budget Total
8,673 - 850 9,523
14,842,821 1,281,487 16,124,308
405,267 - - 405,267
411,331 411,331
5,268,977 - 79,442 5,348,419
. 5,787,904 . 5,787,904
300,000 1,100 5,000 306,100
- - 162,448 162,448
21,228,396 5,789,004 1,528,377 28,545,777
1,272,836 1,123,364 2,396,200
1,005,488 911,450 - 1,916,938
203,000 - - 203,000
102,779 34,135 - 136,914
103,678 91,237 12,441 207,356
131,840 - - 131,840
0 -
173,065 - - 173,055
2,992,676 2,160,186 12,441 5,165,303
24,221,072 7,949,190 1,540,818 33,711,080
9,223 202 10,125
13,228,586 13,228,586
405,267 - - 405,267
411,331 - . 411,331
732,360 B 655,816 1,388,176
1,782,954 113,117 1,896,071
1,421,119 - - 1,421,118
2,547,097 2,241,445 305,652 5,094,194
0 2,731,560 - 2,731,560
20,528,714 4,973,005 1,074,585 26,576,304
395,883 - - 395,893
- 1,107,448 738,208 1,845,746
- 372,854 - 372,854
375,000 330,000 45,000 750,000
286,281 251,927 34,444 572,652
1,057,174 2,062,229 817,743 3,937,145
2,635,184 913,956 {351,509) 3,197,631
6,268,783 2,061,500 65,000 8,395,283
(3,633,599) {1,147,544) (416,509) | (5,197,652)
5,674,889 4,993,902 680,987 11,349,777
2,041,290 3,846,358 264,477 6,152,125
11

241



Schedule D

LeL'vLZ'Y 0LZ'09%"0¢E p8LziE'9Z £82'G6¢€°9
000'52 000°S0L 000°0¥ L 000°¥SE
000°se 000'0S 000'09 000'08
00008 000°0¢ 000'sS 000'GLL
000'0Z 000‘sZ 000°sg 000°6S1
000'PLL 000°0L1 000'06 000's9
00001 000°01 000'68 000'09
000'001 000°001 - -
000't - 000 000°c
96£'6£Z'L 98L'pZLL SZZT'6.20'L 0051902
000°0S 00005 000°0S 000°0S
000°08 000°08 000'08 000°08
000'051 000°0S1 000051 000°0SZ
86£'656 981 ¥re G22'662 005°189°
S6E'9p8’‘e z0'LzZL'6Z 656°290°6Z €8.'71L6'S
000'vZi 000'v2L 000'FF1 000't¥1
000°02 000'02 00002 00002
000°0S 000°002 000'00V 000'00F
000'0F 000°08 000‘ot 000'601L
000'0S 00005 000°S61 000'0sL
0/9'001 029901 0.9'081 000'v2L
000'02¢ 000'0v6'S2 000'0v¥'Ze 000'00.
000°02 00002 00001 000°04
000°001 000‘00L 000001 000°08
0 000'05 00009 000'66
£€0°'162Z°L Zr0'e60°|L Sro'sLe'L 9856102
Z61°1ES Z18'c0Z 124%] 169'¥92'L
005'cEE 005'ces 00S'CHe 00G'869
L2-020¢ 026102 6l-8L0¢ 8L-2102
Jeading leaAlno Jesfing jobpng

193png juduwrogeur]y] }assy repde))

sjusweAosdw eyides ol

jusweaAosdw) [epden uiwpy jejo |
Aunoag/sepelbidn/eacidw) Ayjicey
Sd9/S19/aavo
sapeifdn JeAlag B WaISAg
s)oefold JuswieAcIdw] [ejider) ulupy

juswesosdw [eyden pajohoey [ejol
‘qeyay jusunes. | Aeua]
suolsusixg/suaweroiduw)
S90|AIDG MON
sjo8lo1d JuslisAoIdu] [ejides) pejoAday

Juawaaoidw [ejides) Jajemajsepp [eyo0 )
Jadojaaaq
I8
SYIOAN JUBLLIYeal |
Wa)sAg uoNo8|j09
sjoeloid JusuwdAcIdul] [e)ides) JojeMaISen

jusweAoidwi jepdeq Jajepq [e30)]
Aunoeg ¢ sapeibdn Auoey
suoe|[eIsu| Jaja MBN
Juswase|day annleg Jsjel
saljioe Alddnsg Jajepa
suoljels dwing
sSUBIY Jojepn eyuebiep ejueg
as ‘[uoy ejuebiep ejues
suolje)s aJnssald
sjuswancidw znjeg
AMoed/Yyavos/pieA
sau|jedid
slloAJesay
Jusludinb3 pral4

12

242



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

13

243



Labor Costs:
Annual Wages

Diract Benefits:
Medical/Dental/Vision
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) contribution
Life Insurance/Long Term Disability
Uniforms/Safety Equipment
Auto Allowance & Rec Fund
Total Wages & Direct Benefits

Indirect Bonefits:
CalPERS/401A*
CalPERS Lump Sum Unfunded Liability Payment
CalPERS Side Fund Payoff**
CalPERS Unfunded Liability contribution
FICA/Social Security
Workers Comp Premiums
Other-Unempioyment Insurance
**Reimburse Reserves for 6/30/14 Side Fund Payoff
***Actuarial Unfunded Liability of $9.8M
Total Indirect Benefits

Total Wages and Fringe Benefits

*Employer Contribution 10.848% for Misc Members and
6.908% for PEPRA Members

“Reimburse Reserves for 6/30/14 Side Fund Payoff
Balance remaining is $2,058,848 as of 6/30/17

**Unfunded Actuarial Liabifity (UAL) of $8.8M. This
action prefunds a portion of the UAL into PARS

Labor Costs

2017-18 2016-2017 201617 Change from

Proposed Proposed to
Budget Adopted Budget Projected Adopted Budget
5,828,492 5,698,680 5,704,586 129,812
908,782 964,259 946,781 (55,477)
150,000 150,000 150,000 -
35.780 38,418 36,000 (2,638)
38,317 38,317 43,260 (0}
18,700 18,700 18,490 -
6,980,070 6,908,374 6,899,117 71,686
558,770 | * 438,162 511,926 120,608
572,652 459,468 459,468 113,184
585,000 | ™ 485,000 485,000 100,000
100,000 | *** 100,000 100,000 -
426,321 419177 427,907 7,144
127,023 130,558 134,800 (3,535)
0 0 11,734 -
2,369,765 2,032,365 2,130,835 337,400
9,349,835 8,940,739 9,029,952 409,096

14

244



WATER DEPT
Year Ending
June 30

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Totals

*$4,776,244 is the balance of the Red Mountain SRF. The loan will be paid off on January 1, 2031.

Amortization Schedule

Debt Service
FPUD
Water Dept Wastewater Dept CalPERS
Conjunctive

Red Mtn SRF* Use Solar QECB*™* | WWTP SRE*** UAL** District Totals
395,893 . 372,854 1,845,746 572682 | § 3,187,175
395,893 1,496,183 384,508 1,845,746 731,719 | § 4,854,047
395,893 2,992,366 397,027 1,845,746 842422 | $ 6,473,454
395,893 2,992 366 409,965 1,845,746 1,058,781 | $ 6,702,751
395,893 2,992 366 423,335 1,845,746 1,100,213 [ § 6,757,553
1,879,466 10,473,281 1,987,687 9,228,729 4,326,416 | § 27,974,980

**$4,330,461 is the balance of the Solar QECB loan. The loan will be paid off on November 18, 2027.

***$29,600,644 is the balance of the WWTP SRF loan. The loan will be paid off on March 31, 2036.

****CalPERS is changing the discount rate by .25% over a seven year period. UAL will increase substantially due to this change.
Current balance of the UAL is $9,798,549 amortized over 30 years.

15

245



Amortization Schedule for CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan
as of 6/30/15 actuarial valuation date

Totals
Year Balance

17-18 9,798,548
18-19 9,918,313
19-20 9,945,396
20-1 9,867,298
21-22 9,735,267
22-23 9,550,605
23-24 9,354,321
24-25 9,115,937
25-26 8,831,476
26-27 8,496,636
27-28 8,106,767
28-29 7,656,844
29-30 7,141,439
30-31 6,554,688
31-32 5,890,261
32-33 5,141,320
33-34 4,367,859
34-35 3,571,010
35-36 2,752,139
36-37 1,912,869
37-38 1,727,169
38-39 1,517,667
39-40 1,282,281
40-41 1,018,764
41-42 724,693
42-43 518,224
43-44 308,245
44-45 156,019
45-46 70,511
46-47 61,571

0

ent

691,335
794,738
841,108
882,318
880,170
906,576
933,773
961,786
990,640
1,020,359
1,050,969
1,082,499
1,114,974
1,148,423
1,117,896
1,084,505
1,048,104
1,008,543
317,475
326,999
336,809
346,914
357,321
251,358
240,008
169,117
93,757
13,723
63,838

16

With Discount
Rate Changes

% Increase

Tanne
842 422
967,274
1,058,781
1,100,213
1,178,548
1,307,282

3%

6%
15%
20%
25%
30%
40%

246



Authorized Personnel

Administration

General Manager

Administrative Services Manager/Treasurer
Human Resources Manager

Public Affairs Specialist

Secratary

Accounting Supervisor
Accounting/Customer Service Assistant I/I|
Information Systems Technician

Customer Sarvice Specialist

Customer Service Representative I/l|

FY 2016-17

Current

0.8

FY 2017-18
Add/(Delete)

Total

0.8

Administration

= N A a BN o a

N A A N a

Engineering

Assistant General Manager
Engineering Supervisor
Engineering Technician 11/

GIS Specialist

Administrative Office Specialist
Drought Management Coordinator
Operations Specialist

Engineering

O |== =3 a a2 W =2

@ [~2 @ a o o o o

Collections
Collections Supervisor
Utility Technician
Utility Worker 1/11A11

Collections

@t N -

(=D [ B ]

Construction/Maintenance
Construction/Maintenance Supervisor
Utility Technician

Utility Worker 111111

Construction/Maintenance

[=- I L) B Y

R o N -

System Services

System Service/Shop Supervisor
Utility Technician
Backflow/Cross-Connection Tech

17

247



Equipment Technician
Equipment Mechanic
Utility Worker 1/11/111

System Services

System Operations

System Operations Manager

Lead System Operator

System Operator I/1]

Utility Tech

Instrumentation & Controls Specialist
Utility Worker I/lIAI

Maintenance Electrician

System Operations

Operatlons Support

Safety & Risk Administrator

Warehouse Supervisor

Warehouse/Purchasing Specialist
Operations Support

Wastewater Plant Operations
Chief Plant Operator

Lead Plant Operator
Environmental Compliance Tech
Plant Operator I/Il

Mechanical Technician
Laboratory Technician |

Plant Maintenance Worker I/1l

Wastewater Plant Operations

Total District

FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18
Current Add/{Delete) Total

1 1
1

4 4
10 0 10
1 1
1 1
3 3
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
] 0 9
1 1
1 1
1 1
3 0 3
1 1
2 2
1 1
2 2
1 1
1 1
1 1
9 0 9

87.8 0 67.8

18

248



RESOLUTION NO. 4913

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT APPROVING AND
ESTABLISHING THE BUDGET OF SAID DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR
2017-18 INCLUDING EXPENSES OF ADMINISTRATION,
OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS,
EQUIPMENT, DEBT SERVICE, AND CONTINGENCIES
AGGREGATING AND APPROPRIATING THE MONEY TO BE
EXPENDED PURSUANT THERETO FROM APPROPRIATE FUNDS

* % k * %

BE IT RESOLVED BY the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District that the budget for financing District operations for fiscal year 2017-18, be and
the same, is hereby adopted in the following particulars:

For administration, operations,
maintenance, water purchases,
and contingencies: .........c.ovviceeeeeeecccceceee. $35,022,215

For capital improvements,
equipment, and contingencies.................... $42,482,678

For Debt Service G.0O. Bonds -
Series 1977 and 1993, interest,
bond redemption, and

For Debt Service Certificates of
Participation, State Revolving Fund,
and lease / purchase; interest and

principal and reserves: ..........cccoceveveeeeeennen. $ 5,228,986
TOTAL ..ottt $82,733,879

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT expenditure thereunder is hereby
appropriated from the following funds, to wit:

Operations Fund..............cccoociiiiiivcinnnenn. $35,022,215
Construction Funds ..........ccvvvvvivieeieeieeieeen, $42,482,678

Debt Service Funds
Red Mountain SRF .......oooneeeeevieeeeieeenns $ 791,786

249



Del.uz Improvement District.................. $ -0-

Improvement District “S” - Solar............ $ 745,708

Recycled SRF ... $ -0-

Wastewater Rehabilitation SRF............ $ 3,691,492
TOTAL. ... rr s $82,733,879

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 26™ day of June, 2017, by the

following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

250



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Brian J. Brady, General Manager
DATE: June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Exception to 180 Day Waiting Period

Purpose

To obtain approval of Resolution No. 4915 to waive 180 day waiting period for
Marcie Eilers to return as a retired annuitant.

Summary

Under CalPERS regulations a retiree from a CalPERS agency must wait 180 days after
retirement to return to employment at a CalPERS agency. An exception to this rule can
be made for key positions within an organization with certain requirements being met.
The timing of the position being vacated is in conjunction with the District's fiscal
operations. It is essential to have staff in this position during the transition between two
operating years.

Recommendation

It is the recommendation that Resolution No. 4915 be approved by the Board along with
the employment agreement to have Marcie Eilers return as a retired annuitant prior to
the 180 day waiting period to serve in the interim. The position is a key position and
serves as the lead on the finance and budget operations for the District.

251



RESOLUTION NO. 4915

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FALLBROOK
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT CERTIFYING EXCEPTION TO THE 180 —
DAY WAIT PERIOD PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS
7522.56 AND 21221(H)

* Rk Rk

WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code section 7522.56 the Board of
Directors must provide CalPERS this certification resolution when hiring a retiree before
180 days has passed since his or her retirement date; and

WHEREAS, Marcella Eilers 3870 retired from Fallbrook Public Utility District in
the position of the Administrative Services Manager/Treasurer effective July 6, 2017;
and

WHEREAS, section 7522.56 requires that post-retirement employment
commence no earlier than 180 days after the retirement date, which is January 3, 2018,
without this certification resolution; and

WHEREAS, section 7522.56 provides that this exception to the 180 day wait
period shall not apply if the retiree accepts any retirement-related incentive; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors, the Fallbrook Public Utility District, and
Marcella Eilers certify that Marcella Eilers has not and will not receive a Golden
Handshake or any other retirement-related incentive: and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors hereby appoints Marcella Eilers as an interim
appointment retired annuitant to the vacant position of Assistant General Manager/Chief
Financial Officer for the Fallbrook Public Utility District under Government Code section
21221(h) effective July 10, 2017; and

WHEREAS, an appointment under Government Code section 21221(h) requires
an active, publicly-posted recruitment for a permanent replacement; and

WHEREAS, the current status of this recruitment is active and posted publicly;
and

WHEREAS, this section 21221 (h) appointment shall only be made once and
therefore will end on or before November 7, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the entire employment agreement, contract, or appointment
document between Marcella Eilers and the Fallbrook Public Utility District has been
reviewed by this body and is attached herein: and

252



WHEREAS, no matters, issues, terms or conditions related to this employment
and appointment have been or will be placed on a consent calendar; and

WHEREAS, the employment shall be limited to 960 hours per fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the compensation paid to retirees cannot be less than the minimum
nor exceed the maximum monthly base salary paid to other employees performing
comparable duties, divided by 173.333 to equal the hourly rate; and

WHEREAS, the maximum base salary for this position is $15,487.68 and the
hourly equivalent is $89.35, and the minimum base salary for this position is $12,402.52
and the hourly equivalent is $71.55; and

WHEREAS, the hourly rate paid to Marcelia Eilers will be $82.98; and

WHEREAS, Marcella Eilers has not and will not receive any other benefit,
incentive, compensation in lieu of benefit or other form of compensation in addition to
this hourly pay rate; and

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors hereby certifies
the nature of the appointment of Marcella Eilers as described herein and detailed in the
attached employment agreement/contract/appointment document and that this
appointment is necessary to fill the critically needed position of Assistant General
Manager/ Chief Financial Officer for the Fallbrook Public Utility District July 10, 2017
because this position is critical to the financial structure and budget needs of the
Fallbrook Public Utility District.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Dlrectors of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 26" day of June, 2017, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

253



TEMPORARY AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT OF RETIRED ANNUITANT,
MARCELLA EILERS,
DURING RECRUITMENT FOR A PERMANENT REPLACEMENT
FOR ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

This Temporary At-Will Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered
into this July 10, 2017, by and between the FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT,
a public entity (“District”) and MARCELLA EILERS, (“Employee”).

1. District has a need for the Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer
position be filled while recruitment for a permanent position is ongoing.

2. Employee desires to accept employment, on a temporary, at-will basis, as the
Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer for the District working no
more than 960 hours in a fiscal year.

3. Employee agrees that this is the sole and entire Agreement between the District
and employee regarding the term of the employment and the termination thereof,
and that this Agreement can be terminated at anytime by either party.

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND AGREEMENT HEREIN
CONTAINED, IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. Employment: Employee shall serve as Assistant General Manager/Chief
Financial Officer during the term of this agreement, beginning July 10, 2017 and
ending on or before November 7, 2017. Employee will perform such duties
specified in the job description of the position subject to modification by the
General Manager, or his delegate. Employee agrees to abide by all District
policies and procedures. Where there is a conflict between those procedures
and specific terms of this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail.

2. Term: District agrees to employ and Employee accepts employment with the
District under the terms of this Agreement until Employee’s employment is
terminated in accordance with this Agreement which will be on or before
November 7, 2017.

3. Salary and Benefits: Employee will receive an hourly rate of $82.98 payable
biweekly at the same time as other employees of the District are paid. Employee
is not entitled to other employee benefits and programs established for
Management or Regular employees, including but not limited to health benefits,
holiday pay, vacation, sick or other paid leave, or any severance pay on
termination of employment. Contributions for Employee will be made by District
to workers’ compensation and any other benefit or program required by State or
Federal law. Employee will be enrolled as a “retired annuitant” with CalPERS but

254



no contributions or service time will be credited to Employee during this interim,
at-will employment.

. At-Will Employment: Employee may be terminated by District through the
General Manager, at any time with or without cause and without notice. This
agreement on at-will employment status is the sole and entire agreement
between District and Employee regarding the term of employment and
termination thereof. This agreement on at-will status cannot be modified in
anyway, whatsoever, except in writing which has been approved and signed by
the General Manager. This agreement supersedes and replaces any prior
agreements, whether oral or written, regarding the term of employment and
termination. Insofar as other District policies or procedures are inconsistent with
the express terms of this offer and agreement, this agreement on at-will status
shall prevail.

. Withholding of Taxes: District will withhold any monies payable pursuant to
this Agreement all Federal State, District or other taxes as may be required by
any law, or governmental regulation or ruling.

. Hours of Work:

a. Employee is expected to conduct District business and perform
Employee’s duties for the District during the District's normal business
hours, when requested by the District. Employee will record all hours
worked on District's standard time card form. The parties expressly agree
that under no circumstances will Employee work for the District more than
960 hours in any fiscal year and the Employee's termination from at-will
employment will be no later than November 7, 2017.

b. Except upon prior written consent of the General Manager, Employee,
during the term of this Agreement and while employed by the District,
shall not engage, directly or indirectly, in any other business, commercial
or professional activity, whether or not pursued for pecuniary advantage,
that might create a conflict of interest with District, or that otherwise might
interfere with business of District, or any affiliated party.

. Waiver of Breach: The waiver by either party, or the failure of either party to
claim a breach of any provision of this Agreement, shall not operate or be
construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach.

. Assignment: The rights and obligations of the respective parties hereto under
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit and shall be binding upon heirs, legal
representatives, successors and assigns of the parties hereto; provided,
however, that this Agreement shall not be assignable by either party without prior
written consent of the other party. Any attempted assignment is void.

255



9. Entire Agreement: This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements,
either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject
matter hereof and contains all of the covenants and agreements between the
parties with respect to said subject matter in any manner whatsoever. Any
modification of this Agreement will be effective only if it is in writing and signed
by both Employee and General Manager.

10.Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced
in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Any action to interpret or
enforce terms of this Agreement shall be held exclusively in the state court in
San Diego County, California. Employee expressly waives any right to remove
any such action from San Diego County otherwise permitted by the California
Code of Civil Procedures section 394.

11.Partial Invalidity: If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid or
unenforceable by any court, the remaining provisions hereof shall remain in
effect unless such partial invalidity or unenforceability would defeat an essential
business purpose of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed on this of June, 2017.

BY:

Brian J. Brady, General Manager

BY EMPLOYEE:

Marcella Eilers

256



MEMO

TO: Board of Directors \W\U
FROM: Marcie Eilers, Administrative Services Manager/Treasurer

DATE: June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Microsoft Office 2016 Upgrade and licensing requirements

Purpose

To upgrade District to 2016 Microsoft Office Suite and ensure that all users have
licenses to use the upgrade by purchasing 65 licenses.

Summary

The District is currently using Microsoft Office Suite 2007, which will no longer
supported by Microsoft. When support ends, we will also no longer receive security
updates. The last time we upgraded was in 2007 when we went from Microsoft Office
Suite 2003 to 2007.

The cost to purchase 65 licenses including tax is $28,365.19, which is $405 per license
before tax. This is the cost quoted by Data Net Solutions, a Microsoft Certified
Programmer with approval to use State negotiated prices as listed on the California
Local Government price sheets. Because the State has negotiated the pricing,
experience dictates that this is the lowest bid due to the extremely high volumes.

The Capital budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 contains funding for this upgrade.

Recommended Action

That the Board approve the upgrade to Microsoft Office 2016 and purchase 65 licenses
in the amount of $28,365.19.

257



ESTIMATE

Escondido, Ca. 92033 DNSQ13414

DATANET 2o reiis ste [

STV IMRANS CHR e Sales Rep JEEL]
Estimated To: Ship Tag:

Fallbrook Public Utilities District
Mickey Case

P.O. Box 2290

990 East Mission Road
Fallbrook, CA 92028
(760Y728-1125

Descriptoh

MICROSOFT OFFICE PROFESSIONAL 2016 LIC ONLY - 65U

65 LIC MICROSOFT OFFICE PROFESSIONAL PLUS GOVT OLP $405.00 $26,325.00
SubTotal $26,325.00

SubTotal $26,325.00

Sales Tax $2,040.19

Shipping $0.00

Total $28,365.19

TERMS: All hardware and software licensing must be pre-paid in full at time the order Is placed. Credit Card Payments via
Mastercard and Visa require additional 1.5% and American Express require additional 3% of total amount. Labor is quoted
as an estimate and actual labor times may vary. Work after 5:00 p.m. during the normal work week will be considered as
overtime with weekend hours calculated at time and a half. Customer Is responsible for any additional labor charges in
excess of estimated amount with customer approved change order. Quoted hardware and software prices will be valid for
30 days. Additional shipping charges may apply to drop shipped orders. There will be a 15% restocking fee on all
cancelled orders.

Signature Print Name Date __{ /2017

Signature Print Name Date [ /2017
DATA NET SOLUTIONS SIGNATURE

TO PLACE THIS ORDER PLEASE SIGN AND E-MAIL OR FAX QUOTE ALONG WITH A COPY OF CHECK TO 760-466-1201

*

Page 1

258



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors JV\U
FROM: Marcie Eilers, Administrative Services Manager/Treasurer
DATE: June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Update on Development of a policy for closing the fiscal year

Purpose

To develop a policy that details the timeframe of closing the fiscal year.

Summary

At the
asked
year.

Tasks

1.

Noakr oON

«©

9.
10.

1.
12

13.

most recent Fiscal Policy and Insurance Committee meeting, the Committee
staff to begin creating a procedure for closing the month of June and the fiscal

to close the year which are done after the June month-end close include:
Counting inventory to include pipeline and appurtenances, water in Red

Mountain Reservoir and fuel.
Reconciliation of property tax receivables once Apportionment #13 is received.

. Capitalization and closing of district and developer jobs. In the past, this has

been done at year end but current practice is to close as jobs are completed.
Write off fixed asset retires.

Balance CIP (Construction in Progress)

Balance retainer payable

Reconcile sick/vacation/comp time and age balances (current liability exists for
current year accrual, long term liability exists for prior time on the books.)
Calculate accrued interest receivable from investments and interest payable from
debt service.

Calculate and make adjusting entry for OPEB ARC

Calculate unbilled receivables after cycles 1 and 2 have been billed in July. Cycle
2 is billed by July 23",

Calculate debt covenant coverage

.Reconcile HRA (health retirement account-for retirees) and OPEB balance

(Other Post Employment Benefits).
Book GASB 68 entry as provided by auditor.

During the FY 15-16 close, items 3, 4 and 5 were delayed due to the Springbrook
conversion and the way staff was advised to set up the Springbrook Capital Assets
module.

259



During a routine year, it is reasonable that the fiscal year be closed out by the 20" of
August.

If a deviation from the August 20" schedule is anticipated, staff will request a Fiscal
Policy & Insurance Committee meeting to discuss the actions staff is proposing to offset
any expected delays.

Recommended Action

For information purposes; no action is being requested of the Board at this time.

260



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jack Bebee, Assistant General Manager ,J&O
DATE: June 26, 2017 ’

SUBJECT: Establishing District Procurement Procedures compliant with the Uniform
Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (Public Contract Code Section
22000 et seq.), and Electing to Become Subject to the Act (Resolution
electing to become subject to the provisions of the Act and Ordinance
repealing and replacing Article 14)

Purpose

To introduce for Board consideration updates to Article 14 of the Administrative Code
to incorporate the District electing to become subject to the Uniform Public
Construction Cost Accounting Act, Public Contract Code § 22000 et seq.

Background

At the September 2016 regular Board meeting, the Board requested a review of the
District's local preferences policy for purchases, which staff and legal counsel
conducted. At the December regular 2016 Board meeting, staff and legal counsel
provided an overview of the results of that review, informing the Board that a local
preference for local vendors could be implemented, to a limited extent, for purchases
for public projects and goods which fall beneath the dollar thresholds for contracts that
must be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder. Staff and legal counsel cautioned
that constitutional equal protection issues must be considered in implementing such a
policy to mitigate the risk of legal challenge. The Board then directed staff and legal
counsel formalize a local preference policy for inclusion in the District's Administrative
Code, for Board review and approval including a process to better solicit local
vendors.

Thereafter, staff and legal counsel, while moving forward with the update to the
District's Administrative Code bidding and purchasing provisions, identified an
opportunity to increase efficiency and implement a more workable cohesive bidding
and purchasing procedure in light of the current legal requirements under which the
District operates by selecting to operate under the Uniform Public Construction Cost
Accounting Act. The Act enables the District to raise its bidding threshold to $45,000
and establishes both informal and formal bidding procedures. The informal bid
procedures woulid apply to public projects in excess of $45,000 and less than or equal
to $175,000. At the May 2017 regular board meeting the Board directed staff and
legal counsel to move forward with formalizing changes necessary to operate under
the Act.

261



Summary

The District presently operates under Public Contract Code §§ 20200 et seq. and
20202.1 et seq., which generally require competitive bidding for all contracts for
construction (including alteration, maintenance, and repair) in excess of $15,000 and
contracts for “articles” in excess of $10,000.

As identified in the May 2017 meeting, staff has concluded that there is a need to
increase efficiency and implement a more workable, cohesive bidding and purchasing
procedure. To achieve these goals, staff proposes that the District elect to follow the
alternate bidding and purchasing procedures known as the Uniform Public
Construction Cost Accounting Act, Public Contract Code § 22000 et seq., (the “Act”).

An updated Article 14 of the Administrative Code is attached and it has been updated
to incorporate operation under the Act. Because the revisions to current Article 14
(Purchases and Sales, Regulations Governing) were so extensive, a redline version
was not created. [f approved, the Board's action will repeal the current version of
Article 14 and replace it with the updated Article 14 (District Procurement Procedures)

The Act enables the District to raise its bidding threshold to $45,000 and establishes
both informal and formal bidding procedures. The informal bid procedures would
apply to public projects in excess of $45,000 and less than or equal to $175,000, and
the formal bid procedures would appiy to public projects in excess of $175,000. While
the purchase of articles is not included in the Act's definition of a “public project,” the
Act does pemnit a public agency which has elected to become subject to the Act to
utilize the bidding procedures “when contracting for any other work which does not fall
within the definition of ‘public project’.” (Pub. Contract Code § 22003.) Therefore,
should the District elect to become subject to the Act, it may utilize the same bidding
procedures for both construction projects and the purchase of articles.

In sum, opting into the Act would enable the District to create a single cohesive
bidding procedure for all contracts, whether for construction contracts or for purchases
of articles, instead of the bifurcated Public Contract Code scheme public utility districts
must otherwise follow. In addition, staff has determined that 1) opting in will ensure
the District’s job cost accounting provides an apples to apples comparison of outside
contractor costs to better evaluate internal versus external services 2) the Act provides
the District greater flexibility to address procurement needs over the existing
somewhat outdated procurement requirements, and 3) the streamlined procurement
process, especially the informal bidding process, will also help the District to better
utilize local suppliers.

In order to take advantage of the benefits of the Act, the District must adopt the
attached resolution (Attachment 1) to elect to become subiject to the Act and notify the
State Controller. The District will also need adopt the attached revised Administrative
Code Article 14 (Attachment 2) to implement the updated procurement procedure.

262



As part of the revisions to the Administrative Code it is also recommended to adjust
the GM authorization from $22,000 to $45,000 to make the authorization consistent
with the bidding limit of the Act and to assist with streamlining of purchases for
equipment, valves, pipe and other materials. As material and equipment costs have
continued to rise the authorization limit has only slightly increased which has started to
require Board approval of more routine items such as valves, hydrants and routine
services. This modification will also make the GM authority for the District similar to
other District's as shown in Table 1.

Agency Limit

Easterm MWD $100,000
Elsinore Valley MWD $50,000
Encina Wastewater

Authority $50,000
Helix WD $50,000
Leucadia Wastewater

District $25,000
Olivenhain MWD $50,000
Otay Water District $75,000
Padre Dam MWD $50,000
Rainbow MWD $50,000
Santa Fe Irrigation District $35,000
SDCWA $150,000
Sweetwater Authority $50,000
Vallecitos Water District $50,000

$35,000; $100,000
immediate non-

Valley Center MWD emergencies
Vista Irrigation District $50,000
Yuima MWD $35,000

Table 1 — GM purchasing authority for other Agencies

In addition to the above changes the following additional updates are included in the
proposed revised Article 14:

1. Added Section 14.7 to specify requirements to prequalify contractors.
Contractors for the Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project will be pre-
qualified in accordance with the Section.

2. Added Section 14.10 to formalize a local procurement preference with a 5%
preference to local suppliers for contracts under $45,000.

3. Updated Section 14.12 regarding use of the District Credit Card and developed
a more detailed policy on credit card use (See Attachment 3)

263



4. Adjusted the percentage that can be requested from the board regarding
charge order allowance from 5% to 10% in Section 14.13. The Board is not
required to grant this authority and it must be requested for each project.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board take the following actions:

1. Adopt Resolution 4916 electing to become subject to the provisions of the
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act.

2. Adopt Ordinance 339 Repealing current Article 14 (Purchases and Sales,
Regulations Governing) and replacing it with revised Article 14 (District
Procurement Procedures), which establishes procurement procedures
compliant with the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act, will
help streamline the purchasing and contracting process, and maximize the
use of qualified local contractors and service providers where possible.

264



ATTACHMENT "1"

265



RESOLUTION NO. 4916

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT ELECTING
TO BECOME SUBJECT TO THE UNIFORM PUBLIC
CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING ACT (PUBLIC
CONTRACT CODE SECTION 22000 ET SEQ.)

* Rk R k%

WHEREAS, prior to the passage of Assembly Bill No. 1666, Chap. 1054 Stats.
1983, which added Chapter 2 commencing with Section 22000 to Part 3 of Division 2 of
the Public Contract Code, existing law did not provide a uniform cost accounting
standard for construction work performed or contracted by local public agencies; and

WHEREAS, the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (the "Act"),
codified at Public Contract Code Section 22000 et seq., establishes such a uniform cost
accounting standard; and

WHEREAS, the California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission
("Commission"), established under the Act, has developed uniform public construction
cost accounting procedures for implementation by local public agencies in the
performance of, or in, the contracting for construction of public works projects; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors Fallbrook Public Utility District desires to
adopt and implement the uniform public construction cost accounting procedures as set
forth in the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District hereby elects
under Public Contract Code Section 22030 to become subject to the
uniform public construction cost accounting procedures set forth in the Act
and to the Commission's policies and procedures manual and cost
accounting review procedures, as they may each from time to time be
amended, and directs that the Board Secretary notify the State Controller
forthwith of this election.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 26" day of June, 2017, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

266



ATTACHMENT "2"

267



ORDINANCE NO. 339

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
REPEALING ADMINISTRATIVE CODE: ARTICLE 14, PURCHASES

AND SALES, REGULATIONS GOVERNING
AND REPLACING IT WITH ADMINISTRATIVE CODE: ARTICLE 14,
DISTRICT PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

* ok % % &

WHEREAS, Article 14 of the Fallbrook Public Utility District (“District”)
Administrative Code governs the contracting, purchasing and sales activities of the
District in accordance with the provisions of the California Government Code, Public
Contract Code and the provisions of the Public Utility District Act;

WHEREAS, the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (the "Act"),
codified at Public Contract Code Section 22000 et seq., establishes a uniform cost
accounting standard and the California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting
Commission ("Commission”) established under the Act, has developed uniform public
construction cost accounting procedures for implementation by local public agencies in
the performance of or in the contracting for construction of public works projects; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to adopt and implement the uniform
public construction cost accounting procedures as set forth in the Act, which requires, in
part, that the District enact procurement procedures for public projects as defined in the
Act, of $45,000 or less, adopt an informal bidding ordinance to govern the selection of
contractors to perform public projects of in excess of $45,000 and less than or equal to
$175,000, and to implement procedures in accordance with the Act for public projects in
excess of $175,000; and

WHEREAS, Administrative Code Article 14: Purchases and Sales, Regulations
Governing, requires substantial revision to formalize the District procurement
procedures, including those required by the Act, and therefore, the desire of the Board
is to repeal existing “Article 14: Purchase and Sales, Regulations,” and to replace it with
“Article 14 District Procurement Procedures."

BE IT ENACTED BY the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Public Utility District as
follows:

SECTION I. The Board of Directors of the District hereby repeals in its entirety
current “Article 14: Purchases and Sales, Regulations Governing” and hereby adopts
and approved new “Article 14: District Procurement Procedures” attached to Ordinance
No. 339 as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference.

60065.00100129879825.1 2 68



SECTION Il. If any clause or provision of this Ordinance is found to be void or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this
Ordinance shall nonetheless continue in full force and effect.

SECTION lll. This Ordinance shall be posted at three public places in the District
and to cause the same to be published pursuant to Section 6061 of the Government
Code in the Fallbrook Viliage News, a newspaper of general circulation, printed,
published and circulated in said District. This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after
its passage.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of D|rectors of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 26™ day of June, 2017, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

60065.00100:29879825.1

269



EXHIBIT “A”

60065.0010029879825.1 2 7 0



Article 14. District Procurement Procedures.
Sec. 14.1 Authority.

California Public Contract Code Sections 20200-20207.7, as well as other
provisions in the California Public Contract Code, certain miscellaneous statutes found in
the Public Utility District Act (Public Utilities Code Section 15501 et seq.), and the
California Government Code, govern procurement (purchasing and contracting) by the
District of the following:

» Articles such as goods, materials, supplies, equipment, capital assets, and
advertising

® Works of construction, alteration, and non-professional services (including
repair and maintenance)

e Professional services

The District has elected to become subject to the provisions of the
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (the "Act"), Public Contract Code
Section 22000 et seq., which provides altermnative procedures for the bidding and
awarding of public contracts. As provided in Public Contract Code Section 22003, these
procedures may also be utilized for maintenance work and other work that does not fall
within the definition of “public project.” Accordingly, it is the District’s intent to utilize
these procedures for “public projects” and all other purchases otherwise subject to Public
Contract Code Sections 20200-20207.7.

The provisions of this Article 14 shall not apply to the acquisition of land
by the District.

Sec. 14.2 General.

The ongoing operation of the District requires the procurement of various
items, construction and services. Since it is necessary to procure these items,
construction and services on a regular basis to carry on the day-to-day operations of the
District, and since the Board of Directors reviews and approves all procurements through
the budgeting process, or otherwise approves procurements by separate action from time
to time, the following formal procurement policies and procedures are provided for
implementation by District staff. These formal procedures are intended to implement the
above-listed requirements of the California Public Contract Code, California Government
Code, and California Public Utilities Code, which are mandatory for Public Utility
Districts located within the State of California. State law forbids any director or other
officer of the District from being interested, directly or indirectly, in any contract
awarded or to be awarded by the Board, or in the profits to be derived from it.

14-1

271



Sec. 14.3 Procurement Philosophy.

Purchases of goods, materials, supplies, equipment, and capital assets shall
be made from time to time, in the most economical quantity, in order to provide the
District with maximum benefit for minimum expenditures. Quality and reliability of
products are also important factors which may, on a case-by-case basis, cause rejection of
an inferior product that does not meet specified requirements. It is also essential that
purchases of all goods, materials, supplies, equipment, and capital assets be done by the
District in a fair and open manner that promotes public confidence in the District and
reinforces the public perception of fairness and equal opportunity for all competing
vendors offering their products or services to the District, Contracts for works of
construction and all services shall be made from time to time, after complying with
applicable legal requirements and these procurement policies and procedures. To the
extent permitted by law, and subject to the limitations established in Section 14.10,
purchases should be made from vendors located within the boundaries of the District.

Sec. 144 Definitions.

a. Articles. Goods, materials, supplies, equipment, capital assets, and advertising
required to carry on the day-to-day operations of the District, including without
limitation, office supplies, computer hardware and software, communications
equipment, equipment, materials and supplies for distribution and treatment,
including meters, meter parts, and pipeline materials.

b. Commission. The California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting
Commission.

c. Designee. The General Manager may authorize the following persons as his
designee in those areas in which they exercise budgeting control:

(1)  Assistant General Manager — (construction and field equipment and
materials, contract change orders, engineering items, Inventory and
supplies).

(2)  Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer — (Articles related to
office equipment and supplies, all computer hardware and software,
communication equipment, and contract services).

(3)  Operations Manager — (construction and field equipment and materials,
contract change orders).

4 System Operations Manager — (Articles used for distribution and
treatment, and SCADA).

(5)  Chief Plant Operator — (Articles used for treatment).

14-2

272



(6)  Supervisor — (Articles such as field equipment and materials).
(7)  Warehouse Supervisor — (Warehouse related Articles).

d. Maintenance. As defined in Public Contract Code § 22002, Maintenance includes
all of the following: (1) routine, recurring, and usual work for the preservation or
protection of any publicly owned or publicly operated facility for its intended
purposes (2) minor repainting (3) resurfacing of streets and highways at less than
one inch (4) landscape maintenance, including mowing, watering, trimming,
pruning, planting, replacement of plants, and servicing of irrigation and sprinkler
systems (5) work performed to keep, operate, and maintain publicly owned water,
power, or waste disposal systems, including, but not limited to, dams, reservoirs,
powerplants, and electrical transmission lines of 230,000 volts and higher.

€. Open Purchase Order. A purchase order for Articles which is effective for a
specified period of time, not more than annually, and within the same budget year,
i.e., office supplies and auto parts.

i Professional Services. Professional services, such as services involving provision
of a report, study, plan, design, specification, document, program, advice,
recommendation, analysis, review, inspection, investigation, audit, brokering or
representation of the District before or in dealings with another party, or any other
services which require a special skill or expertise of a professional, scientific or
technical nature. Professional Services include architectural, landscape
architectural, engineering, environmental, land surveying, construction project
management services. Professional Services also include legal, financial,
accounting, and planning services.

g Public Project. Defined in Cal. Public Contract Code § 22002, means any of the
following: (1) Construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation,
improvement, demolition, and repair work involving any publicly owned, leased,
or operated facility and (2} Painting or repainting of any publicly owned, leased,
or operated facility. .

Sec. 14.5 Procedures for the Purchase of Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles

a. Purchase Procedures for Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles in the
Amount of $45.000 or Less (“Small Purchase Procedures™).

The General Manager or Designee may make purchases of Public Projects,
Maintenance, and Articles in an amount of $45,000 or less, in accordance with the
following Small Purchase Procedures, which the Board has imposed for such
purchases, in the interests of sound business judgment.

(1)  Purchases of $10,000 or more shall be made after obtaining three (3)
written quotations. Purchases under $10,000 shall be purchased in the

14-3

273



¢))

€)

@

()

most prudent and economical manner possible, but do not require multiple
competitive quotations.

The requirement for three (3) quotations is not required in those cases
where the Board has approved the purchase as a “standardized item™ such
as meters, or for Open Purchase Orders as provided below.

Small Purchase Procedures specific to Articles. All purchases shall be
made by purchase order after a properly authorized Purchase Order

Requisition (POR) has been completed, signed and forwarded in the
required manner. The only exceptions to this requirement are purchases
made under a pre-existing Open Purchase Order, purchase of small routine
items from suppliers with open purchase order or accounts, or purchases
made during emergency. The purchase order must indicate the name of
the suggested vendor and an exact description and price of each Article.
Shipping charges, if any, and applicable taxes must also be included in the
total price. The purchase order shall be reviewed and signed by the
General Manager or Designee.

Open Purchase Orders shall generally be utilized for the purchase of
repetitive need, low-valued Articles or for the purchase of Articles (such
as automotive supplies) which must be available on short notice. Open
Purchase Orders shall not be utilized as a substitute for the normal
requisition and purchase order process described in this section. Open
Purchase Orders may be written for a single class of consumable Articles
i.e., office supplies, without listing specific, exact descriptions of each
Article, but not to exceed the authority listed above and cannot span a
period of time which includes more than one fiscal year.

Small Purchase Procedures specific to Public Projects and Maintenance.
All purchases shall be made by written contract. Any such contracts shall
be awarded on the basis of price and such other criteria established by the
General Manager or Designee, as may be in the best interest of the
District, in light of the type of work involved. Contracts for Public
Projects shall require the successful bidder to execute a bond, in a form
approved by the Board, for the faithful performance of the contract.
Additionally if the contract exceeds $25,000 and involves erection,
construction, alteration, repair or improvement of any public structure,
building, road or other public improvement of any kind, the successful
bidder shall execute a payment bond, as required by the provisions of the
California Civil Code.

Petty cash. Occasionally purchases of minor items may be required.
Payments for such items may be authorized from petty cash funds by the
General Manager or Designee. In no case will approval exceed $50.00.

14-4

274



©)

Y

(8)

®

Quote information shall be retained until completion of the annual audit
for the fiscal year in which purchased, or as otherwise established in the
District’s Records Retention Schedule.

Nothing in these Small Purchase Procedures shall prevent the General
Manager, or Designee, from obtaining multiple quotations or from
implementing the Informal Bid Procedures or Formal Bid Procedures if it
18 in the best economic interests of the District to do so. This judgment
shall be made in the sole discretion of the General Manager or Designee.

Nothing in these Small Purchase Procedures shall prohibit the District
from doing or causing to be done directly by the District, and without any
contract, any or all work necessary or proper in or about the making of all
current and ordinary repairs or in or about current and ordinary upkeep or
maintenance.

Under no circumstances shall purchases be split or separated into multiple
purchases in order to avoid the Small Purchase Procedures, Informal Bid
Procedures and/or Formal Bid Procedures set forth herein

Purchase Procedures for Public Projects. Maintenance, and Articles in Excess of
$45.000 and $175,000 or Less (“Informal Bid Procedures™).

In accordance with Public Contract Code section 22034, the District adopts the
following Informal Bid Procedures, applicable to purchases of Public Projects,

Maintenance, and Articles in excess of $45,000 and $175,000 or less. Contract
award shall be made by the Board.

(1)

@

&)

The District shall maintain a list of qualified contractors, identified
according to categories of work. Minimum criteria for development and
maintenance of the contractors list shall be as required by the
Commission.

All contractors on the list for the category of work being bid or all
construction trade journals pursuant to in Public Contract Code Section
22036, or both all contractors on the list for the category of work being bid
and all construction trade journals pursuant to in Public Contract Code
Section 22036, shall be mailed, faxed or emailed, a notice inviting
informal bids unless the product or service is proprietary.

All delivery of notices inviting informal bids to contractors and
construction trade journals shall be completed not less than 10 calendar
days before bids are due. The notice inviting informal bids may also be
published in in a newspaper of general circulation.

14-5

275



()

)

(6)

Q)

®)

The notice inviting informal bids shall describe the project in general
terms and how to obtain more detailed information about the project, and
state the time and place for the submission of bids.

If all bids received are in excess of $175,000, the Board may, by adoption
of a resolution by a four-fifths (4/5) vote, award the contract, at one
$187,500 or less, to the lowest responsible bidder, if it determines the cost
estimate of the District is reasonable.

If awarded, a contract will be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder,
consistent with the quality and delivery requirements.

All contracts for Public Projects shall require the successful bidder to
execute a bond, in a form approved by the Board, for the faithful
performance of the contract. Additionally if the contract involves
erection, construction, alteration, repair or improvement of any public
structure, building, road or other public improvement of any kind, the
successful bidder shall execute a payment bond, as required by the
provisions of the California Civil Code.

The Board shall have the right to reject all or any of the bids received.

Purchase Procedures for Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles in Excess of

$175.000 (“Formal Bid Procedures™).

Purchases of Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles in an amount exceeding
$175,000 shall be procured pursuant to the following Formal Bid Procedures.
Contract award shall be made by the Board. Additionally, all plans and
specifications for Public Projects shall be adopted by the Board or General
Manager/ Designee.

)

In accordance with Public Contract Code section 22037, a notice inviting
formal bids shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation,
printed and published, at least 14 calendar days before the date of opening
the bids, in the jurisdiction of the District and any such other newspaper
publications deemed appropriate by the General Manager or Designee.
Notice inviting formal bids shall state the time and place for the receiving
and opening of sealed bids and distinctly describe the project.

If applicable, the notice inviting formal bids shall also be sent
electronically, if available, by either facsimile or electronic mail and
mailed to all construction trade journals. The notice shall be sent at least
15 calendar days before the date of opening the bids.

14-6

276



(2)  All bids for shall be presented under sealed cover. If awarded, a contract
will be awarded to the responsible bidder who submits the lowest
responsive bid.

(3)  All bids for Public Projects shall be accompanied by one of the following
forms of bidder’s security:

i. Cash

ii. A cashier’s check made payable to the District

iii. A certified check made payable to the District

iv. A bidder’s bond executed by an admitted surety insurer made
payable to the District in the form provided by the District

Upon an award to the lowest bidder, the security of an unsuccessful bidder
shall be returned in a reasonable period of time, but in no event shall that
securify be held by the District beyond 60 days from the time the award is
made.

(4)  All contracts for Public Projects shall require the successful bidder to
execute a bond, in a form approved by the Board, for the faithful
performance of the contract. Additionally if the contract involves
erection, construction, alteration, repair or improvement of any public
structure, building, road or other public improvement of any kind, the
successful bidder shall execute a payment bond, as required by the
provisions of the California Civil Code.

(5)  The Board shall have the right to reject all or any of the bids received.

Nothing in this Section shall preclude the District from utilizing the design-build
project delivery method where authorized by and in accordance with the
provisions and requirements set forth in California Public Contract Code Section
22160 et seq., as it may be amended from time to time.

Sec.14.6 Procedures for Procurement of Professional Services.

a.

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 4526 et seq., the District shall
secure professional services on the basis of demonstrated competence and on the
professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of the
services required. When specific technical expertise or experience is required, the
District may negotiate the scope and fee for these services with an individual firm
with this specific expertise.

The District may, for procurement of architectural, landscape architectural,
engineering, environmental, land surveying, and construction management
services, utilize the Qualification-Based Selection procedures adopted by the

14-7

277



Architects and Engineers Conference Committee of California, as deemed
appropriate by the General Manager or Designee.

c. If the value of the services are estimated to be $45,000 or more, the District shall
issue a formal Request for Proposals for the services. Additionally, if deemed in
the best interests of the District as determined by the General Manager or
Designee, the District may first issue a Request for Qualifications to solicit firms
with the necessary qualifications for the services.

d. If the value of the services are estimated to be less than $45,000, where practical,
three proposals shall be obtained unless the General Manager or Designee deems
otherwise appropriate.

e. Award of Professional Services Contracts may be made by the General Manager
for contracts in the amount of $45,000 or less. Contracts in excess of $45,000
shall be awarded by the Board.

f. The contract amendment procedures outlined in this Article apply to Professional
Services Contracts.

Sec. 14.7 Prequalification.

The District may prequalify contractors, pursuant to the provisions and
requirements of California Public Contract Code Section 20101, as determined
appropriate in the reasonable discretion of the General Manager or District Engineer.
Prequalification shall be through a uniform system of rating bidders on the basis of
completed questionnaires and financial statements in a form specified by the Board. The
District may accordingly limit bids or proposals it receives to those contractors who are
prequalified.

Sec. 14.8 Emergencies.

California Public Contract Code Section 22050 authorizes special
contracting procedures in cases of “emergency.” An “emergency” for purposes of
Section 22050 is defined as a sudden, unexpected occurrence that poses a clear and
imminent danger, requiring immediate action to prevent or mitigate the loss or
impairment of life, health, property, or essential public services.

14-8

278



In the case of an emergency, as defined herein, the General Manager or
Designee, may repair or replace a public facility, take any directly related and immediate
action required by the emergency, and procure the necessary equipment, services, and
supplies for those purposes, without giving notice for bids to let contracts. The General
Manager, or Designee, must report to the Board at its next meeting required pursuant to
this Section 14.8, the reasons justifying why the emergency will not permit a delay
resulting from a competitive solicitation for bids and why the action is necessary to
respond to the emergency.

If the General Manager or Designee, orders any action specified herein,
the Board shall initially review the emergency action not later than seven days after the
action, or at its next regularly scheduled meeting if that meeting will occur not later than
14 days after the action, and at least at every regularly scheduled meeting thereafter until
the action is terminated, to determine, by a four-fifths vote, that there is a need to
continue the action, unless the General Manager or Designee, has terminated that action
prior to the Board reviewing the emergency action and making a determination. When
the Board reviews the emergency action, it shall terminate the action at the earliest
possible date that conditions warrant so that the remainder of the emergency action may
be completed by giving notice for bids to let contracts.

Sec. 14.9 Exceptions to Procurement Requirements.

a. Sole Source Exception.

Notwithstanding any provision in this Article 14, the procurement requirements
set out in this Article 14 shall not apply to the procurement of Articles,
Professional Services, Public Projects, or Maintenance that can only be obtained
from one supplier or contractor and for which obtaining quotes or bids is therefore
impossible or not in the public interest, such that no competitive advantage can be
gained by soliciting quotes or bids. Sole source contracts or agreements up to
$45,000 may be procured by the General Manager or Designee. The Board must
approve any source contracts or agreements of $45,000 or more.

b. Purchases when Price Controlled by an Official Rate-Making Body.

Whether approved by the General Manager or Designee, or the Board, the District
is authorized to procure services or Articles without quotation or bid if the price is
controlled by an official rate-making body such as is the case with wholesale
water from SDCWA, electricity, gas and telephone, and the services are provided
for in the operating budget.

Sec. 14.10  Local Procurements.
a. It is the District’s policy to encourage local businesses to provide goods and

services to the District in order to maintain a healthy local economy, to increase
local competition, and to lower core costs of goods and services. Local

14-9

279



preference for the procurement of eligible contracts may be allowed, so long as it
is not otherwise prohibited by funding sources, by providing a 5% local
preference where the purchase or contracts with a respective local vendor or
business during any fiscal year do not exceed $45,000. In order to qualify for this
local preference, a vendor or business must either (a) be a District rate payer in
good standing for the past six months, or (b) receive District utility services at its
business location for the past six months, paid by a third party.

Eligible procurements include those contracts which are not otherwise subject to
competitive bidding, including contracts for the following:

(1)  Purchases of Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles in the amount of
$45,000 or less, pursuant to Section 14.5(a).

Sec. 14.11 Sale of Surplus Property/Equipment and Scrap Metal.

a.

Surplus Property/Equipment. When it has been determined by the General
Manager that equipment is no longer appropriate because of capability, size, age,
etc., to fulfill the District's mission or if a particular piece of equipment is more
costly to maintain than to replace, the item will be disposed of through the next
scheduled San Diego County auction. Should property become surplus through
obsolescence or through a change in operating methodology, the excess property
will be disposed of, as determined by District staff, as follows:

(1)  To other public agencies on a bid basis;
2) San Diego County Auction, or
(3) Internet-based inline auction services.

Scrap Metal. The scrap metal which accumulates through the replacing of
damaged and/or unserviceable items in the course of District operations, shall be
sold as scrap to local scrap dealers at prevailing rates. Sales receipts shall be
miscellaneous revenues of the District.

Sec. 14.12 Use of District Credit Card.

There are certain transactions that are more efficient using a credit card
transaction. Examples include small purchases that are lower cost on-line, travel
arrangements, registration for training and other similar services.

The credit card shall never be used to circumvent established competitive
purchasing procedures. The credit card is prohibited from being used to purchase
items for personal use under all circumstances. Personal use of the credit card
will result in disciplinary action.

Authorized cardholders and credit card use shall be per the District Credit Card
Users Guide as approved by the General Manager.

14-10

280



Sec. 14.13 Contract Amendment Procedures.

As delegated by the Board of Directors of the District pursuant to the
provisions of the Public Utility District Act, the General Manager is authorized to issue
amendments to contracts as follows:

a. A purchase order or contract may be amended by the issuance of a change order
or amendment, provided the change which is the subject of the change order or
amendment is reasonably related to the scope of the original contract. The
General Manager may issue a change order or amendment which results in a total
contract price of $45,000.00 or less. The General Manager may request approval
authority from the Board to issue contract amendments for up to 10% of the total
contract value for specific projects with an initial contract value of greater than
$45,000.

b. When the cumulative sum of amendments to a contract would exceed the limits in

(a) above, a report of such amendments will be presented to the Board at its next

meeting. Upon acceptance of the amendments by the Board, the General Manager

shall have additional authorization to issue amendments as if the original contract
amount were the total of the original amount and all accepted amendments.

ARTICLE 14

Sec. 14,7 - Rev. 4/95

Sec. 14.10 - Rev. 3/96

Sec. 14.5(a), 14.6(a) & (d),
14.7(d} — Rev. 6/99

Sec. 14,11 — Added 10/05

Sec. 14.4¢(2), 14.10(c) &
14.12(g) — Rev. 6/06

Sec. 14.5(g) — Rev. 8/08

Sec. 14.4(e), Rev 01/09

Secs. 14.4(e)1,3.4,5(6);
14.5(a)(d); 14.6(c)(d); 14.7(d);
14.9(b); 14.11(c) — Rev. 2/10
Add Sec. 14.12 — Rev. 2/11
Secs. 14.4; 14.9 — Rev. 1/13
Secs. 14.4; 14.13 — Rev. 7/13
Sec. 14.4—-Rev. 5/15

Sec. 14.4(f), 14.9(c) - Rev. 1/16
All Secs. Repealed and Replaced
- Rev. 6/17

14-11

281



ATTACHMENT "3"

282



DISTRICT CREDIT CARD
USERS GUIDE

|
|
FOR |
|
|
|

S

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY
DISTRICT




District Credit Card

Objectives

The use of District credit cards instead of other payment options may result in:

¢ Reduced procurement and payment processing costs.

e Improved vendor relations by making “doing business” with the District easier.

* Enhanced internal control by better identifying specific employees making minor supply and
service purchases on behalf of the District and improving the accuracy of account distribution
between programs and projects.

* Taking advantage of cost-saving opportunities by purchasing on the Internet or through
catalogs.

¢ Enhancing the ease or education and training processes.

* Allow purchasing to focus on procurement of more significant items, which will help increase
quality control and improve pricing.

OBTAINING AND ACTIVATING A CREDIT CARD

1. Acredit card Request form is generated by the department director and forwarded to the
General Manager. The form is approved or denied by the General Manager and sent to the
Finance Department for processing.

2. Once the card is received, Finance Department will contact the newly approved cardholder
{“Cardholder”) to attend a mandatory training. During this training the Cardholder is given their
credit card along with a copy of this District Credit Card Users Guide.. The Cardholder will also
sign any Credit Cardholder Agreement required by the credit card issuer, Union Bank/1%
Bankcard.

3. The Cardholder will activate the credit card by following the instructions provided with the card.

NOTE: The issuance of District credit card in an employee’s name does not aliow Union Bank/1*
Bankcard to check the empioyee’s personal credit history. However, as part of the process for issuing a
credit card in an employee’s name, the District provides Union Bank/1" Bankcard, with the last four
digits of the employee’s social security number. The employee’s whole social security number will not
be provided to Union Bank/1* Bankcard. Should a Cardholder need to contact Union Bank/1* Bankcard
regarding billing questions, they will identify themselves using the last four digits of their social security

number.
SPENDING LIMITS and CARDHOLDERS

The below list provides positions eligible for District credit cards based off department needs and
staffing. The limit amounts in each category are expenditure limits and may not reflect that actual
amounts of the card limit. The listing of a position eligible for a District credit card in this Credit Card
Users Guide does not guarantee approval/ issuance of a District Credit Card.




1.
2.

8.

Supervisors (Collections Supervisor, Construction/Maintenance Supervisor, System Services Supervisor)

Single Purchase Limit: Not-to-exceed$2,500 per transaction including tax and shipping
/handling.

Monthly Transaction Limit: Not-to-exceed $5,000 per 30 day billing cycle and/or the limit of the
credit card.

Managers (Human Resources Manager, System Operations Manager, Chief Plant Operator)

Single Purchase Limit: Not-to exceed $2,500 per transaction including tax and shipping/handling.
Monthly Transaction Limit: Not- to- exceed $5,000 per 30 day billing cycle and/or the limit of the
credit card.

General Manager, Assistant General Manager, Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer,
Operations Manager, Warehouse/Shop Supervisor, Warehouse/Purchasing Specialist

Single Purchase Limit: Not-to-exceed $5,000 per transaction including tax and

shipping/handling.

Monthly Transaction Limit: Not-to-exceed $10,000 per 30 day billing cycle and/or the limit of the
credit card.

Processing and Payment Statements

Cardholders will:

Receive notification that their credit card statements are available.
Assemble all supporting documentation such as itemized receipts and/or packing slips, as well as
credit clips for returned items.
Match receipts/packing slips to the transactions listed on their card statement.
Verify the charges on the statement are valid: the good were received and were acceptable, the
price is correct, there are no duplicate charges, none of the charges have already been paid, and
none of the charges are fraudulent.
Enter required information on Reconciliation form (may be performed by a Cardholder proxy)
Mark the appropriate account/project/fund balances to ensure sufficient funds are availabie to
pay Cardholder department’s charges on the statement.
Assemble the credit card statement and supporting documents:

o Affidavit of fraudulent charges {if applicable)

o Credit card statement report

©  All ORIGINAL ITEMIZED receipts/packing lists {and credit memos, if any), preferably in

the order in which they are listed on the statement

o Statement of questioned items forms (if applicable)
Copy of approved Travel Authorization and Advance Request form (if applicable)

o Other documentation/checks requested by purchasing such as proof of competitive bids

or quotes (if applicable)

Sign the Credit Card Statement Report.

o}

[ Xl



9. If any transactions are being charged to another department’s account(s), route the Credit Card
Statement Report and attachments to the appropriate department(s) for required signatures.
After other department(s) sign, packet is returned to originating department.

10. Route credit card statement report with attachments to approving official for signature

approval.
11. Submit credit card statement report and attachments to Accounts payable for payment

processing.

Note: The use of the credit card shall never be used to circumvent established competitive purchasing
procedures. The credit card is prohibited from being used to purchase items for personal use under all
circumstances. Failure to comply with the requirements of this District Credit Card Users Guide may
resuit in disciplinary action.

Cancelling a Credit Card

if a District credit card is cancelled because the Cardholder is leaving employment with the District, the
Cardholder must:

1. Submit credit card receipts to their approving official.
2. Give credit card to the Human Resources Department.
3. The card will be canceled by the Finance Department once notified by the Human Resources

Department.

If a District credit card is cancelled for other reasons (not due to the Cardholder leaving employment
with the District) the Cardholder must:

1. Return the credit card to the Finance Department and request cancellation of the card.
Lost or Stolen Card

If a District credit card is lost or stolen, the Cardholder must immediately notify Union Bank/1™
Bankcard, the Cardholder’s approving official, and the Finance Department. If theft is involved, the
Police Department should also be notified.

e Contact Unicn Bank/1™ Bankcard at 1-800-819-4249
® Notify the Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer

Policy Violations

Cardholders who are found to be in violation of this District Credit Card Users Guide and/or District
procurement requirements face possible disciplinary measures including, but not limited to:

e Suspension or termination of credit card privileges
= Suspension or termination of employment
# Civil or criminal action




Suspension or termination of credit card privileges may be documented in the Cardholder’s personnel
file in the Human Resources Department. If the offense warrants possible suspension or termination of
employment, established District disciplinary guidelines will be followed. Questions

Questions regarding specific credit card procedures and this District Credit Card Users Guide should be
directed to the Finance Department.

Approved by:

Date: -

GENERAL MANAGER




MEMO
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jack Bebee, Assistant General Manager, J&l}
DATE: June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Replacement of 5 Wheel 3-Axle Tractor

Purpose

To present to the Board a request for the replacement of one 5% Wheel 3-axle tractor in
accordance with the approved District Fleet and Heavy Equipment Replacement
Program and associated budget.

Summary

As part of the District’s asset management plan to maintain reliable infrastructure, it is
important to have a reliable fleet and heavy equipment to support the replacement
program and the District's operational needs. In March 2015, the Board approved an
Off Road Heavy Equipment and Fleet Replacement Program to ensure reliability of the
District’s vehicles and equipment. In April 2017, the District provided some updates to
the plan to help prioritize equipment replacements. The District has also developed
scoring criteria to determine appropriate timing and prioritization of equipment
replacements.

District Field Equipment Replacement

The approved Field Equipment Replacement Budget includes the replacement of the
existing 5™ Wheel 3 axle tractor. The existing tractor is 26 years old and is in poor
condition. It is undersized to haul some heavy equipment and materials to job sites,
which can result in unsafe conditions or the need to drive off-road equipment to certain
job sites throughout Fallbrook. This equipment is critical to bringing larger pipe, valves
and equipment to and from the job sites.

The District issued a Request for Proposals (RFP), which was sent fo nine companies
that supply this equipment as well as advertised in the paper and on the District
website. Two companies bid the project. The bid results are inciuded in Attachment 1.
One company (San Diego Freightliner) provided two bids, one of which was compliant
with the equipment requirements specified in the RFP. The other was non-compliant
because it proposed an aluminum versus steel bed. The other company (Dion
International Trucks) provided a single non-compliant bid that did not include the
specified air lines to the trailer to support the braking systems for existing trailers. This
system would have to be added after market by the District with a substantial cost.
Accordingly, it is recommended that the District replace its existing Vehicle 1106 and
purchase one 5™ Wheel 3 axle day cab tractor from San Diego Freightliner in San Diego
for $138,754.93. $148,000 was budgeted for this item in the approved FY 16/17 budget,
which was carried forward into the 17/18 budget.

288



Recommended Action

That the Board approve the purchase of one 5 Wheel 3 axle day cab tractor for
$138,754.93 from San Diego Freightliner in San Diego, which was the lowest
responsive bidder, in order to maintain a reliable District fleet to complete necessary

infrastructure repairs and replacement.

289



Fallbrook Public Utility District

Summary of RFP 2017- 98
5" Wheel 3 Axle Day Cab Tractor
VENDOR Manufacturer LOT PRICE
{Tax Included)
San Diego Freightliner Option B Non-Compliant — $ 128,580.50

6006 Miramar Road,
San Diego, CA 92121
Delivery: 120-140 Days

2018 Freightliner
Model # 114SD

Specification: Galvanealed Steel Cab

Bidding: Aluminum cab w/steel reinforcement
(Aluminum softer metal than galvanealed steel and will
not hold up as well with construction use.)

Dion International Trucks
5255 Federal Bivd.

San Diego, CA 92105

Delivery: 98 Days

2018 International
Model #7600 SBA

$ 134,883.34

Non-Compliant —

Specification: air and electric lines will be provided
at back of cab and end of frame from the facfory lo
allow frailer towing capability.

Bidding: No Air Lines to end of frame.
{FPUD crews will not be able to tow all existing trailers
currently in fleet.)

San Diego Freightliner *
6006 Miramar Road,

San Diego, CA 92121
Delivery: 120-140 Days

Option A
2018 Western Star

Model #4700SB

$ 138,754.93 *

* Indicates Lowest Responsive Bid

NO RESPONSE FROM:
Rush Truck Center,
Inland Kenworth,

Transwest Truck Center,
Durham Pentz Truck Center,

Delta Truck Center,
Rincon Truck Center,
Southbay Truck Center,

Velocity Truck & Trailer,

Petro Stopping Center

290



Vehicle/Equipment Evaluation Form

990 E Mission Rd
Fallbrook, CA
Phone:(760) 728-1125
Fax:(760) 728-8491
Vehicle or Equipment VIN or Serial # 1HTSDNHN1MH348636
Vehicle or Equipment # 1106
Make: International Model: $4000 Year: 1991
Mileage: 112,987 Hours of Operation: N/A
Date of Evaluation: 6/15/2017 Evaluator: Todd Lange/Kerry Mehrens
System Points Comments
Age 28 Bujld date 10/17/1991
Miles Hours 11.2 112,987
Ppsiohsenics 5 Heavy Equipment /Pige
Reliabilty 3 Misc Repairs due to age
Maintenance Cosfts 5 (3) clutches/ {1) Transmission
Condition 5 Hood/Body Damage
Tota! Points 55.2
Age 1 point for each year of chronological age, based on in-service date
Miles/Hours 1 point for each 10,000 miles or 750 hours of use

Type of Service

Reliability

Maintenance Costs

Condition

1, 3, or 5 points are assigned based on the type of service that the vehicle had during most of its life. The more
severe the type of service performed the higher the number assigned.

1, 3, or 5 points are assigned depending on the frequency that a vehicle is in the shop for repair, The more the
frequency of shop visits the higher the number.

1to 5 points are assigned based on total life maintenance and repalr costs (not Including repair of accident
damage). A 5 is assigned to a vehicle with life repair costs equal or greater to the vehicle’s original purchase price
and a 11s given to a vehicle with life repair costs equal to 20% or less of its original purchase cost.

This category takes Into consideration body condition, rust, interler condition, accident history, anticipated
repairs, etc. a scale of 1 to 5 points is used with the higher the number the worse the condition.

291



Point Ranges
Under 20 points
20 to 23 points
24 to 30 points

31 or more points

Condition I Excellent
Condition II: Good

Condition I1I: Qualifies for replacement

Condition IV: Needs immediate consideration

Evaluator's Comments:

Engine: Needs new piston rings and compressor

Drivetrain: Transmission (3rd gear is missiong) Rear differentail needs rebuilding

Body: Fibergiass hood needs replacing/ numerous dents/damage to cab

292



293



=

Fallbrook FPublic
Utility District

990 East Mission Road
P. 0. Box 2290
Fallbrook, California
92088-2290

(760) 728-1125
Fax (760) 728-5943

Board of Directors:

Milt Davies
Jennifer DeMeo
Al Gebhart

Don McDougal
Charley Wolk

Staff:

Brian J. Brady
General Manager

Jack Bebee
Assistant General Manager

Marcie Eilers
Admin Services Manager

Paula de Sousa Mills
General Counsel

Robert H. James
Of Counsel to the District

Mary Lou West
Board Secretary

F:/Administrative Services/Treasurer/Treasurer's Reports/Treasurers Report.xis

Treasurer's Report
May 31, 2017

Money Market Account

Disbursements
Receipts

Interest

Balance as of 4/30/17

Balance as of 5/31/117

Operating Account

Disbursements
Receipts
Balance as of 4/30/17

Balance as of 5/31/17

All investments have been made in accordance with the District's
Annual Statement of Investment Policy.

4

Marcie Eilers
May 31, 2017

2,326,830.25

2,793,569.34

1,635,490.80

2,102,229.89

3,577,006.64
2,283,271.24
10,896.77

(1,282,838.63)

294



GZ'9SED SZ'9SE'9 - £49712T64T SILON 4402 TVIDNYNI YYT1Id4ILYD | £10Z/1/9 £10Z/1/9 1S3YALNI
0000L°T 00°00£2 - 5IX8TZT6 SILON AYNSYILLSN|LT0Z/TE/S  |LTOZ/TE/S 1S34aLNI
00°00E'£ 00'00E"L - [aa £:{4: AN J10N AYNSYIYL SN|LTOZ/TEfS  |L10T/1E/S 1S3H3LINI
00°000t 00°000'% - 9INMBZBITE SALON AMNSYIYL SN(LTOZ/TESS  |LTOZ/1E/S 1STHILINI
05°LE6'E 05'LEG'E - SIX8Z8IT6 SILON AYNSYIYL SN|LTOZ/TE/S  |ZT0Z/TE/S LSTHILINI
YT 60’z ¥Z'60F'T - OVM185559 (02 AN ONVINIA INVE YIQYON|LT0Z/0E/S  |210Z/08/S L1SIYILNI
¥Z'e0v'e YT 601'T - LZSV909ET 0D ANDINVE TVIMAdNE NVIAYNYD 1IZTOZ/0E/S |£TOZ/0E/S L1S3UILNI
05°£83'Z 054832 - $0399%L19 SAONO® ATINVLS NYDUOW|£T0Z/21/s  |£102/LT/s 1S3HILNI
0S'THE'Z 0S'TrE'Z - ZHEY9.99T SALON dHOD NOYAIHD|£T0Z/9T/S  |£102/91/S 1S3Y3ILNI
Y9 1vL'6 - e TA ] LAYITTEYT TV €-9T0Z SaV XVWUVD |LTOZ/ST/S  |£10Z/ST/S SNMOAAYd
05t 0S¥ - TOVXLBLLY EV V-L10Z LOQMLI0Z/ST/S | LT0T/ST/S LSTHILNI|
9t'9¢ 9t'9¢ - TIVNEBLLY £V 9-9T0Z S8V 34330 NHOr| LT0Z/ST/S  |2102/5T/S 1$3HILNI
£9°08 £9'08 - €IVIT68TY 1SNYL STNEVAITITY OLNY IVANNAH|LTOZ/ST/S  |L10Z/ST/S 1STH3LNI
85°0TT 8S0TT - LAVIFTERT TV €-910T S8V XYWYVD(LT0Z/ST/S  [L10Z/ST/S 1SFYILNI
TTZET TTTET - BAVITESYE £V v-£10Z OQYOd|LT0Z/ST/S  [£10Z/ST/S 1S3Y3LNI
LT'BIT LT6TT - 60YNTEZES £V 8-9T07 SAV VLOAQL|£TOZ/ST/S | £10Z/ST/S 1S3Y3LNI
SL'TY SLTh - 60YMLETZES £V I-9T07 SAY YLOAQL|£T0Z/ST/S  |LTOZ/ST/S 1S3Y3LNI
00502 00502 - ZAYMIEIZT 100d 1SNYL LNJNJINDI HND | £TOZ/ST/S | £T0Z/ST/S 1S3Y43LNI
09'988'6S - 09°'988'6S Z6JAVOETE SALON AINIDV JINVE NVYOTAWOH 1v¥3a3d|£T0Z/2T/S  |LT0Z/TT/S Ang
9501965 96'86 09'TTS'65 ENd]VDETE SILON B1Hd|£T0Z/2T/S  |£T0Z/TT/S T3S
052952 05°795C - SAV4TESSO 310N d¥0D LSNHL B DNINNYE HONYYHE|LT0Z/0T/S L10Z/01/S 15343LNI
§5'982'9%z SO'E8TT 05 EL0'SPZ ZIrY8TTST Q3 113NVE JLLTA2|LTOE/0T/S |210Z/8/S 1138
T0°SSS'0LT Tr8es 09°9T0°0LT 9/5828216 8/N AUNSYIHL SN LT0Z/0T/S  |210Z/8/S ANg
00°000°s2T - 00°000°SZ1T TASNZ0959 50430 1¥3D AN XNVE NDINHINIYON [ £T0Z/0T/S  |210Z/8/S ANg
$290Z'€ ST90Z'E - T430W8SZ0 S3LON dH02 L1934 SSTUIXI NYIIHIWY |LT0Z/S/S L10z/5/S 1SAHALINI
SL897'6¥2 - S/ '892'61T SZALBESI0 HIdVd INWOD AL 1N IHSIANSLIW OANOL XNVE | LT0Z/F/S L10Z/%/S T3S
00"000052 - 00°000°052 ONAAEISOS {2 AN JINVE INSLIN QWOLIWNS | £ TOZ/¥/S L10Z/€/s Ang
LY'6T LY'6T - ZODOAINOW ANNd LINYVIN AINOW | £T0Z/T/S L10Z/1/S 1S343LNI
1Z'6v9'22 - TT6VY9'LT 8XdSYIETE ZOSY 6WN-9TOT SAIYIS YNNG LT0Z/SZ/s | LT0T/T/S SNMOGAYd
1T 12¢ 11122 - 8XdSYIETE TOSY 6N-9T0Z SA1¥3S VINNA|£T0Z/SZ/S  [£L10T/T/S LSTHILNI

nowy|eio]| 1sa.9ju| paniay spaadold |edipund dIsnD uonduasag Alnasg 21eq 3|es s1egqapedl| adA| uopesuel)

£T0Z AR sucnoesuel] W4d

295



ECEIVE
| JUN -7 207

PUBLIC =y 2 W
AGENCY » Y, I'.T P LN
RETIREMENT = |J "\ N
SERVICES 5 W BY:
TRUSTED SOLUTIONS. LASTING RESULTS.
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT Monthly Account Report for the Period
PARS PosrEmployment Benefits Trust 4/1/2017 to 4/30/2017
Brian Brady
General Manager
Fallbrock Public Utility District
PO Box 2290
Falfbrook, CA 92088
Account Summary
Beginning Balance Ending

as of Balance as of
Source 4/1/2017 Contributions Earnings Expenses Distributions Transfers 4/30/2017
OPEB $738,5159.32 $0.00 $7,480.49 $153.86 $0.00 $0.00 $745,845.95
PENSION $600,292 46 $0.00 $4,516.63 $125.06 $0.00 $6.00 $604,684.03
Totals $1,338,811.78 $0.00 $11,997.12 $278.92 $0.00 $0.00 $1,350,529.98

Investment Selection

Source
OPEB Moderate Index PLUS
PENSION Moderately Conservative Index PLUS

Investment Objective

Source

The dual goals of the Moderate Strategy are growth of principal and income. It is expected that dividend and interest income will comprise a
OPEB significant portion of total retum, although growth through capital appreciation is equally important. The portfolio
will be allocated between equity and fixed income investments.

The dual goals of the Moderately Conservative Strategy are current income and moderate capital appreciation. The major portion of the assets is

PENSION committed to income-producing securities, Market fluctuations should be expected.
Investment Return
\‘/ Annnpalized Retarn
Source I-Month 3-Months 1-Year 3-Years 3-Years 10-Years Plan's Inception Date
OPEB 1.01% 1.37% - - - 2/16/2017
PENSION 0.76% 0.83% . - 2/16/2017

Information as provided by US Benk, Trustee for PARS; Not FDIC Insured; No Bank Guarantee; May Lose Value

Past perfermance does not guarantee future results. Performance returns may not reflect the deduction of applicable fees, which could reduce returns. Information is deemed reliable but mey be subject to
change.

Account balances are inclusive of Trust Admiristration, Trustee and Investment Meanagement fees

Tnvestment Return: Annualized rate of return is the return on an investment over a period other than one year multiplied or divided to give a comparable one-year return,

Headquarters - 4350 Von Karman Ave, Suite 100, Newport Beach, CA 92660  800.540.6369  Fax 949.250.1250 WWW.DAIS.0IE

296



T @bed 0OTOTLBT Junooy

OT1 wawabeue J9ssy W4d

TY'9T8'cRs

00°0
000
(29'THb's09)
S8'96€'/E
19'59/ b€
98°'GET'555
00'0

E%T vy >

oT'svZ’oz$

sbujwiey siseg [enioy [e30L

(v0'21£'89)
(¢g'62L'652"pT)
(z9'1H+'509)
19°59°p¢
§8'96€'/E
98'S£T'655

_.._’_.m_m A DHTTHE'SS

souejkg yse) Gujsold

suopoesues] Bulpucoay
uonnqliueod yse) 19N

S9SeyIINgd AUndss

sjuawAey |edipulg

BWICOUT puapialgisalaqul/uodnoyy
Spas00id afeg

slien/sanuniey

LT0T ‘1€ Aely Guipuz yyuopy a1y Jog

69°€65°0/2°pT

LB'T96'SES

Is943u] panuoy Buuuibeg ssa

S9ONJAS JO anjeA paznJowy Buuubag sson
SOSRLDING MIN JO 1500 5597

PRAIRORY spuapiaga/suadnoD snjg

sjuswied [edipuug/sijed/saturael jo spaadold snid
$8[eS WOy SPaddcld snid

1s_4s3u1 panJooy Buipug

SBRLINJaS JO anjeA paziyowy Guipug

sbujwez siseq ysed |01

{9'ESH
(z+'8£9)
79°/b0'aE

LTTOVPLTYTS k«lllfjm mm?..sé

$95507/SuUleD pazZijeay JoN sh|d
suodno)fisa=u] 0) PajERY ISISIUT PISEUDING S5
PaAR8Y SUONOD/SPURPIAIG/AS2IaUT

anjep yayel buisol)

81'882°0¢2
00'0
0Z'€06'409
(58'£58'¢5S)
(sg'965'/5)

65°T96'6EZ'YT$

JuswWale)s AJewung Junodoy pabeuepy

anjea uaLny Uy sbuey)
$9pel] pamesun
suopisinboy jedpurg
suogisedsiq jedpuug
s||eD/senungey

enjeA 1uely buiuedg

09TOL8Z - OTIO41MOd LNFWLSIANI - Andd

wyd @



¢ sbed QOTOTL8T WNo1Y

311 Juawabeuely 1955y INdd

SIEBA § BAD Sigep S - SlevAb-§ SIBIAE -2 SEAL-T SYUOW 2T -9 SHUOW 9 -0
%00 T T T e
]
%%0"5T
TZ0T Amel 03 sAeq abesaay payBlam
%1602
£9C ISIOM 0] uofedng i
Lo
%E9'T el 18 Ajlniely 01 PiRIA ST
%0L°T 1507 12 ALmel 03 PRIA B
LRGBS
00'0 000 sapriL popIesun
%50
%Ll 6T QWD Ausby pad
230N jesodicy” - %T0°6
%0L'0_ - 910N 68'EFTOEEPT  E£E9TO'SLTVI ol[ojHod [e10L
Jaded [eplawwe) / puog ABy pad 7958’55 SoRgu] Aoy
%00'00T ZZTOV'VLTYT EE'OTO'BLT VT =0 1-gns Junodoy pabeuel
uonebiqo SbebHOW
SE'S 8T'L1S'E9L #6999/ pazieisiefio) / Apnoas pavoeg-19ssy
Sb'9z #6'181'94L°C 00°000's82'E ysodaq Jo 3eIED
0L0 0£°95t'66 00°000°00T Jadeq [eniswILIOT
V62 6£°6T9'90C'F 00°000°ZFT’Y 20N 2esodio)
06 0£°865'£8¢°T 00°000°562'T 210N / puog Auaby jeszpad
%aﬁtmu uonebigo
E00aq 40 1=) _ %iy'8T . "Zop" ‘05¢” abebyioy pazjelane]jo] Auaby e
%SE'S 10N / PUOG ASL SN vm.o mo.NmJR ) mn.cmm.R . HOW PaZijessie]|o]) Y | _uwu_
ouwo / sav — '8 £6'995'€90'F 00°000'5+0" 3JoN / pueg Ainseall 'S’
WIDd  SnjeA JeN anjeA Jed uonduosag

L10Z ‘1€ Aepy Buipug Luo a4 404

SopISPEls pue Alewwng ojjojHod

0010182 - OTOALYOd LNIWLSTANI - Ned

. PN CHRSVRTR Y

wyd @




o
¥ 9bed 00TOTLST Junoooy 11 uswabeue 19ssY W4d AOI.J

%00°00T LTTOV'PLT'PTS jej0L
€L°C ¥E'S/S'68E ANYdIWOD B O STTAM
9p'8¢ £6°995'€90" AdNSYIUL S31Y1S QILINN
80'T S6°6bSPST SITAVATEIIY OLNY VLOAOL
880 1S'9€0'SZT JANYE NDINHONTHON JHL
' CTELS'YSE NOLLYHOdY0D NOTIIW NHOA MIN 40 MNvE JHL
LT P LEL VR ANYE ANOYHONAS

JUaouad sBuipjoH Jo {onssy

snjep jaye

0010787 ; OTIOAL40d ININLSIANI - e

wyd @

LT0Z ‘T€ Aepy Buipuz yyuoly sy Jog Alewwing 19nssT JUnoddy pabeuey



=]

£ abeqd DOTOTLSZ 1UNCI0Y 571 uawabeue 19ssy W4d m
o1 09'629'661 gV NDINVESTIANYH VISNIAS
SCT 05'20£'052 ONI dNOYS WIINYNIH INSLIW OWOLIWNS
€T BO"BEC LPT VIONI 40 YINvd 31V1S
€T 96"€92'9¥T NVE SONIAVS LNOONOY
6T 89'£65°182 v YNvd VAGUON
00'v £0'9160/5 ATINVLS NYOUOW
e 29°00T°98¢ 0D ® 3SYHD NVDUOW dC
St'0 59'956'19 1SMYL ¥INMO Td33a NHOL
00 0£°954766 AN dNoYD ONI
S0 ST69V'FL STAVAIDTY OLNY IVANNAH
¥0'T T1'60¥'162 ONI dNOYUD SHOVS NYIWA109
80'C 06'616'962 VW 310034
90 vE'101'S6 1SMYL HINMO OLNY LIGTHD QuOo
€1 7S'£62'HT SNVE ININOSTY LSHI
89'T 07" T8K 657 SHINVE NYOT IWOH Tvyaaad
18'S 67°659'928 3vi4 JINNYA
S0t 8.°Z5H°05T 1Sl INIWAINDI HND
. 0L'0 09'550°001 ONI dNOYILLID
o — e b0 S0°E2H'021 FONVNSST Qv LIGTHD YNVELLD
7Y 0L'0 00°902°00T ONI dNOYD LD
%LST . (1) &4 Ob'TLb'66C NOLLYYO4H0D NOWATHD
1V —_ 00"t 880148 ONI WV TIIdHALYD
#e €20 9g'pRS E0T 1SNYL YANMO OLNY XYWAVD
9%'c 62'65L'€6V d¥0D TVIONVNIJ INO ILdVD
L6'T 89°/65'182 IOUTWIWOD 40 MNVE WIHIdWI NVIAYNYD
05'T 02'£99'€12 J4 VINYS NHIHLHON NOLONITSNG
\ 88'€ 0T'SET'pSS NOLLYNOJY0D 188
1 2 w o TRETP 96’1 0Z'98108¢C VLLODS YAON 4O MNvd
o — M..ﬂ. . 86'T 91°1£0'28¢ TYTULNOW 40 NV
- | — ygga €1 $6'€20'Lb2 vaodva 40 Nvd
N S%s 0T £9'0 Ly L9E'06 JONVNI YANOH NVOTU3WY
A _ UN £L°€ 65 b ZES 0D SSTdXE NVOTYIWY
v Wusdied sDUIPJOH JO JONSST
snjeA Hﬁu—._ﬂz
ooﬁ_oﬂnwm - OTIO4.10d INJWLSIANI - ANdd
10T ‘T Aol Buipug Yjuoly 2u3 Jod EMEE_.-W JONSST JUN0DY —wﬂmﬂ-._ﬂz

wyd @



1

o
5 o624 00TOTLBT N0y DT1uawsbeuep 19ssy Wid en

610Z/10/90 %S8L°T 9T02/10/90 aLa

60T LL ZUOBR'// SO'STT SO'T  9ZHZIRL quins/an  QT/G0/90 eey W 6LOSEZL AXASYIFTE ZOSY 6W-9T0Z S3T¥3S YN
£6°995'E90'Y SSTTLLOY LovIS's T ST'SPS'880°Y 00°000'St0'Y = L-qns adAL Ayunoag
TZ0Z/TE/0T %052°'T 9T0Z/TE/OT QLG

SLPIT'SHT LL'0TT'ThE vLTLZ 01T ET'E0L'0bT LT/9T/E0  LTHT/ED eey +v¥  00°000°052Z £91878216 SALON AYNSYTIL SN
1202/1£/80 %000°¢ +102/20/60 QLA

00°0S2'S0F 8E'T/TTO ¥£'120°C Z6'T  STO0FTOF 9T/S0/ZT  9T/TO/2I eey +¥¥  (00°000'00p 2/08Z8T16 SALON AYNSYIUL SN
1202/1£/£0 %0SZ'T bT0Z/TE/LD ALA

16'068'10E #8'865'00€ 19'812°2 84T  S£'89T°T0E 9I/EIT  9LfTYTT eey +YV 007000'S62Z TAMSEZBZTS /N AdnSvIdL sn
TZ0/TE/Z0 %SET'T 9102/T0/80 A1A

00'90Z°TLT 96°980°0/1 90"859 £8'T  09'9T0°0LT LI/0T/S0  £1/90/50 eey W 00'000°SLT 9/S8TATI6 /N AdNSYIL SN
TZ0Z/1E/50 %000°Z ¥10Z/20/90 QLA

09'£89'S0F PI'6ZE TTE 98'1Z £TT  ETNZSETH 9T/SO/OT  9T/0/O0T eey +¥v 00'000°00% INMBZSZTE SALON A¥NSYIL SN
T2Z02/0£/b0 %SLE°T 9102/20/50 QLA

P28 TEE 86'T1E6'92E #5°00% 98T Z1'92€'8Z¢ LT/S0/T0  £1/€0/10 ey +¥  00°000'SEE 80828716 SILON AMNSYIYUL SN
TZ0Z/OEPD %SLE'T 9T02/Z0/50 aLa

09°665 8T 0b'SSZ°2bT SE'6LT 98'T  91'SE0°ZbT LT/€0/20  L1/10/20 eey +¥¥  00°000°0ST BZOBZITI6 SALON AYNSYIIL Sn
0Z0Z/0E/TT %000°Z £T0Z/20/21 A1d

2901 OT'ETT {vs 68°6E I€T  TL66Z'T5L 9L/62/H0  9T/LTiVD eey +9Y  00°000°08L THYIZATT6 ALON AdNSYIL SN
0Z0Z/0E/90 %SZ9'T S10Z/0£/90 ala

Ob'eoy’1ze 68'SLb'VTE EST'T 91T  00°00£'SZE ST/ZOTT  SU/TO/ATT eey +vv  00°000°0ZE 8HXAZETTE SA1ON AHNSYIHL SN
020Z/1£/S0 %005°T 5T0Z/T0/90 A1a

£9'85£'529 SO'0T8TES [490 ¥4 90'T  E£L'69H°CES 9T/20/60  9T/T0/6D eey +¥¥ 00°000'SZS SINBTBZT6 SALON AMNSYIUL SN
0Z0Z/TE/S0 %00S'T ST0Z/10/50 Ala

02'025'09¢ 09°T89'99¢ S£'PT £8'0  69H0L'89E 91/62/90  91/£Z/90 eey +vv  00°000°09 SAX8T8TI6 SILON AYNSYIYL SN
0T0Z/TE/T0 %SLE°T £TOZ/TE/T0 ALa

Z9°E86'v0T 44 NGR‘SNT 85728 L0'T  SE'S8T'S0T gr/an/sn ar/cnsen eey +¥¥ 00°000°S0T Z1NQZ]ZTA SALON AUNSYIUL SN

onjep 150D ISRL 150D je 380D 9jeq aReq bunjey bBuney Jeg disno AlInjely juocuno) fajeq pajeq

e pazpowy pany Wia  jewbug MRS Spell sApooly dms uopdioseq fedAl Aundas

00TOT/8Z - OIIOALNOd INIWLSIANI - ANl

£T0T ‘1€ Aep Buipuz yjuoly suy 104 PIoH S9NLINOYS JO jieloq JuUnoddy pabeuey m”” _




g afed 0OTOTZST JUNOXY

9T1uBwWabeueRAj 195SY Ndd

6T0Z/T0/2T %0SZ°Z PIOZ/T0/ZT ALd

$b'880°1LS 09°0VL VLS SZ'95£9 9.1 OFIST'LLS SIFTVO  STPZ/O EY ¥ 00'000°59S €4971Z164T SILON dH0D TYIONYNIH ¥y THEALYD

610Z/T0/0T %00L'+ 6002/+2/60 LA

0Z'L99'ETZ 9L'98L FTT £9995°T 8T 00°0BL'0ZZ ot/80/90  9T/E0/90 £y ¥ 00'000°00T £09168121 40D HLYN NOLSNITHENG

6102/£0/90 %050°T 9102/60/90 A1Q

09'55000T 65'¥96'66 £8°066 0T 00'8p6'65 91/60/90  91/20/90  1eed +994 00°000°00T 651496241 SA1ON d40D INI dNOYSLLID

610Z/9T/50 %195°T 910Z/9T/S0 LA

b 1V 662 00°000'00E £1°G6T 95T  00°000°nNs qQriaticn AT/RN/GH 7ey v 00'000°00E ZHBr9/99T S4LON 4400 NOWAIHD

0£'965'£82°T 9E'TLT'E6T'T ZT'E0S'E ST'T 00°80ST6T'T 00'000°'S6Z°T I=oL-qng adA)L Aunoes

0Z0Z/8T/20 %00S°T £T0Z/82/20 QLd

90'061°5T2 06'E£8912 12°S18 76T 0FT98'PIZ LUgeie0  LTivefeo eey +Yv 00°000°S1Z 6CL0OSETE SILON VIINA

6T0Z/#2/07 %000°T 9102/52/0T QiQ

25'995°752 66"L/E"VST 80'79¢ OT'T  08'$ZT'PSE eT/ST/T  STHT/OT eey +¥¢  00°000'S52 6EHDDSETE SA10N TWEOTD AW JINNYS

6T0Z/6T/L0 %5£8°0 910Z/0Z/20 Q1A

06'616'96€ L1 T8H'662 05'296 96°0  00'bLT'66T 9T/0Z/20  9T/6T/LD eey +vv 00°000°00€ 193vALETE 310N IINTUIITY IWTHA

6102/82/50 %S2E'T £T02/2T/50 Ala

#6'9€0°09 ££'688'65 ¥S'EF LT 09°988°6S LUITTISO LT/TT/S0 eey +yv  00°000°0% Z6JEVOETE  SALON ADNADY JNVE NYOY IWOH Tvd3das

610z/92/20 %000°T 9T0Z/€¢/20 ALA

9 THE8T 6£°889'p82Z 80'25L 90'T  SS'S6V¥BT 9T/62i0  91/4ZiH0 eey +¥¥ 00°000°58¢C €SI0DSETE 1ON NUVINHONIE YIANL

6T0Z/91/10 %052'T 9T0Z/80/2T LA

IT'TT6'+1T ST'966'+TT 90'6£5 SZ'T  OP'S66'L1T oT/80/21  9T/LDfZT eey +vv  00'000°STT 9LIVVOETE SALON aTHd

BT0Z/20/80 %5290 9702/80/£0 QLA

SIPeeHa 66'E9R'P9 SO'HZT 080 526949 9T/Z0/80  ST/T0/80 eey +vv  00°000°S9 ENdBYOETE S310N SHS
anjep 3503 asadsul 3soDje 350D ajeq ;qeq bupey bupey Jed dIsnd Aame fucdno) /aaeq pajeq

5L P pazjIowy panoy WLA  [ewbHO amIes apell SApoOW d9S uonduoseaq fedAl faunoas

00TQT8Z - OTIOALYOd LNWLSIANI - ANl

LT0T ‘T€ Aep Buipug yjuop auj Jog

PISH SPILINDIS JO [1e39( JUNoDY pabeuely

wyd

AN
=]
™



™
£ 254 0OTOTLST Wnoooy DT uewsabeuey jassy Wid w

0E"9SY'66 00'88€°66 000 9'T  00'8Z6°86 00°000°00T 12301 -qns adA] Aunsos

LT0Z/T0/TT %000°0 L102/90/20 aLa

0£'95P°66 DO'RAFAR 000 oF'T  00'S76°R6 /tianizg 21/90/20 T-d ¥ 00000'00T OTADAY Airty HAdVd WIKOD OT1 ONIANAA (SO) ONT

6£°6T9'00T'Y TO'665P0T'y TE'9T6'LT TIT 00'169'8ZT'v 00°000°Z¥1 'Y IejoL-qns adAt Aundag

ZZ0Z/10/bD0 %0S2°Z £10Z/T2/E0 QLA

0T'365°H0¢ 95'002°20¢ LUP09'T 657 00'S9Z'ZOE LT/90/F0  LT/E0/0 o ¥ 00°000°00E TXYHTESSD SALON 0D 188

TZ0Z/LT/TT %SZ9°7 9T02/£1/TT aLa

Z0°09b'0zT 98'/96'91C BS'$ZT 96'T 00'SSL'9TT LT/E0/Z0  £1/T0/20 £y +899 00°000°0Z¢ $A3AGHLT9 SANOE ATINVLS NYDUOW

1Z0Z/0T/50 %050° 9T0Z/0T/S0 ALQ

00'LES"642 9" 89R'6HT 96'867 90°C  DO'SES'6FT 91/91/50  9T/0T/SD ra g v 00000052 SAVHTESSO 3LON dH03 LSMYL 8 DNDINYE HINYYE

T202/90/S0 %0SZ'Z 910Z/S0/50 O1a

26'65¢°S8¢ £6°THT'987 ETEoF £1'7  S6'BS5°987 9T/0T/S0  91/50/50 44 ¥ 00'000°S8T T930W8SZ0 SALON dHCD 11QTUD SSAYdXT NYITITiY

T202/SZ/H0 %5292 9102/SZ/v0 a1d

@gvTvo)

TT'60¢' 162 92'685'S62 SZT'19L 11’2 OT'ER9°96Z 91/51/80  9T/01/80 £y +699 00'000°062 SNADTHTSE AN d¥00 INI 449 SHOVS NYWaA10D

1202/12/v0 960052 9102/T2/%0 ALa

S0'95+°0SE 62'E09°'1SE 7226 8€'C  00'600°ZSE ST/ET/SO  9T/0T/S0 £y +9499 00°000°0SE OvagoL19 SALON dH0D ATINVLS NYDUOW

0Z0Z/L0/71 %0SS'Z ST0T/£0/Z1 AL

PES/5"6RE 6+'S80°06E ETSPL'Y 9T’z  S9'6/S'T6E 91/62/P0  9T/LZIVD (44 ¥ 00'000°S8E SUOAL/ 646 SALON ANVJINOD B 0DYvd STIIM

0E0Z/22/L0 %00b'y 0T0Z/22/£0 1A

79°001'98¢ LEVEERY EQELTL TET  0E'S90°E6r 9I/6Z/P0  9T/LT/H0 £ ¥  00°000'SSH ZSHHSZ99t SALON 02 B ASYHD NYSHOW dr

0Z0ZHZ/Z0 %0ST'Z ST0ZfFefz0 ala

ZT'ELSFSE 05°160°2ZSE ar'e£0°'z P12 OE'SH1'ZSE ST/Z0/0  ST/L0/L0 v v 0D'000°25¢ 0Z2HO0K50 10N dd02 (F18VTIVI} NOTI3IW ANG

020Z/¢T/20 %000°2 £102/91/20 ALq

/B 79F°0R T1e'v88'68 [agerds N7 N7'TIR'ER L1/9T/20 FAYi A ¥rdi] v +Y N6 ZWEMS99Z0 AINYNT WONQH NYITHIWY
SnjeA 0 IsSaqur 1503 je 150D a3eq a1eq ouRey buney Jed dISnD Ajpinyen s uoano) rareg pojeq

> 11 paziowy PanIaY WiA  JeuiBug 9RIeS apell sdApool d3s uondposag /adAL Ayindas

_ooﬁoﬁmm - oH._ou_.Eon. INIWLSIANI - and
LT0Z ‘1€ Aep Buipug yuopy awp Jog PISH S9RLIND?S JO |1239Q JUn020Y pabeuep

e i S F E Ny -SRI

wyd @




g abed 00TOTZST uno2Y

71 Wawabeuely 1955Y W4id

09°20E"05¢ 00°000°052
0Z"981°082 00000°08¢
91'1£0'28¢ 00000°08C
09°6£9°66T 00°000°002
80'BETLHT 00°000°SHE
89'£65'182 00'000°09¢
29'/69'T8¢ [£413:4:744
S6'ET0°LKE 00°000°StC
YL LEL BT 00°000°SP2
TIE8I'9FE 00°000°SPE
T5°L62'9C 00°000°5HT
96'€9T'9FC 00°000°SkE
00°80Z°00T Q0°000°00T
15°9€0°52T 00°000°52T
ShieA 0D
1Ry pRZijjowy

£10Z ‘1€ Ael Bujpu3 wpuoly au3 Jod

8L°PBE

16718

69°££9°T

00°0LF'T

S0LZ'2

8e'Le

69'ET

58749

LE'EES

6L EHTT

£0'280°T

S6'89T°T

0T THe

6901

I542uL
pen.oy

50¢

6T

06’1

T6'T

96°1

¥LT

8L

96'T

50°¢

o't

[

E'T

80°T

350D je
WLA

00°000°052

00°000°08T

00°000°082

00°000002

00°000°S¥E

00°000°08Z

09 18L'6LT

00°000°SkE

00°000°5¥2

00°000°SHZ

00°000°SHE

00°000°5¥2

00°000°00T

nnaan° ezt

50D
reubuo

LT/#0/50

L1190/+0

L1/60/20

FASATA0)]

ET/6L/T

ST/S0/CT

ar/50/21

£1/62/0T

£1/52/01

S1/Z1/80

ST/62/10

ST/

ETAT/ED

/TIOTISO

=eq
apes

LT/£0/50

LT/S0/b0

L1/80/20

LT/OT/TO

ET/61/2T

9¥/10/T1

91/10/21

£1/62/0T

ET/5C/0T

SI/Z1/80

ST/62Z/10

STT0

ET/F1/E0

£1/80/50

a3eq

opell SsApool dWES

144

ey

£eY

ey

uN

ey

£ey

N

N

I-d

N

dN

N

v

+v

+v

N

+Y

N

N

(4]

UN

N

N

v

(0°000°052

00°000°082

00-000°08¢

00700000

00°000°5bT

00°000°082

00'000°082

00°000°S¥

00°000°5H¢

00°000°SHE

00'000°5H2

00'000°5+¢

00°000°00T

00°000°S2T

oupey bupey Jed

ONAAEDISO8

93INDLTHS0

ENDILEFO0

SHHIB5698

GAAEBTISS

9YM185559

£7SV909¢ET

PAITI090

OWSOLSTIE

9NSICHOPT

€0VLLTIEE

bdVEZESLL

8d9VPBELT

TasNZo9s9

dISnd

00TO1/8Z - OF1

6102/£0/50 %050°T L10Z/p0/50 QLA
a2 AN JINYE INSLIW OWOLIWNS

6102/50/+0 %016'T £102/90/p0 AL1Q
@2 11 NOLSNOH YLLODS VAON 40 JNvé

6102/£0/20 %088°T L10Z/60/20 QLA
$0d30 L¥3D 0DVIIHD TvIULNGHW =0 Nve
610Z/01/10 %068'T £T0Z/21/10 ALa
a2 17 AN NDINVESTIANYH VISNIAS

8T0Z/8T/ZT %050°C £10Z/81/21 QLA
a2 L1 VIONT 30 3NV 2LV.S

S10Z/0E/1T %0041 9102/50/21 AL
@ AN ONVINI NVE VIQUON

8102/0£/TT %09£°T 9102/50/2T 41a
a2 AN YINVE TVIYIdWI NVIQYNYD

8102/62/0T %0S0°T £102/82/01 ALa
aD 11 vaodva 40 MNvS

BT02/S2/0T %0ST' £10Z/92/0T QLA
@ 171 YNYE ANOUHINAS

8T0Z/ET/80 %004'T 57102/21/80 41Q
@D 17 YN VS ¥NVE GNO TWLL4VD

8102/0£/£0 %00E'T 510Z/82/10 ALJ
a2 L73INYE 3DUN0STY LSuld

9102/£2/£0 %0SE'T STOZ/EZ/T0 Ala
{2 17 }NvE SONIAYS LNOANOY

8T02/ET/€0 %00T T €102/€1/£0 A1Q
a2 17 XNve 112

£LT0Z/0T/1T %00t°T £102/0T/50 Q1
S0dIA LHID AN MNvE NDINHONTHON

Aumel fuocdno)/eqeq pajeqd
uopdiasaqfadAy Aundas

- sl e it

PISH S31LINJ9S JO [Ie3aQ Junoddy pabeuepw

O4.L¥0d INJWLSIANI - dNd

wiyd @

<
=]
™



n

=]

6 9624 0OTOT ST oy OT1 wswabeuely 1955V Wid on)

LTTOV'PLT YT

69°€65'0LZ'pT T9'I¥E'sS 0L'T SO0'0ST'SOEDT EEOTO'SLT YT I=01-qns Juncooy pabeuew

8T LIS'E9L 6¥'FEQ'EL ST'TIET'T IS'T  T0'V09°E9s YS'S99°€9L je3oL-qng adA) Aunoss

1Z02/51/90 %0491 £102/52/T0 QLA

PETOT'SE 0£'666'F6 1502 9T  59'666°F6 LUSTe  LT/8T/TO0 eey UN  00°000'S6 8AVATESHE EY V-LT0Z OHO4

T202/ST/H0 %062°T 9T02/T2/60 dla

ST69b'bL 19°T66°FL o0'Er 0E'T  T16'686'L 91/12/60  9T/b1/60 ey YWY 00°000'S £OVATESH 1SNl SITEYAEDTY OLNY IVANNAH

TZOT/ST/H0 %08L'T £102/20/€0 ald

6'S80°0E 20°966°67 €L'ET 6L'T £/'S66'6Z LT/0/50  L1/TEiR0 eey ¥N  00°000°DE TOVXLBL /b €Y v-£10Z 100r

T202/£1/10 %0b£'T £102/52/10 A1d

SO'ETH 0TI 00°000°02T 00°5TL SLT  T0'LL6'6TT L1/92/T0  L1/61/10 eey vvY 00'000°02T LYDIAS0ELT TV V=107 11020

0202/51/80 %0F1'T 9T0Z/0T/80 A1Q

SO'TLL W 207666+ 08'ze PI'T  6L°866'FF gT/01/20  91/10/80 eey Y¥Y 00°000'Sk 6aYM/ETES £V D-9T02 58Y VLOAOL

020Z/ST/£0 %0¥9°T £102/22/€0 dLa

87°25p'051 ob'H66°6T £E°60T 08'T  bTH66'6HT LT/E2IE0  LT/ST/ED eey YvY 00°000°0ST ZAVMIEITT 700d 15M4L INFWAINGT HND

0202/5T1/90 %0SZ'T 9102/£2/L0 ALa

9T 188'E 26°L66°FE ¥61 STT  TTL66'E ST/£ZIL0  9T/6T/LD eey YN 00°000'SE COVNSSL /v £V €-9107 S9v I¥33a NHOL

0Z0Z/ST/¥0 %00€°T 9T0Z/TT/50 ALC

06'82L'60T £1°966'607 95’9 0t  BE'H66'60T 9T/TT/SO  9T/Z0/S0 eay Yvv 00°000°01T 6aYNTEZEE £ 9-5T0Z Sav V.LOAOL

610Z/S1/80 %0/T'T 9102/02/£0 QLA

9E"PRS'E0T /8°659°€0T T6'€5 8T'T 80'/66°ratr atinzi/Q 91/p1/L0 N WY b5'S99°E0T FAYILTEHT TV £-010Z S XYY

Y6 IST'9LL'E ZT'SES'PSLE 81991 ST 09"I8L'vSL'E 00°000°s52°E lejol-qns adAL Aypndes

6102/21/80 %000°2 STOZ/Z1/80 QLA

81°9/S'2bE 00°000'S¥e 6T'E'T P6'T  00'000'SHT ST/2T/®0  ST/Z1/80 T-d Y 00°000'Ske 83N0EHOPT 2 LT VN VSN NYE 3NO WILdYD

610Z/t2/10 %000°C FTOZ/FE/L0 Ala

LIPBY'LPT 00°000°StZ aFRTL'T 6T 00°000°SHZ vL/SZi0 BLISTID T-d ¥ 00°000°SHZ 60VIL8520 @D 171 9S4 N9 SSTHAXA NYDITHIAWY
anjep 0D isatajuy 1s0Dje 350D aeq sjeq Dunpey bujky dJed dIsnd Aumep fuodno) fejeq pajeq

e paziowy pPenyy WLA  [eu|buo ames speil sApooW dWS uopduosaqfadAl Aapnoag

£Y0T ‘T€ Ae Bujpu3 yjuop 3wy Jod

00TOTZ8Z - OIIO41MOd INIWLSIANI - AN

PISH SPRHNDAS JO [1€39Q JuNcoY pabeuep

wiyd @



o

O 2624 00TOTZEZ N3y J71 uswebeueyy 1955y Nid %
68'EPTOCEYTS SJUSLLISOAU]Y [EI0L
Z9'1pe'sss ISRJSIU] PRNIIDY
LTIV PLT'PTS  69E6S'0LT'PTS 79'1vB'sSS %04 T SO0ST'SOE'FTS £EOTO'SLT'PTS [2101-GNS SONUNISS

LT0Z ‘1€ Aew Buipug yjuop sy Jod PIoH SPRINIDS JO |1e3aq Junoddy pabeuen w”” _




N~
o
1T S6ed 0OTOTLST ooy D11 wawabeue y9ssy Wid o)

+9'T 18T 960 (c0°8L£) (£1'Z99) 60T LL 6L0SE 2L I=joL-qns edAL Aunaas
6T02Z/T0/90 %5847 9102/10/90 Q14
bo'T 81 95N (£0°'8/8) (£L1°799) 607967/ HTOAT 8450 620587/ 8XdSY9ETE ZOSY 6W-9T0Z SATUIS Wik
£5°T IS'E IS'E {1s'855°eT) {1z°9£6'%) £6°995'€90°Y 00°000°S10’y I=0L-qns adAj Ayunoos
TZ0Z/TE/OT %0SCT 9T0Z/TE/0T Ala
01 2% (' 86'E01"F 9IS SLYTTSHE 60'86 JdYOLID 00'000°0S2 £91928216 S3LON A¥NSYIHL SN
T20Z/TE/80 %000°Z #10Z/20/60 QLA
89'T 0¥ wd T9°8L6'E SLEPR'E 00'05Z°S0F 12101 ASNVHOW 00°000°00t [£14):74:74 (] SALON AUNSYIYL Si
120Z/T£/20 %OST T ¥T0Z/TE/20 QLA
97 Pe'E ¥6'€ 202621 91'229 16°068°T0E vEZ0T T¥vd dNE 00°000°S67 ZAMBTSTI6 A/N AUNSYIUL sn
T20Z/1€/L0 %STT'T 9102/10/80 ALa
£9°1 £0'F £0F #0'0Z1'1 0F'68T°1 D0'90Z'T/T £8°26 MOLLD 00°000°SLT 9/S828716 A/N Adnsvayl sn
T20Z/TE/S0 %0002 ¥T0Z/Z0/90 A1Q
£9°7 £9°€ £8°€ S5 1p2'9) ES0+T°8} 09°£89'S0F T0T 1SNYDUOW 00°000'00+ 9INMBTBZI6 S3LON AdNSYIHL SN
1202/0£/%0 %S5€'T 9102/20/50 AL
29T 6L'E 6LE W' 06T LTOS'E H2L8TEE LO'66 TIRY3W 00°000°SEE 8£0828ZT6 S3LON A4NSYIUL SN
TZ0Z/0E/H0 %S5££°T 910Z/20/S0 414
791 6L€ 6L°E GTPbE'T PEIS'T 09'665"8¢T £0°66 dYSLLID 00°000°0ST 840828216 S3ALON AUNSYIUL SN
020Z/0£/1T %000°Z £102/20/21 ALa
55T LEE LEE (82'200'9) P81 T 0L THL TS10T qU9ILID 00'000°0EL [4 274! T4 ] 3LON AdNSYIUL SN
0Z0Z/0E/90 %SZS'T STOZ/0E/90 ALa
1 867 86'¢ (6H'E€10°E) 09°2€8°E) 0T 12E 9"00T DESH 0000002 8HX8ZBZI6 SLON AYNSYIHL SN
020Z/1£/50 %005°T STOZ/T0/90 ALA
SHT 26T 6T (z0250'9) 0T TIL L) £9°85/°575 #1007 N335 AL 00°000°525 SIAXAZBZT6 S3LON AYNSYZL SN
0202/1£/50 %005'T ST0Z/10/90 AUa
Sk'T 767 6T (0p'T91°9) (6+"+81°8) 0Z'0Z5'09€ $1°60T dYSLLID 00°000°09€ SAXBTLZIE SILON AMNSYIUL SN
020Z/TET0 %SLE'T £10Z/TE/T0 ALa
8E'T na'z7 na'g {§T°/99) {E£710Z°T) 7 CRARBNT 896°66 dv2 28M an'nnn’'ent ZINRZEZI6 SALON AHNSYT 1 SN
PHiesioMm ol uoneing 350D Howy 10D UQ anjea 014 sjeq leyoig led dIsndy Aumep fuodnod /ajeq payeqa
WIA vopeing aAmdeya /9 [eadun /9 Edaun el IOHEW 2D IxaN uondudsaq /adAlL Aundeg

00TQT482 - OT10140d INFWLSIAN] - ANdd

LT0T ‘1€ Ael Buipuz yjuoly auy Jog a_;_m=< 3 ONjEA JodeW Jied JUnoddy —uwmm__-m:




ZT 96ed DOTOTLET WOy JT1uswabeuein 19ssY Wid

020Z/22/£0 %00 0T0Z/22/L0 ALA

v’z 062 062 STOV'T (85'+96'9) 79°001'98F ¥8'90T ANOQ 00'000°SSP ZSHHSZ9%Y SALON 02 18 ISYHD NVSHOW dr

_ 0202/¥2/Z0 %0ST'T STOZ/PZ/T0 ald

81 £5°T 65'C 98T 78TH'T ZU'ELSPEE ££°00T 0Z/FT/ 10 10DV M3N 00°000°ZSE 0ZDHI0H9D JLON d40D (F19VTTVD) NOTISIN ANE

0Z02/¥T/20 %000°2 £102/9T/0 Al

¥eT 19T 197 91T'EBb LTS6Y Lb £95'06 T#°00T OHNZIA 00°00006 ZWAMSF9Z0 TONVNIH YONOH NYOTHIWY

610Z/T0/21 %0S2'Z $10Z/10/2T ALA

181 o'z W'z (91°259) (96'260'9) ¥'880°T45 80°70T 1907 MIN 00°000°59S £4972T60T SALON d¥0D TYIINYNIH dYTIIdHILYD

6102/T0/0T %00L Y 600Z/5Z/60 QLA

04T T4 12T (95'690°T) 8zIT'L) 0Z°£99°CTE £8'901 NYWTI02 00°000°00Z 258168121 40D HLYN NOLONT NG

6102/£0/50 %0502 9T0Z/60/90 ALA

702 561 S6'T 10°16 09°£01 09°S50°00T 90°001 dMSLLDD 007000001 6SNL962LT SALON dU0D INI dNOYSLLID

6T0Z/91/50 %T95'T 9T0Z/91/50 Ala

ca't 76T Z6'T {09°8ZS) (09°825) O+ TLP'662 29'66 WHHSTIAM  O0°000°00¢ ZHA$9/991 SALON 0D NOYAIHD

LET 90T 90T (90'££5's) (0£'606'%) 0€"865'£82'T 00'000'S6Z°T Imol-qns adAL Aumoes

0202782720 %005 T L10¢/82/20 A1d

1 202 89T 9T'91E 99'z2E 90°06T°ST2 60°001 SYHO Wdr 00°000'ST2 6ZL0DSETE SALON VAN

6T07/b2/0T %000°T 9T0Z/52/0T ALA

w1 9E'T 9E'T (Lp218'T) (82°659°T} 75'595°252 5066 1235 AL 00'000°S52 BEUDDSETE SA1ON TY0TD Avid JINNYH

6T02/6T/£0 %S5£8°0 9102/02/£0 A1A

oE'T o'z 1) & 4 LT195'2) (1] R23r4] 06'616°967 £6'86 n23s AL 00°000°00€ TEIVILELE J1ON FONTYILTH DWHA

6102/8Z/50 %SLET Z10Z/2T/S0 AL

SALON

PE'T 96'T 96'T 1591 YE6YT $6'5£0°09 50001 TIRYAW 00°000°09 Z6JAVOETE AINIDVY MNVE NYOT IWOH Tvd3dad

6102/92/20 %000°T 910Z/£Z/20 A1A

Fa ! 11 121 UTLp2'T) {£6°€50°T) 29'TH£82 Sb'66 VANWON 00°000°58Z £5I0DSETE JLON MUVIWHONIE YIiNA

6T0Z/91/10 %05Z'T 910Z/80/2T ALA

ocT 09'T 09°1 (#0°58) (62°v8) ITTI6°PLT 26'66 Iwvd 00°000°STT BAVVOETE SALON T1Hd

8102/£0/80 %S5Z9°0 9102/80/£0 ALA

7T T Ak bR'6ZE) {01'582) STHES'HI 82°66 N8 Al a60n‘ee UAAVOELE S3LON g1Hd
DN IR ISIOM 03  UORRINg IS0 oy 30D UQ enjea eold 21eq Ja)jolg ded dISND Ayumew /uodno) faeq pajed

WLA uwoneinqg 9Alpay3 /9 jeauun 1/9 [eaaun e H- wpew  [IeD PEN uopdasaafedAL Ayndes

LT0T ‘1€ Ae Buipuz Wiuojy 34 Jod

00T0T/8Z - OT10J1¥O0d INJWLSIANI - dNdd

sonAjeuy 13 anjeA 19)iely Jied Junoddy pabeuely

wyd @

00
QO
™



€T 9bed 00TOTL8T JUnoDY

71 uswsbeuep 19ssy Wdid

8T0Z/0€/£0 %00£°T ST0Z/82/10 AL

80 oT'1 91’1 T8'L6TT 257627 2S°262'9bT £5°001 190V M3N 00°000°SH2 COVLLTOES D 17 INvE 3DUN0STI 1SHH
8102/€2/£0 %0SE'T §T0Z/€2/10 1A

£8'0 vTT vIT 96'€92'T 96'€9Z°T 96'€92°9 75001 190V MaN 00°000°S5p2 bdVZZE9LL @9 17 NVE SONIAYS LNOANDY
8TOZ/ET/€0 %00T'T £T0Z/ET/E0 QLA

60 820 BLO 00902 00°50¢ 00'902°001 12007 139¥ MaN G0°000°007 8d9VESZ/T a2 LT13Nva 11D
L10Z/01/1T %00°T £102/01/50 ALQ

8T o w0 15'9¢ TS 15'9£0'521 £0°00T Ot | 00 SZT TASNZ0959 S0d3A 143D AN MNYE NDINHONTYON
8T°1 r'o ta 4] 0E'89 0E'8TS 0£'95+'66 00'000°00T IRj01-qns adi) umes
LI0Z/TO/TT %000°0 L10Z/90/z0 O1a

82’1 ' 7&'n 0£'89 pE'8TS O£ 95 AR ab'AR ANOE 00°000°00T OTADM/ 6ol Hadvd WIWOD JT1 DNIANNA {SN) ONI
4 4 ITE 4% LEOTOT (19 120'70) 6£'6T9'90Z°Y 00°'000°THT Y Imor-gng adAl Aunoas
2Z0Z/T0/P0 %0S/°2 £102/Te/c0 ala

e 8'b e ¥S'L6E'T OT'€£€°Z 0T'865'F0E £5'10T S NYOYOW 00°000°00€ TXV4TESSD SALON du0D Lgag
1Z0Z/LT/1T %529'2 9T02/£1/1T QLA

5T BI'b 8Ty 9T'261'E Z0'S0L'E 70'09¥°'02¢ 12007 S NV2UOW (0°000°022 pa3gors19 SANOE ATINY.LS NYSUOW
120Z/01/50 %050°Z 910Z/01/50 AL

ore T4 9L (9b'1E€) {00'g62) 00*Z£5'6b2 18'66 N¥dAIX 00°000°052Z SAYHTESSD 310N 440D 1Sl ¥ ONDINVE HONYYg
1202/S0/50 %082'Z 9702/50/50 QLA

£ £LE £L'€ (50°Z86) (£0'662'T) 26'652°58¢ 60°00T NYWA10D 00°000°587 TE30WBSZ0 SALON d¥CD L1ATdD SSIYdXE NYITHaWY
120Z/SZ/¥0 %SZ9°Z 9T02/5e/v0 01Q

Favmvo)

6T 09°g L9'€ (ST°08T'H) {60'+82°S) TI'60'T6Z 6+°00T TZ/ST/E0 ISYHIWIC 00°000°062 SNADTHISE AN dHO3 DNI 49 SHOVWS NYWTI10D
T202/12/p0 %0052 9T0Z/Te/v0 a1a

W'z 89°€ 89'€ T Lb1'T) (86°755°T) S0'95b’0SE £1°00T VLLOJS 00°000'0SE Ov3E9KLTS SALON dH02 ATINVLS NYDHOW
0Z02/£0/21 %0882 STOZ/Z0/ZT A1a

072 T6€ 1€ (sT°016}) LIe'Bnn'71 PE'5/5°68E 61°T01 UYASTIM 00NN0°SEE UL/ 646 SALON ANVAWOD % OO STISM

DIW L JSIOM 0]  uonEINg 3507 oWy 350D UQ anjeA aold eeg Jjog Jed dIsnd Rumyey /uodno)/a3eq pajeq

WLA uoneing  sApdaya  1/9 jeadun 1/91eaiun  JoNien e (2D PEN uondunsag fadAt, Aypnoas

£T0Z ‘1€ AR Buipu3z yauop ayy Joy

00TOT48Z - OI1041¥0d LNIWLSIANI - AN

sondjeuy 3 anjep Jpe J1e4 Junoddy pabeuely

wyd @

o
=]
™



bT 36ed DOTOTLBT WNO00Y ST1 Juswabeueinl 19ssY Wid

020Z/5T/¥0 %00E'T ST0Z/TT/50 ALd

o1 £6'1 ¥ (eTL12) (8b'S1T) 06'82£°60T 0866 dUSLLIY 0070007011 6aYNTEZES £v 9-9T0Z Sav VLOAOL

6T0Z/ST/80 %0LT'T 9102/02/£0 A1Q

12T 0T 80 (1z'ss) (2£'z2d) A BERE'ENT 76'66 8450 #5°599°€0T LAVIPTERT TV £-910Z SV XvYWuvD

6T'T [40 T8'T TLOVE'TT PEQOV'TZ ¥6'I8T9LL'E 00°000'sSL'E [noL-qns ediL Apnoes

6102/21/80 %000°Z 5102/21/80 1A

La 8r'e 8T 81'945'C 81997 8T'9L5° 44T S0'TO0T 170V MaN 00'000°5k2 8AN0THOPT aD 11 YN VSN YNvE 3NO WLLIVD

610Z/¥2/£0 %000°T F10Z/pe/20 QLA

81 £ £r'e £9'$81°T £9'VBI'E 1981 LT 68'001 190% MaN 00'000°SH2 6IVILB5Z0 a0 17 954 M9 SSTAdXA NVDTHWY

6T0Z/£0/50 %0502 £T0Z/40/50 QLA

S6'T 061 06'T 05°20¢ 05°20€ 0S'Z0£°0ST 71001 SYHD WdC 00°000°0SZ ONAAESS9S as AN DINVE INS1IW OWOLIWNS

610Z/50/+0 %0T6°T £102/90/¢0 A1Q

LT £R'T £8'1 0Z'98T 0Z'981 0T'981°082 £0'00T TIHHAW 00°000°082 9INSLTH90 2 11 NOLSNOH YILODS YAON 40 MNvE

6T0Z/L0/20 %088°T L102/60/20 A1q

$0d34

60°T 89°'T BOT AT TLO'E 9T'140°T oT'TL0'282 $L00T NYWA109 00°000°082 £ALTFI0 143D OOVIIHD VT4 LNOW 40 MNvVE

610Z/01/10 %068'T £102/21/10 414

£5'T 09'1 09T (ob°geE} (ob-0zE) 09'6£9'66T P66 TIRREEAW 00°000002 84HC85698 a2 17 AN NDINVESTEANYH WISNIAS

810Z/81/21 %050°Z £102/81/21 Q1Q

PE'T ¥5'T ¥5°1 80°9£2°Z 80°8ETT 80'8£T £bT 16'001 190% M3N 00°000°SKE BANESZOSR QD L1 VIONI 20 SNy A1VLS

8T0Z/0E/TT %09L°T 9102/50/2T Ala

6L'0 0s'T 05T 89'265°T 89'/65'T 89'/65'18T £5°00T TIRYAW 00°000°082 9YMIBE559 a2 AN ANYINIH YINVE YITHON

BTOZ/OE/TT %094'T 9102/S0/ZT Qia

9e'T 81 gb'1 97941 80°9T8’T 89°£65'182 257001 NYWAT109 00°000°082 £Z5Y909ET {2 AN MNYE TYTUIdIWI NVIGYNYD

8102/62/0T %050 £10Z/8Z/0T LA

¥E'T or't 0T S6'€20°2 S6'€20°C S6'€20° b2 £8°001 120Y MAN 00°000°SHT $A9PZ9090 aD 11 vaouvd 40 dINve

8102/52/01T %0ST'Z £T0Z/52/0T A1

£Z'T 6E'T 6£'T PTLELT PI'LEL'T PULEL IV Tt 100V MaN 00°000°S¥2 OWSOD/STE a5 17 3NYS ANOUHINAS

8T0Z/ET/80 %004'T ST0Z/ZT/80 414

97't 0z'1 0z't TTE81°T TI'E8T'T TTE81°9%C 8001 I AN 00°000°SH7 ONSITHOFT ad 17 YN ¥SN JNYE INO TVILIYD
DiW IR ISIOM 0] uoReIng  1S0D Moy 350D UQ anfep aold a1eq J»joig Jed disnd fumely fuodno)/eeq peaeq

WLA uoneing anaNa /9 eadun 1/9 lesaun e 19eRn  led 1xoN uopdinseqg fadAy Aundas

£10Z ‘T€ Aey Buipug Wuol a3 Jod

QUTOT/SZ - OTIO4LN0d INTWL

sopijeuy B anjeA 19)e Jjed Junoldy pabeuel

o
-—

™



ST 2bed DOTOTLET UNCDY

1
3T1 uawsbeuey 1955V Wad ndlu

68°EPZ'0EE YT SIDUISIAU] |R0L

T9°THe'sss 158493Ux penIaoyY

%ES'T £9'C 65T 85°808°c$ (8L'222'0€%) LTTOV' VLT VIS EE'9TO'BLTPTS IBJ01-qns seQuUNdes

£9'T £9'C [y 4 85'808°E (8£'2£1'0€) LTTOV'PLT YT €£°9TO'BLT VT |=101-9NS JUNC3DY pabeuey

SFT 60T LT (rz°L11) (€2-98) BT'LIS'E9L PS'599'€9L le101-gng adAy Ajpnoes

TZ0Z/ST/90 %0297 £102/52/1C 4La

£9'T pog 81T ¥9'70T 69°T0T $E'10T'S6 11007 dUOLLI> 00°000°S6 SAVATESHE £Y ¥-£107 0qyod

T202/51/10 %062°T 9102/12/60 QLA

16T (e 00z (94'728) {(9£°029) ST69b'PL 6266 3SVHDOWGC 00°000°SZ EOVAT68KF 1SMYL STIEVATIOIY OLNY IVANNAH

T20Z/ST/P0 %08 T L102/20/£0 Ql1a

£9°1 £6'1 26'T 1168 o/'68 6+'580°0€ 62°00T TIP3 00°000°0€ TOVXLBL L £V V-£107 Lodr

TZOT/LT/10 %0bL'T £102/92/10 A4q

85T 31 08T SO'EEr €09 SO EZH 0TI SE00T d¥OLITD 00'000°0Z1 L¥OISOELT TV TY-LT0Z 410D

0Z0Z/S1/80 %0PT'T 9102/0T/80 AULQ

9e'T S€'T T (£0°'972) W 1ze) SO TLL b 6b'66 NSLIW 00'000°SH EaVYMLEZGS £V D-910Z SaY YLOAOL

0202/51/£0 %0¥9'T £10Z/22/<0 Q1A

o1 91 w1 7e'85p ¥5'8SH 8£'25H'05T 0£°00T dYSLLID 00'600°0ST TAYMOtoTT 100d LSMYL INAWAINDI HND

0202/5T/90 %052'T 9T0Z/£2/£0 14

ST ¥1'Z 71 (92'9%1} {s0'gb1) 9T'1S8'VE 15766 dvD 23 00°000°SE TOVNBB/ LY £ A-0T0Z SavV J¥33a NHOTr
PlWie jsiop 03 uoijeing  3so) Howry 150D uQ anjea Npd Jdoxyoug Jed dIsSnd Ajuniep fuodno) /fereq paeq

WIA uopeing  aapey3 /9 [essun 1/9 1eaaun Nen 1R uondusag/edAl Aypndes

LI0T ‘T€ Aely Guipuz yuo auy Jog

sonAjeuy 13 onjeA Ja)Jely Jied JUnoddy pabeuey

00107482 - OTI04.L30d INJWLSIANI - ANd4

wyd @



97T abied QOTOTLBT UNOIDY

71 uawabeuelp 19ssy Wid

020Z/51/£0 %0¥9°T L102/Z2/€0 Q10

00°502 00°s02 000 00000057 CAVYMIESZT 100d 1SMUl INIWAINOI HND  ZT/ST/S0 LT/ST/S0
0202/51/80 %0FT'T 9T02/0T/80 A1Q

SLT STy 00'0 00°000°sk BAVMLEZGS £ 29707 59V YLOACL  ZT/ST/50  £1/ST/SO
020Z/51/p0 %00€'T 9T0Z/TI/50 A1a

LT6TT FAN A 000 00°000°0TT 6AVNTEZ68 £V 9-9702 SaV VIOAOL  [T/ST/S0  LT/ST/S0
[Z0Z/S1/90 %0L9°T £102/52/10 A1

TZ°TET 1Z7'7¢T 000 00°000°S6 8AvITESHE £V V-£T0Z 0ddCd  Z1/5T/S0  LT/S1/S0
610Z/ST/80 %0LT°T 9102/02/£0 ALa

85'011T 85°01T 00’0 ST'ETHETT LaVIPTELT TV £-9T0C SV XVIWYYD  [1/ST/S0  ZT/ST/S0
1Z02/S1/+0 %062°T 9T0Z/TZ/60 €.1A

£9°08 €908 00°0 00°000'SL £OVATESHY 1SMAL STTAVAIZDTY OLNY IVANNAH ~ £T/ST/S0 ZT/ST/SO
1202/01/50 %050° 910Z/01/50 QLA
310N

057295°'C £S°795'¢ 00D 00°000'05Z SAVHIESSD dd0D 1SNYL 2 DNDINVE HONVYE  ZT/0T/S0 £T/01/50
1202/90/50 %0SZ°C 910Z/50/50 A1d
S310N

ST90T'E SZ 90T'E 000 00°000°58Z 193018520 JH0D 1TATD SSTAE NYDOTHIWY  £1/50/60  £1/50/50
6T02/T0/90 %S8L'T 9T0Z/10/90 d1d

11122 T'12e Qo0 00'000°S0T XdSYIETE 7OSY 6W-9T0Z SATY3S YWNI  Z1/S2fS0  LT/10/S0

FERT BB 00'0 0070 Z000AINOW annd 13084 AANOW  ZT/T0/50  ZT/10/S0

(z9"1+t's09) (z'ges) (0z'e06'+09) 00°000'0T9 I=reL-qng adA ], uopoRsURl)
6102/82/50 %SLE'T L102/T1/50 1A
S3LON

(09'988°6S) 00'0 (0998865} 00'000°09 TEIAVOETE AONISY MINYE NVO13WOH Tw¥3a3d  LI/EZT/S0 LT/TI/S0
LT0Z/0T/T1L %00b'T £102/08/50 AL

{00°000°52T) 000 (00°000°$21) £0°000°SZT TAsNZ095% SO0d3A 130 AN MNvE NDINHINTYON  ZT/0T/S0 £1/80/50
TZ0Z/TE/L0 %SZT°T 910Z/10/80 AL

(20'655°041) {¢F8ES) (09°910°0LT) 00'000'541 9/5878216 a/N AMNSYIUL SN ZT/O1/S0 ZT/80/50
610Z/<0/S0 %0S0°C LT0Z/¥0/50 dLd

{00°000°08¢E) 000 L00"000°057) 00°000°0S2 NNALSQGOQ a7 ANDINYE TNSITIW DWOLTWNS  /T/AD/SD  LT/ED/S0

FUMHTIL 49w Javsuy Lo ] 1~eva prr——_ Spaaouidd d¥d diSTig UUHUAIDI] RAIISoY CHETD ol

oles  1/Dpeziilesy 1/ pozijesy panmoy ledpulid adAL uonoesues]

L7102 “TE Aep Buipuz Lpuoly ay3 104

1S249ju] ¥ suonodesuel ] AJINd9s JUN0IDY pabeuely

(007018 - OT104.140d INTWLSIANI - aNdd

wiyd @

N

1

™



™

LT 8bed QOTOTLSZ N0y M u:w:._m_mw:mz Jossy S_"_n_m
£T0Z/20/80 %000°0 £10Z/€0/20 1a
YIdd WIWOD
Cdl4  00°00T SZ'IE6 G/ A076hT ao'g SL'89T°6bE an'nna‘ NGz 92AE8£590 QL1 (4N HSIANSLIW OMDICLINYE  /TAO/EN  £T/60/S0
000 (89's.2) §8°06£'LE 000 S8'96E'LE S8968'L€ I®el-qns >dA} uopoesuel)
610Z/51/80 %041°T 910Z/02/20 AL a
00 08'0 YOLbL'B 000 Yo' LPL'E Vo' L6 LEVIPTERT 2V £-9102 SAY XVIWNUYD  ZT/ST/S0  Z1/ST/50
6T02/T0/90 %S8L'T 9102/10/90 ALq
nn'n 18b'9s2) Te'6va's2 no'o 1264942 1T6b9° L2 AXASYIE TS 205V 6W-9T0Z SAMAS YWNd  £1/52/50  ZT/10/S0
19'S9L'PE 19°99L'v¢ 000 ST'ETH'S8E'Y I®301-qns edAL uondesue.
T202/TE/S0 %000°Z £102/20/90 O1A
00°000°F 00'000°F 000 00000 00F INMBZRTI6 STLON AMNSYIUL SN ZT/TE/S0  LT/1E/50
0Z0Z/0E/T %0060°Z £102/20/2T Al1d
00°00E°L o0'o0EL 000 00°000°0£2 fda 2iTa Al AION AMNSYFUL SN LT/IE/S0  LT/1E/S0
0202/1€/50 %005°T STOZ/10/90 LA
05"£6°E 05'L£6°E 000 00°000°525 S3IXBZHTI6 SALON AYNSYTIL SN LT/TE/S0  LT/TE/50
0Z0Z/1E/S0 %00S'T STOZ/T0/90 ALQ
00°002°2 00°004'2 00'0 00'000°09€ SIAXPZIZI6 SALON AWNSVAUL SN LT/TE/S0  LT/TE/SO
8TOZ/0E/TT %09L'T 9T0Z/S0/2T A1a
A ¥2'60+'C 00'0 00'000°082 £ZSY909ET 03 AN NG TYTHIdWI NYIAYNYD  ZT/0E/S0 £T/0E/50
STOZ/OE/TT %092'T 9TOZ/50/2T AL
YZ'60b'C ¥Z'504'T 00'0 00°000'08Z 9YMTBSS59 0 AN ONVINT JINVE VIQUON  ZT/08/50  £T/0E/S0
TZOZ/LT/3T %S29°¢ 9T0Z/£1/11 QLa
05'288'Z 05'£88'7 00'0 00°000°0Z¢ +#0399p£19 SONOS ATINVLS NVOMOW  £T/2T/S0  £T/L1/50
6102/91/50 %T195°T 9T02/01/S0 QLA
0S'THE'Z 05'THE'Z 000 00°000°00€ ZHEP9L99T SALON dH0D NOWAIHD  ZT/9T/S0  Z1/9T/S0
020Z/ST/90 %0SZ°T 9102/L2/40 ALd
ob'og 9b'9E 000 00°009'SE ZOVNSSLLY £V 9-9702 SAY IW330 NHOL  Z1/ST/S0 Z1/51/50
TT02/ST/¥0 %084 T L102/20/€0 d1q
05'bk 05'vb nn'n 00'000°08 TIVXLBLLY FYY-sTOZ 10AC ZT/ST/S0 ZT/ST/50
NI V) HUwy /Y jejol Foawguy SpueIuld ded Qi UWHUAIDO] AHIISES IHes speiL
Bes  1/9peziesy /9 pezyesy penisoy ledpulid adA] uondesues)

00TOTZ8Z - OTIO41¥0d LNIWISIANI - AN

LT0Z ‘TE Aep Buipu3 yyuop sy 104 Jsedaqu] '8 suopdesuel] Aundes Junodoy pabeueyy




8T 2bed 00TOTLBT JUNoOKY

<
271 uawebBeuew 1935y WHid oJIu

(s£'€8T$) LYESTS 0L'9S8'1ZS 0Z'60S'SES (05'zS9'ET$) suonpesuel | Ajundes [eoL

(s£'€8T) L9°ESY 0£°9S8'TT 0Z'605°SE {0sZ59’cT) [£101-qnS Junoddy pebeuely

(g£'€8T) SE'6TL 98"GET'SSS 10'Z82°T SR"ESB'ESS 00'000’555 loL-gns edA) uopoesuel)
810Z/£0/80 %S529°0 9102/80//0 QLA

Odl4  (8T'Z5E) L0b'522) 95'019°65 96'86 09°TIS'6S 00°000°09 OIdEVOETE SAION gTHd  ZT/2T/S0  LT/I1/50
£102/02/21 %0S2'T £102/02/21 QL0

o4l nees ne's/ GG'957°0b7 SO'EBT'T 058°E£0"ST 00°000°SHT TICA8TLST MO TN JTINTASD ZTIRDISO

pUyon JOUJ UMY FElts ] 1S4V L e, B " | Jded dIisng U LU SO AT oHTD oy

oles 1/9 pozijeay  1/9 pezijeay peniny edpupid 2dAl uopoesuelL

0OTOT482 - QI104L¥0d LNIWISIANI - dNd

£LT0T ‘1€ Ael Buipu3 yuop awy Jod

1SJ9)U] g SuoPesUrRl] AJLINDAS JUNCOOY pabeuey

wyd




Fallbrook Public Utility District
2016-17 Budget Overview-Through 5/31/17

2016-217 20162017 201617 Change from Percent
Projected to Change from

Adonted Budget | Actual YTI Projected Adopted Budget | Prior Budget

REVENUES:
Water and Recycled Sales 8,740 8,573 9,515 {225) 2.3%
Operating Revanues:
Water Sales 14,854,447 12,497,393 14,201,583 {652,864) -4.4%
MWD Readiness to Serve 308,232 464,516 506,745 108,613 27.2%
CWA Infracture Access Charge 388,058 364,010 397,102 (854) 0.2%
Meter Service Charges 5,338,784 4,861,653 5,303,622 {35,162) 0.7%
Wastewater Service Charges 5,804,370 5,064,774 5,625,208 {279,171) -4.8%
Overuse Penalties 0 1] 0 - 0.0%
Sundry Other Revenue 306,100 235,850 257,281 (48,800} -15.9%
CWA Rebates 148,000 117,300 130,189 {17.811) ~12.0%
Total Operating Revenue 27,247 898 23,605497 26,321,739 (926,259) =3.4%
Non Operating Revenues:
Capital Improvernent Charge 2,282 000 2,082444 2,282,666 666 0.0%
Property Taxes 1,814,077 1,852,663 1,916,939 102,862 5.7%
Water Standby/Availability Charge 203.000 182,902 203,000 - 0.0%
Water/Wastewater Capacity Charges 107,315 213,244 213,244 105,928 98.7%
Porifolio Interest 175,000 218,132 230,053 64,053 368.6%
Pumping Charge 60,000 140,858 156,335 96,335 160.6%
Prop 84 & 50 Funds 1} 773,163 773,163 773,163 100.0%
SRF Loan Proceeds 0 0 0 - 0.0%
CSI Rebate 558,450 234,930 234,930 (324,520) -58.0%
Facility Rents & Other Non Operating Revenues 185,000 216,503 238284 51,284 27.7%
Total Nen QOperating Revenues 5,385,842 5,825 931 6,255,615 869,773 16.1%
Total Budgeted Revenues 32,633,840 20,531,427 | 32,577,354 {56,486) 0.2%
EXPENDITURES:

Operating Expenses:

Purchased Water Expense 12,263,928 11,884,485 12,613,431 349,502 28%
MWD Readiness to Serve 398,232 366,048 368,232 = 0.0%
CWA Infracture Access Charge 308,056 362,568 308,056 - 0.0%
Production-Water Quality & Treaiment 1,270,610 872,124 1,060,465 (210,117) -16.5%
Distribution 2,047,562 1,372,682 1,487,471 {550,001} -26.8%
Customer Service 1,290,349 1,147,892 1,252,248 (38,103) -3.0%
General Administration 5,182,768 4,349,036 4,744,401 (438,397} -8.5%
Collection, Treatment & Disposal 2,818,664 2,206,847 2407 470 (411,184) -14.6%
Total Operating Expenses 25,670,200 22,670,660 24,371,807 {1,268,383) 5.1%
Debt Service Expenses

Red Mountaln SRF 305,893 395,803 305,803 . 0.0%
WWTP SRF 1,845,745 1,845,745 1,845,745 - 0.0%
QECB Sdlur Debt 348,024 ] 349,024 349,024 = 0.0%
CalPERS 15-16 Unfunded Actuarial Liability Lump Sum 466 860 466,860 466,860 - 0.0%
Prefund FY 18-17 CalPERS UAL Lump Sum Pymt to PARS 0 500,000 500,000 500,000 100.0%
0.0%
Total Debt Service Expenses 3,057,522 3,557,522 3,567,522 500,000 16.4%
Net RevenueX(logs) From Operations and Debt Service 3,906,118 3,303,245 4,648,025 741,807 19.0%
Capltal Project Expenses-completed and ongolng projects 5,966 926 4,607.830 5,015,815 (851,111) -15.9%
NET REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (2,080,808)) {1,294,585)| {387,769) 1,693,019 -82.2%

Estimated Reserves as of 7/1/16 14,841,858 14,988,098 14,588,998
Estimated Reservaes as of 6/30/17 12,781,0 13,694 414 14,621,208 1.840,159 14.4%

315



Fallbrook Public Utility District
2016-17 Budget Overview-Through 5/31/17

Labor Costs:

Annual Wages

Direct Benefits:

Medical/Dental/Vision
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) contribution
Life Insurance/Long Term Disability
Uniforms/Safety Equipment
Auto Allowance & Rec Fund
Total Wages & Direct Benefits

Indirect Benefits:

CalPERS/401A*
CalPERS Lump Sum Unfunded Liability Payment
CalPERS Side Fund Payoff**
CalPERS Unfunded Liability contribution
FICA/Social Security
Workers Comp Premiums
Other-Unemployment Insurance
**Reimburse Reserves for 6/30/14 Side Fund Payoff
***Actuarial Unfunded Liablility of $9.8M

Total Indirect Benefits

Total Wages and Fringe Benefits

*Employer Contribution 10.808% for Misc Members
and 6.93% for PEPRA Members

**Reimburse Reserves for 6/30/14 Side Fund Payoff
Balance remaining is $2,058,848 as of 6/30/16

“**Unfunded Actuarial Liablility (UAL) of $9.8M. This
action prefunds a portion of the UAL into PARS

2016-2017 2016-2017 2016-17 Change from
Projected to
Adopted Budget Actual YTD Projected Adopted Budget |
5,608,680 5,248,541 5,685,919 (12,760)
964,259 873,744 953,175 (11,084)
150,000 150,000 150,000 =
38,418 33,000 36,000 (2,418)
38,317 39,655 43,260 4,043
18,700 14,332 18,490 (210}
6,908,374 6,359,272 6,886,844 (21,529)
438,162 1~ 487,736 430,977 (7,185)
459,468 459,468 459,468 -
485,000 |* 485,000 485,000 -
100,000 {** 100,000 100,000 -
419,177 363,369 430,649 11,472
130,558 108,129 134,800 4,242
0 11,734 11,734 11,734
2,032,365 2,015,438 2,052,628 20,263
8,940,739 8,374,707 8,939,473 {1,266)

316



5/31/2017

Treasurer’s Warrant No. May

TO: Treasurer of the Fallbrook Public Utility District

The bills and claims listed below are approved as authorized by resolution no. 3538 of the Board
of Directors dated July 8, 1985. You are hereby authorized and directed to pay said prospective claims in
the amounts stated (less discounts in instances where discounts are allowed).

317



Payroll -5/17

Computer Check Register
Payroll #1 128,841.88
Payroll #2 133,113.60

2 5.48

318



Accounts Payable |
Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date

User: annaleceb |
Printed: 6/1/2017 7:36 AM . .
Fallbrook Public Utility District
Purchasing Dept. Phone: (760) 725-1151, Fax: (760) 728-8491
Main Office Phone: (760} 728-1125, Fax: [760) 728-602%

Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
74975 01460 AFLAC 05/03/2017 1,627.11
74976 06403 APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 05/03/2017 980.80
74977 02743 BEST BEST & KRIEGER 05/03/2017 10,381.78
74978 91154 ANNALECE BOKMA 05/03/2017 499.00
74979 00898 BP BATTERY 05/03/2017 199.26
74980 03134 CALIFORNIA WATER ENVIRONMENT. 05/03/2017 172.00
74981 03978 CAMERON WELDING SUPPLY 05/03/2017 831.55
74982 05714 COUNTY OF SD DEPT PUBLIC WORKES 05/03/2017 302.50
74983 05180 NOELLE DENKE 05/03/2017 100.67
74984 (04425 DOMINICK'S SANDWICHES 05/03/2017 31.00
74985 05177 DOWNEY BRAND, LLP 05/03/2017 532.00
74986 06383 DUDEK INC 05/03/2017 4,997.50
74987 06144 DUPERON CORPORATION 05/03/2017 38,790.00
74988 06020 BABCOCK & SONS, INC. 05/03/2017 505.00
74989 03087 MARCELLA M. EILERS 05/03/2017 60.00
74990 03391 ELECTRICAL SALES INC 05/03/2017 159.93
74991 09523 FALLBROOK EQUIP RENTALS 05/03/2017 984.17
74992 05987 FALLBROOK GARAGE & QWIK LUBE 05/03/2017 337.50
74993 00169 FALLBROOK OIL COMPANY 05/03/2017 2,048.18
74994 01432 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1083 05/03/2017 1,631.34
74995 05733 FIRST BANKCARD 05/03/2017 6,560.48
74996 09517 GENCO 05/03/2017 242.44
74997 00182 GLENNIE'S OFFICE PRODUCTS, INC  05/03/2017 210.74
74998 05925 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 05/03/2017 2,610.79
74999 06429 HEALTHPOINTE MEDICAL GROUP,INC 05/03/2017 75.00
75000 UB*00055 JOSEPHINE HICKS 05/03/2017 240.75
75001 06577 INFOSEND INC 05/03/2017 2,824.63
75002 90953 JR.FILANC CONSTRUCTION CQ., INC. 05/03/2017 18,715.00
75003 06479 KNOCKOUT PEST CONTROL & TERMI 05/03/2017 250.00
75004 UB*00054 LEON & GILLIAN KULP 05/03/2017 32.54
75005 91120 L.C. Paving & Sealing, Inc, 05/03/2017 12,600.0¢
75006 06263 LOS ANGELES FREIGHTLINER, LLC  05/03/2017 1,020.69
75007 04638 LOWE'S CORPORATION 05/03/2017 1,190.47
75008 06123 MACIAS GINI & O'CONNELL 05/03/2017 10,000.00
75009 06338 MYTHOS TECHNOLOGY INC 05/03/2017 481.76
75010 03201 NATIONAL SAFETY COMPLIANCE INC 05/03/2017 962.41
75011 00718 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIO 05/03/2017 2,108.07
75012 06298 ONESOURCE DISTRIBUTORS, LLC 05/03/2017 253.53
75013 01267 PACIFIC PIPELINE 05/03/2017 8223
75014 00215 PETTY CASH 05/03/2017 97.25
75015 06199 PLUMBERS DEPOT INC 05/03/2017 459.06
75016 91104 RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS 05/03/2017 13,150.73
75017 91077 RED WING SHOE STORE 05/03/2017 157.13
75018 06485 FABRIENNE ROBINSON 05/03/2017 60.00
75019 00231 SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTH  05/03/2017 866,018.70
75020 00232 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 05/03/2017 27,387.80
75021 UB*00053 FRANK. SMITH 05/03/2017 17.38

AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (6/1/2017 7:36 AM) Page 1

319



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
75022 04434 SNAP ON TOOLS 05/03/2017 927.67
75024 00159 SUPERIOR READY MIX 05/03/2017 3,724.53
75025 02748 TREBOR COMPANY 05/03/2017 1,269.00
75026 06005 UNIFIRST CORP. 05/03/2017 393.18
75027 04330 UNION BANK 05/03/2017 1,443.00
75028 02329 VALLECITOS WATER DISTRICT 05/03/2017 2,195.04
75029 00233 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 05/03/2017 3,920.65
75030 02570 CHERYL WILLIAMS 05/03/2017 455.00

Total for 5/3/2017: 1.047,308.94

ACH 00152 FPUD EMPL ASSOCIATION 05/10/2017 909.78
ACH 06758 US TREASURY - PAYROLL TAXES 05/10/2017 56,686.05
ACH 06759 STATE OF CA - PR TAXES 05/10/2017 7,849.01
ACH 06760 STATE OF CA - SDI 05/10/2017 1,859.55
ACH 06761 LINCOLN FINANCIAL GROUP 05/10/2017 6,187.84
ACH 06763 PERS - PAYROLL 05/16/2017 33,974.61
75039 06403 APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 05/10/2017 1,961.60
75040 06696 AT & T MOBILTTY 05/10/2017 55.32
75041 05958 BAMM! PROMOTIONAL PRODUCTS, I 05/10/2017 35.54
75042 02743 BEST BEST & KRIEGER 05/10/2017 21.00
75043 Q0898 BP BATTERY 05/10/2017 107.52
75044 06012 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF CSS 05/10/2017 231.00
75045 06336 CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 05/10/2017 197.43
75046 01719 MICKEY M. CASE 05/10/2017 60.00
75047 03205 CITY OF OCEANSIDE 05/10/2017 1,136.34
75048 00370 CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES, INC.  05/10/2017 2,299.68
75049 02925 DATA NET SOLUTIONS 05/10/2017 2,399.40
75050 02901 DAVID DEEM 05/10/2017 631.51
75051 05180 NOELLE DENKE 05/10/2017 873.95
75052 05192 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVIC 05/10/2017 169.99
75053 91123 DIGITAL DEPLOYMENT, INC. 05/10/2017 550.00
75054 06020 BABCOCK & SONS, INC. 05/10/2017 620,00
75055 03391 ELECTRICAL SALES INC 05/10/2017 264.17
75056 05987 FALLBROOK GARAGE & QWIK LUBE 05/10/2017 587.08
75057 00169 FALLBROOK OIL COMPANY 05/10/2017 2,386.34
75058 04494 FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION 05/10/2017 §7.73
75059 02170 GRAINGER, INC. 05/10/2017 1,112.04
75060 05925 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 05/10/2017 28,361.58
75061 04027 JOES HARDWARE 05/10/2017 1,482.42
75062 04926 KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FINANCE 05/10/2017 3,334.31
75063 06261 LAWTON GROUP 05/10/2017 556.20
75064 03322 LIGHTHOUSE AUTOMOTIVE 05/10/2017 1,623.70
75065 90887 LLOYD PEST CONTROL 05/10/2017 198.00
75066 06614 MITEL LEASING 05/10/2017 815.15
75067 90932 NAPA AUTO PARTS 05/10/2017 96.43
75068 00718 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SQLUTIO 05/10/2017 2,018.07
75069 91151 OCEAN DATA SYSTEMS INC 05/10/2017 5,723.00
75070 03708 PAULEY EQUIPMENT CO INC 05/10/2017 266.92
75071  UB*00056 RAMONA PAVING 05/10/2017 1,113.37
75072 00216 PINE TREE LUMBER 05/10/2017 17.13
75073 91155 QUALITY GATE COMPANY 05/10/2017 954.95
75074 06237 LARRY RAGSDALE 05/10/2017 768.49
75075 06485 FABRIENNE ROBINSON 05/10/2017 147.00
75076 00232 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 05/10/2017 41.50
75077 UB*00057 DAVID SHEETZ 05/10/2017 79.34
75078 00159 SUPERIOR READY MIX 05/10/2017 565.75
AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (6/1/2017 7:36 AM) Page 2

320



Check Noe  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
75079 02815 SWRCB ACCOUNTING OFFICE 05/10/2017 27,504.00
75080 05883 TESTAMERICA LABORATORIES, INC. 05/10/2017 373.28
75081 91107 TIME WARNER CABLE ENTERPRISES, 05/10/2017 101.60
75082 91091 ORNEEN TOMA 05/10/2017 698.91
75083 06005 UNIFIRST CORP. 05/10/2017 41142
75084 00458 VERIZON WIRELESS 05/10/2017 666.17
75085 05909 WAGNER & BONSIGNORE, CONSULTI 05/10/2017 303.75
75086 02570 CHERYL WILLIAMS 05/10/2017 577.50
75087 90934 CHARLIE WOLK 05/10/2017 27.82

Total for 5/10/2017: 202,142.24

75088 UB*00063 YK RANCH INC 05/17/2017 28.25
7508% 06403 APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 05/17/2017 5,660.80
75090 91164 ARTERY 05/17/2017 75.00
75091 05088 AT&T 05/17/2017 857.07
75092 00898 BP BATTERY 05/17/2017 217.13
75093 03134 CALIFORNIA WATER ENVIRONMENT. 05/17/2017 83.00
75094 03978 CAMERON WELDING SUPPLY 05/17/2017 880.37
75095 06336 CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 05/17/2017 12931
75096 05915 CHEM ONE LTD 05/17/2017 12,201.89
75097 02176 CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS, LLC 05/17/2017 225.00
75098 05953 CORODATA RECORDS MANAGEMENT 05/17/2017 655,22
75099 06675 CORODATA SHREDDING, INC 05/17/2017 54.50
75100 05714 COUNTY OF SD DEPT PUBLIC WORKS 05/17/2017 245.00
75101 06169 CS-ASSOCIATED MUNICIPAL SALES C 05/17/2017 1,099.73
75102 91141 CURTIS E, STIKA 05/17/2017 3,931.00
75103 02925 DATA NET SOLUTIONS 05/17/2017 140.00
75104 05180 NQELLE DENKE 05/17/2017 27.00
75105 05192 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVIC 05/17/2017 333.74
75106 06020 BABCOCK & SONS, INC. 05/17/2017 475.00
75107 03391 ELECTRICAL SALES INC 05/17/2017 8.06
75108 UB*00053 RICHARD W & BEVERLY J ERICKSON 05/17/2017 10.22
75109 (04122 EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC 05/17/2017 3,943.20
75110 02647 FALLBROOK AWARDS 05/17/2017 3233
75111 09523 FATLIL BROOK EQUIP RENTALS 05/17/2017 258.18
75112 02411 FALLBROOK PRINTING CORP 05/17/2017 698.25
75113 01155 FALLBROOK REFUSE 05/17/2017 3.54
75114 91108 FLEETCREW 05/17/2017 625.00
75115 04958 GOSCH FORD TEMECULA 05/17/2017 759.60
75116 90906 BRETT GRAHAM 05/17/2017 25531
75117 02170 GRAINGER, INC. 05/17/2017 6,560.54
75118  UB*00059 GREGORIO & CECILIA GUADARRAM: 05/17/2017 3157
75119 05380 HACH CO 05/17/2017 2,040.10
75120 03276 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 05/17/2017 3,376.48
75121 06426 INDUSTRIAL SAFETY PROFESSIONAL 05/17/2017 3,150.00
75122 06577 INFOSEND INC 05/17/2017 1,293.26
75123 (6463 IOTUM INC. 05/17/2017 5.49
75124 06261 LAWTON GROUP 05/17/2017 278.10
75125 UB*00060 FREO CALIFORNIA LLC 05/17/2017 15.11
75126 90887 LLOYD PEST CONTROL 05/17/2017 169.00
75127 06660 MCCROMETER INC 05/17/2017 1,263.80
75128 90932 NAPA AUTO PARTS 05/17/2017 750.44
75129 06707 NATIONAL METER & AUTOMATION  05/17/2017 234,196.78
75130 06335 OCCU-MED LTD 05/17/2017 153.00
75131 06298 ONESOURCE DISTRIBUTORS, LLC 05/17/2017 21011
75132 01267 PACTFIC PIPELINE 05/17/12017 19,239.84
AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (6/1/2017 7:36 AM) Page3

321



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
75133 05033 PACKARD GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS 05/17/2017 10,000.00
75134 UB*00061 JOEL PEREZ 05/17/2017 26.38
75135 91007 PFM ASSET MANGEMENT LLC 05/17/2017 2,742.9%
75136 03137 GARY PITTS 05/17/2017 530,55
75137 05792 POLLARD WATER CO INC 05/17/2017 2,591.95
75138 02662 QUALITY CHEVROLET 05/17/2017 81.74
7513% 91155 QUALITY GATE COMPANY 05/17/2017 125.00
7514¢ 51077 RED WING SHCE STORE 05/17/2017 591.01
75141 05636 SAM'S CLUB 05/17/2017 2,331.19
75142 UB*00062 MAUREEN SANDERSON-MURDOCK  05/17/2017 50.71
75143 06563 SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC USA INC 05/17/2017 11,766.30
75144 00236 SCRAPPYS 05/17/2017 984.21
75145 91152 SOLARWINDS, INC 05/17/2017 1,015.00
75146 90929 SOQUTHWEST ANSWERING SERVICE, I 05/17/2017 882.19
75147 04092 STATE WATER RESCOURCES CONT BRI 05/17/2017 325,00
75148 (00621 TERRA TECHNOLOGY ENGINEERING 05/17/2¢17 519.20
75149 05883 TESTAMERICA LABORATORIES, INC. 05/17/2017 753.53
75150 04296 TRENCH PLATE RENTAL CO 05/17/2017 1,593.50
75151 06005 UNIFIRST CORP. 05/17/2017 393.18
75152 03027 UPS STORE 05/17/2017 83.00
75153 04313 USA BLUE BOOK 05/17/2017 2,398.67
75154 00458 VERIZON WIRELESS 05/17/2017 957.45
75155 02570 CHERYL WILLIAMS 05/17/2017 437.50

Total for 5/17/2017: 347,870.57

ACH 00152 FPUD EMPL ASSOCIATION 05/24/2017 909.78
ACH 02582 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPT 05/24/2017 6,620.00
ACH 06758 US TREASURY - PAYROLL TAXES 05/24/2017 58,270.87
ACH 06759 STATE OF CA - PR TAXES 05/24/2017 8,001.20
ACH 06760 STATE OF CA - SDI 05/24/2017 1,906.88
ACH 06761 LINCOLN FINANCIAL GROUP 05/24/2017 6,187.84
ACH 06763 PERS - PAYROLL 05/24/2017 34,213.13
75163 04995 AMERICAN MESSAGING 05/24/2017 12041
75164 06403 APPLECONE EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 05/24/2017 980.80
75165 06235 JACK BEBEE 05/24/2017 60.00
75166 06402 BRIAN BRADY 05/24/2017 100.45
75167 06012 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF CS8 05/24/2017 231.00
75168 03134 CALIFORNIA WATER ENVIRONMENT. 05/24/2017 768.00
75169 06676 CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC 05/24/2017 3,453.95
75170 03205 CITY OF OCEANSIDE 05/24/2017 1,039.73
75171 00370 CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES, INC.  05/24/2017 50.84
75172 02925 DATA NET SOLUTIONS 05/24/2017 100.00
75173 06022 JAMISON DAVIS 05/24/2017 166.49
75174 05180 NOELLE DENKE 05/24/2017 25.00
75175 00143 DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCE 05/24/2017 20,120.00
75176 (4425 DOMINICK'S SANDWICHES 05/24/2017 37.29
75177 (3087 MARCELLA M. EILERS 05/24/2017 858.50
75178 06303 EXECUTIVE LANDSCAPE INC. 05/24/2017 417.50
75179 01099 FALLBROOK IRRIGATION INC 05/24/2017 106.64
75180 00169 FALLBROOK OIL COMPANY 05/24/2017 1,285.71
75181 00170 FALLBROOK WASTE & RECYCLING  05/24/2017 549.70
75182 01432 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1083 05/24/2017 2,589.95
75183 05560 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 05/24/2017 250.00
75184 06286 GARDA CL WEST, INC, 05/24/2017 228.46
75185 02974 GOLDEN BELL PRODUCTS, INC. 05/24/2017 305.93
75186 04958 GOSCH FORD TEMECULA 05/24/2017 1,654.55
AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (6/1/2017 7:36 AM) Page 4

322



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
75187 02170 GRAINGER, INC. 05/24/2017 2,233.61
75188 06577 INFOSEND INC 05/24/2017 2,328.34
75189 (5255 INLAND WATER WORKS SUPPLY CO. 05/24/2017 4,040.63
75190 06267 J2 GLOBAL IRELAND LIMITED 05/24/2017 59.91
75191 06330 JANI-KING OF CALIFORNIA, INC - SA1 05/24/2017 2,117.39
75192 00190 JCI JONES CHEMICALS INC. 05/24/2017 4,301.06
75193 05401 JOE'S PAVING 05/24/2017 5,410.95
75194 90924 LAW OFFICES OF STEPHEN V. LOPAR] 05/24/2017 183.00
75195 06261 LAWTON GROUP 05/24/2017 278.10
75196 03765 LENNIHAN LAW 05/24/2017 4,603.08
75197 91130 LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANC 05/24/2017 3,956.56
75198 90887 LLOYD PEST CONTROL 05/24/2017 210.00
75199 06633 MAINTENANCE CONNECTION INC 05/24/2017 756.20
75200 91029 MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY CO  05/24/2017 269.38
75201 (4649 MAR-CON PRODUCTS, INC 05/24/2017 6,138.00
75202 03944 MISSION RESOURCE CONSV DISTRIC' 05/24/2017 3125
75203 06338 MYTHOS TECHNOLOGY INC 05/24/2017 2,750.89
75204 90932 NAPA AUTO PARTS 05/24/2017 1,303.09
75205 Q6707 NATIONAL METER & AUTOMATION  05/24/2017 2,736.47
75206 01267 PACIFIC PIPELINE 05/24/2017 15,542.11
75207 90939 PCM SALES, INC. 05/24/2017 1,072.26
75208 91007 PFM ASSET MANGEMENT LLC 05/24/2017 1,181.88
75209 04075 RAYNE WATER SYSTEMS 05/24/2017 125.00
75210 90944 ROBERT H JAMES 05/24/2017 950.00
75211 06666 SAGINAW CONTROL & ENGINEERINC 05/24/2017 213.60
75212 90925 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS 05/24/2017 204.75
75213 00159 SUPERIOR READY MIX 05/24/2017 1,244.89
75214 05904 RICHARD TANNER 05/24/2017 1,137.80
75215 06735 TCN, INC. 05/24/2017 123,90
75216 00250 TRY ENTERPRISES 05/24/2017 2,320.00
75217 (06512 ULINE, INC 05/24/2017 586.01
75218 00724 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT 05/24/2017 283.50
75219 06005 UNIFIRST CORP. 05/24/2017 506.01
75220 00458 VERIZON WIRELESS 05/24/2017 666.17
75221 04290 VILLAGE NEWS, INC. 05/24/2017 990.00
75222 06231 WESTERN WATER WORKS SUPPLY CC 05/24/2017 11,831.39
75223 91100 WESTIN ENGINEERING, INC. 05/24/2017 11,977.42
75224 02570 CHERYL WILLIAMS 05/24/2017 367.50
75225 UB*00064 PRISCILLAYOCK 05/24/2017 1,626.01

Total for 5/24/2017: 248,268.71

75226 UB*00065 THOMPSON AND ASSQCIATES 05/31/2017 522
75227 00101 ACWA JPIA 05/31/2017 87,295.38
75228 06323 ADVANCED COMMUNICATION SYSTE 05/31/2017 514.61
75229 01460 AFLAC 05/31/2017 1,627.11
75230 06661 MARK APRIL 05/31/2017 57.30
75231 06696 AT & T MOBILTIY 05/31/2017 56.09
75232 06020 BABCOCK & SONS, INC. 05/31/2017 530.00
75233 06402 BRIAN BRADY 05/31/2017 184.02
75234 04178 CALOLYMPIC SAFETY CO., INC. 05/31/2017 1,338.71
75235 03978 CAMERON WELDING SUPPLY 05/31/2017 991.27
75236 UB*00066 DAVID CROCKER 05/31/2017 977
75237 06299 D & H WATER SYSTEMS, INC 05/31/2017 360.88
75238 02925 DATA NET SOLUTIONS 05/31/2017 345.00
75239 05180 NOELLE DENKE 05/31/2017 2738
75240 04425 DOMINICK'S SANDWICHES 05/31/2017 33.99
AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (6/1/2017 7:36 AM) Page 5

323



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
75241 03391 ELECTRICAL SALES INC 05/31/2017 458.67
75242 (1099 FALLBROOK IRRIGATION INC 05/31/2017 44.53
75243 00169 FALLBROOK OIL COMPANY 05/31/2017 2,875.54
75244 04494 FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION 05/31/2017 126.45
75245 01432 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1083 05/31/2017 2,831.67
75246 05733 FIRST BANKCARD 05/31/2017 9.615.52
75247 06071 AL GEBHART 05/31/2017 594.60
75248 00182 GLENNIE'S OFFICE PRODUCTS, INC  05/31/2017 1,246.83
75249 04958 GOSCH FORD TEMECULA 05/31/2017 195.40
75250 02170 GRAINGER, INC. 05/31/2017 1,386.14
75251 03174 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COMPANY 05/31/2017 51.48
75252 06429 HEALTHPOINTE MEDICAL GROUP,IN( 05/31/2017 210.00
75253 06577 INFOSEND INC 05/31/2017 1,339.84
75254 00150 JCIJONES CHEMICALS INC. 05/31/2017 3,020.88
75255 06479 KNOCKOUT PEST CONTROL & TERMI 05/31/2017 200.00
75256 06324 LA TESTING 05/31/2017 361.50
75257 90916 KELLY EAUGHLIN 05/31/2017 35.85
75258 06261 LAWTON GROUP 05/31/2017 417.15
75259 06156 LOMACK SERVICE CORPORATION 05/31/2017 181.00
75260 04638 LOWE'S CORPORATION 05/31/2017 784.41
75261 06123 MACIAS GINI & O'CONNELL 05/31/2017 12,500.00
75262 04649 MAR-CON PRODUCTS, INC 05/31/2017 4,478.00
75263 (00718 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTICQ 05/31/2017 2,018.07
75264 06298 ONESQURCE DISTRIBUTCRS, LLC 05/31/2017 844,39
75265 01267 PACIFIC PIPELINE 05/31/2017 202.61
75266 04236 PALOMAR INVESTIGATIVE GROUP, I 05/31/2017 405.00
75267 04900 PARADISE CHEVROLET CADILLAC 05/31/2017 296.6%
75268 91104 RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS 05/31/2017 2,412.50
75269 00231 SAN DIEGQO COUNTY WATER AUTH 05/31/2017 1,293,663.30
75270 00232 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 05/31/2017 25,046.34
75271 91094 SCADA INTEGRATIONS 05/31/2017 7,865.25
75272 06401 SONSRAY MACHINERY LLC 05/31/2017 91.54
75273 02310 DAVID STAGG 05/31/2017 180,00
75274 00621 TERRA TECHNOLOGY ENGINEERING 05/31/2017 519.20
75275 05883 TESTAMERICA LABORATORIES, INC. 05/31/2017 55.12
75276 06005 UNIFIRST CORP. 05/31/2017 396.55
75277 06211 UNITED IMAGING 05/31/2017 420.25
75278 03027 UPS STORE 05/31/2017 23.09
75279 05909 WAGNER & BONSIGNORE, CONSULTI 05/31/2017 176.25
75280 02570 CHERYL WILLIAMS 05/31/2017 428.75

Total for 5/31/2017: 1,471,383.09
Report Total (303 checks): 3,316,973.55
AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (6/1/2017 7:36 AM) Page 6

324



Brian ). Brady

General Manager

325



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Annual Production

1400.0

Monthly Production

400.0

200.0

0.0

1400.0

1200.0 -

1000.0

800.0

600.0

Monthly Production
(AF)

400.0

200.0

0.0

N—

= | a5t Year

== Two Years Ago

MAY JUN JLY AUG SEP oCcT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR  APR MAY

Fallbrook Public Utility District
Total Potable Production
Potable
/ Production
Potable
Production
12 Month

N/

326



Monthly

Monthly Production & Sales

Salaes

(AF)

(AF)

Fallbrook Public Utility District
Ag and M&I Sales

700.0
600.0 M&I Sales
500.0
Sales
400.0 A9
M&I 12 Month
Rolling Avg
300.0 -
Ag 12 Month
Rolling Avg
200.0
100.0
0.0 r r r T : r - t . . T :
MAY16 JUN16 JUL16 AUG168 SEP16 QCT16 NOVi6 DEC16 JAN17 FEB17 MAR17 APR17 MAY17
Fallbrook Public Utility District
Recycled Water Production & Sales
180.0
Recycled
160.0 M\ Production
140.0 / v\ Recycled
g : _ﬂf Production
| 12 Month
1200 Rolling Avg
100.0 A
Recycled
800 - Sales
60.0
40.0 Recycled
Sales
412 Month
20.0 Rolling Avg
0.0 —

MAY16 JUN16 JUL16 AUG16 SEP16 OCT16 NOV16 DEC16 JAN17 FEB17 MAR17 APR17 MAY17

327



FPUD 12 Month Running Water Sales

20000.0

18000.0

16000.0

14000.0

12000.0
10000.0
8000.0

$3[BS Jv SYIUOJAl ZT SNOIABLd

6000.0

4000.0

2000.0

£ e

Fa //{
()
an
AL

j ! )
yany,

P v~ o

LTHdY
LINVI
91100
9TInr

9THdv
9TNVT
STLO0
STINf

STHdY
STNV(
¥ii0
¥1nr

PTHdY
VINVT
€T100
eTnr

ETudV
ETNVT
<100
crnr

ZTddv
CTNVT
TT1D0
1nr

TTddv
TINVT
01100
o1nr

0THdVY
OTNVT
60100
eo1nr

60ddV
G6ONYT
80100
801Nr

80YdY

328



Inches

10

Fallbrook Rainfall
In The Last 12 Months

.

Jun

3 97
2 05
0.57
0.25
IR
Feb

Jul  Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

ar Apr May

329



COLLECTION
MONTH REPORT

Number of Spills / 100 Miles

5 Year Sewer Overflows {SSO)
Per 100 Miles

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17

Gallons

5 Year SSO
Total Volume / Recovered

30000 / 27081

25000
20000
15000 -
10000 -
5000 2105 1575
10 190
A
o L8 £
12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17

330



COLLECTION

MONTHLY REPORT
5 Year CCTV
200000 -
F
E
160000 -
E
T
120000 -
C
C 80000 -
T
V' 40000 -
D

12-13 13-14 14/15 15/16 16/17

-1 '‘ubllic:
Udiity District

331



DEPT 5
MONTHLY REPORTS

METER EXCHANGE PROGRAM 2016 - 2017

300
250
241
\ N\
Z00
165 168 )(éz Goal
150 152
123 /
100 \
. /
, Y.
July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan  Feb Mar Apr May
TOTAL # METERS TO EXCHANGE: 1920
TOTAL # METERS EXCHANGED: 1737
METERS LEFT TO EXCHANGE: 183
PERCENTAGE REMAINING 9.53%
- BACKFLOW TESTING 2016 - 2017
Goal
I N
200
[ Naed "
150 I
. 108 l
s
50
(4
o
July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May
TOTAL TESTED GOAL: 1505
TOTAL TESTED TO DATE: 1470
TOTAL NUMBER OF DEVICES ON STAND BY: 126
DEVICES REMAINING TO TEST: 0
PERCENTAGE REMAINING 0%

332



System Operations Report - May 2017

ltem May-17 Year to Date
Valve Exercising Goal 189 945
Valves Exercised 234 696
Percentage Complete 123.8% 73.7%
Valves Replaced 0 78
Broken Valves Identified in System 9 297
Main Line leaks 5 17
Service Line Leaks 6 10
Approx. Gallons Lost Flushing 73,450 240,825
Approx. Gallons Lost to Leaks 134,505 794,050
Sewer Leaks 0 0

333



I

"7 102 Iudy ul pieog 0} ssesboid
Hoday "dnoib siabeuew [eisuab YAADQS/M SaAljELLID)E

alel Jo juswdojaasp pue sisAjeue BuioB-uQ “21L/£2/) (19)em pajean SAIPAIOY
uo payouq pieog ‘Bulob-uo Jopuowyeleidwo) SNEIS | uo abileyo pexiy mau) uejjodonely preod 106181 WO el
*L10Z yoJepy Joy pajabie) mou ‘(spiepue)s JaJepA ueqin) "@apiuWon)
£-g JO 8L0oIN0 YIMm PauIqLUIOD ag 0} APAIRE SIU] “ZL0T YoJe uoiealasuo) yum Buppom padojaasp
ul ayepdn pieog xaN (sj91dwod) 2102 Y2Je [un gOHMS 8q 0} yoeanno Ajunwwoo peyebie |
Aq pspuaixa pouad juswiwoy) ‘(919jdwod} 9102 J8qUSAON '88200.d (9yN) dnougy A10sIApY Ueqin SalIANOY
Aq pieog o} saulepinb GOUMS Jo sniejg 'BuioB-up SMEIS | {gOUMS) SPIepuBlg Jojep uequn pieog |  jebiel WO 4"
"uoISsnosip
foijod pieoq YANDQS ul ejediopied SaljIAIOY
‘Bulob-uQ SNEIS KoAnpe o) Jobeuepy [eisuas ‘preog | 19bie] NO ol
"L1L/6/9 U0 GOUMS 0} Juss Aoljod
199p pue Upny "8jels 0} juss pue Bupssw /|0z Atenuer je
pieog Aq paaoidde Buipuny JY4S JOj SUOKNIOSDY "SPIULWIOD ‘910z JequienopN Aq (suondo) SOIPANDY
21/6/9 | @oueinsu| pue A21j04 2os14 Yyym suoissnasip Buiobug SNEIS ueid Bupueuy 4ND HINS Szieuld preog | 1ebiel WO z
7102 ferugaq uanlb
yodsu Apeuenb jse ‘pieog 0} spodas Apauenb asederd  (9)
2102 Aei Aq pieog 0} juswaaiby uswsameg [euld  (q) "GOHUMS BILLOHIED Uum YoM
"gj9|dwo) Aessooau pue JAISN Y SI3 pue NOW
‘9102 Jequisides Aq uoneoyiped Joj preog oy d|3 () Buizijeuly Jo} a|NPayos Jua.1N2 uleIey SSIAIOY
‘BuloBb-uQ sNElS dNO HINS ‘preog | jebrel WO 9
“210Z Aepy-piul
Joy Buinpayosay “YOAA JUSpIsald Aq pauodisod “LL0Z ‘02
YoJe|y Malnal pleog palnpayos 210z ‘9 UoIe 1o pajnpayos "dno 8u3 Jo Buipuny spnjoul 0} ‘sieak
MBIAD] eeILIWON ‘sajes A4V 000'S PUe Q00’2 '000°6 UM | DAL JOAO SIES JO)EM PasSEaIdap UO paseq
uonoeloid papuswWwoss) saRILILOT) SoUBINSU| B Aljod |BoSId |  sjopow )el asedaid yeis jey) pajsenbay
‘sisfjeue |opoL el sijsley Ul paphjoul usag sey 1sanbay Jeydqess v LIz S
‘Auedoud ‘a1 uonejuasaidal
[ebe] ypm Buyeaw e (g pue Auadoid Jaary
‘1102 Judy ul pajedionue si doysyiops sieuped paloid euJebiepy eues sy} o} Bunelal sieyew
UM melaal [eriul ue a)eidwoo o) pue ued juawabeuew sy} uo JO UoISSNOSIp J0j 8w} Jusiiyns apircid
sojouabe 22Jnosal Loy SJUSWILWOD SAI9031 0} Buijiem ale ap 0} play aq dousyiom e (| pajsanbay olLrszre (2
8ageg Yoer MO ASpeuD | gLeLelL(l !
pajsjdwon pajsenbay ON
aeq a|npayss/yels Aq uonoy 1sonbay pue 10)sanbay o1eq wajy|

Bunosyy paeog Jejnbay 210z ‘9z sunp
SL1SINDIY AvOo4d 40 901

334



“1oqUWINU MeU B paubisse aJe SySB] MaN ‘ISi Sy} WoJ) PaAOW. 818 pejojdiiod SySe) asoy) Se JepJo uj jou si Buppusnbas tequin -9joN

‘sio1ndwion
doyde] papiaoad aq 03 1senbal ‘sjexoed

‘sajonb Buipab jo ssesoud ayy uy Apeig T Uuelg pseoq Jaded jo nay| u] “HEUGaD J0}93IIJ LVveiy R4
"ssa00.1d Buisopo Buiunodoe
Alytuow 8y} 0} sde)s ay) ybnosyy
MIOA J0J98II] YuM Bl Binpayos o) SISl SRIERN | -M|em O} Jels UM umop JIS S0AA 10103110 LULER L
‘(1 s81911y) sauljspinb 2102
‘Buneew pieoq aunp 1oy paNpayss “yegg Aq pamalael Buleg Buiseyoind asiney BP0 'Pdd Aenuge4 o¢
'210Z Jeyenb
182y Aq @y8|dwion “soyepdn yuow g Yim SSRIARDY
ndul pleog pasN SMEIS uejd s16a)es Jesf-G e ysigels3 piecd | 196iel WO ra™
‘uosess '910¢
Aurea Buunp ‘s|ge|ieae se ‘uoonisuod BuloB-uo "£102 19q010 Aq pseog o) oday Buiuueld SaljIAIOY
fienuer ul pleog o) papyiwsuel) J@6png pue sueld SHEIS aoeds o010 |esauab e)e|dwo) ‘pIEOg | 19biel WO oz
®li4 ON "all4 Ajuno)
UIM NOW YBnouy) papuny aq o} [esodold Jopuaa juswdinba | YUON yim uolounfuod ul Juaidinbe |ensia SaIAOY
opny -ajejdwoo Juswdinba uonosloid o) speifidn SNEJS | -olpne wool pJeoq dnd4 elepdn :preog | 1ebiel WO ve
‘Buneys juswdinba
‘goue]sSisse [edjuyos)} ‘Buussulbus
J10Z 'L Ainp 1eye un pauodisod ‘S9OIAJaS LUOIJRULIOjUl JO SEAJE U|
Auanoe sIyL 210z uosew ised pauodisod Bunesw ‘siabeuew | {(moquiey ‘BuwinA ‘Jsua) As|BA) spoulsIp
[esauab QMINY pue AMINDA Jo Jsanbal 1y "adoos ysiigelss Jorem BuuoqybBiau ypm saunpoddo SAIJINRY
0} 2102 Arenuer ul Bunesw aie siabeuely [eijsuas) SMEIS uonEepIosuoD [euoljoun) alojdxg pleog 1961e] NO A
*210Z Rew ul pJeog ayepdn “Alyiun £L0Z “L¢ Ateniged
10} pajnpayos uoisiosp pesodold "ZL/01L/Z 10} sieuq Aidal
pue /1/0Z/L 10} }os Mmou sjauq BuiuadO "9L0Z/LZ/0L-L10)
104 pe|npayos Ajjeuibuo sbuuesy DNdo |asunod (ewneds S]oeNUOY) JB|0S SONINIOY
W2ag Yyum BuieuipIoos WNIPOSUOD JousIp J9jeA  SNiejS 'a) ase)) ajey |eiausn) Jpods pieog | 1ebe) WO vl
"ON
pajoidwon a|npeyasgyels Aq uonoy 1senbay pue Jojsanbay uu.._wﬂ_n__. oY wivy|

sjeq

Bupeo pieog Jenbay 2102 ‘9g sung
$1S3ND3Y AuvOd 40 9071

335



	2017-06-26 - Agenda 
	A - Manager's Award

	B - Approval of Minutes

	C - Res. No. 4914 Placing Fixed Charge Special Assessments to Add Delinquent and Unpaid Charges for Water and Other Services on the San Diego Countyi Propery Tax Roll
	D - Ord. No. 338 - Fixing Water Standby or Availability Charges for 2017-18
	E - Santa Margarita Property Update
	F - Fire Management Plan for Santa Margarita River Property

	G - Coating Inspection Services - 8 MG, Sandia, and 2.8 MG Reservoirs

	H - 2017-18 Final Budget; Res. No. 4913

	I - Exception to 180 Day Waiting Period

	J - Microsoft Office 2016 Upgrade and Licensing Requirements

	K - Update on Development of a Policy for Closing the Fiscal Year 
	L - Establishing District Procurement Procedures Compliant with the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act and Electing to Become Subject to the Act and Ordinance Repealing and Replaceing Article 14 
	M - Replacement of 5th Wheel 3-Axle Tractor

	Reports




